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MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT PREVENTION ACT

MONDAY, JUNE 2, 1980

House oF REPRESENTATIVES, SUBCOMMITTEE oN (ConN-
suMER ProtecTioN AND FinancE, CoMMITTEE ON INTER-
STATE AND Forerany COMMERCE, AND THE SUBCOMMITTER
oN INTER-AMERICAN AFFAIRS, CoMMITTEE ON KOREIGN

AFPAIRS
’ New Porks, N.Y.

The subcommittees met, pursuant to notice at 10 a.m., 26 Federal
Plaza, room 305, Hon. James H. Scheuer, chairman of Subcommittee
on Consumer Protection and Finance, presiding. Hon. Gus Yatron,
chairman, Subcommittee on Inter-American Affeirs.

Mr. SceEUER, The hearing will now be in order.

This is the first day of hearings on H.R. 4178, which is the Motor
Vehicle Theft Prevention Act, authored by my colleagne, William
Green of New York City, from whom you will hear very shortly.

These hearings are joint hearings between the Consumer Protection
and Finance Subcommittee of the House Interstate and Foreign Com-
merce Committes and the Inter-American Affairs Subcommittee of
the Foreign Affairs Committee, chaired by Congressman Gus Yatron
of Pennsylvania.

This bill, authored by Congressman Green, we estimate would cut
auto thefts by approximately half. At the present time, auto thefts
constitute a $4 billion price tag to American society. About $3 hillion
is the cost of the thefts themselves and about anothet $1 billion is
tlﬁe cost of the Government law enforcement efforts involved with
them.

The auto theft business increases the cost of insurance in New York
State anywhere to nine times the cost of auto theft insurance.

Abvut a decade ago, I wrote a book about crime. At that time, auto
theft, which was of course important, was mostly a teenaged crime,
the freckle-faced kid down the block who had & beer too many and
went on a joyride. At that time, we recovered 80 percent of the cars
just a block or two from where they were first stolen and we had a
25-percent arrest rate because these kids were amateurs.

Today instead of 80 percent recovery, we have about 40 percent
recovery and instead of a 25-percent arrest rate we have a 15-percent
arrest rate because the perpetrators today are no longer amateurs.
They are tough, hard professionals.

They are organized crime. There is no question that organized
crime has infiltrated and is now dominating the auto theft business.

‘What would this bill do? No. 1, it would harden eriminal penalties
all the way up and down the line for auto theft, including the chop shop
owners, the crooked repair shopowners, who constitute the market for
these stolen cars.

Second, it would enable U.S. marshals, U.S. Customs Service people
at our ports, at our airports, at our docks, to make a through inspection
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of the documentation of the cars that were being shipped out of the
country to make sure that a car that was lifted in Flatbush was not on
its way to Latin America, Asia, or Africa a few hours later.

No. 3, and perhaps most important, the bill would require that a
VIN, V-I-N, a vehicle inspection number, be stamped on each major
part, on the doors, on the fenders, on the hood, on the trunk cover, so
that in a repair shop the parts that were being put on the car after an
aceident could be identified.

If they could be identified, that means that the auto repair owner,
the shopowner, would not be willing to buy parts from a car that had
been stolen and sold to him by organized crime. That would eliminate
the markets for the major parts of the car. That would eliminate the
incentive for organized crime to stay in the business of systematically
organizing the car theft racket in the United States.

At this time, before introducing our major witness, I would like to
call upon the author of this bill, Congressman William Green of New
York, who deserves a great deal of credit for his diligence and his
leadership for putting this bill together.

Congressman Green?

Mzr. Green, Thank you very much.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank Representative Scheuer
for his role in moving this legislation forward and for setting up this
series of hearings here in New York and later in the month in Wash-
ington on this legislation. I would also like to thank Representative
Gilman, the ranking minority member in the Inter-American Affairs
Subcommittee, for his participation in this hearing.

The basic purpose of this legislaation is to try to take the profit out
of auto theft. The basic purpose is to make parts essentially unsalable
in the black market through the vehicle identification numbers and
to make it harder to get into cars through improved locking devices.

I think it is very interesting in the work that I have done on this bill
that I have discovered that when cars are stolen and taken to so-called
chop shops to be disassembled into parts, almost invariably the auto-
matic transmission is thrown away, despite the fact that it is a very
valuable part of the car, because of the fact that it has a vehicle
identification number on it; whereas the so-called front clip and the
back clip and the doors, which do not have these kinds of identification
numbers, are highly marketable in the black market.

5o basically what we are trying to do is to take this situation that
is costing Americans $4 billion a year and make it unprofitable for
organized crime to operate in this area.

I am looking forward to the testimony that Chairman Scheuer has
assembled today to enlighten us further about this problem and I hope
that that will be a basis on which this subcommittee, five of whose seven
members are cosponsors of the bill, including Chairman Scheuer and
Mr. Gilman will, on the conclusion of the testimony, decide that this
will be a useful effort and report the bill to the full committee for
further consideration.

Thank you very much.

Mr, Scaeuer. Thank you, Congressman Green,

Without objection, the text of H.R. 4178 and agency reports thereon
will be printed at this point in the record.

[Testimony resumes on. p.38.]

[Text of H.R. 4178 and agency reports thereon follow :]




[H.R. 4178, introduced by Mr. Greene (for himself, Mr. Bafalis, Mr. Carter, Mr.
Corrada, Mr. Downey, Mr. Forsythe, Mr., Garcia, Mr. Gillman, Mr. Guarini,
Ms. Holtzman, Mr. Horton, Mr. Hyde, Mr. Jenrette, Mr. Lederer, Mr. Lee,
Mr, McEwen, Mr. Moakley, Mr. Mottl, Mr. Murphy of Pennsylvania, Mr, Rangel,
Mr, Roe, Mr, Scheuer, Mr. Wolff, and Mr, Zeferetti), on May 22, 1979.

Cosponsored on June 21, 1979, by:
Mr. Addabbo, Mr. LaFalce, Mr. Hughes, Mr. Hollenbeck, Mr, Fish, Mr. Luken,

Mr. Burgener, Mr. Cotter, Mr. Mitchell of New York, Mr. Solarz, and Mr.
Bingham;

Cosponsored on November 13, 1979, by: ‘
Mr. Florio;

Cosponsored on January 22, 1980, by:
Mr. Weaver, Mr. Miller of California, Mr. Stark, Mr. Stokes, Mr. Biaggi, Mr.

Carney, Mr, Hanley, Mr. Kemp, Mr, Rosenthal, Mr, $Solomon, Mr. Wydler, and
Mr. Lundine;

Cosponsored on February 12, 1980, by :
Mr. Rinaldo;

Cosponsored on May 5, 1980, by:
Mr, Devine and Mr. Bailey;

Cosponsored on May 14, 1980, by:

Mr, Ottinger]
A BILL

To improve the physical security features of the motor vehicle
and its parts, to increase the criminal penalties of persons
trafficking in stolen motor vehicles and parts, to curtail the
exportation of stolen motor vehicles, to stem the growing
problem of “chop shops,” and for other purposes.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-

2 tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,
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1 That this Act may be cited as the ‘“Motor Vehicle Theft Pre-

2 vention Act of 1979.”
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ing:

TITLE I—FINDINGS AND PURPCSES
Sec. 101. The Congress finds and declares the follow-

(a) The annual number of repoerted motor vehicle
thefts is approaching one million vehicles. Approxi-
mately 50 per centum of all larcenies reported to law
enforcement authorities in the United States are direct-
ed against the motor vehicle, its accessories, or its con-
tents. The recovery rate of stolen vehicles has signifi-
cantly decreased over the past decade.

(b) The theft and disposition of stolen motor vehi-
cles and their parts is becoming more professional in
nature. It has also attracted elements of organized
crime which have used intimidation and violence as a
means of cbtaining increased control of “chop shop”
operations. These activities are having a serious effect
on interstate and foreign commerce. There is indication
that organized crime is using auto theft proceeds to
purchase addictive and illegal drugs for resale and for
other illicit activities that are extremely harmful to our
society.

(c) The theft of motor vehicles has brought in-

creased and unnecessary burdens to automobile users
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and to American taxpayers as the national financial
cost of motor vehicle-related theft offenses now ap-
proaches 4 billion dollars annually. This has had an
impact on the overall rate of inflation through higher
insurance rates.

(d) National and international uniformity on cer- |
tain standards such as vehicle identification and titling
would further facilitate commerce and prevent criminal
abuse.

{e) A cooperative partnership between the States
and the Federal Government is required to devise ap-
propriate interrelated systems in the area of motor ve-
hicle titling and registration in order to help curb
motor vehicle theft.

() Farm and industrial users are concerned with
the theft of their self-propelled vehicles. Due to a lack
of meaningful data in this area, a need exists to study
this problem.

(2) The theft of motor vehicles and their parts and
their unlawful disposition can be significantly curtailed
through the more effective use of the facilities of the
National Crime Information Ceﬁter by both law en-
forcement authorities and the State motor vehicle reg-

istrars,
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(h) The cooperation and assistance of the auto-
mobile insurance industry is needed to curb the grow-
ing problem of insurance fraud through improvements
in their procedures for their claim processes, disposition
of salvage vehicles, and issuance of policies.

(! Automobile anti-theft campaigns at the local
level which have increased citizen involvement and
have been sponsored by the insurance industry have
been effective in reducing motor vehicle theft.

() An increased vigilance by used motor vehicle
dealers, motor vehicle dismantlers, recyclers, and sal-
vage dealers, and by motor vehicle repair and body
shops is crucial to curtail their important industries
from being used to facilitate crime through the disposi-
tion of stolen motor vehicles and their parts.

(k) The shipment of stolen motor vehicles and
their parts as well as farm and industrial equipment
outside the Unitéd States is a serious problem. The co-
operation of shippers and operators of the nation’s ves-
sels, railroads, and aircraft is necessary to hinder such
illicit exportation.

() The continued assistance and cooperation of
our sovereign neighhors, Canada and Mexico, are key
ingredients necessary to aid us in our efforts to protect

our citizens’ property by limiting the opporfunity for
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stolen motor vehicles to enter their réspective countries
from the United States.

(m) An increased prosecutive emphasis must be
given by Federal, State, and local prosecutors to motor
vehicle theft violations with particular emphasis being
given to professional theft rings and “(;hop shops”.

(n) The commendable and constructive efforts of
the Attorney General, Secretary of Transportation,
Secretary of the Treasury, Secretary of State, and
Secretary of Commerce in the formation of the Inter-
agency Committee on Auto Theft Prevention, with the
cooperation from the private sector, should be contin-
ued and expanded upon,

Sro. 102. The purposes of this Act are to—

() improve the standards for security devices for
motor vehicles;

(b) improve the identification numbering systems
for motor vehicles and their major components;

(c) increase the Federal “criminal penalties for
those persons trafficking in stolen motor vehicles and
their parts; and _

(d) establish procedures to reduce opportunities for

exporting stolen motor vehicles.
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TITLE II—IMPROVED SECURITY FOR MOTOR

VEHICLES AND MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS

‘8ec. 201. Section 103 of the National Traffic and
Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966 (15 U.S.C. 1392) is
amended by adding at the end the following new subsection:

“@G) Standards establisﬁed by the Secretary under this
section shall include standards to reduce the theft of the
motor vehicle and its parts, taking into account—

“(1) the cost nf implementing the standard and
the benefits attainnble as a result of the implementa-
tion of the standard;

“(2) the effect of implementation of the standard
on the cost of autdmobile insurance;

“(3) savings in terms of consumer time and incon-
venience; and

“(4) considerations of safety.”.

SEc. 202. (a) In exercising the authority given to the
Secretary of Transportation under section 103() of the Na-
tional Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966 (15
U.8.C. 1322), as added by section 201 of this Act, the Secre-
tary shall consult closely with the Attorney Gteneral, the In-
ternational Association of Chiefs of Police, the International
Association of Auto Theft Investigators, the National Auto-
mobile Theft Bureau, and other groups and individuals inter-

ested in or affected by the motor vehicle theft problem.
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(b)(1) Within twelve months after the date of enactment
of this Act, the Secretary of Transportation shall issue pro-
posed notices of rulemaking covering the areas of unauthor-
ized starting of the motor vehicle and major component iden-
tification.

(2) The proposed rule covering the prevention of the
unauthorized starting of the motor vehicle shall take into
consideration ongoing technological developments relating to
the utilization of the microelectronics in the motor vehicle,
automatic activation of the security system, and possible
elimination of the existing metallic mechanical key system
presently used to activate the motor vehicle.

(8) The proposed rule relating to the theft of motor vehi-
cle parts shall take into consideration ongoing technological
developments, including laser marking machines, to place
identification numbers on those major components which are
the primary target of the “chop shops”.

(4) After an appropriate comment period and the analy-
sis thereof, the Secretary of Transportation shall issue final
rules as soon as possible, but not later than twenty-four
months after the date of enactment of this Act. The initial
effective date of such final rules shall be as soon as practica-
ble but before the introduction of two model years or two
calendar years, whichever is shorter, following the issuance

of any final rule. Any final rule shall encourage and permit

68-033 0 ~ 80 ~ 2
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the manufacturer to conform to its requirements before the
rule’s mandatory effective date.

Sec. 203. Whenever there is in effect a Federal motor
vehicle security standard relating to a motor vehicle’s start-
ing system, the locking systems for the engine, passenger,
and trunk compartments, and component part identification
established under this title, no State or political subdivision of
a State shall have any authority to establish or to continue in
effect, with respect to any motor vehicle or motor vehicle
part, any security standard relating to those same systems
which is not identical to such Federal standard.

TITLE III—ANTIFENCING MEASURES

Sec. 301. (a) Chapter 25 of titlc 18, United States
Code, is amended by 2dding after section 509 the following
new sections:

“§510, Altering or remeving motor vehicle identification
numbers

“Whoever knowingly removes, obliterates, tampers
with, or alters any identification number for any motor vehi-
cle or part thereof required under regulations issued by the
Secretary of Transportation shall be fined not more than

$5,000, imprisoned not more than five years, or both.
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“§511. Forfeiture of motor vehiclez and their parts which
have had identification numbers altered or
removed

“(a) PrOPERTY SUBJECT TO FORFEITURE.—Any
motor vehicle or motor vehicle part required to have an iden-
tification number pursuant to regulations issued by the Secre-
tary of Transportation which has had such number removed,
obliterated, tampered with, or altered shall be subject to
seizure and forfeiture to the United States unless—

(1) such motor vehicle part has been attached to

a motor vehicle owned by an innocent purchaser of

such part; or

(2) such motor vehicle or motor vehicle part has a
replacement identification number which is authorized
by the Secretary of Transportation or is in conformity
with the applicable law of the State where such motor
vehicle or motor vehicle part was seized.

(b) ForrEITURE PROCEDURES.—AIl provisions of law
relating to the seizures, summary and judicial forfeiture pro-
cedures, and condemnation of vessels, vehicles, merchandise
and baggage for violation of customs laws; the disposition of
such vessels, vehicles, merchandise and baggage or the pro-
ceeds from such sale; the remissi;)n or mitigation of such for-
feitures; and the compromise of claims and the award of com-

pensation to informers in respect of such forfeitures shall
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apply to seizures and forfeitures incurred or alleged to have
incurred under the provisions of this section, insofar as appli-
cable and not inconsistent with such provisions. Such duties
as are imposed upon the collector of customs or any other
person in respect to the seizure and forfeiture of vessels, ve-
hicles, merchandise and baggage under the customs laws
shall be performed with respect to seizures and forfeitures of
property under this section by such officers, agents, or other
persons as may be designated for that purpose By the Attor-
ney General.”.

(b) The table of sections for chapter 25 of title 18,
United States Code, is amended by adding at the end thereof
the foilowing new items:

“§510., Altering or removing motor vehicle identification
numbers.

“§511, Forfeiture of motor vehicles and their parts which
have had identification numbers altered or
removed.”.

Skc. 802. Section 2311 of title 18, United States Code,
is amended in the definition of “Securities’” by inserting im-
mediately after ‘“‘voting trust certificate;”” the following:
“motor vehicle title until it is cancelled by the State indicated
thereon or blank motor vehicle title;”’.

SEc. 303, Section 2818 of title 18, United States Code,

is amended—
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11
(1) by striking out “moving as, or which is a part
of, or which constitutes interstate or foreign com-
merce,” and inserting in lieu thereof ‘“‘which has
crossed a State or United States boundary after being
stolen,”; and
(2) by inserting ‘“‘possesses,” immediately after

“receives,”.

Sec. 304. (a) Chapter 113 of title 18, United States
Code, is amended by adding at the end the following new
section:

“§ 2319, Trafficking in motor vehicies or their parts which
have had identification numbers altered or
removed.

“Whoever buys, receives, possesses, or obtains control
of, with intent to sell, transfer, distribute, dispense, or other-
wise dispose of, any motor vehicle or motor vehicle part,
knowing that an identification number required pursuant to
regulations issued by the Secretary of Transportation has
been removed, obliterated, tampered with, or altered, shall be
fined not more than $25,000, imprisoned not more than ten
years, or both.”.

(b) The table of sections for chapter 113 of title 18,
United States Code, is amended by adding at the end thereof
the following: '
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§2319, Trafficking in motor vehicles or their parts which
have had identification numbers altered or

removed.”.

SEc. 305 Section 1961(1) of title 18, United States

1

2

3

4

5 Code, is amended—
6 ) (1) by inserting “‘sections 2312 and 2313 (relating
7 to interstate transportation of stolen motor vehicles),”
8 immediately after “section 1955 (relating to the prohi-
9

bition of illegal gambling business),”; and

10 (2) by inserting “‘section 2319 (relating to the
11 trafficking in motor vehicles or their parts with altered
12 or removed identification numbers),” immediately after
13 “sections 2314 and 2315 (relating to the interstate
14 transportation of stolen property),”.

15 Sec. 806. (a) Section 3002 of title 39, United States

16 Code, is amended—

17 (1) in the section heading, by inserting “and ma-
18 nipulative devices” after “keys’’;

19 (2) in subsection (a), by striking out *‘subsection
20 (b)” and inserting in leu thereof “‘subsection (c)”’;

21 (8) by redesignating subsections (b) and (c) as sub-
22 sections {c) and (d), respectively;

23 (4) in subsection (c), as redesignated by paragraph
24 (8) of this section, by inserting ‘“‘and subsection (b)”

25 immediately after ‘‘subsection (a)’;




[

W MM ~Aa » Gt > W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

15

18
(5) by inserting after subsection (a) & new subsec-
tion (b) to read as follows:

“(b) Bxcept as provided in subsection (c) of this section,
any manipulative type device which is designed or adapted to
operate, circumvent, remove, or render inoperable the igni-
tion switch, ignition lock, door lock, or trunk lock of two or
more motor vehicles, or any advertisement for the sale of any
such manipulative type device is nonmailable matter and
shall not be carried or delivered by mail.”’; and

(6) by adding at the end a new subsection (e) to
read as follows:

“(e) Upon evidence satisfactory to the Postal Service
that any person is engaged in & scheme or device for obtain-
ing money or property through the mail by advertising or
offering for sale any motor vehicle master key or manipula-
tive device made nonmailable by this section, the Postal
Service may issue an order of the same kind and with the
same incidents as that authorized by section 3005 of this
title.”.

(b) The table of sections for chapter 30 of title 89,
United States Code, is amended in the item relating to sec-
tion 3002 by inserting “and manipulative devices” after

Mkeys”.
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SEc. 807. (a) Section 1716A of title 18, United States

Code, is amended in the section heading by inserting “and
manipulative devices” after “keys”.

(b) The table of sections for chapter 83 of title 18,
United States Code, is amended in the item relating to sec-
tion 1716A by inserting “and manipulative devices” after
“keys’”’.

TITLE IV—IMPORTATION AND EXPORTATION
MEASURES

Spc. 401. (a) Chapter 27 of title 18, United States
Code, is amended by adding after section 552 the following
new section:

“§553. Unlawful importation or exportation of stolen self-
propelied vehicles, vessels, or aircraft.

“(a) Whoever imports, exports, or attempts to import or
export (1) any self-propelled vehicle, or part of a self-pro-
pelled vehicle, vessel, or aircraft, knowing the same to have
been stolen, or (2) any self-propelled vehicle or part of a self-
propelled vehicle, knowing that its identification number has
been removed, obliterated, tampered with, or altered, shall be
fined not more than $10,000, imprisoned not more than five
years, or both.

“(b) For purposes of this section, the term—

“(1) ‘self-propelled vehicle’ includes any auto-

mobile, truck, tractor, bus, motorcycle, motor home,
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and any other self-propelled agricultural machinery,

self-propelled construction equipment, self-propelled

special use equipment, and any other self-propelled ve-
hicle used or designed for running on land but not on
rail;

“(2) ‘vessel’ has the meaning given to it in section

401 of the Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C. 1401); and

“(3) ‘aircraft’ has the meaning given to it in sec-

tion 101(5) of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958 (49

U.S.C. 1301(5)).”.

(b) The table of sections for chapter 27 of title 18,
United States Code, is amended by adding at the end thereof
the following:

“553. Unlawful importation or exportation of stolen self-
propelled vehicles, vessels, or aircraft.”,

SEc. 402. The Tariff Act of 1930 is amended by adding
after section 624 (19 U.8.C. 1624) the following new sec-
tions:

“SEC. 625, UNLAWFUL IMPORTATION OR EXPORTATION OF
STOLEN SELF-PROPELLED VEHICLES, VESSELS,
OR AIRCRAFT; CIVIL PENALTY. .

“(a) Whoever knowingly imports, exports, or attempts
to import or export (1) any stolen self-propelled vehicle,
vessel, aircraft, or part of a self-propelled vehicle, vessel, or

aircraft, or (2) any self-propelled vehicle or part of self-pro-
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pelled vehicle from which the identification number has been

removed, obliterated, tampered with, or altered, shall be sub-

*ject to a civil penalty in an amount determined by the Secre-

tary, not to exceed $10,000 for each violation.

“(b) Any violation of this section shall make such self-
propelled vehicle, vessel, aircraft, or part thereof subject to
seizure and forfeiture under this Act.

«SEC. 624, INSPECTION OF USED SELF-PROPELLED VEHICLES
TO BE EXPORTED; DEFINITIONS,

“(a) A person attempting to export & used self-propeiled
vehicle shall present, pursuant to regulations prescribed by
the Secretary, to the appropriate customs officer both the
vehicle and s document describing that vehicle which in-
cludes the vehicle identification number, before lading if the
vehicle is to be transported by vessel or aircraft, or prior to
export if the vehicle is to be transported by rail, highway, or
under its own power. Failure to comply with the regulations
of the Secretary shall subject the exporter to a penalty of not
more than $500 for each violation.

“(b)- For purposes of this section and section 625, the
term—

“(1) ‘self-propelled vehicle’ includes any auto-
. mobile, truck, tractor, bus, motorcycle, motor home,
self-propelled agricultural machinery, self-propelled

construction equipment, self-propelled special use
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equipment, and any other self~-propelled vehicle used or
designed for running on land but not on rail;
“(2) ‘aircraft’ has the meaning given to it in sec-
tion 101(5) of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958 (49
U.8.C. 1301(5)); and
“(8) ‘used’ refers to any self-propelled vehicle

other than s new self-propelled vehicle which is ex-

ported by the original manufacturer or by such manu-

facturer’s authorized agent.”. ’

Suc. 408. The Tariff Act of 1930 is further amended by
adding after section 588 (19 U.S.C. 1588) the following new
section:
“SEC. 589. ADDITIONAL AUTHORITY FOR UNITED STATES CUS-

TOMS SERVICE.

“A customs officer, as defined in section 401() of this
Act, may (1) carry firearms, execute and serve search war-
rants and arrest warrants, and serve subpenas and sum-
monses issued under the authority of the United States, and
(2) make arrests without warrant for any offense against the
United States committed in his presence or for any felony
cognizable under the laws of the United States if he has rea-
sonable grounds to believe that the person to be arrested has
committed, or is committing, such a felony.”.

SEo. 404. (a)(1) Section 7607 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1954 (26 U.S.C. 7607) is repealed.
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(2) The table of sections for subchapter A of chapter 78

is amended in the item relating to section 7607 by striking
out “Additional authority for Bureau of Customs” and insert-
ing in lieu thereof “Repealed”.

() A prosecution under section 7607 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1954 (26 U.S.0. 7607) for any violation of
law occurring before the effective date of subsection (a) of
this section shall not be affected by the repeal made by such
subsection or abated by reason thereof.

(¢) Civil seizure, forfeiture, and injunctive proceedings
commenced under section 7607 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1954 (26 U.8.C. 7607) before the effective date of
subsection (a) of this section shall not be affected by the
repeal made by such subsection or abated by reason thereof.

TITLE V—REZORTING REQUIREMENTS

SEro. 501. (a) Within eighteen months after the date of
the enactment of this Act the Attorney General, after consul-
tation with the Secretaries of Agriculture, Commerce, Trans-
portation, and the Treasury, shall submit to the Congress a
report on the developments in the area of the theft of off-
highway vehicles and the steps being taken to help prevent
their theft as well as hinder their subsequent disposition, and
facilitate .their recovery. Included in the report shall be—

(1) the progress being made by the various manu-

facturers of off-highway vehicles to develop identifica-
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tion numbering systems effective in identifying such
vehicles;

(2) the effectiveness of the location and manner by
which such identification numbers are affixed to the
off-highway vehicle by the manufacturer, including the
affixing of such number in & confidential location;

(3) the degree to which the various manufacturers
are reporting the characteristics of their numbering
identification systems for off-highway vehicles to the
National Crime Information Center (NCIC) so that ap-
propriate edit controls over entries and inquiries can be
established by NCIC;

(4) the progress being made toward the establish-
ment within the off-highway vehicle industry of an in-
dustry-wide unique identification numbering system;

(5) the degree to which manufacturers of off-high-
wey vehicles have affixed unique identification numbers
to the major components of the vehicle;

(6) the degree to which manufacturers of off-high-
way vehicles have established record systems which
permit a cross-referencing between the identification
numbers of the vehicle and those of the msjor compo-

nents;




@ @ ~1I & Wt o W N e

RS DO BO DD DD e et bt b bt e e et e
PWMHOQOCDOJGWP%MHO

22

20

(7) changes being made to the format and proce-
dures of the NCIC to better deal with the theft of \ -
highway vehicles and their major components;

(8) the degree of cooperation of the various mans .-
facturers of such off-highway vehicles with the Na-
tion’s law enforcement community to reduce the theft
problem in this area;

(9) the efforts being made by the owners of exist~
ing off-highway vehicles to affix an owner applied
number (OAN) to such vehicles and the major compo-
nents thereof;

(10) the passage of any State laws relating to the
titling or deeding of off-highway vehicles;

(11) the passage of any State laws which make it
g State crime to remove, obliterate, tamper with, or
alter the identification number affixed by the manufac-
turers to any off-highway vehicle or major component
of such vehicle;

(12) the passage of any State laws permitting the
seizure by law enforcement for investigative purposes
and possible forfeiture of any off-highway vehicle or
major component thereof which has had its manufac-
turer’s affixed identification Luusher removed, obliterat-

ed, tampered with, or altered;
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(18) the degree to which manufacturers of off-

highway vehicles have developed a manufacturer’s cer-

tificate of origin which contains adequate internal secu-

Tity features to guard against forgery, alteration, and

counterfeiting, lists the serial number of the vehicle

itself as well as the serial numbers of any major ecom-
ponents, and can serve as g de facto title for such vehi-
cle by assignment to subsequent purchasers;

(14) the steps being taken by those elements of
the private sector which auction off, make loans on,
and insure off-highway vehicles to help deter stolen
off-highway vehicles from being reiﬂtroduced into the
channels of legitimate commerce; and -

(15) any assessments of the scope of the problem
as well as any recommendations the Attorney General
may deem appropriate.

(b) For purposes of this section, the term “off-highway
vehicle” means a vehicle or work machine that is self-pro-
pelled or pushed or towed by a self-propelled vehicle and the
primary function of which is off-highway in application. Any
on-highway operation is incidental to the vehicle’s primary
function. This includes self-propelled agricultural, forestry,
industrial, construction, and any other non-transportation

special use equipment.
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Sgc. 502. On or before the first June 30 which occurs
at least fifteen months after the date of enactment of this
Act, and on or before each June 30 thereafter for the follow-
ing nine successive years, the Attorney General, in consulta-
tion with the Secretary of Transportation, the Secretary of
the Treasury, and the Postmaster General, shall submit to
the Congress a report on the implementation and develop-
ment of the provisions of titles IT, 1T, and IV of this Act and
the effectiveness of such provisions in helping to prevent and
reduce motor vehicle-related theft.

O
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Hon. Harley O, Staggexs
Chairman, Committee on

Interstate and Foreign Commerce
House of Representatives
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Chairman:

This is in reply to your request for the views of this Department
on H.R, 1955, a bill

"To improve the physical security features of

the motor vehicle and its parts, increase the

criminal penalties of persons trafficking in

stolen motor vehicles and parts, and to cur-

tail the exportation of stolen motor vehicles

and for other purposes.”

As a-membex of the Federal Interagency Committee on duto Theft
Prevention, the Department of Commerce fully supports the bill
which provides, inter alia, the following:

1. Reguires automobile manufacturers to install more securxe
locking systems, and to place the vehicle identification numbers
{VI®) on all prinecipal body paxts;

2, Makes it a Federal offense punishable by a $5,000 €ine
or 5 years imprisonment oxr both, to alter the VIN. Professional
"chop-ghop" operators could be fined $25,000 or iwmprisoned L0
years,'or both;

3. Amends the National Stolen Property Act to include vehicle
titles, so as to restrain fravdulent titling schemes;

4. Expands the racketeering influence and corrupt oxrgani-
zations (RICO) statute to cover "chop-shop" operations. Those
individuals who traffic in stolen vehicles and their parts could
have theix businesses seized by Federal authorities, and forfeited;

68-093 0 - 80 - 3
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5. Prohibits the sale or advertisement of devices used to
break into automobiles; .

6. Permits the U.S. Customs Service to arrest individuals
attempting to export a stolen vehicle. Currently, Customs Agents
can only arrest narcotics or navigation law violators;

7. Gives authority to the Secretary of Treasury to make it
more difficult to export stolen motor vehicles;

8. Directs the Attorney General to conduct a comprehensive
study of the growing theft of agricultural and construction
equipment;

9. Requires that on or before the first June 30 which occurs

at least 15 months after the enactment of this legislation and on

or before each June 30 thereafter for the following four successive
years, the Attorney General, in consultation with the Secretaries

of Transportation and Treasury, and the Postmaster General submit

a report to the Congress on the implementation of various provisions
of the Act and the effectiveness of such provisions in helping to
prevent and reduce motor vehicle related theft; and

10. Finally, the bill grants the Secretary of Transportation
authority to establish vehicle standards to reduce theft.

Motor vehicle theft imposes costs primarily on the vehicle owner
either directly ox through the owner's insurex. We recognize that
there are moral hazards and law enforcement aspects as well. How-
ever, because of the predominance of private costs, the criteria
for establishing standards should be cleaxly directed at the costs
and benefits to the vehicle purchaser. These include monetary,
inconvenience, and safety dimensions.

One of the options open to the Secretary of Transportation should
clearly be no standard at all. Alternative means of theft pre-
vention, such as consumer education about the xrisks and costs of
theft and insurance premium incentives for theft control, should be
actively considered along with evaluation of the feasibility and
effectiveness of vehicle standarxds.
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Nothwithstanding our comment above, the Depaxtmentof Commerce
strongly endorses the enactment of such legislation as a very
important initiative in combating the theft of motox vehicles.
The United States Department of Justice estinates that the
cost to the American consumer and taxpayer for automobile
theft and enforcement efforts exceeds $4 billion annually. It
is also of great concern to the Department of Justice that
few Americans realize that the crime of automobile theft is
no longer one confined to the recalecitrant youth interested
in joyriding. The problem of auto theft is one in which
organized crime elements in our society have become involved
and is "the most lucrative illegitimate business today"
according to the FBI.

You have also regquested our views ofg H.R. 4178,/ a bill for the
same generxal purpose. We would defer to EﬁE—Views of the
Attorney General and the Secretary of Transportation as to
which of these bills is better suited to meet the objective of
reduecing motoxr vehicle thefts.

We have been advised by the Office of Management and Budget that
there would be no objection to the submission of cur report to
the Congress from the standpoint of the Administration's program.

Sincerely,

—
C. L, Haslam
General Counsel
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LEGIELATIVE AFFAIRS

Bepartment of Justice
Washington, D.¢. 20530

NOV 2 ¢ 1979

Honorable Harley O, Staggers

Chairman, Committee on Interstate
and Foreign Commerce

House of Representatives

Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Chairman:

This is in response to your request for our views on
H.R. 1955 and H.R. 4178, both of which are entitled the
"Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Act of 1979." H.R. 4247,
which is identical to H.R. 1955, will also be covered by our
report,

Both H.R. 1955 and H,R, 4178 are based upon H,R. 14252
of the 95th Congress, H.R. 14252 was submitted to the Congress
for its consideration by this Department on September 6, 1978,
The various modifications made to H.R, 14252 by H.R, 1955 and
H.R, 4178 are improvements and generally meet with the approval
of this Department. We do, however, have three suggested
changes which we will make reference to later in our 'report.

We have attached hereto a memorandum which details the differ~
ences between these bills., Since H,R., 4178 is the most com-
prehensive of the measures and includes all the additional
provisions of H.R., 1955, we consider H,R. 4178 to be the
primary bill, As of this time H.R. 4178 has over 45 co-sponsors
in the House. An identical version to H.R., 4178 has been intro-
duced in the Senate (S. 1214). Because the section-by-section
analysis for S, 1214 is applicable to H.R. 4178, we are #
attaching & copy of a Senate Congressional Record reprint which
pertains to S, 1214,

¥ Nor PRINTED,
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Basically, the changes made by H.R. 4178 to H.R. 14252
consist of (1) an improved articulation of the findings and
purposes of the legislation; (2) the imposition of time limits
for the implementation of the regulations required under the
bill relating to component identification and unauthorized
starting of the motor vehicle; (3) the removal of the possibility
of seizure and forfeiture of motor vehicles and motor vehicle
parts in two limited situations where their required identifica~
tion number has been removed, obliterated, tampered with ox
altered; and (4) expansion of the scope of the study relating
to theft of off-highway vehicles used in the construction and
farming, industries.

There are three areas in Title II of H.R. 4178, however,
where we would recommend change. They are:

1) Section 202(b)(2) and (3) state that the Secretary of
Transportation must take into account in the proposed and
final standards certain specific ongoing technological
developments. While we believe that the specific technolo-
glcal areas cited should be fully considered, we are
apprehensive that focusing the rulemaking process by
statute on specific technology could predetermine the
result and undermine the whole program, Accordingly, we
recommend that section 202(b)(2) be amended to read:

""(2) the proposed rules concerning the prevention
of the unauthorized starting of the motor vehicle
and the theft of motor vehicle parts shall take
into account ongoing technological developments,”

Section 202(b) (3) should then be deleted and paragraph
"(4)" should be renumbered paragraph "(3)". The specific
technological areas presently cited could then be set
forth in the section-by~section analysis of the bill,
This approach would accomplish the purposes of the provi~
sion without unduly prejudicing the rulemaking process,

2) 1In Section 202(a) of the bill there is reference to
. several specific groups with which the Secretary must
consult closely in exercising his authority, While each
of the specific groups mentioned should be consulted
there are undoubtedly others, Accordingly, we recommend
that Section 202(a) be amended to read in relevant part:
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" . . . , the Secretary shall consult closely

with the Attorney General, the law enforcement
community, the insurance industry, the motor
vehicle manufacturers, and any other groups and
individuals interested in or affected by the motor
vehicle theft problem,"

Of course, the specific groups now listed as well as
other equally capable groups could be set forth in the
section~by~section analysis of the bill.

3) Finally, we believe in the section-by-section
analysis of Section 201 of the bill it would be advis-
able to use appropriate language to show that the
cost/benefit analysis that the Secretary must make is
one of judgment and that an absolute conclusiveness for
his determination is not required, if such were indeed
possible, in such an area where the various contributing
factors to motor vehicle theft are not humanly contxol=-
lable and are constantly changing,

Motor vehicle related theft is a serious national crime
problem, Thefts of the motor vehicle, its contents and its
accessories accounted for over 45 percent of all larcenies
reported to law enforcement in 1978, The combined costs to the
public attributable to these thefts approached $4 billion in
1978. Of course, all of us as consumers and taxpayers must
bear the costs of these vehicle related crimes, Motor vehicle
theft has over the past decade evolved more and more into a
professional crime., While juveniles arrested for motor vehicle
theft still constitute more than 50 percent of those arrested,
the juvenile participation rate has been declining. In fact,
the solution rate itself for motor vehicle theft has declined
from 24,3 percent in 1967 to 16,3 percent in 1978, This
represents a decline of 33 percent, Moreover, the value recovery
rate of 86 percent of all stolen motor vehicles in 1967 has
dropped to 61 percent in 1978, These statistics clearly indicate
that professional thieves have increasingly entered into the
stolen motor vehicle area of crime. Especially alarming is that
the initial crime reports for the first six morths of this year
show a national increase in motor vehicle theft of 13 percent
over the corresponding time period of 1978. Some cities are
experiencing increases cof over 40 percent this year., The increase
is reflected in all geographical areas, north, south, east, west,
urban, suburban and rural,
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The enactment of H.R. 4178 will provide government
with important new tools and weapons in its fight against pro-
fessional crime, The Department of Justice urges prompt
passage of this legislation.

. The Office of Management and Budget advises that the
enactment of this legislation would be consistent with the
objectives of the Administration, ,

Sincerely,

2. a. /;2%1,_~

Alan A, Parker
Assistant Attorney General

Attachments
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Comparison Between H.R. 14252, H.R. 1955
(including H.R. 4247) and H.R. 4178
"Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Acts'

H.R. 14252 (95th Congress)

This

bill was submitted to the Congress on September 6,

1978 by the Department of Justice, It was introduced by
Congressman Green on October 5, 1978. It expired when the
95th Congress adjourned, It was ldentical to 8. 3531 intro-
duced by Senators Biden, Percy, and Thurmond in the Senate
on September 27, 1978.

H.R. 1955 (96th Congress)

1979.

additions.

This
It

1)

(2)

bill was introduced by Congressman Green on February 8,
is very similar to the previous H.R. 14252 with two
They are:

Added to Section 101 of Title I - Findings and
Purposes, was a new paragraph (k) relating to the
need for increased prosecutive emphasis for motor
vehicle theft violations; and

Added to Section 501(a) of Title V - Reporting
Requirements was a new subparagraph (13) relating
to developments concerning the use of a manu~
facturer's certificate of origin for off-road
vehicles.

H.R. 4247 (96th Congress)

This

bill was introduced by Congressman Gonzalez on

May 30, 1978, 1t is identical to H.R. 1955.
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H.R. 4178 (96th Ccngress)

This bill was introduced on May 22, 1979 by Congre;sman
Green and 23 other co-sponsors. Since then it has acquired
over 20 additional co-sponsors, It is identical to S. 1214
also introduced in the Senate.on May 22, 1979 by Senators
Biden and Percy., The bill represents 'a rewrite of H.R. 14252
and S. 3531 by the staffs of Semators Biden and Percy and
Congressman Green in consultation with the Department of
Justice, It includes all the changes made by H.R. 1955, A
title by title analysis of the changes made to H.R. 14252 by
H.R. 4178 follows,

TITLE I ~ Findings and Purposes

In general, H.R. 4178 retains all the findings and purposes
of H.R. 14252, It rearranges their order and makes some
linguistic changes. It places a greater stress on the organized
crime aspect of the motor vehicle theft problem. In particular,
it adds a new paragraph (f) to Section 101 relating to the
theft of farming and construction equipment. It highlights in
paragraph (1) of Section 101 the need for the insurance industry
to improve its procedures. It adds a new paragraph (m) in
Section 101 relating to an increasedprosecutive emphasis for
motor vehicle theft violations.

TITLE IT = Improved Security for Motoxr
Vehicle and Motor Vehicla Parts

Section 201 This provision was changed in H.R. 4178 to
specifically require the Secretary of Transportation to issue
anti-theft standards instead of merely permitting the iasuance
of _such standards. Also, the word "consumer! was added to
line 14 in order to clearly show it was consumer time and
consumer inconvenience which the Secretary had to take into
account,
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Section 202 This section is all new. It requires
consultation with the law enforcement community in the
promulgation of the anti-theft standards. It imposes time
limi%s on the issuance of the regulations and it requires a
careful examination of ongoing technological developments in
the design of such regulations.

Section 203 This is new. Although the National Traffic
and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966 had a federal preemption
provision, it was felt that such was not quite adequate to
deal with the component part numbering aspect.

TITLE IIT - Anti-fencing Measures

Section 301 Significant changes were made to the
corresponding provision in H.R. 14252, First of all, two
exceptions were created to the gtatutory right of seizure.

They were in those situations where a part whose number had
been removed or falsified had been attached back to a vehicle
of au innocent purchaser of such part and where the vehicle or
part, having lost its original number applied by the manu-
facturer, had l.ad a replacement number applied in accordance
with appropriate laws. It was never intended to permit seizure
in the latter situation and the new language makes this clear.
The former exception is intended to ease the burdens on a
person who has his car repaired and, unknowing to him, the
repairman uses stolen parts with falsified or rewoved identifi-
cation numbers to fix it.

Another major change is that instead of the mandatory
selzure called for under H.R. 14252, the provision now permits
a discretionary use of such authority. The final major change
is the incorporation by reference of the custom law's procedures
for the dispusal of any seized motor vehicles or parts.

Section 303 This change to present 18 USC 2313 was not iIn
H.R, 14252,
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TITLE IV ~ Importation and
Exportation Measures

The only change in thig title ig that the term "motor
vehicle" in H.R. 14252 has been replaced by the term "gelf-
propelled vehicle." This does not change at all the scope
and coverage of the title.

TITLE V = Reporting Requirements

Section 501 H.R. 4178 expands upon the scope of the
study, It changes the term "off-road motor vehicle" to
"off~highway vehicle." 1t adds-three new subparagraphs to the
study (ie.13 - 15). It changes the definition of "off~highway
vehicle" to exclude those components which are not pushed or
towed by a self-propelled vehicle,

Section 502 H.R. 4178 increases the number of annual
reports to Congress from 5 to 10 years. It was felt that this
extended period was necassary to fairly judge the Act's
effectiveness since the requirements of Title II will not
show up in manufactured motor vehicles until 4 or so years
after the enactment of the leglslation. After which, it will
take several.additional years of such naw vehicles to materially
affect the total vehicle population.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT
OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20502

NOV 5 W79

Honorable Harley O. Staggers
Chairman
Committee on Interstate

and Foreign Commerce
House of Representatives
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Chairman:

This is in response to your request for the views of the
Office of Management and Budget on H.R. 4178, the "Motor
Vehicle Theft Prevention Act of 1979."

For the reasons stated in the report sent to you by the
Department of Justice, the Office of Management and
Budget supports enactment of H.R. 4178, subject to the
- changes recommended by the Department.

Sincerely,
ames M. Frey ’

Assistant Director for
Legislative Reference
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DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Washington, 0.C. 20520

gEp 28 1919

Dear Mr. Chairman:

On behalf of Secretary Vance, 1 am responding
to your request for the views of the Department of
State on two bills, H.R. 1955 and H.R. 4178, dealing
with procedures and programs designed to curb the
theft and disposition of stolen motor vehicles and
their parts.

' The Department of State has no_objection to the
enactment of either H.R. 1955 or (H.R. 4178,
The Office of - Management and Budget advises
that, from the standpoint of the Administration‘s
program. , there is no objection to the submission

of this report.

Sincerely,

J. Brian Atwocd
Assistant Secretary

for Congressional Relations

The Honorable
Harley 0. Staggers,
Chairman,
Committee on Interstate and Foreign
Commerce,
House of Representatives.
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Mr. Scmeuer. We will now hear from our first witness who is a
convicted felon under custody of the authorities who may be asked
to testify in criminal cases. We intend thoroughly to protect his
anonymity. We will call the witness “John Doe.” He is experienced
in every aspect of car theft, all the way from entering into a locked,
parked car to changing the vehicle identification number to fraudu-
lently securing official documents, which makes it possible to sell the
car to unsuspecting parties.

We will not ask any questions that will require the witness to refer
to his identity or any questions that might jeopardize the pending
Federal investigations.

We had a very talented young lady from the Department of Justice,
an attorney with the U.S. attorney’s office in the eastern district of
New York, Mrs. Shira Scheindlin, and we have asked her to interrupt
very rapidly if any of us, by mischance or peradventure, ask any
questions which might jeopardize the Federal anticrime effort.

Ms. Scheindlin, I hope you will interrupt us in midair if any of us
are guilty of a slip of the tongue.

We are very grateful to Ms. Scheindlin and the Department of
Justice for their splendid cooperation which makes it possible for us
to have this expert witness, and I do mean expert.

Many of us have seen John Doe downstairs in the garage of this
Federal building show us how easy it is for a skilled thief to overcome
all of the existing mechanical safeguards that are built into autos.

We will now hear from him on other aspects of this crime and other
aspects of the auto theft business as it exists today.

Mr. John Doe, we appreciate your being here. We appreicate your
making your expertise available to us and we now give you the floor
and suggest that you simply proceed in informally chatting with us
just as if you were in our living room and tell us what you know about
the organized auto theft business. -

Mr. Doe. I will be glad to. I will start by reading this prepared
statement, then.

Mr. ScEEUER. You can read it or you can just talk to us, whichever
you prefer.

How long is the statement ?

M. DoE. I do not believe it is very long. It is a few minutes.

Mr. Scaruer. Why do you not read it ?

Mr. DoE. You might see some part of it that you want to ask a
question about.

Mr. ScuEUER. Very good.

STATEMENT OF JOHN DOE

Mr. Doe. My experiences with stolen automobiles started in 1963
and ended in 1979. During that time, I have been involved with the
theft and resale of approximately 150 automobiles, about 75 percent of
these cars being late model luxury cars manufactured by General
Motors.

Mr. Scuruer. What made you honor General Motors rather than
Ford or Chrysler?

Mr. Dok. It is the biggest selling item. There is a high demand for it.

Stop me whenever you would like to, no problem.
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During 1979, I participated in the theft and resale of stolen con-
struction equipment manufactured by Caterpillar, and trailer tractors
manufactured by Mack.

My first experience with auto theft and resale was much like my
last. This process involved using the documents from late model
wrecked automobiles on the stolen duplicate of that wrecked automo-
bile for resale. Naturally, the identification numbers of the stolen autos
were altered to match the documents from the wreck.

Occasionally you would receive a junked vehicle form with a wreck
instead of an open New York State title. What you had to do before
New York State Motor Vehicles would issue a title was have the car
inspected. An inspection without showing the car cost $10.

The only change that has taken place in the procedure of using
wrecked vehicle documents on stolen vehicles is the expense.

Forging and counterfeiting motor vehicle registrations and titles
has always been popular and relatively easy. The key element here is
a printer willing to make titles. Due to the lack of correspondence be-
tween motor vehicles of different States, exchanging counterfeit titles
for good ones without being detected can be accomplished.

The issuance of the new NYS titles did create a slight problem. To
overcome this, titles from States that did not use the complex printing
techniques used on NYS titles were duplicated.

My personal involvement in the auto theft for parts business was a
limited one. Had I wanted to I could have been deeply involved. There
were, and to my knowledge still are, standing offers for parts that
could keep a crew of four men busy 7 days a week. A standing order
woulg be all the late model GM nosss and doors you could deliver for
a set fee.

The crews that I was associated with filled orders for body shops.
These crews would have a few body shops as customers, and they
would supply them with all the major crash parts that they needed.

The mechanics of stealing an auto is not a complex procedure. The
tools you need can be bought at any auto supply store. They consist of
a metal ruler, a body dent puller and a replacement ignition. The ruler
is used to gain entry, the body dent puller to Pull out ignition and the
replacement ignition used to start the car. The whole process takes
about 3 to 5 minutes from approach to target auto,

Right now, construction equipment is high priority amongst thieves.
This 1s due to the large amount of money they are worth and the ease
with which they can be stolen. Machines manufactured by Caterpillar
are the ones most sought after. The market for this equipment is an
international one, and with the right connection you can sell as many
as you can deliver.

Mack trailer tractors are another internationally sought after item.
The most popular model is the R700 series.

Construction equipment and trucks are not the only commodities
sought after internationally. American cars are, also. And once this
stuff leaves American soil, 1t 1s impossible to detect.

Mr, Sonrver. Is that the end of your statement?

Mr. DoE. Yes, that is pretty much a summary of it. _

Mr. Sceever. I am going to turn to Congressman Green and ask
you, Bill, if you have any questions.
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Mr. Green. You mentioned the export market for which you stole.
Would you have any knowledge of what percentage of the stolen calls
wind up either whole or in parts for export as opposed to being used
domestically ?

Mr. Doe. From my knowledge, most of them are staying right here
in the automobiles. There are some crews that ship 20 cars a month,
25 cars a month, out of the country.

Mr. Green. Those would be whole cars?

Mr. Doe. Whole cars, complete cars, with counterfeit titles or docu-
ments and they ship them right out.

Mr. GrReeN. So that the export market is basically a whole car market
rather than a parts market?

Mz, Dog. Yes.

Mr. Scaeusr. What percentage of all of the cars that get stolen are
destined for the overseas market?

M. Dog. That is hard to say.

Mr. ScEEUER. Any guesstimate ?

Mr. DoE. Myself, I have never shipped a car overseas. I was involved
with shipping heavy equipment, not automobiles, although I did sup-
ply certain crews with certain items they needed for shipment overseas.

To my knowledge, they were shipping, like I said, 20 cars a month.

Mr. Greexn. What 1s the basic modus operandi in the business ? Could
you explain your relationship to the chop shops and the chop shop’s
relationship to its customers, whoever they may be ?

Mr. Dog. I guess it is a simple one. A car gets smacked up and gets
into a body shop. It is a late model GM car and it might cost legiti-
mately $3,000 in parts to put the car together. So the body shop gives
an auto theft crew an order for the parts he needs and he may spend
$1,000 to $1,200 for the parts.

Mr. Green. So that basically you would be stealing to order?

Mr. Doe. With the body shop, like I mentioned, the guys that filled
the orders for the body shops, those are all orders. They fill orders, but
there are enough orders to keep these guys very busy.

From my experience, all body shops are susceptible to stolen parts.

Mr. Green. What is the price that you charge the body shop for
stolen parts as compared with the price of legitimate parts?

Mr. Dor. Well, a late model Cadillac, just say you got one of the
nose and the doors and the interior, you might get like $1,500 off the
guy for the parts. Now, if he wanted to buy it, I am sure it is going to
cost him close to $4,000 to $4,500.

Mr. GreeN. I heard some estimate that a car that had originally cost
$5,000 could be broken into parts and sold for as much as $25,000 in
parts.

Does your experience verify that?

Mr. Dog. That is legitimately speaking. If you were to sell each part
legitimately, you could probably get more than the original cost of the
(ciag:l But when you are selling as stolen, the price depreciates a great

eal. .

Mr. Luren. Would the gentleman yield for one question?

Mr. Gregn, Yes.

Mr. Luren. We are talking about “noses,” and I would like to iden-
tify the nose. Is that the external parts of the automobile, the hood and
the fender and the bumper?




41

Mr. Dog. It is just the front fenders, the hood and the bumpers if
the guy wants them. It is pretty much the three parts in the front.

Mr. Lugen. Nothing to do with the engine or anything like that?

M. Dok. No.

Mr. Scaever. Would these vehicle inspection numbers that we are
talking about, in your opinion, discourage car theft, discourage their
being delivered at chop shops for resale ? o

Mr. Dog. I think at first it might. If they can find a way of forging
or counterfeiting these numbers, they are just not going to stop. In
other words, if a guy can buy a wreck and then renumber the stolen
parts to match the numbers of the wreck be bought, he is pretty much
covered.

If you ask him, “Where did you get that ¢”

“Oh, I bought it here, Here is the wrecked papers for that part.”

You look at it, and if it is a good counterfeit job on the numbers,
how would you tell unless you put an expert on it and analyzed the
numbers to see if they were counterfeited or not.

But a general motor vehicle inspector, or an inspector who inspects
cars for insurance companies, he does not know a damn thing.

Mr. ScHEUER. So you are a little skeptical as to the value of the
vehicle identification numbers being stamped on them ?

Mr. DoE. Yes and no.

Mr. Scururr. If it is not susceptible to being counterfeited, you
think it might worlk?

Mr. Dor. Exactly. If it cannot be counterfeited or it cannot be
forged, it seems like it would be a good idea.

Mr. Green. I get the impression from what you say that there is
a good deal of laxity in the operation of State titling systems. Would
you care to comment on that?

Mr. Dor. You can go to a number of States in this country with a
counterfeit title and register a car and receive a good title in exchange
for it, and the counterfeit title you give them, they just bury in their
paperwork. They do not send it back to the State that supposedly
issued this counterfeit title to verify its being counterfeit or legal.

Mr. GreeN. Are there any States in particular that you tended to
gse fog this purpose because they were less careful than any other

tates?

Mr. Dok. This would be just word of mouth. I never myself did it.

I heard that Virginia was one, Pennsylvania was one. I understand
Connecticut, you can sell a car to a dealer with a counterfeit title and
he issues a Q-1 form and never turns in the title to the Motor Vehicle
Bureau, and on the Q-1 form, a title issued.

You would have to look into that yourself, but there are some States
that you can bypass with the counterfeit title.

Mpr. Green, That is all Thave, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. ScueuEr. There is a Federal sticker in the door jamb of a car
now that identifies that car. Supposedly it is put on in such a way that
12 cannot be removed, that you would have to destroy it to remove
it.

Can you remove it without destroying it? Please do not say how.
Just tell us if it can be removed without destroying it.

. Mr. D%E It can be removed intact and reused any way you want
o reuse it.

68-093 0 ~ 80 - &
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Mr. Scaeurr. How long would it take you to remove it:?

Mz, Dox. To remove it, it might take maybe 5 minutes.

Mr. Scueusr. Have you ever stolen a car from an organized crime
figure by accident?

Mzr. DoE. Yes.

Mr. SceEUuEr. What happened ?

Mr. Doz. We had to return it.

Mr. ScrEUER. You did not get shot in the knees?

Mz, Dor. No; we were just told to return it and no questions would
be asked.,

Mzr. ScarEuer. Would a national title certificate like the New York
title make it harder to forego titles?

Mr. Doe. Absolutely. I think so. The printing is a complex one and
the average printer cannot duplicate it.

Mr. ScureuEr. You think that would be harder to duplicate than the
VIN—or the Vehicle Inspection Number—being stamped on the parts?

Mr. Dox. Well, now you are talking about counterfeit. If you are
cﬁncerned about the parts business, the title has nothing to do with
that.

Mr. Sceeuer. I understand that. What you are saying is you are a
little skeptical about the vehicle inspection number, the so-called VIN,
as the key to stopping auto theft, because you say it can be counter-
feited or forged?

Mr. Doe. If it can be. You see, if a person that owns a wrecking
yard has every make and model of GM car in his yard, OK, or a paper-
work for every make and model of GM car in his yard, then he can
resell those parts over and over again.

If you ever go into his yard to have him verify his parts as being
legal and he has the paperwork to cover it, and if he can renumber
those parts to match the paperwork, then he is covered.

Mr. Sceruer. Can you tell us something about the so-called confi-
dential VIN’s, where they ave located and how confidential they
really are?

Mr. Doe. To my knowledge, there, you are talking about paperwork
that is hidden under the dashboard and in the interior of cars, and no
one ever looks at that stuff. You just take it out of the car. That is just
a piece of paper. You can have any printer make it for you and dupli-
cate it yourself.

If you are talking about numbers on rails, well, if the car is worth it,
it pays to raise the body and reforge those numbers. If the car is not
worth it, you either do not do it or do not use the parts.

Mr. ScerUErR. Did the numbering, the vehicle inspection numbering
on transmissions and on motors have any effect in making it more
dangerous to sell that part?

Mr. Doe. No; because those numbers can be changed very easily.

Mzr. SceEUER. You think the automobile companies are going to have
to figure out a better way of putting on a vehicle inspection number
than the present system of numbering engines and transmission?

Mzr. Dok. I guess they would have to figure out a better way. Then
again, motors and transmissions are not, from my experience, the big
resale item.

Mr. Scurver. If we ask you for some advice on what kind of a sys-
tem we could produce that would be, let’s say, torge-proof, that you
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and your inspired colleagues could not break, what would your sug-
gestions be?

Mr. Dok. A locking system.,

Mr, ScuEUER. A locking system that you could not open up in 15 to
30 seconds as you did downstairs a few minutes ago?

Mr. Dog. That is hard to say because pretty much any locking sys-
tem that you make locksmiths are immediately shown how to get
through it. Once a locksmith is shown how to bypass a locking system,
every thief knows because locksmiths are the ones who taught me how
to break into cars.

Mr. ScuruER. So you do not rely very much on improving locks.
How about on improved vehicle inspection numbers?

Mr. Dok. You mean body numbers and stuff like that ?

My, Scmever, Improved vehicle inspection numbers in terms of
making them less susceptible of being forged.

Mz, Dog. If you can accomplish that absolutely.

Mr. SceruEr. Do you have any other ideas on how we can improve
the system to make it more dangerous and less profitable to steal cars,
reduce the benefits and raise the risk?

My, Dor. With inflation, that is hard.

Mzr. Sorguer. How much does a person get paid who lifts one of
these cars and then drops it off ¢

Mzr. Dog. Just for a theft of a car, a guy could probably get $250 just
for the theft of the car.

Mr. SceruEer. Just picking it up and delivering it 10 or 20 or 30
blocks or 1 mile away?

Mr. Doe. Absolutely.

Mr. Scarur. Congressman Luken ?

Mr. Loxey. You mentioned remembering to match renumbering a
vehicle. Now these VIN numbers, just how are they impressed upon the
automobile, the parts of the automobile ?

I was under the impression that it was difficult to renumber them. Is
not it some kind of glass that puts a blemish, scars the vehicle if it is
erased, or attempted to be erased ?

Mzr. Doe. You mean on the Federal stickers?

Mr. Loxen. No. I am not sure what I mean, that is why I am asking
the question. Federal stickers are just seme kind of paper, plastic, are
they not?

Mr. DoE. Yes, it is a piece of plastic.

Mr. Luxex. But the VIN number that you have been talking to the
Chairman about, this is a newer kind of impression that is made, a
1f;umbtering system which I understand the technology is totally dif-

erent.

Mr. Doe. You have a VIN plate on the dashboard that can be coun-
terfeited very easily.

Mr. Lugen. Counterfeited, but now are you going to remove that
plate? Are you going to erase it and substitute it ?

Mr. Dok. You take the plate off and put another plate on it.

Mr. Loxen. Isit just a plate?

1:;{[11 Dog. The VIN tag on the dashboard is only a small piece of
metal.

Mr. Liugex. Like the old serial numbers?
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. ME Dogz. Exactly, the same thing, only now it is visible on the dash-
oard.

Mr. Luxen. That is no problem, is it ?

Mr. Dok, No problem at all,

Mr. Luxen. I was just talking to some one of the experts downstairs
who told me the VIN numbers, either now or in prospect, are going
to be placed on in such a way that they are stamped into the metal
and that because of the particular properties of what is used, any
attempt to remove them or alter them would scar the metal and would
show an attempt to deface has occurred.

Could that not be done?

Mr. Dog. It sounds like something like that could be done. It has
not been done, to my knowledge. You are not speaking about VIN
tags. You are speaking about some other number stamped in the
automobile.

Mr. Luren. You have never seen that?

Mr. Dok. I have never come across that.

Mr. SceEUER. I think Ford and General Motors are experimenting
with that kind of a system.

Mr, Luxen. I was just trying to test this witness’s knowledge on
it, since he is on the very practical end of it. In the ring we read about,
the automobile theft ring and so on, without describing your particu-
lar situation, who does the theft, that is, the one who actually steals
the automobile, who does he usnally know in such a situation?

Mr. Doe. Whoever is paying him, or whoever is ordering the
automobile.

Mr. Luxex. He just knows one person ?

Mzr. Doz. He just knows one usually. Sometimes he will know more
than one, but usually he will just know the person who gives him the
order for the car. Many times a thief is just a drug addict supporting
a habit and he will go out and steal two cars a day for the guy and de-
liver them somewhere and that will be the end of it.

Mr. Lukey. Your principal part was in stealing the automobile?

Mr. Doe. To be honest with you, I have not stole a car in quite a few
years. I have pretty much covered every aspect of the auto theft in
depth, except parts. I was involved in a lot of counterfeiting and
things like that.

Mr. Loxen. In the international operation, you said you really have
not been involved in that, have you?

Mr. Dog. With cars?

Mr. Lugen. With cars, shipping them overseas.

Mzr. Doz. Right.

Mr. Luxen. Is the shipper in such a case a knowledgable party or
is the shipper an innocent shipper who is simply used?

There has to be somebody at this end and somebody to receive it.

Mzr. Dog. The person receiving it, I am sure he would not even care.
Once the car gets where it is going, or once the machinery gets where
it is going, it is put through legal channels and it never presents a
problem to the person who bought it. The shipper could not care
anyway, because he is getting business. He is making money on
shipping an item. He does not look twice at it as long as, for all intents
and purposes, it looks okay and you have papers for it.




45

He will say, “OX, bring it down on the 21st and we will load it
on the ship and it will go.”

Mr. Liuren. Sort of like a comxmon carrier, this kind of thing?

Mr. Dog. Sure. You book passage on a ship and he tells you when
to deliver it and you deliver it and it goes on a ship.

Mr. LukeN. Thank you. :

Mr. Gruman, What sort of papers are you required to have when
you are preparing to ship it overseas?

Mr. Dok. This, I am really not sure about.

Mr. GmumaN. You have never shipped overseas?

Mr. Doe. At one time, I was making arrangements to ship some
equipment overseas and I was never asked for paperwork. In fact,
I was told that to faciltate the shipping for a small fee, the day
I brought this machine to the docks, it would be put on a ship. In
other words, this guy is telling me it will be safe from detection because
once it is on the ship it is home free. As long as it is on the dock, it is
in danger, and it seemed to me that he was reading between the lines
that this was a piece of stolen equipment,. _

Like he said to me, “When you are ready to ship it, you let me know
and I will tell you when to bring it and that same day it will be loaded
on a foreign vessel.”

Mr. GmuMan, Do you know if there is a substantial number leaving
New York Harbor by vessel ?

Mr. Dok. I would guess that, yes, a substantial number.

Mr. Gman., I thank the gentleman.

Mr. Luxen. I have just one other question. If we required a VIN
number which was actually stamped into the metal of the automobile,
not just a couple of parts, but into various component parts, that would
cause a lot of problems for the thieves in the theft rings, would it not?

Mr. Dok. I really do not think so. It might.

Mr. Luxen. It 1s something that you have never run intn?

Mr. DoE. Immediately it might cause a problem, but I am sure they
will find a way to get around it if there is a way of getting around it.
In other words, if just forging those numbers can keep a body shop
within legal limits, or when he makes the order he says he wants all of
these parts to fit this number or he does not want stolen numbers on
the parts, if that can be feasibly done, then I would suspect it would
be done.

Mr. Luken. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. SceEUER. Do you think the theft could be feasibly done unless
the system were absolutely not susceptible to fraudulent forgery?

Mr. DoE. Absolutely. It seems in most cases the insurance company
isrequired to release a check upon inspecting a vehicle being completed.
It seems that maybe the insurance companies could assume some kind
of the financial costs in assuring that this stuff is not stolen.

I mean, if this guy is going to give a check for the parts, who is
going to check them?

Mr. ScueUER. You think the insurance companies should be required
to check that the parts were not stolen before giving the check?

Mr. Dok. I would think so. I mean, I have seen situations where the
person bought a new car and had the duplicate of it stolen, wrecked i,
renumbered it and had the stolen car wrecked, brought 1t to a body
shop, had the insurance company guy come down and pay to have the
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car fixed, but then just take the wreck and dispose of it and come up
with the original god one and this guy thinks the car is fixed and he
gives up a check for a car that was a stolen wrecked car.

They never look past the number on the windshield. I mean, I have
seen them giving checks up for counterfeit Federal emission stickers
that anyone could see that they were counterfeit, and never even look
at them to see, just look at the tag on the windshield, give up the
check and walk away.

Mr. Soueurr. How long have you been in this business of car theft?
You mentioned it before.

* Mr. DoE. Since 1963.

Mr. SceevEer. It is our understanding that in 1963, most of the car
thefts were by kids for joy rides but that the whole name of the game
has changed now, and that now most of them are by organized crime
or by, as you said, by drug addicts who are picking up cars and deliver-
ing it on order to an organized crime syndicate.

_Do@es that conform to your experience or do you have a different
view?

Mr. Dog. That conforms to it.

Mr. Lioxen. I have one more question, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. SceEUER. Yes.

Mr. Luxen. Is the New York title law as effective as in any of the
States? I mean, I just want to take a title law, which is a strong one,
more foolproof than the others.

Mr. Dok. If you are dealing with rebuilding wrecked automobiles,
Ithink New York is a very poor one.

Mr. Lurex. What is a good one?

Mr. Dog. 1 have run across situations where cars in Jersey that were
wrecked were not allowed to be put back on the road because they
were wrecked so bad. That kind of a system would seem a lot better
to me, when you are dealing with rebuilding wrecks of stolen
automobiles.

Mr. Luken. So in your opinion, the New Jersey title laws are the
ones that you know of which might be the most effective?

Mr. Dok. In dealing with wrecks, yes, because the situation, I think,
when the police get the car, they declare it an unrebuildable wreck and
the car can be sold for parts only; whereas in New York, regardless
of how bad a car is wrecked, as long as it can be presented to an in-
spection station and pass inspection, it can be put back on the street.

Mr. Loxexn. Ifall laws, all State laws, were the same as New Jersey’s,
would that complicate the problem of the thiefs and the theft rings?

Mr. Doz. In that situation, yes.

Mr. Luxen. As far asparts?

Mr. Dok. I do not know about parts, but as far as retitling wrecked
automobiles.

Mr. Luxen, All right. As far as retitling wrecked vehicles?

Mzr. Dok. Yes.

Mr. Lugen. It would be a national law, national guidelines that
would require all of the States to have similar legislation. That would
cause you problems?

Mr. Dok. Yes.

Mr. Luxen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. ScHEUER. Mr. Gilman ¢
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Mr. Grraan, Are you familiar with any of the stolen auto trafficking
across our borders into-Canada or Mexico ¢

Mzx. Dok. No. :

Mz, Giuman. Have any of the cars which you have stolen ever been
shipped across the borders?

Mr. Dog. Not to my knowledge. All of the cars went into the States.

Mr. Gruman. You have no familiarity then with any of that sort of
traficking ¢

Mz, DoE. No.

Mzr. Graran. Was a large share of your stolen car product shipped
to other countries?

Mr. Dog. Cars? No.

Mr, Gruman, Parts?

Mz, Doe. There, again, I, myself never got involved with the part
business to any great extent. Through the crews I dealt with, you hear
about things going on. Direct knowledge, no, I never have, but T
have heard about parts being shipped out of the country.

Mr. Giman. You have had no direct involvement with that, either?

Mzr. Dok. No.

Mr. Gazmay. Thank you.

No further questions, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Sceugr. John Doe, you have been very candid and forthright
with us. You have answered your questions to the best of your ability
and we appreciate your cooperation. Thank you very much.

Mzr. Doe. You are welcome.

Mr. Scuruer. The witness is excused, and we will go to the next
witness.

We will have a panel next. Sergeant Frank Martin of the Auto
Crime Unit here in New York City and Col. Clinton L. Pagano of
the New Jersey State Police Headquarters from West Trenton, N.J.

Will the two gentlemen, Frank Martin and Clinton Pagano, come
up to the table, please?

‘We will extend the courtesy of first testifying to Mr. Clinton Pagano
and we will ask Congressman Luken to introduce you and to chair
the session while Colonel Pagano is testifying.

Mr. Luxen [presiding]. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I understand that Mr. Martin is a Sergeant with the New York City
Police Department in the Auto Crime Division and that he has ex-
tensive experience in the Auto Crime investigations.

So that is Sergeant Martin and Colonel Pagano is the
Superintendent.

STATEMENT OF COL. CLINTON L. PAGANO, SUPERINTENDENT,
DEPARTMENT OF LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY, NEW JERSEY
DIVISION OF STATE PQOLICE, ACCOMPANIED BY SGT. FRANK
CALDWELL, NEW JERSEY STATE POLICE; SGT. FRANK MAR-
TIN, AUTG CRIME UNIT, NEW YORK CITY POLICE HEAD-
QUARTERS; AND DETECTIVE GRINENKO, NEW YORK CITY
POLICE HEADQUARTERS

Colonel Pacawo. I am Colonel Pagano, the superintendent of the
New Jersey State Police. This is Sergeant Frank Martin on my left
of the New York City Police and I brought with me Detective Sfc.
Frank Caldwell of the New Jersey State Police.
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I have not actually done, like your first witness, the work in the
field in a number of years, so I need someone to nudge me once in &
while to remind me of something I am going to miss, and that is
Sergeant Caldwell. )

Mtr. Lugen. Why don’t you proceed with your testimony? I might
add from my standpoint, so as to make the presentation as smooth as
possible, we are looking at legislation and if you are aware of the pro-
posed legislation that we are looking at you might comment on it in
the context of your testimony so that we will not have to quiz you on
it.

Colonel Pacano. Surely. We have a prepared statement, Mr. Luken,
which essentially goes toward the bill H.R. 4178, and we have tailored
our comments to dovetail with those provisions of HLR. 4178 which
we feel are important.

T am not going to read the entire statement, but I would like to high-
light those points wwhich we want to make.

Mr. Lusen. Without objection your statement will be received into
the record. You may proceed any way you wish.

[ Testimony resumes p. 61.]

[Colonel Pagano’s prepared statement follows:]




State of New Yeraey

DEPARTMENT OF LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY
DIVISION OF STATE POLICE
POST OFFICE BOX 7068
. WEST TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 08625
(609) 8822000

May 23, 1980
H.R. 4178
THE MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT PREVENTION ACT

INTRODUCTION:

The motor vehicle has become a significaﬁt influence
in the 1life of each citizen. It has been reported that
nearly every occupation in the United States is dependent,
to some degree, directly or indirectly, on the motor
vehicle or its use. Furthermore, one in every six jobs
is dependent on the manufacture, distribution, service,
or commercial use of motor veﬁicles.

Motor vehicle thefts in New Jersey have been
steadily increasing over the past three (3) yeafs at an
alarming rate! The Tecovery rate has been decreasing!

In New Jersey, mounting public concern is surfacing
in the form of various special interest groups. The
insurance industry has formed the New Jersey Anti-Car
Theft Committee (ACT), whose goals are to study the
vehicle theft phenomenon and make recommendations in the
form of legislative proposals, governmental programs
designed to combat the problem, and public education.

The N.J. Motor Truck Association and the Construction

Industry Advancement Program have also formed Anti-Theft
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Cohmittees, whose goals are similar in nature.

Indeed the sole purpose of our nresence here
today is to give and hear testimony concerning the
product of exhaustive studies and hearings completed -
by the United States Congress in response to the
needs of our citizenry, H.R. 4178.

With this in mind, permit me to define the
problem in New Jersey, describe our. techniques for
attacking the problem, demonstrate how H.R.4178 will
aid us, and offer a suggestion for én additional

program.

NEW JERSEY VEHICLE THEFT PROBLEM STATEMENT

An analysis of the uniform crime reports (UCR),
compiled by the New Jersey State Police Uniform Crime
Reporting Unit indicates that since 1977 the incidence
of motor vehicle thefts has been increasing at an
alarming rate. In 1977, there were 37,492 motor
vehicle thefts. In 1978, an increase of 9.5% over the
1977 figures or 41,037 thefts was experienced. In 1979,
an unprecedented increase of 24%, 51,006 thefts was
reported.

Tha total value of motor vehicles stolen in 1978
was $94.5 million. Im 1979, the total value of stolen

motor vehicles increased to $130.5 million! In fact,
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this figure represents 47% of the total value of all
stolen property reported in the State, 277.6 million.

Even more aiarming is'the recovery rate. In 1967,
the recovery rate was 83% and it has steadily declined
to a catastrophic low of 60.3% in 1979. The value of
stolen motor vehicles, which were not recovered,
represents a loss of §37.2 million to the citizens of
New Jersey.

In an attemnt to explain the increased activity in
this criminal specialty, we, in New Jersey, must
hypothesize utilizing intelligence and experience to
arrive at a reasonable explanation. Intelligence
gathered to date indicates a diversion by“organized theft
groups to vehicle stripping or dismanfling operations.
The parts market has become very attractive to organized
theft groups. In fact, at the recent U.S. Senate Sub-
‘committee hearings in Washington, testimony has established

that é "relatively low priced car, with a $5,741.00 sticker

_ price, contains parts worth $26,418.00 if they are purchased

separately an the retail market (Newsweek, December 10,1979,
issue). In addition to the parts racket, our intelligence
has indicated more incidents of the "phantom car fraud"
scheme. In this scheme, non-existent motor vehicles are
titled by presenting counterfeit proofs of ownership to

the New Jersey Division of Motor Vehicles. A legitimate
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certificate of ownership is issued. The actor insures the
phantom vehicle, reports it stolen, and collects on the
insurance claim.

Another hypothesis formed from experience in dealing
with auto theft, is that complacency is a contributor to -
the high incidence of thefts and the low recovery rate.
Organized criminals seek to indulge in criminal activities
which offer‘the greatest monetary return at the lowest risk.
Auto theft is treated as a juvenile crime. It is also
characterized as non-violent in nature. The "hue and cry"
of.the public is not aroused by auto theft. Generally
speaking, the media does not report to any great extent
incidents of auto theft. Enforcement, prosecution, the
courts and legislators respond to public outcry. As a result,
the investigation of the theft of a $10,000 automobile is
treated as routine when compared to the investigation of a
$100.00 robbery. Enforcement manpower is not allocated in
sufficient numbers to define and attack the problem. 1In
fact, most New Jersey police departments assign one man to
auto theft responsibilities, whose main responsibility rests
with record kéeping, identification, and releasing recovered
vehicles. Prosecutors are moTe prone to plea-bargain in
auto theft related crimes to clear their case loads and try
cases having more public appeal. The courts are more likely
to hand down suspended sentences and probation to persons

found guilty of auto theft related crimes to save space in
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the correctional institutions for criminals deemed
a greater thrszat to society. Federal and State
legislators are not likely to provide funds for
programs and resources designgd to attack the problen.
In New Jersey, as well as all.over the country,
re-sales of stolen vehicles claim another victim, the
"innocent purchaser". In resale operations an.organizad
group of criminals perpetrate a theft, change the iden:i-
fication of the motor vehicle by alteration of the
vehicle identification number (VIN), and the acquisition
of a bogus negotiaﬁle certificate of ownership, and sell
the stolen vehicle at retail value to an unsuspecting
innocent purchaser. When this vehicle is recovered
and returned to its rightful owner, the innocent pur-
chaser becomes a victim of fraud. He or she loses the
car and the money paid for it. Statistics are not kep:
for the amount of monetary loss suffered by the innozeat

purchaser.

TECHNIQUES FOR ATTACKING AUTO THEFT IN NEW JERSEY

" The techniques for attacking auto theft in New Jersey
deployed by the New Jersey State Police are twvofold, First,
our road personnel receive training in the academy on
techniques of effecting patrol related detection and
perform accordingly. For the most part, this type of

detection results in the arrests of individuals commonly
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referred to as the "joy rider" or "transportation thief".
For the purpose of this testimony, I will descfibe our
techniques for combating organized or commercial auto
theft operations. Within the Criminal Investigation
Section, we have formed an Auto Theft Unit, comprised of -
tyelve detectives, trained and experienced in dealing with
the investigation of the commercial auto theft ring. The
Auto Unit's main responsibility is to conduct "target type"
or proactive investigations in the field of organized ring
cases. The Auto Unit is mainly concerned with the actors
who cause the 39.8% unrecovered stolen vehicle statistics
reported foi 1979. Unit personnel receive training in
tactical intelligence analysis, which is utilized to analyze
the significance of intelligence received from informants,
contacts, and other sources. Once an analyéis is completed;
decisions are made as to the necessary amount of resources
‘to be deployed to attack the problem. For instaﬂce, an
analysis might dictate that probable cause exists to apply
for court authorized wire-tapping and that this method of
attack is the only one feésible in effecting the complete
elimination of all the actors in a ring case: The theor}
behind the target-type investigation is to target in on a
particular group engaged in a particular specialty in auto

theft related crimes, i.e., re-sale on chop-shop operations,
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and if successful, the statistics will fall accordingly.
In engaging in these types of investigations, Auto Unit
personnel work closely with the F.B.I., county and
municipal police departments within the state and the
same agencies in other‘states. In New Jersey the natufg
of our problems are both intrastate and interstate
oriented. Cooperation with outside agencies is imperative.
In furtherance of this cooperative effort with outside
agencies, our Auto Unit personnel are encouraged to become
members of the International Association ;f Auto Theft
Investigators (I.A.A.T.I.), both the Northeast Chapter

and the International Chapter, and the newly formed New
Jersey Vehicle Theft Investigators Association (V.T.I.).
Both chapters of I.A.A.T.XI. hold seminars where enforce-
ment personnel engage in dialogue of mutual concern
involving the auto theft problem. V.T.I. meets monthly,
apd also holds annual training'seminars. Our personnel
have lectured at all of the above seminars and ave recog-
nized as experts in the field. In addition to cecnducting
pre-active investigations, the Auto Unit assists the
F.B.I., local,and county enforcement agencies engaged

in auto theft investigations.
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HOW H.R. 4178 AIDS AUTO THEFT INVESTIGATION

The most important aspect of H.R. 4178 in aiding
New Jersey enforcement agencies in combating the auto
theft problem is Title II, sec. 203, which relates to

~ locking systems and component parts identification.

It forces the state to enact laws i%entical to the
Federal standard. As it pertains to component parts
identification, it affords an investigator the opportunity
to successfully conclude chop-shop investigations, by”
either identifying the paft as being stolen and thus
making the arrest for receiving stolen property, or in
those instances where the VIN is removed or altered, an
arrest can be made for buying stolen parts with the VIN
altered. Auto Unit personnel have long been thwarted by
this identification problem. I'm sure that organized crime
will recognize this feature as a real risk in engaging in
chop-shop type operations. Nek Jersey has a statute
permitting the seizure of a motor vehicle with an altered
or changed V,I.N., similar to Title II, but none for the
seizure of component parts. Again, this provision thwarts
the operation of chop-shops, and would be extremely useful
to our personnel.

Perhaps, equally important is Title III, which provides

increased penalties to discourage fencing operations One




57

caution here is that although the increased penalties
are provided, there is no guarantee they will be
imposed. Our courts must recognize the significance

of imposing the maximum sentence, our prosecutors must
refrain .from unrealistic plea-bargaining, and enforce- -
ment must provide both with the facts to justify

their more stringent action.

The section under Title III, providing penalties
for the mailing of certain items used to encourage
and/or enhance motor vehicle theft, brings-the U.S.
Postal Authorities into the arena. Title IV, concerning
Importation and Exportation of Stolen Self-propelled
vehicles and their component parts, affords the state
with the assistance of the U.S. Customs Service. Long
an advocate of cooperative investigations, I welcome
these allies and applaud the sections of this Act that
make it possible.

Finally, Section V, Reporting Requirenents, would
require the Attorney General within eighteen months
after the enactment of this Act, to submit a report to
Congress to include developrents concerning a V.I.N.
System, the passage of State Titling Laws, the passage
of State Laws concerning the altering of a V.I.N., and
the developmentvof a Manufacturer's Certificate of Origin

for off-highway vehicles. I would add that our experience

»
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dictates a need for the manufacturers of off-road equipment
to develop a more sophisticated ignition locking systenm.

We, in New Jersey, can report from our experiences in
conducting investigations into the thefts of off-road
equipment, that a State Titling Law is definitely needed.
The construction industry has resisted a titling .law in

the past, because of a fear that the states would charge
exorbitant fees for the service, but without a titling law,
an off-road vehicle theft ring can make any representation
concerning the origin of the unit to a prospective purchaser
they deem necessary. When caught with a stolen off-road
vehicle, a purchaser can produce any form and represent it as
a receipt of purchase. Without a titling law, it just makes

it easier for an off-road ring to operate.

SUGGESTION FOR AN ADDITIONAL PROGRAM (COMPUTER ANALYSIS PROGRAM)

Our experience has dictated a need to identify on a
monthly and annual basis geographic locations of thefts and
recoveries. It is also necessary to identify the condition
of a motor vehicle when it is recovered, i.e., driveable -
VIN changed or not changed, engine or transmission missing,
burned, wrecked, or stripped of body parts. This data would
tend to identify the types of theft rings operating in various
geographic areas within this state and surrounding states.

Most of the data needed to provide this type of report exists
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within the data base of the National Crime Information,
Center (N.C.I.C.). My suggestion is that a study be
conducted to determine the feasibility of providing this
analysis service nationwide.

The types of revorts indicated above can be correlated
with profiles of theft groups gathered from intelligence
and enable investigative personnel to define:

1. The types of operations, i.e. re-sale,
stripping or chop-shops, insuranr. fraud, etc.
2. _The extent of the operatién. B

3. The geographic span of a theft ring, including
intexrstate.

4. ‘The amount of personnel needed to attack the
problenm.

5. The need of outside agency cooperation.

The California Highway Patrol has had an analysis
system (Vehicle Theft Information System) for sveral years
which has proven to be quite effective. California's recovery
rate is 87%.

CONCLUSION

Generally, as you may have gathered from my previous
comments, I am in total agreement with H.R. 4178. The only
area where I have some reservations is Title I, Findings and
Purposes. I do not find any sub-section suggesting a need

for federally funded programs. In the past ten (10) vears,
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most of the successful programs instituted around the
country have begun with the assistance of a Law

Enforcement Assistance Administration (LEAA) grant. In

New Jersey, we have made great strides in the investigation
of Organized Crime, Narcotics, Arson, and Official
Corruption. These programs started with federal funding:~
Indeed, the highly successful October, 1978 Workshop on
Auto Theft Prevention, received its start by virtue of

a grant from LEAA. One of the resolutions passed at this
memorable seminar encouraged federal funding through the
Federal Highway Safety Act. '

Finally, let me add that it is hearings such as this
that best exemplify the magnitude of input and studies
that go into the passage of important legislation. I
have been honored by your invitation to testify, and I
want to assure you of the desire of the New Jersey State

Police to cuntinue coopnerating in matters of mutual concern.
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Colonel Pagawo. Thank you.

If it pleases the committee, motor vehicle theft in New Jersey has
been steadily increasing in the past 8 years at an alarming rate and the
recovery rate has been decreasing. I might point out that I was as-
signed to auto theft in 1955 and was an auto theft specialist myself
personally for 8 years.

My background in policing is in investigations and I was an in-
vestigator for 23 years before becoming superintendent in 1975.

In New Jersey, the insurance industry has formed the New Jersey
Anti-Car Theft Committee whose goals are to study the vehicle theft
phenomenon and make recommendations in the form of legislative
proposals. As a result of this activity already in New Jersey, we have
introduced legislation that will complement and go in the direction
that HL.R. 4178 directs.

Several other groups, the New Jersey Motor Truck Association and
the Construction Industry Advancement Program have also formed
auto theft committees.

When you analyze the uniform crime reports in New Jersey which
are compiled by the New Jersey State Police, you will find that since
1977 the incidence of motor vehicle theft have been increasing at an
alarming rate. In 1977, there were 37,000 motor vehicle thefts; in 1978,
an increase of 9.5 percent over 1977, or 41,000 vehicles; in 1979, an
unprecedented increase of 24 percent, 51,000 vehicles reported.

In 1977, the recovery rate was 3 percent and it has steadily declined
to a catastrophic low of 60.3 percent in 1979,

Mr, Loxex. I am sure I should know the answer to this, but are you
aware of what the national figures have been in the same period of
time? Have they been similar?

Colonel Pagaxo. No. I think in New Jersey, we are kind of leading
the pack in some respects, although there are areas where there are
higher rates than ours. This, on the heels of my own recollection, when
I went into the auto theft business in 1955 there was a recovery rate of
9}’17 If)gsrcent and obviously nowhere near the figures in total number of
thefts.

Intelligence gathered to date indicates a diversion by organized
theft groups in that vehicle stripping or dismantling the parts has
become very attractive to organized theft groups. Incidents of phan-
tom car fraud, scheming fraud, the kind of activity described by your
John Doe witness, are increasing, not only in New Jersey but through-
ouf the entire country.

In this scheme, nonexistent motor vehicles are titled by presenting
counterfeit proofs of ownership to the New Jersey Division of Motor
Vehicles. An automobile is never involved. It is strictly a fraudulent
titling conversion activity.

Another hypothesis formed from experience in auto theft is that
complacency has contributed to the high incidence of theft and low
recovery rate. In most areas, auto theft is still treated as a juvenile
crime. It is characterized as nonviolent in nature. The public is not
aroused by anto theft and, an that extent, I think the committee
should be complemented on the kind of in-depth program that you
are doing because you are going to get to the heart of the problem.

The media does not report to any great extent incidents of auto
theft. Enforcement, prosecution, the courts and legislators respond
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to public outcry. Enforcernent manpower is notallocated in sufficient
numbers to define and attack the problem.

Prosecutors are more prone to plea bargain auto theft related cases
to clear their case loads snd try cases having more public appeal.

Mr. Scaruer. Could prosecutors distinguish between some kid
down the block who has taken a joyride and the kind of person who
was described by John Doe who was a }Q)rofessional thief and who, in
effect, is an extension of organized crime?

Colonel Pagawo. In most cases, Mr. Chairman, without doubt.

Mr. Scaruzrr. 1t seems to me then that they would plea bargain less
with the latter and be a little more lenient with the former.

Colonel Pacano. I think it has gone a few steps beyond that. We
are almost overlooking the latter and the former is the subject of the
plea bargaining, the type that you had in here a few moments ago
who actually, In my listening, sounded very, very credible. He was
consistent; he was experienced; he was knowledgeable.

He is the kind of guy who, because of the lack of public appeal in
an auto theft case, all too frequently is plea bargained out of the sys-
tem. Your bill will make some changes in that kind of situation.

Mr. Loxen. I do not quite follow that. If I understood the ques-
tion, the question was can the prosecutors today make a distinction
betweeen the joyrider and the professional thief who is a part of that
ring?

T understood you to say that yes, the prosecutor can.

Colonel Pagano. That isright.

But the witness here, of course, was a professional.

Colonel Pacano. That isright.

Mr. Loxgen. He would not, then, be the one who would be able to
manage the plea bargaining?

Colonel Pacano. That is the unfortunate part of it. I believe he is
the one who does. .

Mr. Loken, I thought you said that, but I did not follow in the
context of how it follows. Would you explain it ?

Colonel Pacano. It becomes a case of volume. The volume is such
that the prosecutor frequently does not even address himself, or the
labor of plea bargaining, to a juvenile offender. He is moved into the
PTI, pretrail intervention kind of situation, or his case is tried in an
entirely differeat forum. ]

‘When you have 51,000 vehicles stolen, as we did in New Jersey in
1979, even that type of individual who was here represents part of an
absolutely difficult volume to handle. So his kind of case is plea
bargained.

Mr. Loken, I am not so sure you have explained it. The type of
individual who was here, I believe he stated he has not stolen cars
for some years.

Colonel Pacano. That is right.

Mr. Luxen, Yet he has been involved in the Luisiness, right?

Colonel Pagano. Yes.

Mr, Loge~, So it appears to me that probably he, or others similar
to him, are hiring people, including young people, and that they very
well might slip through the cracks and not be recognized by a prose-
cutor because of the volume and other problems as being part of the
ring, part of the system which is the big problem here.




63

Colonel Pacano. That is correct. Very infrequently is the supplier
type thief that you are talking about here ever even apprehended
because Jaw enforcement does not direct its resources toward the appre-
hension of the thief,

We look for the individual who has been in business for 20 years,
no longer steals, no longer gets his $250, but the individual who
actually is running the operation.

Mr. Luxen. You are only going to cateh the kid, or the person, or
the supplier, as you call him?

Colonel Pacawo., The patrols frequently catch that type of
individual.

Mr. Luxen. You catch him only at that end, shortly after he has
made the theft, but you do not catch him on the other end when you
discover, if you ever do, the automobile having gone to a chop shop or
having been sold or disposed of?

Colonel Pacano. That is absolutely right.

Mr. Gipman. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr, Lugen. Yes.

Mr. GiaaN. Have you ever broken up a chop shop ring or a dis-
tributor operation ?

Colonel Pacano. We have had cases through the years where the
dealer who ultimately sold the automobile, but frequently and more
often than not, you never get down tothe thief.

I think one thing that ought to be made clear that in a total of
51,000 thefts, with say a 60-percent recovery rate, 60 pevcent of that
51,000 were stolen by the juvenile type offender who comes into the
system also and is in no way a part of the auto theft for resale busi-
ness. He is just a car thief and in the anto theft for resale business.
It is at that point in time, Mr. Gilman, that we frequently apprehend
the thief,

‘We are apprehending those individuals where we feel we are making
the most impact.

Mr. Luge~. Are you saying, by the way, that only 60 percent of
the automebiles stolen in New Jersey are recovered at all?

Colonel Pacawo. 60.3 percent last year.

Mz, Lusen. Are recovered at all, ever?

Colonel Pagano. That is right.

Mr. Loxexn. That is shocking.

Colonel Pagano. That is W%\y we need the kind of legislation that
has been introduced in the Congress and in our own New Jersey
Legislator.

Mr. Green. Actually, I think they are doing a better job than most.

Colonel Pagano. Unfortunately, Mr. Green.

Mr. Green. That does show a professional larcenous operation.

Colonel Pacawo. That shows a situation that somebody has to do
something about.

Mr. Luxen. It is very prevalent.

Mr. ScuEUER. Do you think that States like New Jersey can handle
the problem or is Federal legislation desirable or necessary?

Colonel Pacawo. I think that joint functioning is necessary, that
your bill tied into the kind of situation that will be mandated for
the States will be the most effective.
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Mr. Green. John Doe seemed to be rather skeptical that improve-
ments in the vzhicle identification number systems and locking devices
would really be effective against the professional. Why do you think
that they could be?

Colonel Pacawo. I will go in two directions and I think Sergeant
Martin can add to it in his testimony. First of all, the actual theft of
the automobile will be mitigated. It will give enforcement and oppor-
tunity to possibly see or apprehend more frequently, but I am not
convinced that any antitheft device will be totally impenetrable.

But contrary to Mr. John Doe, when you complicate—and I think
that was Mr. Luken’s word—when you complicate a situation you
impede and you give government a better opportunity to apprehend
and to solve and to take effective action.

So that VIN number is going to be very essential. It is not going

. to mean that much, maybe, in the long run. It means another chore

for the thief; it means more work for him but if the profit is still
there, he will function. He probably will not function as effectively
nor will he function as much as he does volumewise.

Mzr. SceEuEr. It may slow down the professional and it may weed

.out the amateurs, like these Congressmen who tried to open the door

and blew it.

Colonel Pacano. It might be, Congressman Scheuer. I can tell you
what it will do. It will give enforcement some tools and backbone that
we presently do not have. I think that this is very important.

My, Loxex. I think we have allowed this to get a little disorderly
here in the way we are approaching it, and I am reproaching myself
on this, Mr. Chairman, and not anybody else, and that is totally bad
because we are getting some good questions and good information.

But since I am chairing this segment of it, I would like to ask two
questions, since we have already gotten there, and we will conduct the
rest of your presentation on & question and answer basis, if you do
not mind.

The two questions I would like to ask, one is a narrow one. What
is the VIN system? You have heard some questions on that. What
kind of numbering is there now and is there potentially, to your
knowledge of the panel’s knowledge, and the other is I would like
to testify, without interruption hopefully, as to what you think, and
I will try to abide by that, of the selling provisions of this legislation,
why you think it is good.

You have just said it is the best approach, and what the drawbacks
might be, or the defects or deficiencies. First of all, on the VIN,

Colonel Pacaxo. On the VIN, the VIN is the vehicle identification
number. Most frequently, it is observed by everyone on the dash of
the vehicle, observed by every law enforcement officer who makes a
vehicle stop for one reason or another and checked against the papers
carried by the driver.

Also on some vehicle models, placed on the engine and the transmis-
sion so they can later be identified.

In virtually every instance it is placed in a confidential location
known to very few people other than those specialized auto theft
investigators who, in most instances, rely upont he National Auto
Theft Bureau for technical examination.
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The VIN number that we are talking about now is going to be
placed on those component parts which are most often taken from
stolen vehicles and sold into what we call a “chop shop” which is the
newest development into the auto theft scheme.

Mr. LugeN. How will it be attached or impressed on the part?

Mr. Luken, how will it be attached or impressed on the part?

Colonel Pacawo. We are going to plan, or we are looking now
toward, an actual impression being placed.

Mr. Liuxen. Sort of a stamp?

Colonel Pagano. A stamp by the manufacturer, but in New Jersey
we have an additional plan of attaching a decal that is going to be
furnished by the division of motor vehicles whenever a vehicle is
being used by a legitimate individual who is reselling the nose, or
as you referred to, Mr. Luken, the nose of that antomobile,

‘We have a double kind of hit coming in in New Jersey. The bulk
of the work in this area is done by legitimate operators who have a
legitimate need to function. It is the illegitimate guy who has injected
himself into the scene primarily because of the availability of its parts
and the quick availability of parts, .

Mr, Liogen. Do the other members of the panel want to say any-
thing about the technology of that VIN number?

Sergeant Marrin. The VIN number itself, you seem to be stressing
the type of impression it is.

Mr. Lukex. Exactly.

Sergeant MarTiv. There is a way of making a VIN number, an
impression, & number stamped into metal. There is a way of making
it tamper-proof. Some of the foreign manufacturers have a system
where the place where the VIN number is stamped in the engine or
the transmission or the frame or whatever, has a very fine impression
of the logo of the manufacturer.

As an example, Trinmph motorcycles has a very small Triumph
logo all across where the VIN number is stamped. Now, when the
number is stamped over the top of these manufacturing logos, if that
number is sanded in any way, it disrupts the miniature logo char-
acteristic of that particular piece of metal and it is very easy to
determine that the vehicle Identification number was tampered with.

Mr. Lugen. Of course, that is just the beginning of the process of
unraveling it.

Sergeant Marrin, Exactly.

Mz, Luxexn. All that says is there is something rotten in Denmark,
but it does not say what,

Sergeant MarTIn. It just tells the trained and untrained eye that
that particular number has been tampered with.,

Mr. Luxen. So we have to go further.

Sergeant Marrin, The idea of the VIN number, regardless of how
many numbers we put on & particular vehicle, I mean. we could num-
ber every part, you are not geing to deter 100 percent vehicle theft.
It is a big business.

My, Lioxen. We could set up a whale of a bureaucracy in the effort.

Sergeant Marrin, Exactly. You make reference to different systems
in different States. The problem iz not with the individual States. Jer-
sey hae a particular system ; we have a particular system in New York;
Connecticut has a particular system. There are 50 different document
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systems in the United States all of them having their own unique
characteristics.

The problem is not the fact that one is bad and one is better and one
is not so good, it is the fact that they are all different that makes it dif-
ficult to work with.

Mz, Lugen. That is what I was getting at I was getting at picking
out a good one and making it uniform.

Sergeant Martin. Actually, Congressman, you can pick any one of
the 50, if you make it uniform.

Mr. Luxen. Except Kentucky.

Sergeant Martin. Ithink you mean Alabama.

Mz, Lugex. No; I mean Kentucky. I am familiar with Kentucky. It
is right across the border. I think there are virtually none, so we will
not count 'that.

Sergeant Marrin. The point I am trying to make, Congressman, is
regzmiless of the system you use, if every State was familiar with the
documents with the forms used, with the requirements for that particu-
lax State, then you would not have counterfeit documents being slipped
by clerks at motor vehicle offices that have no idea whether they are
good or bad.

Mr. Lurex. I do not want to monopolize this.

Colonel Pacaxo. I think we have not covered that other part.

Mr. Lugex. I think since that might take us more time than I am
allotted, I will let the other members of the panel address those
questions.

Mr. Gilman?

Mr. Gmuman. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

How much of the auto theft is involved in international trafficking?

Colonel Pagaxo. I do not think anyone can really give you a statistic
that would be credible. I think that everyone would agree that there
has always been an element of foreign shipping of stolen vehicles.

Mr. Gruman. What about those coming out of New Jersey ? Do you
have any information about any trafficking going out of the Jersey
harbors overseas?

Colonel Pagaxo. Yes; we have.

Mr. Giumaw. Do you have any idea what that amounts to and how it
goes out?

Colonel Pagano. I would not even attach an adjetive designator. I
would not call it sizable or minimal. It is just something we know
exists. We have had cases in that area and I think in that respect, your
bill gives us a leg up because it tieg in the Customs people now.

. Mr. Gmuman. Do you have any information about border crossings
into Mexico or Canada from this country?

Colonel Pacano. We have had that kind of theft activity reported
and it has come to our attention through the years, mostly outgoing.
Frequently, of course, as a matter of procedure, we will get inquiries
from the Canadian Government to check an automobile that went in
on a routine business and was not reported coming out.

They really are looking not so much for the theft situation. They
are looking for the resale and the tax end of it. A lot of that turns into,
%ltmgtely, an auto theft situation where a stolen car was taken to

anada. ‘
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Mr. GuafaN. You have never broken up any ring or any distribution
route that was smpping overseas?

Colonel Pacano. We have opened up a number of them through the

8ATS,
7 Mr, Gmuman. That were shipping overseas?

Colonel Pagano. Yes.

Mr, Gruman, What countries were they shipping to?

Colonel Pacano. Generally the South American countries, but I can
recall cases of special cars going to England.

Mr. ScueUeR, What do youmean by “special cars”?

Colonel Pagano. Generally the larger luxury cars. Sometimes we
would have vehicles that had antique value, Rolls-Royce was the one
I am thinking of which was specifically stolen and sent back to Eng-
land. This was a case 8 number of years ago. )

Mr. Graan. Have you been involved with any cases consisting of
parts shipments overseas?

Colonel Pagano. Not that I am aware of. Frank ?

Mr. Carpwern, No; we have not really gotten into anything lately
along those lines, I might add that the FEI just currently are involved,
or have been involved, in investigations in involving recovery of about
160 cars that were being shipped overseas. :

Mr, Scuzuer. To where ?

Mr. Carpwerr, Well, they were being shipped to South American
countries.

Mr. Ginman, Was that one distributor who was shipping it all?

Mr. Carpwerr. 1 had no knowledge as to that. .

Mr. Gmuman. Sergeant, do you have any information to add?

Sergeant MarriN. The shipping of parts is a problem, particularly
truck parts. We have had cases where components from trucks, any
year, primarily Mack, they take these component parts and they weld
them into containers. In other words, the containers are completely
sealed. You cannot really tell what is being shipped and they labal
them “Miscellaneous Machine Parts” and they will ship them overseas
that way.

Mr. ScuEuER. Do they get past the customs?

Sergeant MarTIN. Absolutely.

Mr. Scueuer. Why do not the customs insist they be shipped in
containers that can be inspected ?

Sergeant Marrin. I have met with customs on this problem and
they do have the ability and the authority to inspect these containers,
but the problem is that the shippers are in the business of shipping.
The steamship lines are in the business of sailing and if you do open
up one of these welded compartments and unload it, then it is the
responsibility of customs to reload it.

1t delays shipping and it is just an astronomical problem.

Larlier, one of you gentlemen asked John Doe whether the shipper
was involved, They are not involved. They are in the business primarily
of shipping goods, whether it be soybeans or coffee beans or
automobiles.

You drive a vehicle onto a pier, for the most part, that vehicle will
be loaded and shipped out without being inspected. The individual

that accepts the property looks at a piece of paper. It could be any
piece of paper.
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In fact, you do not even need documents to ship vehicles.

Mr. Gizuman. Sergeant, have you interrupted any shipments out of
the New York Harbor?

Sergeant Marrin. Yes; we have. In fact, I have some slides which
T have with me.

Mr. Scaever. Would you like to show the slides now ?

Sergeant Marrin. Whatever pleases you.

Colonel Pacano. Incidentally, our experience eoncurs in detail with
Sergeant Martin’s presentation.

Sergeant MarTIN. In putting together this tray of slides, we tried
to cover as many aspects of the problem as we possibly could fit in.
What we are looking at is the building on the right of the collision
shop, one garage door.

When you open the garage door, this is what we found. This is a
typical cutting operation. I hesitate to say New York style but I do
not think it has ever been duplicated. ‘

‘What they did here was, they rented a building, an empty ware-
house, and their method of operation was to work their way forward
stacking these vehicles one on top of another after they took the desir-
able parts off of them and worked their way to the front of the build-
ing. When they filled up the building, they would walk away from it.
They used a fictitious name to rent it, and they would leave the owner
of the building with the responsibility of cleaning all of this out.

Novw, the oldest vehicle you see here is a 1977, and I believe there
is only one of those. The rest are newer than 1977. Most are 1978,
1979’ and a few 1980’s. This operation was taken in 1979 so you can
see,1 the 1980% were barely on the street and they already had them
stolen. ‘

This gives you an idea of the colossal waste that chop shops engage
in. Most of these vehicles will never be streetworthy again because
they are stacked on top of one another, they are crushed. They do not
even take the engines and transmissions out because the engines and
transmissions have numbers on them. ,

As you can see, the doors and the nose clip and the tires, of course,
are the primary targets for these particular thieves. ) )

Mr. Scheuer, does that indicate to you that the vehicle identification
number system works and that the elements of the cars that now have
the VIN on them are not that appropriate for trade in the illegal
market?

Sergeant Martin. Well, in this particular situation it works. They
will get around any numbering system that we come up with because
history has proven that they have gotten around any system that we
have come up with.

I threw in a few of these slides just to show that many times when
we go into a cutting operation there is no real way of telling the vol-
ume that that particular operation is handling. These are small parts
that have no numbers and no means of identification but they are all
from brandnew vehicles. This is often what you find alorg the. walls
of a cutting shop, windshields.

This is the exception. These license plates, of course, can be traced.
This is primarily what a stripped vehicle looks like after a cut shop
is finished with it. This particular piece, they needed the roof line.
The reason for that is that it had a sun roof in it and what they do is
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they cut the four posts off and they weld it onto another vehicle with-
out & sunroof.

This is just to show that cutting shops are not strictly automobiles.
This particular chop shop was a closed down movie theatre which they
used to cut up tractor trailers. Since Detective Grinenko was down
there, maybe he could eomment on it.

Mr. Grinenko. This was, as Sergeant Martin said, a movie theater
in the heart of Brooklyn. We had 17 new trucks. Qut of these 17 new
trucks we were able to recover one engine. The purpose of cutting of
trucks is primarily for the engine, transmission and drive train. After
that, the rest of the vehicle is serapped.

Here you have 17 trucks. The truck right there directly in the center
was a 1978 Freightliner. It was one of three stolen from a New Jersey
dealer.

Mr. ScrEuer. How much are they worth ?

Mr. Grinenxo. That one in particular is worth over $70,000. The
other two are in the $60,000%. The total value of the trucks in this par-
ticular operation is over $580,000, the initial theft value.

The problem here is that most of the independents that lost their
trucks here did not have insurance. They were not able to afford the
insurance. Subsequently, they either went out of business or on unem-
ployment.

Sergeant Martin. One of the problems with trucks that we have is
that the numbering systems on the component parts do not necessarily
match the VIN number in the truck itself. Many times an individual
that requires a truck to be built for him will order a particular engine.

As an example, you can buy a Mack tractor with a Cummings diesel
and a different name brand transmission, depending on the type of
heavy duty work you have slated for that particular vehicle. So when
iyou buy a truck it is not like buying an Oldsmobile off a production
Line.

You order the truck and then the truck is built to your specifications.

Mr. Grzyan. All of those numbers are known to the owner and are
registered.

Sergeant Marriy. The numbers are known to the owner, but unfor-
tunately, depending on the manufacturer you are dealing with, Mack
happens to be very, very good. They have all of their component
parts cross-referenced at the factory to the original unit that that
particular component was placed into.

But some of the other truck manufacturers do not have this ability
to cross-reference these numbers. So it is very difficult for us when
we stop a vehicle with a Cummings diesel in it. Let say we stop an
old truck with a brand new engine. It is very difficult for us to imme-
diately ascertain, number one, whether the component part is stolen
and, number two, who in fact it belongs to.

Mr. Grinengo. There were two trucks in this particular movie
theater that were not cut up yet. Initially, they started stripping them
but they were not cut up.

. This one truck we managed to reassemble. This was a 1978 Freight-
liner, again, a very expensive model with a sleeper. The only thing
that we were not able to recover from this particular truck was the
transmission. Every other component part we had. Everything was
cut, though, in such a fashion that it could be easily sold.
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Now, what happens to these parts? Wetook a fleet of 11 trucks from
one contractor. That fleet of 11 trucks was assembled with 26 stolen
trucks. Every truckk you see here had at least one stolen part, and in
one instance, one truck entirely stolen, and in a few instances every
component part was stolen, meaning dump body, engine cab. In one
instance, tires we were abls to identify o stolen.

Mr, Giuaran. Was this all from one ompany?

Myr. Grivenxo. This was all from one company, 26 stolen. trucks to
assemble 11 whole trucks.

Sergeant MarTiN. These are brand new vehicles that were taken
from a dealership parking lot. We recovered them on the pier slated
to be shipped out of the country. You can see they were slated for
Beirut, but just about any South American country accepts vehicles.
They were worth a tremendous amount of money outside of the United
gtates, fiar more than they are worth within the Continental United

tates.

Mr. Giryan. Have any identification marks been eradicated on those
vehicles?

Sergeant MarTIn. No, siv. There is really no need to alter the vehicle
to ship it out of the country.

Mr. Scaruer. And Customs does not make a systematic check on

vehicles to see if they are stolen?
_ Sergeant Marrin, They do. Recently customs has become actively
involved in inspecting these vehicles. In fact, the auto crime division
has trained several of the customs officers in the confidential locations
and that type of thing, but just from sheer volume they do not have
the ability to inspect every vehicle. I have met with them. “What I
believe should happen is that in order to ship a vehicle outside of
the country, you should be required to bring that vehicle to the pier
maybe 4 or 5 days in advance of shipment. This way it allows the
customs people time to inspect the vehicle.

As it stands now, you can drive up 20 minutes before the ship is
leaving and actually drive the vehicle right onto the ship.

Mr. Grizvenko, This is a Caterpillar, also slated for shipment. This
was one of two stolen from the same contractor. This was the other one.
It was already manifested. The number was slightly changed. This is
the vehicle identification plate. It really was not a professional job.
The only thing that was done to it, at the far right you see it is actually
a number, that little number that is almost half the size of the rest of
the numbers, it was just added on.

It was obviously a nonprofessional type of job and it was manifested,
marked up, on its way to Maracaibo.

Sergeant Marrin. This particular alteration on the VIN plate was
not even necessary. No one would have picked up this vehicle. They
just took an extra dye stamp and hit an extra number on the VIN
just in case an inspector happened to run it in the computer. But it
was highly unlikely that that would hapypen.

Just to give you an idea of how thorough the thieves are, these are
all motor vehicle documents from various States. We were able to
make several arrests on this. We executed a search warrant in a two-
family house in Brooklyn and we recovered everything from counter-
feit airline tickets to counterfeit Polish money to VIN plates which
were blank, counterfeit VIN plates.
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I donot know if you can make it out, but on the right there are some
Porsche plates, Mercedes-Benz plates, Case heavy duty equipment
plates. All of these plates, all that had to be done was to have the
numbers stamped in the plates and put on a vehicle.

Mr. Grivenko. We mentioned tities before. There you have a New
Jersey title, a Connecticut title, a ¥lorida title.

Sergeant Marrin. That stack of titles, the green ones with the pink
sitting on top of it, that particular title is a Connecticut title, I believe,
and that stack represents 90 vehicles which can be insured in this State
and have the insurance collected without ever having a vehicle meet
the road.

Mr. Grinexgo. These are offset dyeplates to make the vehicle iden-
tification numbers for Mercedes and Case equipment. They even had
full packages. If you wanted a new identity, they had birth certificates,
licenses, whatever else you wanted.

Here is what we consider a full package, a stolen car. The VIN
plate itself is an altered plate. This is the VIN plate, a counterfeit
VIN plate, a counterfeit Federal sticker that normally appears on
the door, a counterfeit Connecticut registration, a good Connecticut
license plate that actually went to a 1962 Chevy.

Mr, Loxen. Could we go back to the VIN plate? Now, that is the
current state of the art for VIN plates, right ?

Mzr. Grinengo. For a counterfeit. They are much better.

Mr. Luken. Is it a good counterfeit?

Mr. Grivenxo. That is a very poor counterfeit.

Mr. Luxen. But it looks something lilke the original ?

Sergeant Marrin. Yes. It would get passed the average purchaser of
a vehicle with no problem at all.

Mr. Lugex. That is just & plate that serews on?

Sergeant Marrin, Actually, you only see the front portion of it,
Congressman. The padding of the dashboard goes over the rest of it,
so you would only see the portion where the numbers sit.

Colonel Paeano. It may not get past a good patrol officer. He would
recognize it, .

Mr, Luxew. They could counterfeit the plate. If they are good
counterfeiters, they can replace it and it can go undetected, right?

Mzr. GriNENKO. Yes.

Mr. Luken. Thank you.

Mr. Grivenxo. Federal sticker, counterfeit registration, the good
Connecticut plate, a counterfeit New York license and a social security
card to back the license up and a board of elections card.

Mr. Luken. That is important.

Mr. Grinenko. That is your full package.

Mr. Lugen. Mr. Gilman.

Mr. Ginman. Has there been a good interchange between the States
and the ¥BI on auto theft?

Do you have a good interchange of information in the central
computer?

Colonel Pacano. There is an excellent relationship between our
State and the FBI. You have the NCIC program which, essentially,
gives you that centralized data base, but working with organizations
like the New York City Police Department and the National Auto
Theft Bureau, plays a very important role in bringing it altogether
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from the insurance company view. The whole thing goes together in
iuch a fashion as to maximize, if possible, those facilities that we do
ave.

Mr. Gmaan. Can the police officer out on the highway get a quick
response if he suspects that the vehicle has been stolen out of a central
computer bank?

Colonel Pacano. In most instances, yes. In the instance of the ve-
hicle that is altered, it depends upon his own observations, his own
training, and the investigation that he takes for it, and obviously
even with all of that full package as the slides portray, some officer
somehow was able to detect the entire issue.

Mr. Giuman. There is a national reporting system on all auto ve-
hicles and that information is available to the officer out on the
highway?

Colonel Pacano. That is correct.

Mr. Gruaman. Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

Mr. Logen. Mr, Green?

Mr. Green. Under the bill the National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration could only require numbering of additional parts if
it found that it was cost effective to do so. Would you have any idea,
in your judgment, as to what parts you think that would means, or
how many parts?

Colonel Pagano. T think NTSA has a pretty good handle on this
issue. I think what your bill does, FL.R. 4178, kind of brings the law
into the state of the art or in tandem with the state of the art. Right
now, we are talking primarily about the noses, the engines and trans-
mission, which are in every instance not numbered, but those parts
which are clearly recognizable as being a part of the theft problem.

Mr. Green. Because the National Highway Traffic Safety Adminis-
tration, as you say, is already involved in this, we are not creating any
new bureaucracy ?

Colonel Pagawo. Tt is already there as a bureaucracy, for want of a
better word, but I think that they have been active with the chiefs as-
sociation, they have been active with the insurance industry.

I believe that in the scheme of government, NTSA has probably the
best handle on what is going on in this area and probably, asa Federal
agency, hasbeen the most active.

Mr. Green. Just for the record—and I know we have to move on—
T would like to be able to submit and include in the record a study on
the cost-effectiveness issue which was done on the Senate side which I
think might be useful.

Mr. Scuruer. Without objection, it is so ordered. ‘We will hold the
record open for another 10 days or 2 weeks until you get the request in.

[The following information was received for the record:]

Cost BENEFIT OF H.R. 4178 To AMERICAN MOTORISTS

Coat: Million per year
1. Additional parts numbering for estimated 10 million vehicles sold
annually $50
2. Maximum estimated costs for effective antitheft device for esti-
mated 10 million vehicles sold annually.._ 360

Total 410
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Benefit: Per year

1. Savings in insurance payouts and overhead costs for unrecovered
thefts $730, 095, 456

2. Savings in insurance payouts and overhead costs for amateur
theft .. 1568, 220, 000
3. Savings in out-of-pocket victim costs 100, 000, 000
Total 988, 315, 456
Net savings per year 578, 315, 456
Savings per $1 of cost 2. 41

Stady prepared by the Senate Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations,

Mr. Liuken. Mr. Chairman, unless you have something, I think that
concludes this panel.

Ms. DurBiN. As you recall, our witness John Doe indicated he had
learned his techniques for illegally entering a car from a locksmith.
He did not believe that the locking system provision would be particu-
larly helpful in deterring auto theft.

Could you comment on that?

Colonel Pacawo. It will deter a good number of thieves, because
obviously from the statistics that we are quoting here today, the bulk
of the thievery is still being carried on by people who are other than
the professional,

I think it will deter them.

Frank?

Sergeant Marrin. I think we have to realize that locks were made to
keep honest people honest. The first person to buy & new lock that hits
the market are the thieves, the idea being to defeat the lock. '

I do not really believe that the whole answer is in improving the
locking system or the numbering system or anything else. The idea
is that we have to somehow take away the tremendous profits in auto
theft in order to deter the thief.

It is a big business. These people are making hundreds of thousands
of dollars each and every year. They look upon new legislation, new
locking systems, new numbering systems, simply as annoying overhead
costs which they have to overcome to continue on with their tremen-
dously profitable business.

Along those lines, before you dismiss us, I would just like to make a
few comments on the bill itself. I would like to preface my comments
by saying that I am not here to, in any way, disparage your efforts or
to knock the bill itself.

Mr. Scaeuer. Sergeant, let me make it clear. We are here to get
your comments, to get your views, to get your suggestions, to get your
criticism. The purpose of this hearing is to give us the knowledge that
will improve our legislative capability and improve this product, so
we want you to be completely forthcoming with us.

Any suggestions or criticisms that you may have, please give them.
That is the whole purpose of this exercise.

; Sergeant Marrin, Congressman, I am not in the business of writing
aws.

Mr. Scursuer. We understand that.

Sergeant Marrin. I am in the business of trying to enforce them
after they come down through the channels.

Mr. Sorever. So, from your viewpoint, tell us how we can improve
this legislation or make it work better.

68-093 Q ~ 80 ~ &
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Sergeant Martin. There are three areas which, when I looked
through this bill, sort of struck me. The first and foremost is that we
have fo somehow put some presumptions in this law with reference
to dealers. )

On page 11, in one paragraph, I see two outs for every dealer in
motor vehicle parts written right into this legislation and that being
the comment. “With intent to sell” and the word “knowingly.”

Now, I think if a police’department or law enforcement officer enters
into an auto parts dealer and finds an altered or stolen part in that
dealership, it should be presumed that the part, that the owner of that
dealership had intent to sell that part.

Mr. ScueuER. You think we should require them to make an inspec-
tion? I do not know if you can impute knowledge unless you require
him to make an inspection. We still have a Constitution in this country.

Sergeant Marri~. If a parts dealer takes in a vehicle or a component
bart that has a number, he is required to enter that part number in his

ook, if he is a licensed dealer—and he has to look at the number. He
is forced to by existing legislation.

I do not see where that is putting any undue responsibility on the
part of the dealer.

Second, knowledge—I mean, if a man is dealing in auto parts, he
should have knowledge when a number has been altered or wiped or
eradicated or ground off. If it is obvious to the untrained eye that a
number has been removed from an engine block, it should be obvious
to a dealer. But if 1 go into court with this chap, the first thing he is
going to say is, “I did not intend to sell that part. That was for my
wife’s car.” And the second thing he is going to say is, “I did not know
it was altered.”

So there are two outs in that one paragraph which I think can be
overcome with a slight change in wording.

Mr. Scuever. The word “intent” and the word “knowingly”?

Sergeant Martin, Exactly.

Mzr. Scueuzr. OK.

Sergeant MarriN. The other thing is under the forfeiture
proceedings.

Mr. Luxen, Mr. Chairman, I think that is an interpretation. I think
the lawyers and the courts are going to insist that we keep that in there,
but I do not think that is a subject to get into.

Mr. ScHEUER., Right now we are taking testimony, OK. We are
ultimately going to be marking up the bill.

Sergeant Marrin. The second thing is the portion of the bill which
refers to forfeiture of the altered component parts or stolen parts. I
think it is good, but we have to realize that the parts were never owned
by the individual they were taking them from anyway. If he had them
stolen for him or he got them in some illegal way, he did not pay for
them. So by taking away these parts from him, we are not really hurt-
ing the dealer himself.

I believe that the equipment that is being used to cut these vehicles
should be subject to forfeiture, the flatbed trucks. Any tow truck that is
used for transportation of stolen or altered numbers should be the
subject of forfeiture proceedings.

Mr. Sceeuer. Just the way you can forfeit a boat or airplane in
which drugs are being transported ?
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Sergeant Martin. I think the only way you are going to deter auto
theft 1s to take away the profits. Now, to remove stolen parts from an
individual who did not legally possess them in the first place, you are
not really hurting him because he can go out and replace them just like
he did the original set. But if you take away $100,000 worth of equip-
ment that he has to use for his day-to-day business, he is going to think
t];:vsgced about being caught with altered or stolen equipment. That is all

ad.

Mr. Scaruer. Congressman Gilman .

Mr, Gruman, Sergeant, in the city of New York, what do you esti-
mate the loss of automobiles by theft to be last year? ‘

Sergeant Marrin. It was in the high 80,000%s. I believe it was 87,000-
some-odd vehicles.

Mr. Grzman, 87,000 vehicles?

Sergeant; MarTIn. In New York City, yes.

Mr, Gruman, How many people are n your unit?

Sergeant Marrin. Presently we have 58. )

Mr. Gizman. Do you have sufficient personne] to do an adequate job
with that number of auto thefts? )

Sergeant Marrin. Well, that is kind of & loaded question and I am
really not in a position to comment on the police department’s allo-
cation of their available manpower. I will say that traditionally and
historically auto crime has been a property crime and it is sort of low
on the ladder of priorities because it is “a vietimless crime” although I
would like to debate that with you if we had the time. But it is con-
sidered a victimless crime.

The victim is generally reimbursed by his insurance company, if not
totally, almost totally, and it is really a property erime that is not taken
very seriously.

Mr. Gizyman. The vietim is really the other policyholders and the
taxpayer, I guess?

Sergeant MarTin. Exactly.

Mr. Grzvan, Thank you.

Mr. Scueuer [presiding]. Al right. Thank you very much. We
appreciate your very thoughtful testimony.

Next we will hear from Mr. Albert Lewis, superintendent of insur-
ance, the State of New York,

Mz, Lewis, we are happy to have you. We apologize for the mixw
in scheduling. Your testimony will be printed in full [see p. 82] an
if you would like to chat with us informally and hit the high spots,
that would be fine.

STATEMENT OF ALBERT B, LEWIS, SUPERINTENDENT OF IN-
SURANCE, STATE OF NEW YORK

Mr. Liewis. Let me speak about the impact in the city of New York
concerning theft. I will give some comparisons.

The national average premium of auto theft is $29 to $31. In New
York it is $277. Some say it is over $200 and some of my people say
$300, but $277 is the average cost of auto theft premium,

Mr. Loxex. Is that the annual preminm just for theft ? .

Mr. Lews. Yes. If in addition you have collision insurance it repre-
sents 30 cents of every dollar of your automobile premium. In other
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words, you have liability, no fault, collision, and comprehensive; 30
percent of it is fire and theft and if you do not have the collision, 40
percent or more is fire and theft. Auto theft is moving out of the city
and moving out into the rural and suburban areas, according to the
latest statistics.

I want to say that New York has done everything that we could
conceive, with the gentleman who was speaking here from the New
York City Auto Theft Bureau assisting Senator Caemmerer and my
department and DMV to try to approach some of our problems,

We have some different but similar statistics. We estimate that 60
percent of the vehicles stolen are stolen for parts and some 20 or more
percent are stolen by people who steal their own cars for the insurance
opportunity.

Mr. Sueever. What happens to the other 20 percent?

Mr. Lewis. We do not have a breakdown of these statistics. Some
of them we believe are phantom cars, cars that never existed and are
insured, and the rest of them are those that go overseas, that either
they are stolen before they go overseas or they are shipped overseas
and then reported stolen.

Just recently I am sure you have seen, they found 104 vehicles on
the dockside. They were not found by part of a normal routine exami-
nation but a Customs official just became suspicious and reported it
to the FBI. This is a situation that does not only occur in New York
City. It has been a fact in San Francisco also. In fact, the statistics
in port of entry and port of export are higher for auto theft, especially
the expensive cars.

Mr. Scueuer. What made him suspicious?

Mr. Lewis. I just read it from the newspaper article. He says, “U.S.
Customs agent alerted the FBI after he became suspicious of cars
awaiting transit to the ship,” McDonald said. This happened 8 weeks
or 1 month ago.

Mr. SceruEr. It seems to me that these cars being weighed to be
shipped abroad should be routinely and systematically inspected.

Mr. Liewis. It is not enough, Congressman. If you inspect the decu-
ments and that car is not stolen, how do we know that that will not
become a crime statistic. It would be foolish to have a car shipped
abroad that is stolen. Why not ship it abroad not stolen and then
report it stolen? There are no documentations to show it left the
United States.

The question that I have on this bill what if it is exported and then
reported stolen ? Are those siatistics going to be utilized ? Are we going
tv utilize those statistics in a national computer?

New York State has moved that way. When I speak to you about
phantom cars, those are cars that were insured not in just one com-
pany but were insured in several companies. The car never existed.
Someone bought a wreck somewhere, bought indicia of title, and
insured the car five, six, seven or eight times. Companies did not use
a national computer to indicate that a car had been stolen.

We have changed the law in New York. We have selected NATRB,
the National Auto Theft Bureau, as a statistical reporting area or
computer and we require that no car theft to be paid by insurance
companies shall be paid unless they check with NATB, so we stopped
that duplication.
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We would expect that this legislation would require, and I am
not selling NATB. I think it is nonprofit, but I am saying we would
have to use NATB. So when the car is exported anyone knowing the
United States, insuring that car that something is wrong, that car
would have to be imported and checked accordingly.

I concur with what the Sergeant said and what John Doe said that
no matter how many devices you are going to prepare you are going
to find someone who is going to break it. I would ask, if you would,
that General Motors had a summary of automotive theft and how it
occurred. It was done on March 1, 1978. It was very interesting to
see how the thefts occur even with a burglar alarm and all. The thefts
occurred, and I give it to vour committee and make it available.

‘What I want to say about why I think the bill has merit, especially
in the theft for component crash parts, since wo expect that the in-
surance industry would be the final stop in this whole proceeding.
After all, the end result of this is an insurance company paying for
these parts. That is where the money comes in and that would be the
bottom line.

We would expect that, when this legislation is passed, insurance
companies throughout the United States would not pay a claim, would -
not pay a claim for any part replacement, unless the part identification
number is put into a schedule, the schedule is then reported to a central
statistical computer agency that would indicate tnat that part is a
part that is in the commerce as a properly manufactured replacement
part: That part so serial numbered once used in a vehicle as a replace-
ment would not be able te be used again.

So no matter how many times they changed the serial number, that
serial number would have to have a logical source from whence it
came and it would have to come from a recognized commercial
situation.

New York changed the law, John Doe spoke about the fact that
you could teke a car, change the VIN number and get it reissued in
New York State. Effective April 1, 1980, totaled cars, I mean totaled
with the parenthesis, will not have the VIN number replaced, will
not be able to be registered unless the DMV makes a full inspection
at a cost of $25 and they must check to see that the car didn’t become
a miraculous automobile but, in fact, was the car that started out and
had been substantially changed.

Again, when you speak about the phantom car, this is kow it arises,
you pick up a wrecked or totaled car. The car has ceased to exist. You
get the indicia of title. You come and insure it in New York. Insurance
companies were not doing what they were supposed to do. In fact,
insurance companies were somehow collusive in the situation because
that car that was totaled by an insurance carrier and then their sell-
ing that title into the marketplace. It is interesting to see that the
amount they sold that title for had nothing to do with the lump of
junk that was left over. It was determined by the resale value of that
car on what I would consider to be the illegal market. '

So, if a Jag was wrecked, that Jag would be a bundle of steel that
might be worth $50 if they sold it for junk, yet they would sell that for
$1,009, just the indicia of title and somebody’s stolen Jag would have
a miraculous conversion into the VIN numbers of the junked vehicle.

That was a situation that we saw in New York. Again, we can’t
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reach out of New York State but we have required that New York
insurance companies cannot sell their title papers or wrecked vehicles.

Mr. Scueuer. What was their reaction to that legislation?

Mr, Lewis. They have accepted it very well. We enforce it. Unfor-
tunately, what they do in New York is great. What they might do in
another State, I donot know.

Mzr. Soueuer. This points up to the national legislation, I take it.

Mur. Lewis. Absolutely.

Myr. Luxex. Do you mean uniformity ?

Mr. Lewis. I don’t want to get into uniformity because I do not be-
lieve in uniformity.

Mr. Luken. What did you mean in answer to chairman’s question ?

Mzr. Lewis. T mean that if you are going to build a boat and you are
going to build a hull and the hull is going to have to be watertight, you
cannot leave a hole in it. I am saying not so much for uniformity, but
for a situation that each State and the insurance companies operating
in those States should do everything they can to protect another State
or another insurance company from this type of situation.

I do not know if it is uniformity because I have testified before the
Congress and said that sometimes uniformity insurance is not neces-
sarily desirable because each State might have a particular problem
that they recognize.

In this case, a wrecked vehicle that is totalled should not be allowed
to come back to the marketplace unless there be some examination by
someone who is reputable and objective, hopefully a governmental unit
that will approve the car as being the car that was repaired. Other-
wise, what has been happening in New York State and still happen-
ing, I would imagine, you get a wrecked vehicle. They get the title,
they come in, they insure if, somehow they get a safety inspection
from New York State and they insure it with five or six or seven
companies.

Now, someone says “How many phantom cars are there?” It is hard
te tell. We do not know. We know that we put in a photo inspection
program where the car is examined, it is photographed. I do not think
that is going to stop these thieves to that extent, but at least some of
the honest thieves we have attempted to stop.

Mr. Scurver. The honest thief is the thief who can measure risks
and benefits? If it becomes too expensive and too risky he gets out of
that business?

Mr. Lewis. I think if you asked this man who was here who sounded
very intelligent, there is very little risk. I did some criminal defend-
ant’s work and an individual who was a schoolteacher toid me that this
was less tension than teaching because he picked up the car, there was
no confrontation, there was never any physical violence.

Mr. ScHEUER. It is less hassling than the blackboard jungle?

Mr. Lrwis. Yes. I am just saying that it is not a theft, you do not
have to carry a weapon. It is very simple.

Again, I am just saying that in New York we passed legislation ef-
fective April 1, 1980. We require that situation. We have increased the
crime to an E felony.

Mr. Scaeuer. To a what?

Mr. Lewis. An E felony for a fraudulent auto claim.
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Mz, Scaruer. What does that mean, an “E felony,” for the benefit
of my colleagues?

Mzr. Lewzs, I think it is a year and a day to 3 years. It is worse than
having your library card taken away. You have to serve time. I think
it is a year to three. We have also given an opportunity to insurance
companies to have immunity when they know that there is somebody
that is pulling these shenanigans again and again.

The fact of the matter is, in the attempt to enforce this crime, I think
you have the statistics, only 15 percent of the perpetrators are, in fact,
apprehended.

Maybe the bottom line to what I want to say is that I believe, I tell
you now, that the State has done everything they possibly could. There
is no way I could comprehend, other than te be demagogic and say
well, we need more police or that type of situation.

I do not think the State can move in any way now to inhibit auto
crime. I think that if we got this legislation, if I understand, that we
would be using the export documents to triger an NATB-fype com-
puter and we, the insurance industry, would move to require that no
insurance claim is made unless that part that is replaced has an iden-
tification number that is referable to a commercial part. I beiieve that
we can reduce insurance rates in New York by 18 percent and that, I
think, is a very, very strong situation.

Mr. GreeN. How much per year is that ?

Mr. Lewis. You take your policy, Congressman, and if you do not
have collision, it is more, What I am saying is that I believe that 60
percent of the claims could be arrested or prevented. This man said
$225. When I was representing criminals, they would pay a-kid $75 to
$125 for a car, and you must understand that there is another part of
the crash part thing and that is the CPI index, which has nothing to
do with the crash part index.

And T hope that if you have an opportunity, if you wish, you can
see State Farm has done a check. ,

Mr. Sceeuzr. CPI is what?

Mzr, Lewis. The Consumer Price Index.

Mr. Screuer. The cost of car parts is going up far higher than the
Consumer Price Index, far faster?

Mr. Lewrs. I mean by six or seven times. When sales go down, crash
parts go up.

Mr. Scaruer, Why is that?

Mr. Lewis. You had better ask the manufacturers, I really do not
know, because you cannot buy it anywhere else.

It is interesting when I say that batteries, wheels, tires, they follow
the OPI because you can buy them in a competitive market. Crash
parts, a $300 hood for a Cadillac is one single piece of maybe 7 or eight
pounds of metal stamped out When GM was making refrigerators, the
refrigerators sold for less than the GM hood part.

Part of it, I do not know, because I have never been involved in their
cost accounting I do not know what their problem is, but I am just
saying that that is where the pressure is and the impetus. '

As the part goes up, they go out and steal.

Nov, you do not need a body and fender shop to put up a sign that
says, “Fellow, steal today GM.” They have a teletype and I am speak-
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ing about the normal, properly commercial operation. A teletype comes
out, saying, “We need the following we need these and these are in
short supply.” o ) s

Any self-respecting auto thief will get that teletype and say, This
is what is hot and this is what we need.”

Mr. ScaruEr. Where do they get it from? .

Mr. Lews. Every auto part dealer who needs parts puts a request 1n,
goes on the teletype and presto, would you believe it, the part comes in.
I think if you were to follow the statistics I have, suddenly there is a
rash of these cars. .

About 1 or 2 years ago Chrysler was not making that many replace-
ment parts for the new cars and so they were in tight supply. Well,
there were more new Chrysler cars being picked up. )

Mr. SomruEr. Can you tell us how the auto insurance discount would
work for an antitheft device? )

Mr. Lewis. I cannot tell you because we ave not working on that in
our legislation that passed April 1,1980. We are trying to find out what
we consider to be a secure device and we are trying to get the statistics.

How, and the way we work it, at this time we are still coming up with
some ideas. We are considering burglar alarms, types of burglar
alarms, factory-installed, nonfactory-installed. These statistics indi-
cate to me that sometimes some type of burglar alarm protects,
depending on the thief.

I mean, we have seen that if you have a burglar alarm that is hooked
up to your battery, they spike your battery. When the acid comes out
of the battery they come back and then take the car or else they will
come with tow trucks and the tow truck picks it up and away you go.

New York City requires two trucks to be licensed with a number. It
is surprising how many tow trucks, when you are interesting in watch-
ing, have no number. I just wonder who and where they are taking the
cars they have on them,

‘We are working on that. We have a mandate from the legislature to
come up with something and when I do, I will submit it to you.

Mr. Sceever. Can the individual States, in your opinion, move effec-
tively in requiring the manufacturers to upgrade their security fea-
tures on the cars?

Mr. Liewis. You could, but it is like throwing pebbles at an elephant.
‘We have had some ideas. I think Senator Pisani in the New York
State Legislature has put in legislation that New York State will not
%ﬂow you to sell & car in their State unless the car has the following

actors.

I recommended to the Governor at one time that maybe New York
State should not buy their vehicles unless they have that number, but
T think it is really in the province of the Congress to react to that, and
ne State can do it.

Mr. Scueurr. What were the results of the temporary program re-
quiring vehicle identification for cars scheduled for export?

Mr. Lewrs. I still have not received that report.

Mr. ScreuEr. That report from whom?

Mr. Lewis. As I understand, the original legislation, they were sup-
posed to report in 1979.

Mr. ScuruEr. Is that the New York State Legislature you are talk-
ing about?
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- Mr. Lewss. I understand that the Federal Government went ahead
and, by regulation, had the Customs do something, if that is the ques-
tion you are asking. I do not know what that is. T imagine NATDB
would be able to give you some information on that. It was Federal.

Incidentally, just for the city of New York, we have gotten the
cooperation of the Mayor. We had a situation of people stealing cars,
not in the city of New York, leaving them in the city of New York,
because you can take your license plate off to wash it and by the time
you come back the next day there is no car if you park it in certain
areas of New York, near incinerators and other places.

‘What we have done in New York now, we have gotten New York
City and the insurance companies to agree on a pickup period. When
a stolen car is recovered in the city of New York, the car is immediately
picked up and taken to a safe place. That was not done and we found
out it had an impact not only on the city of New York but, for the most
part, on the stirrounding counties.

[ Testimony resumes on p. 95.]

{Mr. Lewis’ prepared statement follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF ALBERT B. LEWIS, N.Y.S. SUPERINTENDENT OF INSURANCE
BEFORE THE HOUSE SUBCOMMITTEE ON CONSUMER PROTECTION AND FINANCE
AND THE HOUSE COMMITTEE ON INTERSTATE AND FOREIGN COMMERCE
AT 26 FEDERAL PLAZA

JUNE 2, 1980

CHAIRMAN YATRONE, CONGRESSMAN SCHEUER, AND MEMBERS OF
THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON CONSUMER PROTECTION AND FINANCE AND THE COMMITTEE
ON INTERSTATE AND FOREIGN COMMERCE.

I THANK YOU FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO TESTIFY AT THIS JOINT
HEARING TODAY. AUTO THEFT IS A MAJOR CRIME OPERATED BY ORGANIZED
CRIMINAL RINGS AND PROBABLY MAKES MORE MONEY THAN AUTO MANUFACTURERS
AND DEALERS OPERATING IN THE LEGITIMATE MARKETPLACE. IT IS ESTIMATED
THAT THE COST FOR THE YEAR 1978 OF STOLEN VEHICLES IS APPROXIMATELY
$4 BILLIOW, AT ONE TINE AUTO THEFT WAS A SIGNIFICANT NORTHEAST
AND URBAM PROBLEM. RECENT STATISTICS, HOWEVER, INDICATE THAT AUTO
THEFT KNOWS NO GEOGRAPHIC BOUNDARY AND IT IS IMPACTING EVERY STATE
IN THE UNION.

IN 1978, 991,611 AUTO THEFTS WERE REPORTED, AN INCREASE
OF 2.4% OVER 1977, OF THESE THEFTS 247 OCCURRED IN THE SCUTHERN




83

AREA, AN INCREASE OF 107 OVER 1877, WESTERN AREA 23%, AN INCREASE
OF 7%, WHILE THE NORTHEAST SUSTAINED 30%, A DECREASE OF 3% AND THE
NORTH CENTRAL 23%, A DECREASE OF 1Z. THESE STATISTICS, COMPILED
IN THE FBI'S UNIFORM CRIMINAL REPORT FOR 1978 ARE CLEARLY
SUBSTANTIATION OF THE MAGNITUDE OF THESE OCCURRENCES AND THEIR
WIDESPREAD GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION.

IN ADDITION TO THESE GEOGRAPHIC STATISTICS, THE AUTO THEFTS
IN RURAL AND SUBURBAN AREAS ARE ON THE INCREASE. BETWEEN 1977 AND
1978 URBAN (CITIES OVER 250,000) THEFTS DECREASED BY 3% WHILE
SUBURBAN INCREASED BY 4% AND RURAL BY 7%.

IN NEW YORK STATE MOTORISTS PAY 220% MORE IN AUTO
COMPREHENSIVE PREMIUMS THAN THE NATIONAL AVERAGE. NEW YORK STILL
SUSTAINS OVER 10% OF ALL.NATIONAL AUTO THEFTS.

AUTO THEFT INSURANCE NATIONALLY AVERAGES $29 PER YEAR AND
IN NEW YORK CITY IT AVERAGES $277,

OF THE AVERAGE AUTO POLICY PREMIUM WHICH INCLUDES
COLLISION, COMPREHENSIVE AND LIABILITY, 30% OF SAME REPRESENTS THE
COMPREHENSIVE (FIRE AND THEFT) PORTION OF THE CHARGE, IN AN AUTO
POLICY WITHOUT COLLISION, IT REPRESENTS 43% OF THE PREMIUM,




84

PART OF THE PROBLEM IN THE COST OF THEFT INSURANCE IS THE
) NATIONAL PRICING OF CRASH PARTS, THESE ITEMS ARE MANUFACTURED BY
AND ARE PRICED ENTIRELY UNDER THE CONTROL OF THE AUTO MANUFACTURERS.
CRASH PARTS, WHICH INCLUDE FRONT END, DOORS, AND REAR TRUNK
ASSEMBLY HAVE INCREASED FROM 1974 TO 1976 BY 74%. DURING THE SAME
TIME THE CONSUMER PRICE INDEX ROSE BY ONLY 18.6%, THE COST FOR
THESE CRASH PARTS CQNTINUED TO ESCALATE AND FROM JANUARY 1976 T0
TO JANUARY 1980 :T INCREASED BY 48,1 PERCENT. THE HIGH PRICE OF
THESE CRASH PARTS IS THE REAL IMPETUS TO THE LARGEST PERCENTAGE OF
AUTO THEFTS. IT GUARANTEES PROFITS TO THE AUTO THIEVES WHC STEAL
FOR THESE PARTS.

AUTO THEFT IN NEW YORK HAS BEEN ESTIMATED TO RESULT FROM
THE FOLLOWING ELEMENTS:

207% OF THE AUTOS ARE STOLEN BY THEIR OWNERS FOR

THE INSURANCE,

55% ARE STOLEN FOR THE STRIPPING OF CRASH PARTS,

THE REMAINDER WOULD BE AUTOS STOLEN FOR SHIPMENT

OVERSEAS, JOY RIDING, PHANTOM AUTOS AND FOR USE

IN ANOTHER CRIME.
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EVERY STATE OWES TO ITS CITIZENS ITS FULL AND COMPLETE
EFFORT TO FIGHT THIS TYPE OF CRIME AND PROTECT THE CONSUMERS WHO
PAY THE HIGH PRICE OF INSURANCE PREMIUMS. GOVERNOR HUGH CAREY
AND THE LEGISLATURE IN NEW YORK STATE HAVE ACTED
IN THOSE AREAS WHERE THEY COULD EFFECTIVELY FIGHT AUTO CRIMES.
THEIR RESPONSE WILL HELP PREVENT SOME OF THE CAUSES OF THE
ESCALATION OF LOSSES AND THE ESCALATION OF PREMIUMS,
THESE LEGISLATIVE RESPONSES ADDRESSED THE CAUSES OF AUTO THEFT

AS FOLLOWS:
TO PREVENT THE THEFT OF CARS BY INSUREDS, NEW YORK

HAS INITIATED A MANDATED PHOTO INSPECTION PROGRAM TO INDICATE
PRIOR DAMAGE AND TO MITIGATE AGAINST A PROFIT INCENTIVE TO
THE INSURED TO GET RID OF A DAMAGED OR WORN OUT CAR FOR AN
INSURANCE CLAIM.

NEW YORK HAS NOT BEEN ABLE TO MEASURE AUTO THEFT
STATISTICS WHICH INCLUDE PHANTOM AUTOS OR THOSE THAT DID
NOT PHYSICALLY EXIST PRIOR TO THEIR BEING INSURED. THIS
SITUATION COMMENCES WHEN A CAR HAS BEEN DESTROYED IN AN
ACCIDENT OR HAS BEEN TOTALLY DESTROYED BY FIRE OR THEFT
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AND THE INSURANCE COMPANY PAYS THE LOSS AND TAKES POSSESSION
OF THE WRECK AND INIDICIA 0F OWNERSHIP, THE INDICIA OF
OWNERSHIP TO THIS CAR IS SOLD BY THE INSURANCE COMPANY, THE
PURCHASER THEN INSURES THE WRECK AS A PERFECT AUTO WITH
SEVERAL INSURANCE COMPANIES. IT IS THEN REPORTED STOLEN.
NEW YORK STATE'S PHOTC INSPECTION PROGRAM IS USED TO PREVENT
THIS FRAUD. THIS INSPECTION WILL PROVE THAT AN AUTO EXISTS
AND IS IN GOOD CONDITION.

WE HAVE ALSO HAD THE COOPERATION OF THE MAYOR AND THE
CITY COUNCIL OF NEW YORK CITY IN LEGISLATION THAT PROVIDES
IMMEDIATE PICK UP OF LOCATED VEHICLES, TO OBTAIN MAXIMUM
RECOVERY OF VALUE AND THUS PREVENT ~ THE STRIPPING AND
VANDALIZING OF AUTOS ON THE STREETS. 1IN MANY CASES THESE
AUTOS REPRESENT VEHICLES STOLEN BY THEIR OWNERS AND WHEN
THE POLICE NOTIFY THE OWNERS OF THEIR RECOVERY, THE OWNER
DOESN'T ACT OR INFORM THE INSURANCE COMPANY,

THE NEW YORK STATE AUTO THEFT REFORM ACT OF 1979,
EFFECTIVE APRIL 1, 1980, WAS A COMPREHENSIVE BILL DEVELOPED
OVER THE COURSE OF MY ADMINISTRATION AT GOVERNOR CAREY'S
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DIRECTION AND IN COOPERATION WITH SENATOR JOHN CAEMMERER,
TO DEAL EXCLUSIVELY WITH AUTO THEFT IN THE STATE.

THE ACT INCLUDED A NUMBER OF PROVISIONS AFFECTING THE
INSURANCE LAWS AS WELL AS VEHICLE AND TRAFFIC LAWS OF THE

STATE.
(A) IT ESTABLISHED A CENTRAL ORGANIZATION, THE NATB,

TO ACT AS A CLEARING HOUSE FOR INSURANCE COMPANIES WITH
RESPECT TO INFORMATION ON AUTO THEFTS AND RECOVERIES. PRIOR
TO THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS ACT MANY OF THOSE INSURERS WHO
WERE ALREADY MEMBERS OF THE NATB FAILED TO COMPLY WITH NATB’S
REPORTING AND VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS., THE REGULATION
DESIGNATING MATB ALSO REQUIRES INSURERS TO REPORT ALL TOTAL
LOSSES TO THEM AND TO VERIFY THEFT AND FIRE LOSSES PRIOR TO
PAYMENT AND, WITHIN SPECIFIED TIME FRAMES. IF ALL INSURERS
CNOPERATED NATIONWIDE IN SUCH A PROGRAM, “PHANTOM” CAR
LOSSES AND DUPLICATE CLAIM PAYMENTS WOULD BE VIRTUALLY
ELIMINATED,

(B} THE ACT PROVIDED FOR INSURANCE RATE MODIFICATION
COMMENCING AUGUST 1, 1980, AS AN INCENTIVE TO USE ANTI-THEFT
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DEVICES.

| (C) THE ACT RAISED THE CRIME OF A FALSE INSURANCE
CLAIM OR FALSE WRITTEN STATEMENT ALLEGING A CAR THEFT FROM
A MISDEMEANOR TO AN “E" FELONY,

(D) INSURANCE COMPANY ACTIVITIES IN THIS AREA ARE
CONTROLLED BY REQUIRING INSURER COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
OF THE INSURANCE LAW AND THE VEHICLE AND TRAFFIC LAW IN
DISPOSING OF SALVAGE VEHICLES, IT SPECIFICALLY REQUIRED
THAT ALL REGISTRATIONS OF TOTALLED VEHICLES BE VOIDED AND
THAT SUCH VEHICLES NOT BE REREGISTERED WITHOUT DEPARTMENT
OF MOTOR VEHICLE INSPECTION,

(E) THE DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES IS REQUIRED TO

INSPECT TOTALLED, JUNKED OR SALVAGED VEHICLES FuR IDENTIFICATION

PURPOSES TO ASCERTAIN THAT IT IS THE ORIGINAL REPAIRED AUTO
BEFORE THEY MAY BE REGISTERED FOR USE ON THE ROAD, SUCH
RENUMBERING MUST NOW BE REPORTED TO NATB.

(F) THE BILL ALSO REGULATED THE ACTIVITIES OF PEOPLE
ENGAGED IN THE TRANSFER, SALE OR DISPOSAL OF SALVAGE VEHICLES
AND PARTS. VEHICLE DISMANTLERS, SALVAGE POOLS, MOBILE CAR
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CRUSHERS, ITINERANT VEHICLE COLLECTORS, VEHICLE REBUILDERS,
SCRAP PROCESSORS, SCRAP COLLECTORS, REPAIR SHOPS AND DEALERS
ARE SUBJECT TO REGULATION, REGISTRATION OR CERTIFICATION AND
RECORD KEEPING PROVISIONS OF THE LAW,
(6) A MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM WAS
ESTABLISHED IN THE DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES TO PROVIDE
FOR INVESTIGATIONS OF POTENTIAL SOURCES FOR DISPOSING OF
STOLEN VEHICLES, AND FOR THEIR COOPERATION WITH LAW
ENFORCEMENT OFFICIALS. THE COMMISSIONER OF MOTOR VEHICLES
MUST SUBMIT A REPORT TO THE GOVERNOR AND LEGISLATURE BY
JANUARY 1, 1982, REPORTING ON THE OPERATION OF THIS THEFT
PREVENTION PROGRAM.
THE MEASURES I HAVE DISCUSSED HAVE BEEN AND WILL BE
PARTIALLY SUCCESSFUL. LOSS RATIOS FOR PHYSICAL DAMAGE INSURANCE
HAVE DECLINED FROM 96,5% IN 1976, 70 71.2% IN 1977, 65,3% IN
1978, AND 64,6% IN THE FIRST THREE QUARTERS OF 1979,
THE THEFTS, HOWEVER, ARE CONTINUING AT TOO HIGH A LEVEL
AND THE COST IS AN UNCONSCIONABLE BURDEN ON THE PUBLIC.

68-~093 0 - 80 - 7
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ALTHOUGH NEW YORK STATE'S APPROACH HAS HAD SOME EFFECT,
IT DOES NOT AND CANNOT ATTACK AUTG THEFT FOR PARTS, NOR THE LOSS
THAT OCCURS AS A RESULT OF VEHICLES BEING STOLEN AND SHIPPED
ABROAD, OR VEHICLES BEING INSURED BY THE EXPORTER, SHIPPED ABROAD
AND THEN BEING REPORTED STOLEN. ONLY A FEDERAL RESPONSE BY AN
ENACTMENT OF LEGISLAT:.d ENCOMPASSED IN H.R, 4178 COULD ATTACK
THIS PROBLEM,

AN INDIVIDUAL STATE CANNOT CALL UPON AUTO MANUFACTURERS
TO IMPROVE THE PHYSICAL SECURITY FEATURES OF THE CARS AND PARTS
THEY PRODUCE, NOR TO UNILATERALLY IMPROVE THE VIN SYSTEMS FOR
VEHICLES AND THEIR PARTS., NO STATE CAN IMPOSE CRIMINAL PENALTIES
FOR PEOPLE TRAFFICKING IN STOLEN CARS AND PARTS BEYOND THEIR OWN
BORDERS, DESPITE THE FACT THAT THE STATE MAY BE SERIOUSLY AFFECTED
BY SUCH TRAFFICKING, NEITHER STATES NOR LOCAL GOVERNMENTS CAN ACT
TO CURTAIL THE EXPORTATION OF STOLEN VEHICLES, A SITUATION AFFLICT-
ING EVERY AREA NEAR A PORT FACILITY, NEW YORK CAN ENACT LEGISLATION
TO INHIBIT THE"CHOP SHOP"OPERATIONS, HOWEVER, WE KNOW THESE OPERATIONS
CAN EASILY BE MOVED OUT OF REACH ACROSS THE STATE BORDERS, THESE
TYPES OF LOSSES ACCOUNT FOR THE NATIONAL STATISTICS OF 41.7% OF
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THE STOLEN CARS NOT BEING RECOVERED. IN ANALYZING THE STATISTICS
OF AUTO THEFT RECOVERY THE REAL USE OF STOLEN VEHICLES IS INDI-
CATED, IN 1960, 92% OF STOLEN AUTOS WERE RECOVERED, AS COMPARED
T0 41.7% IN 1979. 1IN COMPARING EFFECTIVE ARREST AND PROSECUTION
[N 1960, 267% OF THE CRIMES RESULTED IN ARREST, TODAY APPROXIMATELY
15% ARE ARRESTED,

ORGANIZED CRIME IS HEAVILY INVOLVED AND DOZENS OF MURDERS
HAVE OCCURRED IN ILLINOIS AND NEW YORK,

H.R. 4178 WOULD EFFECTIVELY ATTACK THE GENERAL PROBLEM
OF AUTO THEFT IN‘THE COUNTRY AND THE SPECIALIZED PROBLEM OF STOLEN
VEHICLES BEING EXPORTED TO FOREIGN COUNTRIES,

IT 1S AN OMNIBUS BILL “TO TMPROVE THE PHYSICAL SECURITY
FEATURES OF THE MOTOR VEHICLE AND ITS PARTS, TO INCREASE THE
CRIMINAL PEMALTIES OF PERSONS TRAFFICKING IN STOLEN MOTOR VEHICLES
AND PARTS, TO CURTAIL THE EXPORTATION OF STOLEN MOTOR VEWICLES”
AND “TO STEM THE GROWING PROBLEM OF ’CHOP SHOPS'.”

IT GIVES ADDITIONAL STRENGTH TO LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES
IN THEIR FIGHT AGAINST PROFESSIONAL INVOLVEMENT IN VEHICLE CRIME,
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IT DECLARES THAT "THE COOPERATION AND ASSISTANCE OF
THE AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE INDUSTRY IS NEEDED T0 CURB THE GROWING
PROBLEM OF INSURANCE FRAUD THROUGH IMPROVEMENTS IN THEIR PROCED-
URES FOR THEIR CLAIM PROCESSES, DISPOSITION OF SALVAGED VEHICLES,
AND ISSUANCE OF POLICIES”. WE NEED INSURANCE COMPANIES THROUGH-
QUT THE COUNTRY TO STOP THE SALE OF TOTALLED VERICLES IN FURTHER-
ING AUTO THEFTS OR FRAUDULENT THEFT CLAIMS,

THE ACT OF 1979 HAS A PROVISION FOR EXAMINATION OF
MOTOR VEHICLES AND THEIR DOCUMENTS BEFORE THEY ARE SHIPPED OUT
OF THE COUNTRY. UNTIL LAST NOVEMBER A SHIPPER DID NOT HAVE TO
PRODUCE SUCH PAPERWORK UNTIL AFTER SHIPMENT, FOR THE PAST SIX
MONTHS, A TEMPORARY AMENDMENT TO THE FOREIGN TRADE STATISTICS
REGULATIONS HAS REQUIRED THAT DOCUMENTATION BE SUBMITTED TO
CUSTOMS 48 HCURS IN ADVANCE OF THE SHIPMENT OF A MOTOR VEHICLE,
THE REGULATION EXPIRED MAY 31, 1979, IN APRIL, 1980 IN NEW YORK
AND NEW JERSEY 104 STOLEN VEHICLES WERE SEIZED ON THE DOCK ON
THEIR WAY TO KUWAIT. THIS FORTUITOUS EVENT OCCURRED ONLY BECAUSE
A CUSTOMS AGENT BECAME SUSPICIOUS. IT WAS NOT A PART OF HIS DUTIES.
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PERHAPS THE MOST IMPORTANT PROVISION IN THIS LEGISLATION
IS POWER GIVEN TO THE SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION TO REQUIRE
IDENTIFICATION OF MAJOR COMPONENT CRASH PARTS OF AN AUTO.

IF WE COULD SERIAL NUMBER FIVE MAJOR PARTS OF AN AUTO
AND CONTROL THESE NUMBERS BY A COMPUTER BANK, THEN 50 TO 60% OF
THE AUTO THEFTS WOULD BE STOPPED, IF ALL DOORS, TRUNK LIDS, HOODS
AND FRONT ASSEMBLIES WERE SERIAL NUMBERED, THEN THE THEFT FOR
PARTS WOULD LOSE THEIR FINANCIAL INCENTIVE. NO INTELLIGENT AND
ENTERPRISING THIEF WOULD BE ABLE TO MAINTAIN A PROFITABLE OPERA-
TION WITH THE MEAGER MONIES OBTAINED FROM THE SALE OF WHEELS AND
TIRES, RADIOS AND BATTERIES.

AUTO RINGS OPERATE WITH CERTAIN COSTS AND THEY MUST SHOW
SUBSTANTIAL PROFITS WITH MINIMUM EXPOSURE, THEY USUALLY HAVE A
GROUP OF AUTO PROCURERS THAT ARE PAID ON A PER CAR STOLEN BASIS.
THIS COST RANGES FROM $75 TO $125 PER CAR. THIS CAR IS BROUGHT
TO A LOCATION THAT IS RENTED FOR A SHORT PERIOD OF TIME. THE CAR
IS STRIPPED OF ITS WHEELS, DOORS, HOOD, TRUNK, FEMDERS AND FRONT
END IN LESS THAN AN HOUR.

IF THIS LEGISLATION BECOMES EFFECTIVE, THEN NO INSURANCE
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COMPANY WOULD PAY A CLAIM FOR ANY REPAIR THAT INCLUDES REPLACEMENT
OF A MAJOR AUTO PART UNLESS THE PART’S SERIAL NUMBER WAS CHECKED
BY THE ADJUSTER, INCLUDED IN HIS REPORT, AND VERIFIED IN THE
COMPUTER AS A PROPER SALEABLE PART. NO STOLEN PART OF A CAR
COULD BE USED TO RECEIVE AN INSURANCE PAYMENT.

I BELIEVE THAT PASSAGE OF THIS LEGISLATION WILL PROVIDE
A LOSS CURTAILMENT THAT COULD REDUCE BY 18% THE COST OF AUTO
IHSURANCE IN NEW YORK, A SIMILAR AMOUNT IN PORT CITIES AND A
LESSER PERCENT IN THE REST OF THE COUNTRY.

I URGE YOU TO PASS THIS LEGISLATION AT ONCE. IT IS
VITALLY NEEDED TO PROTECT THE DRIVING PUBLIC IN THE STATE OF NEW
YORK, AS WELL AS THE COUNTRY.
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Mr. Scueusr. Mr. Green?
Mr. Greex. I have no questions.

Mr. Scurver. Mr. Luken? )
Mz, Lusex. Would you elaborate a little bit on the VIN ? You seem

to be placing a good deal of credence on the effectiveness of legislation
which would require a VIN. Would you elaborate o little on what
the specifics are of that VIN, how many component parts we want it
on, what kind of a marking it should be—is there a tamperproof VIN
or something akin to a tamperproof VIN ¢

Mr. Lewis. Congressman, L am really not able to answer that. I
would imagine that anything on there would be tampered with and
be removed.

My, Luxex. Of course, if it is stamped into the metal, then there
would be some evidence left that something was done, if nothing else,
then there was an obliteration that occurred.

Mr. Lewss. Congressman, if you are riding through Queens to go
back to Washington, you might come across wrecks that are out on
the street. You will always find that the most expensive part of that
wreck is always left on the street, and that is the motor, the engine,
the power train.

Mr. Scaeurr. That is because they do have a VIN?

Mr. Lewis. That is because it hasan identification number.

Mz, Lugen. It has an engine number stamped into the block.

Mr. Lewis. Right.

Mr. Luxen, Not any seal put on the outside.

Mr. Lewis. Right.

But, Congressman, it would be my understanding that if they are
going to tamper and take the number off, somehow that number has
to have a response. Just as we could run a VIN number to see about
the motor vehicle, the motor vehicle has to be a validly nonstolen
vehicle.

What T am afraid of in this thing is that this is motherhood legis-
lation. I consider it motherhood legislation. I am just afraid that the
automobile manufacturers that I have discussed this with when they
have come to me about problems invelving insurance are not interested
in it. Then when they get to something called Senate-House conference,
what starts out like a horse ends up leoking like a camel.

I am just afraid as we make it more difficult, the cost of this thing
starts to become an area where the manufactures would back off.

I would like to see it simple. I would hope that the computer would
be able to show us a way in which the insurance companies—that is
where they have to stop it~-the insurance companies do not pay until
they get a valid part froma valid source.

Then they are going to have to look for another business. They will
probably steal more votes. Then we will be here again.

Mr. Scaruer. Not before this subcommittee. Thank you very much
for your very thoughtful testimony.

We will now hear from Mr. Paul Gilliland of the National Automo-
bile Theft Bureau.

. Mr. Gilliland, we are running a little bit late as you know. We appre-
clate your patience and tolerance.

Your entire prepared testimony will be printed in full in the record
[see p. 99]. So I would suggest that you just talk to us informally,
hitting the highlights of your testimony, and then I am sure we will
have some questions for you.
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STATEMENT OF PAUL W, GILLILAND, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL
AUTOMOBILE THEFT BUREAU

Mr. Grurizanp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to elaborate,
if Tmay, just on certain points of the bill,

Mr. LogenN. Mr. Chairman, for the uninformed, what is your
bureau ?

Mr. Gruumanp., The National Automobile Theft Bureau has been in
operation since 1912. We are supported by approximately 500 of the
major property casualty insurance companies in the United States.
We have a staff of special agents that work throughout the United
States. They are former law enforcement officers, FBI agents, State
police officers, city police officers who work with the duly constituted
authorities in dealing with commercial motor vehicle theft rings and
in dealings with fraud operations.

Before the NCIC was created many years ago, the NATB main-
tained, for law enforcement, the one national stolen car file maintained
in the United States.

Mr. Scuever. The NCIC is?

Mr. Groumaxp. The National Crime Information Center, which is
controlled by the Federal Bureau of Investigation now under their au-
thority. We still maintain « large, computerized file of stolen vehicles
which are reported to us by the insurance industry. It not only includes
automobiles but trailers, motorcycles, trucks.

Mr. Lugen. So the central reporting system is your principal—

Mr. Giuuinaxp. Yes, including heavy equipment and marine equip-
ment generally, stolen, transportable, uniquely identifiable equipment.

Mr. Luxen. That-ties in with law enforcement?

Mr, Grorimaas. Yes, sir.

Mr. LuxEey. Thank you, Mr, Chairman.

Mr. Grooinano, If I might, one point that I have heard many ques-
tions addressed to this morning deals with the identification of a motor
vehicle. If T could give you just a brief bit of the history: Many years
ago there was a serial number, referred to as a serial number, that was
normally affixed to the doorpost of a motor vehicle. There was also a
motor number called a motor number which actually was an engine
number, which was different than the serial number,

As the years progressed, these numbers developed into the vehicle
identification number. This was moved to the dash area, or the wind-
shield area of the vehicle, because of some search and seizure problems
in one respect dealing with the opening of the vehicle door in order to
copy down the vehicle identification number. It is always applied to an
area that is least probable to be damaged and hoped to be the most per-
manent part of the vehicle, That is why it appears in the dash area.

Engine numbers and transmission numbers are derivatives of that
number, Sometimes the entire vehicle identification number is not
repeated but derivatives of the VIN are repeated for the purpose of
identifying engines and transmissions.

Just recently, the National Highway Traffic Safety Administra-
tion thas issued a standard which should go into effect with the begin-
ning of next year’s model which will standardize that VIN to 17 posi-
tions and that is the vehicle identification number—VIN—that the
witnesses are talking about.




97

Mr. ScureuEr. Is that susceptible to forgery ? o

Mz, Gruoiany, It is, to some extent, and I would like to explain this
to you.

1\%1‘. LuxenN. The old engine numnbers were stamped into the block?

Mr. Girrinanp, They were and are die stamped. The numbers that
appear on the dash now are, for the most part, embossed, are pushed
from underneath on a metal plate. These piates can be replaced ; how-
ever, there are other areas to look—-—

Mr. Lugen. Look for what?

My, Girrinano. Look for additional numbers.

Mr. Luxken. Those are the component parts?

Mr. GirLinanp. Yes.

Now, the point that I think is very im(%)ortant here is that the pro-
posed legislation proposes component identification and this would
increase the number of unique identifiers that would appear on that
vehicle.

Now, certainly they can be ground off, they can be obliterated.
Sometimes they are skillfully replaced, or restamped.

We are successful, in many instances, in restoring these numbers by
the use of a heat process or by an acid electrolytic process where they
ar actually restored and can be read.

But the one major point that-should be recognized is that the more
numbers that are on a vehicle, the better the probability there is to
identify the vehicle.

The second item of importance is that many of these valuable parts
that you heard discussed, or referred to this morning, are not identifi-
able once they leave the vehicle, once they are disassembled from the
vehicle. The proposed component identification would identify those
parts.

As I read the proposed legislation, if one of the parts that was man-
dated to be identified by the Secretary of Transportation was found
in the possession of an individual with that number missing or obliter-
ated, that in and of itself it would be 2 violation of the law,

Mr. Scuever. Without any proof of intent or knowledge?

Mr. GiLuizanp. I think you would have to assume that once it became
common knowledge that these parts are identified and once everybody
was notified that there should be an identification number there, I think
that the courts then probably would accept the responsibility of
knowledge.

_ We assume that everybody knows that there is a vehicle identifica-
tion number on every automobile and the assumption would simply be
broadened.

Mr. ScuEUER. You heard one of the former witnesses recommended
gf}tllat e take out the words “knowledge” and “intent.” Do you support

at?

Mr, Grrrrnano, Knowledge is a very difficult element at law, as you
know, to prove.

Mr. Scaruer. Well, you have just said it isn’ difficult in this case to
prove.

Mr. Grrroano. I am saying that if it is assumed that once everyone
knows that these major component parts have identification numbers
on them, that we would hope that the court would assume that every-
one would have knowledge that there should be a number there and
should look for that number.
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Mr. Scurusr. Are you saying that knowledge should be in the bill
and intent, or should be left out of the bill and simply let the court
impute knowledge?

Mr. Gruraranp. I really do not think that you can write the bill any
differently than it is proposed, and maintain constitutionality.

Mr. SoueuEr. So you would not advocate that we change it to take
out knowledge and intent ?

Mr. Ganrmano. No, sir.

Mr. Liugen. I think that whether we did or not, the Supreme Court
would require the same degree of proof.

Mr. Grrraranp. That is right.

Mr. Greex. I gather that you think that the vehicle identification
system on additional parts, even though not foolproof, would be cost-
effective in terms of dealing with auto theft problems?

Mr, Gruravan. I think that it has to be.

Mr. Green. I gather that the cost to, say, half a dozen additional
vehicle identification numbers would be something small. When you
get to locking devices you are getting to something that is somewhat
more expensive, and there the numbers get into two igures. .

Do you think that improved locking devices would be of sufficient
deterrence that they would be cost-effective even though they are a
more expensive thing than the vehicle identification numbers?

Mr. GruLianp, Right now, two of the major manufacturers, General
Motors and Ford, have experimental programs where they are iden-
tifying major component parts so there will be some experience Jealing
}vith the results of this identification, hopefully available within the
future.

As to locking devices, you saw the demonstration this morning that
was presented here. Any of these recommendations that are included
in this bill in and of themselves individually are not the total answer,
but they are in combination a major step in the right direction.

If the locking device is more effective then there is more of a delay,
the longer the delay the greater probability of the individual being
observed and the greater probability of his being observed, the greater
the probability of his apprehension and arrest and subsequent
conviction.

Mr. Greex. That is all T have, Mr, Chairman,

Mr. Scuruer. Thank you very much, Mr. Gilliland. You have been
very helpful and we very much. appreciate it.

[Testimony resumes onp. 118.] .

[Mr. Gilliland’s prepared statement and attachment follows:]
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My name is Paul W. Gilliland. I am President of
the National Automobile Theft Bureau. NATB is a crime
prevention organization supported by morxe than 500
property-casualty insurance companies to'provide as-
sistance to law enforcement agencies, insurers and the
public. The Bureau is an agency for the investigation,
location and identification of stolen vehicles and for
the promotion of aute theft, arson and fraud prevention
activities. We appreciate the opportunity to present
our views on the Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Act
before this Committee. NATB's position is that we favor
sound anti-vehicle theft legislation at all levels of
government.

Tﬁe profile of motor vehicle theft has dramatically
changed durihg the past 20 years, In 1960, vehicle theft
was considered to be primarily a juvenile problem. Our
records show that approximately 94% of all vehicles re-
ported to NATB as stolen were located. (See Exhibit $#1.)

In the years that followed the percent of "vehicles
located" rapidly decreased as professional criminals
became increasingly involved with vehicle theft. Law

enforcement agencies engaged in combatting vehicle theft
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agree that it is much more difficult to locate vehicles
stolen by professional thieves.

By 1965 our percentage of locations dropped to
78%; in 1970, 69%; and in 1Y78 and 1979, NATB located
55% of all vehicles reported to the Bureau as stolen.
It must be noted that some Jjurisdictions report greater
recovery percentages and others report significantly
less; however, today four out of every 10 cars stolen are
never located--a significant indicator of organized
crime's involvement in vehicle theft. (See Exhibit #1.)

Ring aqtivities also are indicative of the growing
‘participation of professional criminals in vehicle
theft. In 1977, NATB participated in investigating 288
theft ring cases, locating 3,817 vehicles. During the
next year, 339 new theft ring cases were investigated
with 4,730 vehicles located. In 1979, the Bureau
participated in the investigation of 402 new theft ring
cases, which resulted in the locationof 4,604 vehicles.
This reflects a 39.6% increase in professional ring
cases since 1978.

Currently, the United States finds itself in a
position where organized crime is heavily entangled in

.motor vehicle crime. The increased involvement of the
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the professional criminal necessitates a revamping of
both fedeial and state laws in order to provide law
enforcement agencies with the proper working tools
which are so vitally needed if they are to efficiently
cope with the situation. If enactéd, the proposed
Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Act of 1979 will provide
many of these tools.

At this point, I would like to examine the major
provisions of the Act as anaiyzed by NATB.

Title I describes the extent of the motor vehicle
tﬁeft problem in the United States today, offering a
factual basis for the proposed legislation. NATB's
independent data tends to suppoxt points set forth in
Title I; indicating an alarming current upward trend
in vehicle theft. During 1979, NATB processed 88.4%
more theft reports than were processed in 1969, a decade
earlier. The past year (1979) revealed a significant
11.4% incr;ase in vehicle theft over the preceeding
year (1978). The 11.4% increase is ominous when compared
to annual increases of a 3% growth in 1978 and a 1%
increase in 1977.

Our records indicate 1979's upward trend of vehicle

theft affected all geographic regions, with the Southwestern
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Division reporting a 35.8% increase; the Pacific
Coast Division up 23.5%; the Southern Division up
21.5%; the Western Division up 9.2% and the Eastern
Division up 3.0%.

It would appear, therefore, that motor vehicle theft
is a national problem whose substantial increases are
not materially affected by population changes; changes
in reporting procedures; or other variables. The in-
creases must be directly attributed to an increase in
organized crime's involvement.

Data for my next two comments is drawn from FBI

and New York State Uniform Crime Reports. On the

positive side, wvehicle thefts were down 7.02% over the
preceeding year in the state of New York. The State
also reported a 10.77% decrease in 1978 and a 0.12%
increase in 1977. This is in contrast to a 14.81%
increase in 1976. (See Exhibit #2.)

New York City reported a 7.98% growth of vehicle
thefts in 1979 in contrast to an 11.97% decrease in 1978
and a 2.34% reduction in 1977. (See Exhibit #2.)

In our oéinion, the favorable experience can be
attributed, in part, to the meaningful anti-vehicle
theft legislation enacted by New York's legislature

during the past several years.
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NATB data generally reflects the hard-core theft
data on stolen vehicles normally not located and re-
covered within the first 48 to 72 hours after the
theft. This data, therefSre, is highly indicative of
commercial activity. Our latest data available indicates
a countryw1de increase of 15.5% for January through
April, 1980, compared to a 12.7% increase for the same
period of time during 1979 over 1978. On the other hand,
the first four months of 1980 show a 30.2% increase over
the first four monthg for 1978--just two years ago.

NATB's statistics for the state of New York for
January through April 1980, reflect similar increasing
trends as compared to a 16% decrease, for January through
April, 1979.

our New Jersey and Pennsylvania data also reflects
meaningful increases for the first four months of 1979.

The vehicle theft pfoblem does exist and it's
growing every day. We must move aggressively to con=
front the problem. Meaningful legislation must be
enacted at both the federal and state level to provide
jaw enforcement agencies with the assistance needed in

their confrontation with vehicle crime.
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In the proposed federal legislative package, pro-
visions included in Title II would give the Secretary of
Transportation through the National Highway Traffic
Safety Administration, authority to issue standards
which will improve the security of motor vehicles and
their parts.

A major section of Title II authorizes the piace-
ment of additional numbers on major component parts of
a vehicle. The method of marking the parts would be
selected after a year of study by the National Highway
Safety Administration.

Earlier, I pointed out that approximately four out
of every 10 stolen vehicles are never recovered. It's
reasonable to conclude that many of these vehicles
currently end up in chop shops. A new, late model
vehicle can be disassembled by two chop shop employees
in approximately 40 minutes. The sorxry situation is
that in most cases, the major component parts of a
vehicle are not identifiable once they are separated
from the vehicle. The placement of additional permanent
numbers on major component parts would provide important
assistance to law enforcement by offering the means to

68-093 0 ~ 80 - 8
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identify the fruits of chop shop crimes. The end result
would be increased prosecutions and convictions which
are recognized deterrents to crime.

At this point, I would like to suggest that if
numbers are to be placed on the major component parts
of a vehicle, the placement should be made by the vehicle
manufacturers at the time of assembly. Their engineering
expertise, internal control, knowledge of the numbering
system and experience in past identification processes
are necessary to preserve the integrity of numbers
placed on component parts.

While after-market identification procedures
obviously have a deterrent affect--and are efficient as
a theft deterrent to some degree--the possibility always
exists that a car bearing after-market identification
could already have been stolen and disguised before
being marked. In this type of situation the after-market
identification only compounds the vehicle's disguised
identity.

A major section of Title II proposes to give the
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration the
authority to create-standards which would increase the

efficiency of existent vehicle security systems. In this
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way, it would take a thief a longexr period of time to
‘circumvent the system. Reports from the field tell us
that the experienced thief has reached a degree of
expertise where many current locking devices serve to
delay him no longer than 40 seconds. 1In recent years,
several major changes have been implemented by the
manufacturers to delay the thief. It's obvious, however,
that if the problem is to be firmly dealt with the
consumer who purchases a new car must be provided with
a more effective and efficient security device than
presently is being offered.

Title III of the proposed legislation will provide
law enforcement with needed legal tools to combat
professional wvehicle theft. Currently, stolen vehicles
transported in interstate commerce are dealt with under
the Dyer Act, which was enacted many years ago. Today,
our problem is not exclusively the interstate transportation
of a stolen motor vehicle, but includes the intexstate
transportation of stolen expensive vehicle parts. It
is not uﬁusual for vehicles to be stolen, disassembled
and the major component parts transported by surface or

air across the United States in short periods of time.
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Organized crime is involved in this highly lucrative
activity. Federal law enforcement authorities must be
given the jurisdiction to deal with the interstate
transportation of this property.

Title 18 of the United States Code would be amended
to make it a federal crime to remove, obliterate or
tamper with a federally-mandated vehicle identification
number.

In addition, any motor vehicle part with an altered
number could be seized for further investigation and
disposition.

Another provision of Title III amends the definition
of "securities" in the National Stolen Property Act to
cover motor vehicle titles until cancelled by the state
of issuance. Certificate of titles for motor vehicles,
which in some cases describe vehicles worth as much as
$50,000, are stolen or counterfeited, then trafficked
in intexrstate commerce. Subsequently, they may be
presented as collateral to secure fraudulent financing
or used to secure certificates of title in another state
for misrepresentation and fraud. In the past, this type
of operation has not been subject to federal control even

though it frequently has involved interstate commerce.
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The proposed federal legislation would provide additional
protection to the consumer and would assist law enfoxce-
ment in combatting this type of operation.

Another .section of Title III provides for a $25,000
fine or up to ten years imprisonment, or both, for those
who traffic in motor vehicles or, motor vehicle parts
which have had their identification numbers removed or
altered. In addition, the RICO Statute (Racketeer In-
fluenced and Corrupt Organizations) would be expanded
to include trafficking in‘stolen motor vehicles and
their parts. This would be accomplished by incorporating
the present Dyer Act and the new trafficking statute
just described, within the purview of the RICO Statute.
This section of the law would serve to deter organized
crime from investing in chop shop operations, since

.professional criminals will know their business and
assets could be seized by the federal government.
Enactment of this legislation will provide government
prosecutors with additional legal mechanisms to pro-
secute organized crime involved in the theft and dis-
mantling of stolen vehicles.

An additional provision of Title III amends the

Master Key Act to prohibit the mailing of manipulativé
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devices designed to circumvent motor vehicle locking
devices. A section of the Act also prohibits any
advertisement of such a device.. Currently, these types
of tools are readily available for purchase by anyone
with sufficient money. This portion of the proposed
Bill is designed to help curb amateur thefts as well

as to make it more difficult for the professionals to
obtain necessary tools of the trade.

Title IV of the proposed federal legislation
authorizes the Secretary of Treasury to issue regulations
controlling the illegal exportation and importation of
motor vehicles. Many vehicles which are the property
of U.S. citizens are stolen and shipped out of the
United Sﬁates. Although we do not know of all such
violations, we suspect that the number of vehicles
illegally exported ha; amaterial’/impact on the deteri~
orating recovery percentage. For example, one expert
varus that at least 10,000 stolen vehicles are taken
annually to Mexico.(l) This estimate does not include
seaport exportation of vehicles being sent to Central
America, West Africa, the Caribbean; the Philippines

and other countries.

(1) Howard S. Marks, Investigator to the Minority,

United States Senate Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations
of the Committee on Governmental Affairs, Washington,
bC~-Remarks before the 1980 Annual NATB Membershlp Meeting,
Atlanta, Georgia, March 26, 1980
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One indicator pointing to an increase in exported
stolen vehicles is the number of NATB vehicle locations
in Mexico. Our number of locations in 1979 increased
171% over vehicles located in 1978. 1If the current
trends continue, we'll locate 46.3% more vehicles in

1980 than we did in 1979. It seems reasonable to assume

that if more vehicles are being located out of the country,

moxé vehicles are being stolen and transported outside

the United States.

H.R. 4178 attacks the exportation of stolen vehicles

by requiring exporters to record the VIN and to file the
export declaration with Customs before sailing. 1In
addition, Customs would be given new arrest powers.
Moreover; anyone who exports or imports a vehicle with
an altered federally~mandated VIN could be fined up
to $10,000 and given up to 5 years imprisonment. This
section of the proposed legislation would give law en-
forcement needed powers where presently amazingly few
exist. Protection of a U.S. citizen's stolen property
illegally introduced into international commerce is a
primary responsibility of the U.S. government.

The final segment of H.R. 4178, Title V, empowers

the Attorney General to prepare a report on the growiﬁg
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problem of "off-road" motor vehicle theft. The report
would include steps being taken to help prevent off-road
equipment theft.

Theft of off-road units--farm tractors, bulldozers,
etc.--has emerged as a profitable enterprise of commercial
crime. A recent segment on television's 60 Minutes de-
scribed the problem to a national audience. Currently,

a number of newspaper articles also have further

depicted the problem. Latest data available from the
Associated General Contractors of America estimates

heavy equipment theft losses of $13,869,000 for 1978.

The Association's survey points out that these statistics
are conservative in that they represent only losses for
the general contracting segment of the construction
industry. They believe other segments such as sub-
contractors, suppliers, equipment distributors and rental
firms probably have higher losses.

Lack of a standard system for identifying heavy
equipment contributes to the theft problem. Unlike
automobiles with vehicle identification numbers, heavy
equipment is extremely diversified and is not identified
by a universal system. Each manufacturer has its own
method of marking equipment. As a result, in some
instances, it's extremely difficult for investigators to

identify the stolen equipment.
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As a result of the growing commercial involvement
in the theft of this type of equipment it is extremely
hard to establish documentation and proof of ownership.

NATB currently is building a data base on stolen
heavy equipment—--both agricultural and construction--
that should counter some of the problems which exist
in this area. Records are cross-indexed by a product
identification number and by other unique numbers on
the principal sub-assemblies such as engines,.trans—
missions and peripheral equipment. This information
will be available to law enforcement agencies on a
24-hour, 7-day a week basis and is national in origin.

Currently, law enforcement agencies on the federal,
state and local levels; the manufacturers; and NATB
are cooperating in examining additional measures to
combat off-road equipment theft.

Mr. Chairman, enactment of H.R. 4178 would serve
to create standards which many states may adopt and
expand upon. Adoption of this proposed legislation
will provide law enforcement agencies with many of the
tools needed tc effectively battle vehicle theft on an

interstate and an international level.
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No one oxganization; no one industry; no one agency
can stabilizé and control vehicle theft and fraud. If
we are to be successful, there must be massive, aggressive,
cost-efficient, coordinated efforts by many organizations
working together. )

The NATB, therefore, endorses the concept of the
Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Act because of the much
needed additional strength it will provide to law én-
forcement agencies in their continuing fight against
professional involvement in vehicle crime.

# ¢
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STUDY OF NEW YORK CITY AND
STATE MOTOR VEHICLE THEFTS

1975
New York City 83,201
New York State 116,274
New Jersey 39,337
United States 1,100,500

Sources:

1976

96,682
+16.2%

133,504
+14.81%

37,462
-4.76%

957,600
-4.28%

FBI Uniform Crime Report
New York Uniform Crime Report

1975 Th;ough 1979

1977

94,420
-2.34%

133,669
+.12%

37,488
+.07%

968,400
+1.13%

1978

PushelielNe

83,112
-11.97%

119,264
-10.77%

41,075
+9.56%

991,611
+2.39%

EXHIBIT #2

1979

punatR e

89,748
+7.98%

110,881
-7.02%

Not Avail.

1,100,688
+10.99%

911
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THEFT STATISTICS

\
i . FBI UNIFORM CRIME REPORT

TOTAL + INCREASE +% INCR. AVG. % CLEARE!
YEAR THEFTS = DECREASE -3 DECR. REC % VALUE BY ARRES'
1857 276,000
igs= 282,800 + 6,800 + 3
9% 288,300 + 5,500 + 2 92 $ 8259.00 - 26.2
1960 321,400 + 27,600 + 9 92 830.00 25.7
1961 326,200 + 7,700 + 2 90 840.00 27.8
1862 356,100 + 29,300 + 9 - 90 866.00 ' 25.0
1963 399,000 + 42,900 + 12 81 927.00 26.0
1964 . 463,000 + 64,000 + 16 88 1,048.00 26.0
1965 453,100 + 30,100 + 5 88 1,038.00 25.0
- 1966 557,000 + 63,900 + 13 50 1,029.00 23.0
1967 654,900 4+ 87,900 + 18 i1 1,017.00 <N.0
1968 777,800 + 122,900 + 19 86 881.0c 15 0
1969 871,900 + 94,100 + 12 84 99”.00 18.0
1970 921,400 + 48,500 + 6 84 48,00 17.0
1971, 941,600 + 20,200 + 2 82 933.00 16.0
1972 881,000 ~ 60,600 - 6 *74 935.00 17.0
1973 923,600 + 42,600 + 5 72 1,095.00 16.0
1874 973,800 +., 50,200 + 5 - 66 1,246.00 15.0
1875 1,000,500 + 26,700 + 3 62 1,457.00 14.0
1976 957,600 ~ 42,900 - 4 59 1,741.00 14.0
1977 968,400 + 10,800 + 1 60 1,992.00 14.0
1978 991,600 + 23,200 + 2 60" " 2,325.00 " 15.0
Rl 1,100,676 + 109,076 + 11 59 2,675.00 . 4.0

* Beginnlng 1972, recovered pexcentage refers to value of vehicles.

R Estimated based on Jan ~ Sept 79 UCR Release EXHIBIT 43
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Mr. Sceeusr. Now we will hear from Mr. Donald J. Bardell,
executive director of the American Association of Motor Vehicle
Administrators.

You have your colleague with you. Would you identify him, please?

STATEMENT OF DONALD J. BARDELL, EXECUTIVE DIRECIOR,
AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF MOTOR VEHICLE ADMINISTRA-
TORS, ACCOMPANIED BY ROBERT BROWN, DIRECTOR, PUB-
LIC AFFAIRS, AAMVA

Mr. Barperr, This is Mr. Robert Brown, our Director of Public
Affairs at AAMVA.

Mr. Scuever. Now, we are running late, as you know, and we want
to apologize for that. We thank you for your patience and for your
tolerance.

Did both of you have statements, or just yourself?

Mr. Barperr. No, I only have a statement.

Mr. ScuEUER. Your statement will be printed in full.

Mr. BaroeLL. Yes, with the appendices | see p. 122].

Mr. ScuruER. So we hope you will simply talk to us informally and
hit the high spots.

Mr. Barpern., I will try and cut it down. I have a statement that
is approximately 10 to 12 minutes long.

Mr. Scmeuer. We would rather you not read it because we only
have 15 minutes.

Mr. Barperr. You mentioned AAMVA, who we are. I do want to
point out that the reason I am here, is that I have close identity with
New York State. I was previously the general counsel and deputy
commissioner of motor vehicles in the State of New York. I was
involved with developing some of the administrative scheme relating
to motor vehicle theft prevention.

I want to point out, at the beginning, that AAMVA vigorously
supports the concept and the purposes of H.R. 4178 but we have three
major concerns with respect to title IT.

They are, No. 1—clarification of the question of preemption with
respect to the extent of State enforcement of identical Federal
standards adopted by the States pursuant to the National Traffic and
Motor Vehicle Act of 1966 and as this act would be amended by
title IT of HLR. 4178.

No. 2—in view of the key role motor vehicle administrators
play in the vehicle theft prevention system, an amendment that
specifically designates AAMVA as one of the organizations named
in section 202(a) to be consulted within the formulation of security
standards.

And No. 3—to assure a meaningful consultative process, an amend-
ment that directs the Secretary of Transportation to develop a con-
sensus with the groups named in section 202 (a) and to further consult
with other interested parties.

If T may, and with your indulgence, Mr. Chairman, I would like
to introduce on behalf, and at the request of, the International Asso-
ciation of the Chiefs of Police, a resolution passed at the IACP’s last
international conference which substantially supports our position
with respect to our concerns of H.R. 4178.
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Mr. Scurver. We will put that in the record immediately after
your prepared text with your prepared testimony [see p. 264] 1f there
1sno objection.

‘With no objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. Green. May I ask you a question on the preemption issue?

The impression, both from hearing you and reading your prepared
text, is that the problem with preemption is not limited to the amend-
ment proposed to be made by this bill but that it, in fact, relates to
the underlying legislation.

Moy, BarpewL. Yes; it is. Therefore, I believe you have to look to the
underlying legislation in order to glean what the congressional intent
would be; particularly with section 203 of your bill.

That is why I addressed myself to the underlying legislation and
specifically section 103(d), the preemption section under the Motor
Vehicle Safety Act of 1966.

Mr. Greex. In terms of the consultative process to which you refer,
would it be your feeling that the Secretary should not be permitted
to go forward unless there is some percentage of people agreeing? Or
do you think that is something that has ultimately got to be his
judgment,?

Mr. Barogrr. I think that what we are attempting to do, to be very
candid, is to be sure that those parties who are directly affected by
any standards promulgated by the Secretary have an opportunity to
sit down with the Secretary, or his designee, prior to a notice of pro-
posed rulemaking coming out so that they will be able to provide
meaningful input to the Secretary. I am thinking in terms of the
parties designated in section 202(a), and that in addition to them, it
would be appropriate to add the Motor Vehicle Manufacturers Asso-
ciation, the Motor Equipment Manufacturers Association and the
insurance industry. They would be directly affected and to insure that
a consensus—which is not necessarily a majority and not necessarily
unanimity—is reached. The Secretary, as the duly appointed author-
ity, would make the final determination as to whether substantial
agreement—consensus—has been developed.

‘We do not want to restrict the Secretary in his rulemaking, but we
do want to make sure that a meaningful consultation takes place,
because the consultative process, communicative rapport, changes with
each Secretary. Each has a different philosophy. Each of us, as admin-
istrators, have a different philosophy and we want to make sure that
there is a continuity of the philosophy of meaningful consultation,
not only today but tomorrow.

Mr. ScaeuEr. This whole question of preemption is a very compli-
cated one. We understand that there is some concern on that matter.
The business of requiring consensus in effect is a formula for doing
nothing because it gives everybody a veto, or everybody has a veto
and nothing happens.

So it is a complicated sensitive area and we will be exploring it in
depth later this year or early next year. We will be consulting with
you as well as some of the other interested parties on an informal
basis to see if we can get consensus on whether there should be
consensus.

Does anybody else have any questions?

This is our staff director.
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Mr. Rovner. In vour testimony, you say you do not think it is
likely, or is is not fruitful, to rely on inspection in the States that
have auto inspection to ask the inspection facility to look at the VIN
and the confidential VIN when they ave in inspecting the car anyway.

Mzr. Barogin. No, I did not say that, I said that I felt it was un-
realistic to only check the public VIN as it relates to a viable and
meaningful antitheft program.

If they check both the public VIN and the confidential VIN, I
would be foursquare with you.

Mr. Rovner. That was the question T had.

1Mr. Scaeuer. We assume you have been foursquare with us all
along.

Mor. Baroerr. Not quite, Mr. Chairman, but fairly close.

Mr. SceeveEr. When people tell me they are going to be honest
with me, I always ask them what they have been up to now.

You have been very honest and foursquare and thoughtful in your
testimony and we appreciate it very much. Again, we may have some
questions to submit to you in writing and we will get them to you
right away.

‘We will hold the record open for 10 or 12 days.

[See letter dated June 6,1980, p. 282, this hearing.

Mr. Baroerr. Thank you very much.

Mr. ScueuEr. Let’s go off the record.

[Discussion off the record.]

Mr. ScervER. Back on the record.

Did you have something further?

Mr. Baroerr. If I may, please.

I have made a number of suggestions relative to amending Con-
greeman Green’s bill as it relates to title II. I would suggest that
possibly the committee staff and Congressman Green’s staff might like
to take a look at the legislation and more particularly the underlying
leglilslation, to see whether or not it needs amendment or revision, as
well.

If I may, let me go right to section 114 of the Motor Vehicle Act of
1966 and may I quote:

Bvery manufacturer or distributor of a motor vehicle or motor vehicle equip-
ment shall furnish to the distributor or dealer at the time of delivery of
such vehicle or equipment by such manufacturer or distributor the certification
that each such vehicle or item of motor vehicle equipment conforms to applicable
Federal motor vehicle safety standards * * *

I would assume that you also intend to require certification of that
vehicle and equipment if it also meets Federal security standards, but
there is nothing in your bill that would indicate such a requirement.
That is the reason I raised that.

There are a number of other sections that I find are not in sync but
I am no legislative draftsman.

Mr. Rovyer. The technical proposals, they are well taken.

Mzr. Barogrw. Thank you.

Mr. ScuruEr. It is a pretty good rule in legislative drafting, as well
as in everything else, to assume nothing. Your suggestion is well taken
and very much appreciated.

Do you have any further suggestions?
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Mr. Baroerr. Everything, I think, has been covered by the previous
speakers. I do not feel it is necessary for me to repeat what has already
been stated.

Mr. Scrreurr. We very much appreciate your testimony. You have
been extremely helpful and thoughtful and very much to the point.

We again apologize for the delay and thank you for your time.

GMr. Barorrn. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Congressman
reen.

[ Testimony resumes on p. 285.]
[Mr. Bardell’s prepared statement and attachments follow 1]

68-093 0 -~ 80 ~ 9
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AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF MOTOR VEHICLE ASMINISTRATORS;'

An Assoclation of State and Provincial Officials Reaponsible
for the Administration and Enforcement of Motor Vehicle
m and Traffic Laws In the United States and Canada,

1_.1 CONNECTICUT AVE., N.W.,, SUITE 910 » WASHINGTON, D.C. 20038 « TELEPHONE 202/296-1955

Statement of Donald J. Bardell

Executive Director, American Association
of Motor Vehicle Administrators

Re: Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Act (HR 4178)

Joint Hearing: Interstate and Foreign Commerce
Subcormiittee on Consumer Protection and Finance;
and Foreign Affaivs Subcommittee on Inter-American
Affairs

26 Federal Plaza, Room 2-120

New York, New York

dune 2, 1980 10:00 A.M.

Mr. Chajrman, and distinguished members of the subcommittees: I am
very pleased to be accorded the opportunity to return to my home state--the
State of New York--to offer comments on behalf of the American Association of
XOto? Veg{céi Administrators (AAMVA) on the pending Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention
ct (HR 4178).

I am Donald J. Bardell, Executive Director of the AAMVA. To put my
statement into perspective, I would iike to point out that the ARMVA is-an associa-
tion of state and provincial officials, responsible for the administration and
enforcement of motor vehicle and traffic laws in the United States and Canada.
Consequently, our members have a substantial role in both the administrative aspects
of motor vehicle theft prevention, as well as the aspects of enforcement.

Prior to accepting the position as AAMVA Executive Director four years
ago, I was Deputy Commissioner and General Counsel for the New York State Department
of Motor Vehicles. In this capacity, I became acutely aware of the ever-growing
vehicle theft problem--particularly as it applied to New York State. As a result,

1 became actively involved in helping develop an administrative scheme, designed to
inhibit the incidence of vehicle theft.

The AAMVA generally supports the purposés of this legislation, as stated
in Sec. 102, However, our Association has three major concerns with Title Il and
respe%%fully request serious consideration be given to these concerns. They are
as follows:

(1) Clarification of the question of preemption with
respect to the extent of state enforcement of
identical federal standards adopted by the states
pursuant to the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle
Safety Act of 1966 as amended by Title II, Sec, 203
of HR 4178;
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(2) In view of the key role that motor vehicle administrators
and traffic law enforcement officials play in the vehicle
theft prevention system, an amendment that specifically
designates_the AAMVA as one of the named organizations
in HR 4178, Sec. 202 (a); and

(3) To ensure a meaningful, consultative process, an amendment that
directs the Secretary of Transportation to develop a consensus
with the named organizations in HR 4178, Sec. 202 (a), and
further to consult with other groups and individuals interested
in or affected by the motor vehicle theft problem.

One of our AAMVA members, Commissioner Virginia L. Roberts of the West
Virginia Department of Motor Vehicles, has been carrying on a discussion on the
preemption issue, via correspondence, with the office of Interstate and Foreign
Commerce Committee Chairman Harley 07 Staggers. An exchange of correspondence is
appended to my testimony. Mrs, Roberts' letter to Rep. Staggers, dated April 18,
1980, is Appendix A; and a reply, on behalf of Mr. Staggers, from Interstate and
Foreign Commerce Committee Professional Staff Member, John H. Allen, dated May 8,
1980, is Appendix B.

Wr. Allen's letter to Mrs. Roberts notes that he has discussed AAMVA's
interest in this legislation with you, Mr., Chajrman, and--taking note of this
series of hearings--he suggests that whomever represents AAMVA wiil want to include
in their testimony any preemptive implications that may be contained in HR 4178,

Along with Mrs. Roberts' letter to Chairman Staggers, she included two
papers that the AAMVA has developed, velating to the proposed motor vehicle theft
prevention legislation. These papers are attached, for the information of the
subcommittees, as Appendices C and D.

The first of these papers, Appendix C, entitled "The American Association
of Motor Vehicle Administrators and the Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Act of 1979,"
detajls the AAMVA's interest in vehicle theft prevention, outlines our Association's
concerns with the proposed legislation, examines the apparent extent of preemption
intended, briefly reviews the legislative history of Sec, 103 (d) of the National
Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966 (known as the preemption section),
relates this section to judicial and administrative interpretation, explains how
this particular issue arose and AAMVA's involvement in the matter, and states AAMVA's
conclusfons, The first paper also suggested some proposed amendatory language to
the motor vehicle theft prevention Tegislation; but after further study, the second
paper, Appendix D, entitied “"Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Act of 1979," was
developed, suggesting a more logical methodology for amending the National Traffic
and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966 to accomplish the objectives in Title IT of the
Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Act.

As the result of AAMVA's research, contained in Appendix €, we do not
question that the Secretary of Transportation has the authority (within certain
prescriptions) to promulgate security standards under HR 4178, nor does it question
that once the Secretary has promulgated a security standard, that no state may
promulgate a standard which is dissimilar from that promulgated by the Secretary.
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However, a state may adopt the identical standard if it so desires. - The
foregoing has been well settled as it relates to federal motor vehicle safety
standards promulgated by the Secretary, pursuant to the National Traffic and
Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966 as amended, hereinafter referred to as the

Motor Vehicle Safety Act. It also appears that HR 4178 would permit the states
to adopt jdentical federal motor vehicle security standards pursuant to Sec. 203.
But 1ike Sec. 103 (d) of the Hotor Vehicle Safety Act, Sec. 203 of HR 4178 is
silent as to the extent of state enforcement of identical federal motor vehicle
security standards adopted by a state. It is this parallelism that rajses a deep
concern for our Administrators. This concern is that, if our member-states should
adopt identical federal motor vehicle security standards, to what extent may they
enforce such standards at the state level, or are they totally preempted from
enforcing such standards.

Since Title II of HR 4178 amends the Motor Vehicle Safety Act and contains
a preemption provision similar to Sec, 103 (d) of the Motdr Vehicle Safety Act, I
believe that this Association is justified in saying that it must look to the
legislative history of the Motor Vehicle Safety Act, more particularly, Sec. 103 (d),
and any interpretations thereof, whether judicial or administrative, in order to
determine to what extent a state may enforce a federal standard under the Motor
Vehicle Safely Act, whether it be a federal motor vehicle safety standard or,
prospectively speaking, a federal motur vehicle security standard, The foregoing
is reinforced by the section-by-section analysis of S 1214 where it was stated that
state enforcement is permissible "to the degree authorized by the Motor Vehicle
Safety Act of 1966, as amended." T{Emphasis added.)

Appendix C adequately details this Association's position with respect to
the question of preemption as it relates to the extent of enforcement of federal
standards adopted by our member-states. I believe that Mr. Allen's letter Jends
support to the concliusion reached by this Association in Appendix C, that States can
develop enforcement schemes for a federal standard under the Motor Vehicle Safety
Act which are not necessarily identical to the federal enforcement scheme, as long
as those schemes do not frustrate the objectives of the Motor Vehicle Safety Act,
nor create an undue burden on interstate commerce. Thus, the question, as stated by
Mr, Allen, “"appears to be one of how the state enforcement scheme is implemented
rather than whether there should be an enforcement scheme." Therefore, the primary
question before any tribunal should be, whether or not the state enforcement scheme
frustrates the objectives of the Act. If it is found that it does, then the state
is preempted, but if it is found that it does not, then the state is not preempted.
If it is not preempted, it follows that the next question the tribunal should address
is, does the state scheme create an undue burden on interstate commerce.

It is the position of this Association that the underlining objective of
the Motor Vehicle Safety Act was highway safety and uniformity with a minimal
interference in the initial marketing of a manufacturer's vehicles as well as its
after-market replacement devices. As this Association sees it, the underlining
objectives of HR 4178 are the prevention and reduction of auto theft, through the
development of uniform security standards with a minimal interference in the jnitial
marketing of a manufacturer's vehicles as well as its after-market replacement
devices, Thus, any state enforcement scheme that would inhibit the initial marketing
of a manufacturer's vehiclesor after-market replacement devices would frustrate
the objectives of the Motor Vehicle Safety Act and HR 4178, and therefore would be
preempted, Contrariwise, any state scheme of enforcement which would not inhibit
the initial marketing of a manufacturer's vehicles or after-market replacement
devices, would not frustrate the objectives of the Motor Vehicle Safety Act and
HR 4178, and would, accordingly, not be preempted. For example, a state could
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require after-market replacement devices to be submitted for approval for sale

in a state, provided the manufacturers are allowed to market the devices in that

state while that state's enforcement scheme is being implemented (in process). If

a state should find, during the course of enforcement implementation, that the

devices submitted for approval do not meet federal standards adopted by the state,

Enen the state could take appropriate action against the sale of those devices in
e state,

I believe the foregoing clearly demonstrates the proper implementation
of a state enforcement scheme, and is the proper "how," which Mr. Allen refers to
in his Tetter to Commissioner Roberts. However, the Middle District Court for
Pennsylvania, on remand in Truck Safety Equipment Institute v. Kane, 419 F. Supp. 688;
Vacated and Remanded, 558 F.2d, 1028 466 F. Supp. 1242, found that any tzEe of
state enforcement scheme prior to first sale was preempted by the Motor Vehicle Safety
Act (no matter "how" implemented).

We are somewhat confused by Mr. Allen’s reference to the fact that the
position of this Association and that of the Pennsylvania court decisions are not
inconsistent. Mr. Allen seems to agree with the court's reasoning that a
state enforcement scheme is so integrated with a federal motor vehicle safety standard
that if the enforcement scheme is different (I would assume from the federal enforce-
ment scheme), and creates a burden on the manufacturer, then the implementation of
that scheme will substantively change the performance criteria of the federal motor
vehicle standard itself, and therefore make it non-identical. It is extremely
difficult for this Association to understand how a properly implemented state enforce-
ment scheme could in some way be so integrated with the substantive criteria of a
performance standard so as to change that standard and make the performance criteria
substantively different just because it is state enforced. This is the reason for
our confusion with respect to Mr. Allen's statement, referred to above, since he
agrees that a state may have an enforcement scheme, but the court in Pennsylvania
disagrees that a state may not have an enforcement scheme based upon the foregoing
rationale. Accordingly, our position is at odds and not consistent with the
Pennsylvania decisions,

The Pennsylvania court did not address the propriety of the implementation
of the new Pennsylvania code as it related to its equipment enforcement scheme
(Mr. Allen's "how"); nor was it of the opinion that it need address the constitutional
question of an undue burden on interstate commerce. Yet, in order to arrive at its
decision, the court weaves throughout its opinion matters related to the burden
question., Indeed, this is the quastion that the Pennsylvania court should have
addressed on remand, but it completely ignored the direction of the Third Circuit
Court that it make a record on the question of burden. The Pennsylvania decisions,
in effect, Taid down a "per se" rule with respect to the question of preemption;
that is to say, that any enforcement scheme by a state of an identical federal motor
vehicle safety standard prior to first sale is preempted irrespective of the
propriety of its implementation. However, a close reading of the Third Circuit
Court decision makes manifest that {t was extremely concerned that the District Court
would take such an approach in determining such a sensitive jssue as preemption of
a state program related to highway safety, without having before it a record relating
to undue burden.
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In reviewing HR 4178, AAMVA found that Title Il appears not to
synchronize with the remainder of the Motor Vehicle Safety Act which it proposes
to amend. On the other hand, Titles III and IV of HR 4178 appear to be technically
correct, in that they appropriately amend acts to which these titles make reference.
But this does not seem to be the case with respect to Title I1I. In view of this,
and the other concerns of AAMVA, herein identified, our Association respectfully
Xugge:t§922e following amendments to the Nationa) Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety
ct o H

Amend the purpose clause in the National Traffic and Motor
Vehicle Safety Act of 1966 as follows:

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of
the United States of America in Congress assembled, that
Congress hereby declares that the purpose of this Act is to
reduce traffic accidents and deaths and injuries to persons
resulting from traffic accidents, and to improve the physical
security features of the motor vehicle and its parts.
Therefore, congress determines that 1t 1s necessary to establish
motor vehicle safety standards for motor vehicles and equip-
ment in interstate commerce; to undertake and support necessary
safety research and development; and to expand the national
driver register; and establish physical security standards for
the motor vehicle and its parts.

Amend Title I of the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety
Act of 1966 as follows:

TITLE 1--MOTOR VEHICLE SAFETY, AND SECURITY STANDARDS

Amend Section 102 of PART A--GENERAL PROVISIONS, Subsection
(2), into two subparagraphs, as follows:

(2) (a) "Motor vehicle safety standards" means a minimum
standard for motor vehicle performance, or motor vehicle
equipment performance, which is practicable, which meets the
negi for motor vehicle safety and which provides objective
criteria.

{b) "Motor vehicle security standards" means a minimum
performance standard relating to a motor venicle starting

system, the locking systems for the engine, gassenger and
trunk compartments, and component part identification.

Amend Section 103 (a) as follows:

The Secretary shall establish by order appropriate federal
motor vehicle safaty and security standards. Each such
Federal motor vehicle safefy and security standard shall be
practicable, shall meet the need for motor vehicle safety
and security and shall be stated in objective terms.
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Amend Section 103 (b) as follows:

The administrative procedures act shall apply to all orders
establishing, amending, or revoking a federal motor vehicle
safety and security standards under this title,

Amend Section 103 {c) by dividing that section into two sub-
paragraphs as follows:

{c) {1) Each order establishing a federal motor vehicle
safety standard shall specify the date such standard is to
take effect which shall not be sooner than one hundred and
eighty days or later than one year from the date such order is
issued, unless the Secretary finds, for good cause shown, that
an earlier or later effective date is in the public interest,
and publishes his reasons for such finding.

(2) (A) MWithin twelve months after the date of enactment
of the Motor Vehicie Theft Prevention Act of 1979 the Secretary
of Transportation shall issue proposed notices of rulemaking

cavering the areas of unauthorized starting of the motor vehicle
and major component identification.

(B} The proposed rule covering the prevention of the
unauthorized starting of the motor vehicle shall take into

consideration ongoing technological developments relating to
the utilization of the microelectronics in the motor vehicle,

automatic activation of the security system, and possible elimina-

tion of the existing metallic mechanical key system presently
used to activate the motor venicle,

{C) The proposed rule relating to_the theft of motor
vehicle parts shall take into consideration ongoing technological
lace

developments, including 1aser marking machines, to
Tdentification numbers on those major components wﬁgch are the

primary target of the "chop shops.”

(D) After an appropriate_comment period and the
analysis thereof, the Secretary of Trapsportation shall issue

final rules as soon as_possible, but not later than twenty~four
months after the date of enactment of the Motor Vehicle Thaft
Prevention Act of 1979, The {nitial effective date of such final
rules_shal] be as soon as practicable but before the introduction
of two model vears or two calendar years, whichever is shorter,
following the issuance of any final rule. Any fipal rule shall
encourage and permit the manufacturer to conform to its require~
ments before the rule's mandatory effective date.
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Amend Section 103 (d) as follows:

Whenever a federal motor vehicle safety or security standard
is established under this title is in effect, no state or

political subdivision of a state shall have any authority either

to establish, or to continue in effect, with respect to any

motor vehicle or item of motor vehicle equipment any safety or
security standard applicable to the same aspect of performance of
such vehicle or item of equipment or security systems or component
part identification, which is rot dentical to the federal standard.
Provided, however, that a state may adopt identical Federal Motor
Vehicle Safety, and/or Security Standards promulgated by the
Secretary, and enforce those standards to the extent allowed under
state Jaw, so long as such enforcement does_not frustrate the
objectives and purposes of this Act. Nothing in this section

shall be construed to prevent the federal government or the
government of any state or political subdivision thereof from
establishing a safety requirement applicable to motor vehicles or
motor vehicle equipment procured for its own use if such require-
ment imposes a higher standard of performance than that required

to comply with the otherwise applicable federal standard.

Amend Section 103 (e) as follows:

The Secretary may by order amend or revoke any federal motor
vehicle safety or security standard established under this
section. Such order shall specify the date on which such amend-
ment or revocation is to take effect which shall not be sooner
than one hundred and eighty days or later than one year from

the date the order is issued, unless the Secretary finds, for good
cause shown, that an earlier or later effective date is in the
public interest, and publishes his reasons for such finding.

Amend Section 103 (f) by dividing that paragraph into two sub-
paragraphs as follows:

(f) (1) 1In prescribing safety standards under this section,
the Secretary shall:

(A) consider relevant available motor vehicle safety
data, including the vesults of research, development, testing
and evaluation activities conducted pursuant to this Act;

(B) consult with the Vehicle Equipment Safety
Commission, and-such other state or interstate agencies
(including legislative committees) as he deems appropriate;

(C) consider whether any such proposed standard 1s
reasonable, practicable and appropriate for the particular type
of motor vehicle or item of motor vehicle equipment for which it
is prescribed; and
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(D) consider the extent to which such standards will
contribute to carrying out the purposes of this Act.

(2) In prescribing security standards under this
section, the Secretary shail:

(A) take into account the cost of implementiny the
standard and the benefits atfaipable as a result oi tne

JimpTementation of the_standard;

(B) take into account the effect of implementation
of_the standard on the cost of automobile insurance;

(C) take into account savings_in terms of consumer
time and inconvenience;

(D) take into account considerations of safety; and

(E) develop consensus with the Attorney General, the
International Association of Chiefs of Police, the International
Association of Auto Theft Investigators, the National Automobile
Theft Bureau, the American Association of Motor Vehicle
Administrators, and consult with other groups and individuals
interested in or affected by the motor vehicle theft probiem.

In addition to the areas of AAMVA's specific concern with this proposed
laegislation, which I have identified, you--Mr., Chairman--in your May 14, 1980
letter to me, confirming this appearance, asked for our Association's views on four
other issues related to HR 4178:

~--The so-called “re-tag" probiem;

--Uses and Timitations of salvage titles;

--Prevalence of counterfeit titles; and

~~The feasibility of 2dding Vehicle ldentification
Number (VIN) number confirmations to state motor
vehicle inspections

Since each of these issue areas invalve administrative control of vehicle
theft prevention activities, I would 1ike to comment briefly on the EKMVA'S recent
anti-theft programming initiatives, because they, too, involve administrative
controls. OQur Association's efforts are described in greater detail in my column,
"Comment by the Executive Director, in the January/February 1979 edition of the
AAMVA Bulletin, which is attached to my statement as Appendix E.

Heretofore, a vast majority of the emphasis in anti-theft efforts has
been addressed to apprehension and prosecution. Although such activities are
obviously important, they are limited to catching and prosecuting thieves--after a
vehicle has actually been stolen. There are a growing number in our profession--
motor vehicle administration--who believe that we currently have laws that are
adequate for achieving most of our enforcement and prosecution obJectjves, with
respect to vehicle theft problems. These individuals are firmly convinced that
there are real limits to which after-the-fact remedies can usefully be pursued in
preventing vehicle theft
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Many among AAMVA's membership believe that substantially greater
inroads can be made in ameliorating the growing number of vehicie theft
problems-~especially as they relate to “professional" theft operations--by
tightening the administrative controls that pertain to proof of ownership of
a motor vehicle. These controls stress prevention of the theft before it occurs.
By tightening these administrative controls, motor vehicle administrators can--
we believe--make it significantly more difficult for the professional auto thief
to operate. These controls can make it tougher for representatives of theft rings
to sticcessfully obtain false documents that make them appear to be the legitimate
owners of vehicles that have been stolen.

These tighter controls over proof of vehicle ownership--from the time
that a vehicle rolis off the assembly line until it is either salvaged, dismantied,
or consigned to the shredder--also can be helpful in reducing other avenues of
fraud, on which the professional theft rings have relied heavily.

The AAMVA already has taken one significant step toward formulating
more effective administrative controls for motor vehicles. Pursuant to a resolution,
adopted at our Association's 1978 Annual International Conference, we have developed
security features for the Manufacturers Certificate of Qrigin (MCO)--the vehicle's
“birth certificate." Although implemented in early 1979, almost one-third of the
states--a total of 17--already have adopted use of the AAMVA-developed MCO with
security features. Our Association also has several years invested in development
of a unique Vehicle Identification Number (VIN); one that will provide a competent
identifier for a vehicie throughnut its useful life; a number that also can be
usefully applied to programs such as component marking.

AAMVA believes that the two aforementioned programs are but two on a
lengthy agenda of possible administrative controls that might successfully be applied
toward prevention of vehicle theft. Others, as noted in my column, include:
security features for vehicle titles, including return of titles involving inter-
Jurisdictional transfers; precise controls for transfer of ownership between
entities such as the manufacturer, transporter, dealer, purchaser, body shop cperator,
and dismantler; specific salvage title procedures; and audit procedures (that
presume licensing by the state motor vehicle agency) for shredders, to follow
component parts once the vehicle has lost its identity. This list is, by no means
all inclusive, but it touches upon some of the major areas that our Association feels
logically should be considered,

As a prefacing caveat to AAMVA's commentary on the subjects where the sub-
commi ttees have asked for our views, I would Tike to point out that at the conclusion
to the Natjonal Workshop on Auto Theft Prevention--a session held here in New York
City, October 3-6, 1978--stressed that one of the major difficulties with the auto
theft issue 15 that not enough accurate information is available. This also has
proven to be a major source of frustration to the AAMVA.

Despite the major programming initiative by the AAMVA, in which our
Association has sought to take the lead in developing and implementing anti-theft
programs, as well as developing reliable statistical data on state participation in
these efforts, we still are constrained to acknowledge that there {s a dearth of
reliable data that is avajlable, to date, and which can be readily cited. Therefore,
1 would caution that the observations that the AAMVA offers are based on the best
information that we could secure; that in some instances the comment may be
addressed to the experiences of relatively few states; and, that in a few instances
the information may appear to be contradictory,
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A1l of the states contacted by AAMVA felt that "re-tagging" of
vehicles is a major, theft-related problem. For example: Statistics furnished
by the California Highway Patrol (CHP) indicate that approximately 160,000 vehicles
are reported stolen in that state annually. The CHP estimates that 10 to 15
percent of the cars recovered have obviously been re-tagged. But the Assistant
Chief of the CHP and Enforcement Services Director, further estimates that 50
percent of the vehicies that are not recovered--several thousand--are not
recovered because they have been_re-tagged in_such a ski11ful manner that the
re-taggqing job is not discernible.

However, most of the states surveyed by the AAMVA Firmly believe that
the re-tagging of whole vehicles can be successfully controlled, by a combination
of an effective salvage title law and VIN verification--of both the public and
confidential VINs--either at the time that a rebuilt vehicle is retitled (i.e.,
is issued a negotiable title instrument), or at the time that an out-of-state
vehicle is initially titled in any state. But the problem that is running
rampantly out of control, and seemingly escalating, is the problem of “chop shops."
Control of these operations, which we are finding in some instances have been
taken over by elements of organized crime, require substantially greater admin-
istrative controls, working in tandem with vigorous enforcement of these laws and
regulations.

1T19nois has been one of the leaders in addressing both the re-tag problem
and control of chop shops. In an initial effort to defeat ve-tagging--which alse
is commonly known in the trade as a "salvage switch"--the I1linois Office of the
Secretary of State, on June 1, 1978, impleuented the use of a new title form
with security features.

The ITlinois title is printed on bank note paper, with a border of
intaglio steel printing, making it virtually as difficult to counterfeit as currency.
Moreover, the vital information on the title--make and model, year, body style
and VIN--is covered by a film Tamination, and any attempt to remove it destroys the
printed information beneath. I11inois also issues a salvage certificate (title)
for vehicles intended to be dismantied, recycled, or junked. Concomitant with the
security title, Il1linois also has formed a new title verification unit, assigned
ixglusively to checking certificates of title for suspicion of altering or counter-

eiting,

New York State also has been active in formulating administrative controls
to bolster its effort in combatting a rapidiy escalating vehicle theft problem,
Recently, it has added to its arsenal a Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Program
housed in the New York State Department of Motor Vehicles. The program is undei
the purview of the Office for Audit and Review, part of which is the investigative
arm for the DMV--the personnel of which are peace officers.

The New York law empowers the investigators: To conduct detailed
investigations in cooperation with other enforcement officials; to determine the
reliability of applicants required to be registered; to provide assistance to law
enforcement personnel in determining sources of outlets for stolen motor vehicle
parts; to cooperate with Jaw enforcement personnel in the investigation of organized
motor vehicle theft rings; to examine motor vehicles prior to the issuance of a
New York State motor vehicle title, at the discretion of the BMV Commissioner.
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For years the DMV has been examining motor vehicles at the request of individuals
whose VIN plates have been stolen or who wish to put a salvage vehicle back on the
road, which does not have a public VIN. However, the Department has never been
able to examine all those vehicles which have been declared junk and salvage, and
which were being put back on the road and retitied. It now is the intention of
the DMV--as mandated by the new law--to examine all of the salvage vehicles for
which retitling is requested--if sufficient funding ¥5 provided by the legislature.

Pursuant to the DMV's new mandate, directing its investigators to confirm
the public VIN and correlate it with the confidential VIN for vehicles being
retitled, and for some out-of-state vehicles being licensed in New York State for
the first time, the DMV has received authorization from the National Highway
Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) to conduct a pilot program. Although this
pilot study will not be completed until June 30, 1980, some of the preliminary
statistics have important implications for vehicle theft. To date, the DMV has
written letters to 414 salvage yards, requesting to confirm and correlate the public
and confidential VINs on vehicles that they have requested be retitled. Out of the
414 vehicles on which physical inspection was sought:

--25 percent failed to keep their appointment with the
DMV to have the VINs inspected and confirmed, indicating
that possible (a) the vehicle in question had been
stolen; or (b) tiiat it is a "phantom" vehicle for which
a legitimate title is being sought, but which never-~in
fact--existed in the first instance. As of this writing,
the DMV still is looking for a vast majority, a total of
102, of these no-shows.

--0f the vehicles that did keep their appointments, 8 percent
required further investigation, due to: (a) altered VIN
numbers; (b) non-conformance of the public and confidential
VINs; and (c) apparent attempts to eradicate one, or both,
of the VINs.

--2 percent of those requested to bring vehicles in for
inspection reported the vehicle stolen between the time
that they received the DMV letter and the date of the
appointment. Such action alse led the Department to con-
clude that: (a) the vehicle probably was indeed a stolen
vehicle; or {b) that the owner of the salvage title did not,
in fact, have the car in question.

--14 percent of the letters mailed by the DMV were returned
by the Postal Service as “"undeliverable."

Therefore, of the 414 vehicles on which the New York State DMV sought to
perform physical inspection, nearly half produced happenings that cause the Depart-
ment to suspect that they might be stolen vehicles. If the statistical sampling
is a valid indication of statewide experience, then the implication is indeed one for
great concern.
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Governor Edward J. King of Massachusetts--the state the has led the
nation for more than 15 years in motor vehicle theft rate--formulated a special
Task Force on Automobile Theft late in 1979, to study problems in that state and
develop recommendations for their solution, With respect to the “salvage switch"
issue, the Massachusetts Task Force recommended that the VIN plate not be removed
from salvage vehicles, a practice almost universally followed in other states;
and enactment of a salvage title law, which would assist in establishing proof of
ownership, provide asvehicle audit trail, and--most importantly--remove the standard
(negotiable) title document from the marketplace, so that it cannot be used for
i1legal vehicle transactions.

Most o€ our states have found that when auto theft rings find it harder
to move stolen cars intact, via the "salvage switch" routine, organized crime will
inevitably then resort more and more to chop shops to make money on stolen vehicles.

IMinois has made inroads into frustrating that technique for auto
thieves, too, In this state, the Secretary of State licenses nearly 700 scrap
processors, junk yards, rebuilders, recyclers, and used parts dealers, State law
requires the licensees to keep records of theiv transactions and empowers the
Secretary of State to prescribe rules for the recordkeeping. They have experienced
a modicum of success in enforcing these recordkeeping requirements, via use of
administrative hearings.

111inois has found that the administrative hearings are effective means
of enforcement. In a criminal trial, proof must be beyond a reasonable doubt; while,
in @ civil administrative hearing, only a preponderance of the evidence is needed
to justify taking away a license. If the Office of the Secretary finds anyone
dealing in cars or parts without a license, a cease and desist order is issued. If
an appropriate license is not obtained, the Attorney General takes the offender to
court. In such circumstances, some operators cbtain a license, while others drop
out. I1linois currently is working on establishing an audit trail for essential
components of dismantled cars, to complement the audit trail already in place for
the cars themselves, in the motor vehicle agency's registration file.

New York State has recently initiated a somewhat similar procedure
to provide stronger controls on all entities involved in the disposal
of junk and salvage vehicles. There currently are nine entities that have been
identified as being involved with junk and salvage vehicles. Five of these are
required_to be registered with the DMV. These are: (1) vehicle dismantlers; (2}
salvage pools; (3; mobile car crushers; (4) itinerant vehicle collectors; and (5)
vehicie rebuilders. The other four are required to be certified by the DMV.
These include: (1) scrap processors; (2] scrap collectors; (3) repair shops which
dispose of vehicular scrap to certified scrap processors; and (4) out-of-state
concerns. This new Taw further mandates keeping of records by all of these entities,
as well as specifying that these records are accessible to both police officers and
agents of the Motor Vehicle Commissioner.

California also has laws that provide for the licensing of satvage and
recycling operations that are administered by the California Highway Patrol. One
point which AAMVA believes adds to the effectiveness of these laws is a provision
that stipulates that the records that these operations are required to keep are the
property of the State of California. These Jaws further provide that the records
can be inspected, anytime, during normal business hours, by “he CHP Commissioner, his
representative, or other peace officer. Further bolstering the impact of this law
in controling vehicle theft operations--such as chop shops--is the fact it has twice
been upheld in court tests.
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. As tha subcommittees probably have concluded from the foregoing
discussion on control of re-tag problems and chop shop operations, the AAMVA
believes that the salvage vehicle title is a viable administrative tool to be

used in the combattin? of the incidence of motor vehicle theft; provided, at

least from my personal perspective, that the program must have combined with it
physical inspection of the VINs of the vehicles in question. The problem, however,
is the funding reality of such a program.

As tangible evidence of our Association's policy on the salvage vehicle
title, 1 have appended to my statement (as Appendix F) a resolution from AAMVA's
1977 Annual International Conference, which you can see from the legislative summary
of this measure was adopted with but one dissenting vote. The measure, Resolution
3, entitled "Salvage Vehicle Title Procedures,” calls upon the AAMVA membership to urge
the Governors and Legislators of all states to enact such legislation as they
deem necessary to implement a salvage title document.

Over and above funding considerations, there probably are some other
Timitations to the salvage title, but AAMVA firmly believes that they are far out-
weighed by this provision to remove negotiable certificates of title from commerce,
since the regular certificate of title is the key document in the trafficking of
stolen vehicles, or in fraudulent insurance claims.

At the moment, there is a relatively minor disagreement as to how many
states have enacted salvage title laws. A 1979 study by the National Committee
on Uniform Traffic Laws and Ordinances indicate that 21 states “"after receiving the
certificate of title, issue a salvage title certificate or a permit to dismantle.”
However, the 1979 Annual Report for the National Automobile Theft Bureau indicates
that "to date 25 states have enacted varying degrees of saivage title legisiation.

However, I would like to fake this opportunity to assure you, Mr. Chairman,
and the members of the subcommittees, that AAMVA--via {ts Standing Committee on
Registration, Title, Vehicle Dealers and Manufacturers--is working vigorously
toward securing enactment of viable salvage title laws in each and every state,

The prevaience of counterfeit titles has been the issue that AAMVA has
encountered the most frustration in attempting to isolate. As 1 noted earlier in
my statement, there are some areas in which there is a dearth of tangible statistics.
This is one such area!

A new I11inois Title Verification Unit was able to identify a total of 379
altered and counterfeit titles in its first 18 months of operation. But checks with
New York, California, Massachusetts, Texas, and Florida indicate that there is no
statistical data compiled of this particular problem. However, I would suggest that
the New York pilot study, to verify the public VIN and correlate it with the
confidential VIN on rebuilt vehicles and vehicles coming from out-of-state--and the
reluctance of many of those selected to participate in the verification study--
indicates that there probably is a significant number of vehicles being placed back
into operatjon that have what New York State DMV officials refer to as "funny paper"
to support their existence.

As further evidence of the strong consensus that seemingly exists among
motor vehicle administrators that there is a problem with the prevalence of counter-
feit titles, 1 have appended to my statement (as Appendixes G and H) a resolution from
AAMVA's 1979 Annual International Conference and a recommendation from our 1980
Registration, Title, Vehicle Dealers and Manufacturers Workshop.
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The resolution, Resolution BA, entitled "Concerning Universal Certificate
of Title," calls on all AAMVA jurisdictions, in their concern to eliminate counter-
feiting and fraudulent use of title documents, to support efforts by the AAMVA
and the American National Standards Institute D-19 Committee to expand the uniform
certificate of title in terms of design, security features and universality of use
by all jurisdictions.

The 1980 recommendation, Recommendation 1, entitled "Utjlization by All
Jurisdictions of a Title Document Containing Security Features," suggests that motor
vehicle administrators in all non-title jurisdictions and all jurisdictions using
a title without security features to take immediate steps to require the use of title
documents containing security features.

Since the 1979 resolution was adopted with but one dissenting vote, and the
1980 workshop recommendation was adopted unanimously, I would respectfully submit--
in the absence of tangible statistics either in support or to the contrary--that there
is a strong consensus among the nation's motor vehicle administrators that there is
a problem with the prevalence of counterfeit titles.

With respect to the feasjbility of adding VIN number confirmatiuns to
state motor vehicle inspections, AAMVA and its members respectfully suggest that it
is not a realistic objective.

The 1979 adition of Summary of State Motor Vehicle Inspection Laws and
Regulations--a publication jointiy produced by the AANVA and the Motor Vehicie
Manufacturers Association--indicated that 17 states check the VIN at the time of
the safety inspection; but further study indicates that virtually all of these VIN
checks is limited to confirmation of the public VIN, since there is neither time
nor funding available to conduct the more rigorous correlation with the confidential
VIN. We submit that in the absence of such correlation, that examination of the
public VIN is of 1ittle value as an anti-theft tool.

For example, New York State is one of the 17 that indicates it checks the
VIN at the time of the safety inspection. However, officials from the State DMV
have indicated to our Association that in New York inspections, the incidence of
tra?scriﬁtion errors in the VIN is so high that it venders the data "totally
useless.

In closing, Mr. Chairman, I would like--in behalf of AAMVA and the
motor vehicle and traffic enforcement administrators throughout the nation--to thank
you and the subcommittees for providing me an opportunity to share with you some
of our concerns with HR 4178, as well as to share with you some of the things that
we have been doing to develop effective administrative controls over the growing
vehicle theft problem.

I respectfully suggest to you and members of the subcommittees that the
AAMVA has been doing a great deal in formulating, and enlisting substantially
broader state participation in, programs that are addressed to the crux of the
vehicle theft problem. Consequently, we believe that if this legislation is adopted,
the Secretary of Transportation can facilitate his charge to develop security standards
by initiating a close and on-going consultation with the states, in order to benefit
from the experience that they have gained. Therefore, we feel that the amending
language that we have suggested are apropos.
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But we feel that it is of paramount importance to clarify congressional
intent with respect to federal preemption, and to clearly articulate in the
context of this legisiation the states’ right to enforce identical standards;
standards that serve to complement tha federal effort under the Motor Vehicle
Safety Act of 1966, as amended. :

Thank you.
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APPENDIX A

DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES
STATE OFFICE BUILDING
JOHN D. ROCKEFELLER 1V CHARLESTON, WEST VIRGINIA VIRGINIA L. ROBERTS
Gavernor 25305 ' Commissioner

April 18, 1980

Tne Honorable Harley O, Staggers

Chairman

Committee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce
United States House of Representatives

2125 RHOB

Washingrton, D. C. 20315

Dear Mr., Chairman:

I was saddened to learn of your impending retirement at
the close of the 96th Congress. The respite from public ser-
vice and the opportunity to return home obviously are well
earned. But your distinguished recerd of service to the citi-
zens of West Virginia and the outstanding leadership record as
Chairman of one of the most important committees in the world's
greatest legislative body are qualities that will be impossible
to impute to any successor,

This lerter is to c¢all your attention to my visit to your
Capitol Hill office early last June, during the Qrientation
Seminar for State Motor Vehicle Administrators, sponsored by
the american Association of Motor Vehicle Administrators (AAMVA).
I was accumpanied on this visit by the AAMVA Executive Director,
Mr. Donald J. Bardell.

AS yau probably will recall, we held a lengthy conversation
regardin, the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Sufety Act of
1966. a landmark piece of legislation, enacted during your ste-
wardship as Chairman of the Interstate and Foreign Commerce Com-
mittee. OQur conversation was particularly addressed to Section
103(d) of this Act; especially the degree of federal preemption
intended by this legislation. 1In this conversation, Mr. Bardell
outlined to you some of the problems that state officials are en-
countering due to the lack of eclarity as to the degree of pre-
emption intended.

As we indicated to you, it has always been the position of
state motor vehicle administrators, and the AAMVA, that states
are empowered to adopt identical Federal motor vehicle safety
standards, and to enfarce them by any state scheme formulated,
S0 long as the state enforcement scheme does not (a) frustrate
the vbjectives of the Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966, and sub-
seyuent amendments: or (b) provide & hurden on interstate commerce.

€8~093 O - 80 ~ 10
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As you indicated, it has always been the intent of Congress
that a meaningful partnership be present; a Federal enforcement
scheme and a complementary state enforcement scheme. However,
during my visit we also pointed out that there had been a District
Court decision in Pennsylvania (Truck Safety Equipment Institute
vs. PenDOT), in which the decision handed down runs contrary to
the congressional intent that you expressed. For this reason, and
because there are several other pieces of legislation pending in
the Congress that have similar preemptive overtones, we feel that
there is an urgent need to obtain from the source the intent of
Congress with respect to the extent of Federal preemption under
the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966.

During our conversation, Mr, Bardell expressed our concerns
relative to the preemptive implications of the pending Motor Vehicle
Theft Prevention Act of 1979 (HR 4178), sponsored by your colleague
from New York, Rep. William Green, et _al. Subsequent to our con-
versation, another piece of legislation, the Commercial Motor Car-
rier Satety Act of 1980 (S 1390) has passed the Senate, and cur-
rently is under consideration by the House Committee on Public Works
and Transportation. It, too, has preemptive overtones that concern
state officials.

At the close of our conversation, you asked if 1 would, at
the appropriate time, submit the information developed by the AAMVA
relative to this matter. Therefore, I am enclosing some material
on the motor vehicle theft prevention legislation for review by
your stail, so that they can report back to you in the manner that
you outiined.

Any assistance that you can provide in resolving this issue in
the best interests of your fellow West Virginians will be deeply
appreciated. On the otber hand, il I can ever be of any assistance
to vou back here at home. pleasc let me know. |

With warmest personal regards.
Singerely yours,
<7 AR .
S - o
Lesafzeee N A el e T

virginia L. Roberts
Commissioner

VLR:jb

Enclosures
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APPENDIX B

Congress of the Wnited States

FHouge of Representatives ’
€ommittee on lnuuuzpmb Sartign Commmﬁ“ N 8 54 M‘\ ““
Room 2123, Rapburm Mouse Ollice Building ZRS oFFICE

ashington, W.E, 20515 u?ﬁ“égs:g%a VEHIGLES

WEST VIACIHIA

RECEIVED

May 8, 1980

Charleston, West Virginia 25305

Dear Commissioner Roberts:

Chairman Staggers has discussed with me your letter dated April 18,
1980, with enclosures, and has asked me to respond to your specific in-
quiries concerning the degree of Federal preemption intended in section

103(d) of the Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966.

He also wanted me to tell

you how much he appreciated your visit with him last June and your willing-
ness to share your views on this and other matters relating to motor vehicle

safaty,

As I am sure you realize, the issue of Federal preemption of State
motor vehicle safety standards is a complex one, but I believe we are, to
a great extent, in accord on this matter.

I would agree with you that Congress did not intend to preempt States
from adopting safety standards which were identical to Federal standards.
To the extent that the Federal government did not act in an area, the States

were also free to act as they deemed necessary.

1 betieve this is clear

from the excellent legislative history prepared by the AAMVA which you were

kind enough to provide.

As pointed out, the conference committee narrowed the scope of the pre-
emption authority to, in the language of the conference report, "assure that
there will not be any inadvertent preemption of a State standard applicable
to an older vehicle by the issuance of a standard with respect to the same

aspect of performance."

Thus, the role established by the Congress for the

States exists in two instances -- first, when no Federal standard exists and,
second, when the vehicle being regulated is a vehicle in use.
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In terms of the Federal standards, where you and I would agree pre-
empt State standards, the question appears to be one of how the State
enforcement scheme is implemented rather than whether there should be an
enforcement scheme. This also appears to be the holding in the two deci-
sions involving the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation. As 1
understand these decisions, the court held that enforcement of a standard
was an integral part of thz standard itself and o the extent a different
enforcement scheme represented a burden on the manufacturer, it represented
a non-identical standard. This decision is, I believe, consistent with
your position that State enforcement is legitimate so long as it "does not
(a) frustrate the objectives of the Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966, and
subsequent amendments, or (b) provide a burden on interstate commerce." The
adnerence to these criteria in establishing a State enforcement scheme would
result in complementary State and Federal enforcement schemes which you de-
sire. It would also be consistent with the Congressional intent, as expressed
in the House report, that the public and industry can be guided by one set of
criteria rather than a multiplicity of diverse standards.

With regard to H.R. 4178, the Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Act of 1979,

this measure has been referred to the Subcommittee on Consumer Protection
and Finance of this Committee. I have discussed your interest in this legis-
Jation with Subcommittee Chairman Scheuer and he has advised that hearings
will be held on June 10 and 12. I understand that the American Association
of Motor Vehicle Administrators has asked to appear before these hearings
and Chairman Scheuer advises that they will be invited to attend for the pur-
pose of presenting both oral and written testimony. I am sure that whoever
represents AAMVA at these hearings will want to include in their testimony
gonc_eqntfor any preemptive implications that may be contained in the proposed

egislation, .

I hope this information will be helpful and, if we can be of fﬁrther
assistance, please do not hesitate to call on us.

Sincerely,

W (2tber)

John H, Allen
Professional Staff Member

JHA:rmb

cc: Hon, Harley 0. Staggers
Hon. James H. Scheuer
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| APPENDIX C
*AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF MOTOR VEHICLE ADMINISTRATORS

An Assoclation of State and Provinclal Officlals Responsible
for the Administration and Enforcement of Motor Vehlcle
and Trafflc Laws In the United States and Canada,

1, ) CONNECTICUT AVE., N.W., SUITE 910 » WASHINGTON, D.C. 20036 » TELEPHONE 202/296-1955
THE MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT PREVENTION ACT OF 1979
(S. 1214 and H.R. 4178)
The American Association of Motor Vehicle Administrators (AAMVA)

The AAMVA 1s a nonprofit, voluntary International organization. Its
membership is comprised of all of the States and Canadian Provinces and their
respective territories. The voting members for these governmental entities are
the chief public administrators, or their designees, having responsibility for
the administration and enforcement of all motor vehicle and traffic laws in
their respective jurisdictions. The scope of responsibiiity of these officials
is broad and ranges from matters related to the traditional State and Provincial
resp-onsibﬂities of registering and titling motor vehicles, licensing drivers and
traffic enforcement, to the national issues of energy conservation (DOE), clean
air (EPA), vehicle recall, enforcement of Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards
and "prospectively" Federal Motor Vehicle Security Standards {DOT), as well as,
commercial truck carrier vegulation (DOT), and standards development and

certification (FTC) (CPSC).

Auto Theft and AAMVA

AAMVA's interest in PREVENTING the growing problem of organized theft
of motor vehicles and the fairly recent development of "chop shop" operations is
a major priority program of this Association. The Executive Column in AAMVA's
Jan./Feb. 1979 Bulletin outlines what 15 felt to be a key element in preventing auto
theft problems--the tightening of State and Provincial administrative contro]s‘

Year mare detatled tnformation on AAMVA, see AAMYA Fact Sheet, attached as Exhibit 1.

_/AAMVA Bulletin, Jan./Feb. 1979, p. 2, attached as Exhibit 23 see also AAMVA Proposal
on Auto-theft, attached as Exhibit 3




142

In addition, and going hand in hand with the foregoing, is the vigorous enforcement
of State regulation of certain businesses which relate themselves to organized,
professional theft rings.3

The "Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Act of 1979" (S. 1214 and H.R. 41/3),
obviously, then, is legislation that would be of keen interest to those of our
administrators who desire to ass;st in developing a national program to prevent auto
theft, trafficking in stolen autos, and the chop shop operation.
AAMVA's Concerns Relative to S. 1214 and H.R. 4178

(Assuming for these purposes that the Secretary has the authority to act in
this area

The proposed legislation presents the following concerns to AAMVA,

(1) Sec. 202, and 203, should, as does Sec. 201, amend the National
Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966 {15 U.S.C. 1392) by
becoming new sub-sections (k) and (1), respectively.

(2)(a) The failure to specifically name in 3ec. 202, AAMVA, as one of
the groups the Secretary is to "closely consult with," in view
of the key role that motor vehicle administrators play within the
theft prevention system (see supra, p. 1).

(b) The consultative process referred to above in (2){a) is not
sufficiently developed so that input is insured by the named groups,
as well as, other interested parties. Therefore, AAMVA proposes
the following language {new language underscored):

Sec. 202 (a} In exercising the authority given to the
Secretary of Transportation upder section 103(j) of the

National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966

(15 U.5.C. 1392), as added by section 201 of this Act,

the Secretary shall consult closely and develop consensus
with the Attorney General, the International Igsociation

of Chiefs of Police, the International Association of

Auto Theft Investigators, the National Automobiie Theft
Bureau, the American Association of Motor Vehicle
Administrators, and other groups and individuals interested
7n or affected by the motor vehicle theft problem.

g/AAMVA Bulletin, March 1979, p. 2, attached as Exhibit 4.
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(3) The extent of federal preemption.

Pfeemption is one of the primary concerns of AAMVA.

Preemption--To What Extent

Sec. 203 provides:

Whenever there is in effect a Federal motor vehicle
security standard relating to a motor vehicle's
starting system, the locking systems for the engine,
passenger, and trunk compartments, and component part
identification established under this title, no State
or political subdivision of a State shall have any
authority to establish or to continue in effect, with
respect to any motor vehicle or motor.vehicle part, any
security standard velating to those same systems which
is not identical to such Federal standard.

This section is almost in haec verba to Section 103(d) of the National Traffic

—_—tee e

Y
and Motor Vehis:e Safety Act of 1966 hereinafter referred to as the Act. This

section pravides:

Whanever a Federal motor vehicle safety standard
established under this title is in effect, no State
or political subdivision of a State shall have any
authority either to establish, or to continue in
effect, with respect to any motor vehicle or item of
motor vehicle equipment any safety standard app)icable
to the same aspect of performance of such vehicle or
item of equipment which is not identical to the Federal
standard, Nothing in this section shall be construed
to prevent the Federal Government or the government
of any State or political subdivision thereof from
establishing a safety requirement applicable to motor
vehicles or motor vehicle equipment procured for its
own use 1f such requirement imposes a higher standard
of performance than that required to comply with the
otherwise applicable Federal standard.

Y}
15 U.S.¢. 1392(d)
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The section-by-section analysis of S. 1214, more particularly, Section
203, leaves no room for t_ioubt that "Federal anti-theft standards would preempt
any such state legislation which is not identical to the Federal standard."
The analysis also makes plain that states would not be barred, however, from
“enacting a state standard 1dent1ca1' to the Federal standard and enforcing such-
standard to the degree authorized by the Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966, as

&/

AAMVA would have no problem with the foregoing and the question of
preemption, as it relates to security standards, but for the language, in the
analysis which qualifies state enforcement activity. That is, "to the degree
authorized by the Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966, as amended."

This qualifying language begs the question that has been lingering
since the Act's implementation in 1967, and for which AAMVA seeks a determinative
answer in the forum where the ambiguity, if any, was created,

THE QUESTION WAS AND IS UNDER SECTION 103(d} OF THE ACT AND IS
AND WILL BE UNDER SECTION 103(j) OF THE PROPOSED LEGISLATION THE FOLLOWING:

T0 WHAT EXTENT MAY A STATE ENFORCE IDENTICAL FEDERAL
STANDARDS PROMULGATED BY THE SECRETARY UNDER THE ACT.

The answer to this question must be determined by Congressional intent
at the time it enacted the Act; therefore, a brief review of the Tegislative
history of Section 103(d) is warranted,” as well as, any judicial or administrative

interpretations of the extent of preemption mandated by this section.

yt:ongressional Record, May 22, 1979, S. 6425.
8/1bid. (Emphasis added.)
2/1bid.

§/AAMVA Capital Report, May 18, 1979, pp. 4-5, attached as Exhibit 5, It appears that
Einhagsifry also desires clarification; see MEMA Insight, June 1, 1879, attached as
xhibit 6.

-9-/That history would also shed Tight, in AAMVA's opinion, with respect to the extent
of Federal preemption under the proposed legislation (Section 203).
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Brief Legislative History of Section 103(d) of the Act

The legislative history of Section 103(d) is revealing As originally
written, it read as follows.

Sec. 102...(b) No State or local government law, regulation,
or ordinance shall establish a safety standard for @ motor
vehicle or item of motor vehicle equipment in intarstate
commerce if a Federal motor vehicle safety standard ssued
in conformance with the provisions of this title is in
effect with respect to that motor vehicle or {tem of motor
vehicle equipment; and any such law, requlation or ordinance
purporting to establish such safety standards and providing
2 penalty or punishment for an act of noncompliance therewith
shall te nuil, void, and of no effect....(emphasis added),l10/

To/

T In response to the House Committes's request, AMA (now known as MVMA) submitted a
markup of the original Bill which includes a change in the preemption clause. The
change suggested read as follows (with changes from the original section indicated
by all capitals and line-outs):

"No State or local government law, regulation or ordinance
shall establish a safety standard for a motor vehicle or
item of motor vehicle equipment WHICH DIFFERS FROM in
interstate-commeree-4f a Federal Motor Vehicle standard
issued BY THE SECRETARY in conformance with the provisions
of this Title is-in-effect with respect to that motor vehicle
or item of motor vehicle equipment; and such law, regulation,
or ordinance purporting to establish such DIFFERENT safety
standards and providing a_penalty or punishment for an act
of noncompliance therewith shall be null, void, and of no
effect,™ (Etmphasis added.}

In addition, the General Counsel for the Commerce Department responded favorably
to th:]House Committee Report with respect to a mark-up of the original section,
as follows:

"In the industry draft on the pre-emption of State Standards,
there is a stight language change which will have the effect
of permitting states to have their own safety standards for
new motor vehicles so long as those Standards do not di ffer
from Federal Standards. We would have no objection to making
the language clarification suggested. Me understand that the
effect of this language change would only be to rermit

independent enforcement by the Stafes of a standard which is
entical to the Federai Standard... Emphasis added.)
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There is no room for argument. As originally written, the preemption
contemplated was both complete and certain, and state penalties (Enforcement) for
noncompliance with “any such law, regulation, or ordinance purporting to establish
State safety standards™ were declared to be "null and void and of no effect.”

However, as finally written, it is clear to AAMVA that Congress did not
intend to preempt state regulation and control except in areas where Federal standards
have been issued, and not even then, except to the extent that state standards are
not identical to an applicable federal standard. But, Congress did not directly
address the question as to the extent of state enforcement activity contemplated
under the 1966 Act; nor does S. 1214 or H.R. 4178 adequately address this question.
However, a further examination of the legislative history of Section 103{(d) indicates
that the section should be read narrowly, and that the states are entitled to play
a role in the motor vehicle safety area (and we assume the vehicle security area).
The evolution of the preemption section, from the original bill to the fina) Act,
jndicates that at each stage of the legislative process, Congress narrowed the
preemptive effect of the Act to the point where, instead of declaring the State
standard void where a Federal standard was promulgated, as in the original bill,
the sec%%gn was changed to allow concurrent State regulation of a non-conflicting

nature.”
Thus, the language which the Congress finally elected to use in Section

103(d) of the Act, would preserve to the States a significant role in the regulation
of motor vehicles and items of motor vehicle safety equipment, including enforcement
of identical Federal standards adopted by the States. For otherwise the section
would be meaningless; it would be ridiculous for a state to enact a law adopting

an identical Federal standard and then not be able to thereafter enforce that standard,

ll/g. 3005 and H.R, 13228; compare with 15 U.S.C. 1392(d); House Report, pp. 249-50;

77-78.
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that is, to give "it affect." No state would involve itself in such an exercise of

futility, nor could Congress have intended that it should.

Judicial Interpretation

There are very few Court cases on tae issue of preemption and, more
particularly, on the preemptive effect of Section 103(d) on state enforcement
programs.lg/ The Superlite cases have accounted for the majority of the 1itigation
over preemption under the Act. These cases arose as a result of several States
restraining the sale of Chrysler automobiles equipped with auxiliary headlamps.
Chrysler went to Court to enjoin the States from taking this action. Three United
States District Court decisions and two United States Court of Appeals decisions
vesulted from the 1itigation. The State of New Hampshire prevailed against
Chrys]er‘ll Chrysler prevailed at the District Court level in suits against
Vermontlﬂ/ and against New York.lé/ Chrysler's lower court victories were short-
lived as the Court of Appeals reversed the decisions.16

In the Superlite cases, Chrysler argued that, with the passage of the
Act, a1l State laws pertaining to the performance and equipment of new vehicles
became void. The corporation asserted that Section 103(d) applied only to used
vehicles. In the alternative, Chrysler argued that the State statutes were preempted
as regulating an “aspect of performance," covered by Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standard 108, the only Federal standard that deals with vehicle lighting. This
standard requires that vehicles carry equipment such as “headlamps,"* “parking 1ights,*

and "turn signal lamps."

lg/ﬁut see TSEL vs Kane, infra, pp. 10-11.

lg/Chr sler Corporation v. Rhodes, 294 F. Supp. 665 (1968), affirmed at 416 F. 2¢
319 (1st Cir., 1968,

lﬂ/chrysler Corporation v. Walloy, 294 F. Supp. 524 (1968).
1/ chruster corporation v. Tofany, 305 F. Supp. 971 (1969)
1§/Chrys1er Corporation v, Tofany, 419 F. 2d 499 (2nd Cir., 1969).
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The courts eventually rejected both Chrysler arguments. The Tofany
appellate court found that the plain Tanguage of secticn 103(d) and its legislative
history mandated that the provision be applied to new vehicles and that auxiliary
lamps were not covered within an “aspect of performance™ of standard 108. The
court noted that, where a State's police power is involved, preemption is not

presumed, and it stated that the interests of traffic safety dictated that

section 103(d) be construed narrowly. The court also relied on the Federal

Government's position that it never intended Standard 108 to deal with an aspect
17/

of performance of a light such as Superlite.”

An Administrative Interpretation

It is well settled that, citation of authority is unnecessary, that
administrative interpretations are to be given great weight with respect to laws which
are to be enforced by a particular agency.

In 1971 NHTEA Administrator, Douglas Toms, in an interpretation regarding
the 1imits on state enforcement procedures, stated:

It has been the position of this agency that the Act
permits the States to enforce the standards, independently
of the Federal enforcement effort, since otherwise there
would have been no reason for the Act to aliow the States
to have even "jdentical” standards. The question raised by
the ... petition is to what extent the States may utilize
an enforcement scheme t?g differs from the Federal one
established by the Act.

Toms continued by stating that the effective date of a standard is
established on the basis of the agency's judgement as to the length of time it
will take manufacturers to design and prepare to produce a vehicle or item of
equipment, and is not intended to allow time for obtaining governmental approval

after production begins. He further stated that:

1 The Nationat Highway Traffic Safety Administration argued, as amicus curiae, that
there was no preemption.

18/Federal Register, Volume 36, No. 106 (dune 2, 1971), pp. 10744-45.
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It is the position of this agency, therefore, that under

the Act and the regulatory scheme that has been established
by its authority a State may not regulate motor vehicles

or motor vehicle equipment, with respect to aspects of
performance covered by Federal standards, by requiring prior
State approval before sale or otherwise restricting the
manufacture, sale, or movement within the State of products
that conform to the standards.

However, Toms made it plain that the legislative history of the Act did

not offer specific guidance on the question, especially as it related to items of motor

vehicle equipment. Toms referred to statements made by Senator Magnuson which related
solely to the vehicle itself. Accordingly, at least from the foregoing, it is clear
that states would be prohibited from having an enforcement scheme that would impede the
free flow of commerce of pew vehicles. However, whether a state may have an enforce-
ment scheme, with respect to automotive parts and safety equipment, is another
question. But that question seems to have been answered in favor of state enforcement
by Toms when he stated that:

"This interpretation does not preclude State enforce-

ment of standards by other reasonable procedures that

do not impose undue burdens on the manufacturers, includ-

ing submission of products for approval within reasonable

time 1imits, as long as manufacturers are free to market

their products while the procedures are being followed,

as they are under the Federal scheme."20/

From AAMVA's perspective, a reasonable interpretation of the last-quoted
material would seem to make clear that a state could require products to be submitted
for approval for sale in a state, provided, the manufacturers are allowed to market
their products in that state while that state's enforcement procedures are being
implemented. If the state should find, during the course of enforcement implementation,
that the products submitted for approval do not meet Federal standards, then that
state could take appropriate action against the sale of that product in the state.
Obviously, the constitutional question of undue burden on commerce, way arise

where a state program may have an effect on interstate commerce.

19
__/Ibidv

29/ 1414, (Emphasis added)
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How the Issue Arose and AAMVA's Involvement

AAMVA has been designated as the Safety Equipment Approval Agent for 48
of the 50 States of the United States and seven Provinces of Canada. Under this
program, the Association will issue a Certificate of Approval in behalf of the
participating State or Province, to the manufacturers of safety devices, parts,
material, assemblies, or test equipment. The program is designed to save the
States, Provinces, and manufacturers time and money by offering a centralized
system of equipment approva]s.gl/ The program went into effect on January 1, 1967,
and had the support of industry at that time. However, subsequent to Mr. Toms®
interpretation of Section 103{d), in 1971, a segment of the automobile parts industry
took a different position. This segment of the industry took the position that the
1966 Act established a uniform Federal requlatory scheme and that this uniform
Federal regulatory scheme preempts state enforcement and prevents any independent,
parallel, or supplemental enforcement by the states. The uniform Federal regulatory
scheme; emphasized by this segment of the industry, is primarily that of self-
certification. In AAMVA's opinion, the self-certification scheme is of questionable
value, as the present Congressional hearings on the DC-10 certification process
indicate. Substantiation is unnecessary to support the statement that the Federal
bureaucracy is unable to adequately police a self-certification program, and this
holds fast whether it is the FAA or DOT. State enforcement schemes, whether pre-sale
approval, market auditing and retesting in the safety field (safety equipment and
not new vehicles) or junk and salvage enforcement in the vehicle security fi;;?, are

needed to complement the Federal scheme if national programs are to succeed.”

17 3
T AAMVA Manufacturer's Guide for Safety Equipment Services, attached as Exhibit 7.
gg-/There is no doubt that the Executive Branch comprehends the need for compiementary
state enforcement schemes of Federal standards. Stafies are presently assisting
in the national enforcement scheme of the Federal Hiyhway Administration, Bureau
of Motor Carriers Safety, with respect to the enforcement of truck weight standards.
It was recently proposed by the FHWA that states assist with enforcement of
Federal criteria as it relates to truck length and width. Modreover, Secretary
Schlesinger has recently announced that he would favor, upon request from the
states, their enforcement of certain DOE regulations.




151

Issue was joined in 1975 when a law suit was brought by the Truck Safety
Equipment Institute (TSEI) against the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.23 TSEI argued
that enforcement through a pre-sale approval program, such as that used by
Pennsylvania, is preempted by the Act. It reached this conclusion by arguing that
Congress intended that the Federal enforcement scheme is exclusive, that the Federal
regulatory scheme has been so pervasive that there is na room for supplemental State
regulation, that Congress intended that there be one set of criteria for manufacturers
to follow, and that the goals and objectives of the national safety program are
frustrated by Pennsylvania's pre-saie approval program.

Pennsylvania argued that Congress intended that the States participate
in promoting traffic safety, the primary purpose of the Act. The State also argued
that section 103(d) only prevents the States from adopting different standards than
those adopted by the Federal Government and dges not prevent the adoption of different
enforcement procedures,gﬂ/ especially when such procedures accomplish the goals and
objectives of the Act, '

In view of the TSEI case, it can be readily seen that the states are
concerned with the extent of their enforcement roles under S. 1214 and H.R. 4178.
Those motor vehicle administrators familiar with the TSEI case were of the opinion
that they were to play an active role in the enforcement of identical Federal
Motor Vehicle Safety Standards as they relate to automotive parts and equipment.
However, if the decision of the Pennsylvania case is ihdicative and does truly
express the intent of Congress, then the role of the states is meaningless as it
relates to their enactment of identical Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards, in
the automotive parts and equipment area, as well as, identical Federal Motor Vehicle

Security Standards.

23/75E1 v, Kane (MOPA, Sept. 20, 1976), attached as Exhibit 8.

24/75E1 v, Kane (3rd Cir., July 27, 1977), attached as Exhibit 9. TSEI v. Kane
(MDPA, Feb. 26, 1979), attached as Exhibit 10. ’

[
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As previously stated, and as indicated here, the Vehicle Theft Act of
1979 raises parallel and similar questions with respect to the extent of State
enforcement of identical Federal Motor Vehicle standards. We have had no .
definitive, judicial interpretations of section 103(d), and the one administrative
interpretation on the question at hand, to say the least, is somewhat conflicting.
Therefore, the question is rightfully befere the forum where it belongs, the u.s.
Congress, in view of the fact that the Congress will be once again addressing

section 103 of the Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966.

CONCLUSTON

AMMVA is of the opinion that the intent of Congress in 1966 was not to
bar the States from enforcing Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards under schemes
promulgated at the state level,

Congress could not have intended that a state stand idly by and permit
violations of Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards, which relate to auto parts
and safety equipment, adopted by the state, and wait for a Federal initiative in
order to preclude such activity from continuing where the state has an enforcement
program in plat:e.25 The states, as Congress is well aware, under their police
powers are obviously in the best position to protect the safety and welfare of
their citizens. Moreover, state regulatory schemes contemplated by AAMVA serve to
complement the Federal regulatory scheme which the Congress intended when it enacted
the Act.ﬁl

So that there is no further misunderstanding of Congressional intent, the
AAMVA respectfully requests that Section 103(d) of the Act and Section 203 in S. 1214
and H.R. 41/8 be amended as follows:

757
AAMVA Capital Report, March 14, 1979, attached as Exhibit 11.
26/ppMyA Bulletin, March 1979, op. 1, 7 (refer to Exhibit 4, attached).

T e

—

e T T

. ey
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Section 103(d)

"Whenever a Federal motor vehicle safety standard established
under this title is in effect, no State or political subdivision
of a State shall have any authority either to establish, or to
continue in effect, with respect to any motor vehicle or item

of motor vehicle equipment any safety standard appiicable to the
same aspact of performance of such vehicle or item of equipment
which is not identical to the Federal standard. Provided, however,
that a state may adopt identical Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards promulgated by the Secretary, and enforce those standards
to_the extent al%owedﬁﬁnder state law, 50 _Jong ds, such enforcement
does not frustrate the objectives aﬁaqurposes of this Act.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent the Federal
Government or the government of any State or political subdivision
thereof from establishing a safety requirement applicable to motor
vehicles or motor vehicle eguipment procured for its own use if
such requirement imposes a higher standard of performance than that
required to comply with the otherwise applicable Federal Standard."

Section 203

"Whenever there is in effect a Federal Motor Vehicle Security
Standard relating to a motor vehicle's starting system, the

locking system, the locking systems for the engine, passenger,

and trunk compartments, and component part identification
established under this title, no State or political subdivision

of a State shall have any authority to establish or to continue

in effect, with respect to any motor vehicle or motor vehicle

part, any security standard relating to those same systems which

is not identical to such federal standard. Provided, however, that
a_state may adopt identical Federal Motor Vehicle Security Standards
promulgated by the Secretary, and enforce those standards to_the
extent allowed under state Jaw, so long as, such enforcement does
not frustrate the objectives and purposes of this Act."

The added language would make plain that states can develop enforcement

programs and systems which are not necessarily jdentical to the Federal enforcement

programs, as Tong as, those programs and systems complement the Federal scheme of

accomplishing the purposes and cbjectives of the Act, and the proposed

27
"That Congress hereby declares that the purpose of this Act is to reduce traffic
?%giﬁents aqgggiaths and injuries to persons resulting from traffic accidents....”
.S.C.

68-093 0 ~ 80 - 11
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28/
Jegislation;  provided, however, that such state enforcement schemes do not

frustrate the Federal scheme . nor create an undue burden on interstate commerce.

iy

The purposes are to improve the standards for security devices for motor
vehieles; improve the jdentification numbering systems for motor vehicles and
their major components: increase the Federal criminal penalties for those persons
trafficking in stolen motor vehicles and their parts; and establish procedures
EoRregtlx;:g oppoggunities for exporting stolen motor vehicles. (S. 1214 and

.R. s P

2—9/Go1dste1n v. California, 93 S.Ct. 2303 (1973). Compare C.F. Jones v. Rath
Packing (0., 97 S.Ct. 1305 (1977). (Attached as Exhibit 12).

30/ paymond Motor Transportation, Inc., v. Rice, 53 L.Ed.2d 664 (Feb. 21, 1978},

ey g,
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FACT SHEET

-American Association

©
Motor Vehicie Administrators

A tax exempt, nonprofit organlization

Tha AAMVA is an internatlonal assoclation. lts member
juriedictions are the 50 Unitad States, the District of
Columbia and Puarto Rice, the 10 Canadian provinces,
and the Yukon and Northwest Terrltorles,

Aciive Mambership:

The active membaership of the Asscciation consists of
tha motor vehicle and traffic law enforcement adminls-
trators of the member jurisdictions, who are the voting
members; and other -governmental represontatives
serving In simitar capacities with the United States and
Canadian federal governments, who are not voting
members,

Assoclate Mombaershlp:

harah I
8

p to

associations, and businass enterprises with Interests
that are mutual to, or compatible with, the AAMVA and
its programming objectives, as wa!l &8 to Individuals
under limited, p d cir A |
members mustsubmit an application and be elected to
membership by the AAMVA Board of Diractors.
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Ths American Association of Motor Vehicle Ad-
ministrators Is a voluntary, nonprofit, tax exempt,
educational organization of state and provincial
officials in the United States and Canada, respon-
sible for the administration and enforcement of
laws pertalning to the motor vehicle and its use. it
was foundad In 1933,

The AAMVA's score of operation encompasses
all 50 states, the District of Columbla and Puerto
Rico, the 10 Canadlan provinces, and the Yukon
and Northwaest Territories. Its principal endsavors
are addressed to:

~Model program development in disciplines re-
lating to motor vehicle adminlstration, police
traffic services and highway safety;

—Searving as an Information clearinghouse for
thesa same disciplines;

—Searving s the singular spokesman for these
Interests.

The A lation’s program P reci-
proclty between and among states and provinces,
as well as liaison with other lavels of government
and the private sector. its program development
and ressarch activities provide guldelines for
more effactive publlc service.
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[s] iati anterprisas
with assoclate membership are entltled to recelve the
same beneflts and privilegea as active bers, ex-
capt they are not entitled to vote on AAMVA legislative
matters  (l.e—r { and
other policy mattera).

Honorary Membership:

There are two types of honorary membership in the
Assoclatlon:

~Former active membera,

~—Those who have been alected, as tha result of out-
standing contributlons In the field of highway safety
and/or motor vehicle administration. Such members
are elected at the Annual Intsrrational Conference.

Honorary membership Is for life. Honorary members
have the privilege of taking part In diacusslons and
serving on committesa but cannot vote.



“The Assoclation seeks to achleve its objectives by pro-
viding internatlonal leadership in matters related to the
admin(stration and enforcement of laws pertaining to
the motor vehicle and its use.

Assoclation Dificers:

The AAMVA's member |urisdictions annuslly slect &
Prestdent, Firstand Second Vice President, and & Sec-
retary from among the active membership. The Execu-
tlve Director s the chief executive and operating officer
of the Associatlon and administers the prog 9
activities of the professional staff, He aiso servos as ex
officlo Treasurer of the Association.

Board ot Directors:

The governing body of the AAMVA is its Board of Direc-
tors. The Board consists of ths officars, thtes tmmadi-
ate Past Pr and three bars tfrom each of
the four geographlcal regions of the Association. The
Board may, in the execution of the powsrs granted,
dalI:gate certaln of its authority to an Exacutive Com-
mittee.
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Execuilve Commitiee:

TheExscutive Committee conslsts of the aiticarsofthe

A {ation and th fate Past Presid The
Exacutive Committes may act [n place, and fnstead of,
the Board ot D b Board ings on alt
matters, except those specifically reserved to the
Board by the Bylaws,

However, actions of the Exscutive Sommittes must be
reported 1o the Board for ratification, Tha Executive
Committee serves as an ex officio Budget and Finance
Commities of the Assoclation,




The A iation's professl stafi s P of
both goneralists and speclallsts with expertise In the
various aspects of motor vehicte adminlstration and
highway satety,

Executive Staff:

The executive staff, headed by the Executlve Director,
ts based at the international headquarters, 1201 Con-
necticut Avenus, N.W., Sulte 810, Washington, D.C.

6,

Among the specific staff services avatlable from the
AAMVA are advice and counsel in various lacets of
driver services, vehicle sarvices, safety equipment ser-
vices, commerclal motor carrier activitles, including
Inter-state t:,nd provinclal reciprocity, and program
planning an !

Reglonal Staff:

The A iation also a fiald staff, posed
of four Reglonal Directors, situated in verious geo-
graphical reglons, to pravide regutar ilaison and ser-
vices ta indivi states and provil The four
AAMVA reglons ars;
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Reglon I: Conslsting of states and provinces in the
northeastern United States and eastern Canada. It In-
cludes Connacticut, Delaware, the District of Colum-
bia, Maine, Maryland, M NewH hire,
New Jarsey, New York, Pennsylvania, Rhode island,
Vermont; and the provinces of New Brunswick, New-
foundiand, Nova Scotia, Ontario, Prince Edward [s-
land, and Quebec,

Reglon {l: Consisting of tho satates In the southern
United States. it Includes Alabama, Arkansas, Florida,
Georgla, Louisl I ipgi, North Caro-
lina, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Vir-
glnia, Wast Virginia, and Puerto Rico.

Region ill: Conglsting of the states In the midwestern
United Statss, It Includes Wlinols, indiana, lowa, Kan-
sas, M Miasourl, North
Dakota, Ohio, South Dakota, and Wisconsin,

ReglonIV: Consisting of the states and provinces in the
western United States and western Canada. it includes
Alaska, Arizena, Callfornia, Colorado, Hawall, Idaho,
Montana, Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon, Utah, Wash-
ington, Wyoming; and the provinces of Alberta, British
C | katch. and tha North-

west and Yukon Territories.
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The foundation of the AAMVA is Its committee strue-
ture. State and provincial motor vehicle and traffic
enforcement otticials, edministaring laws-relatedto the
motor vehlcle and Its use, are concernad with a broad
range of activities,

ntis vested Inits

Most A .-(- develop

nine Each

consisls ofa Chairmnn Vlce—Cha\rrnan and hom 12 '\ln
20 by the
AAMVA Prosldem, with an equat numberof represenw-
tives on each from each of the

tour regions,

‘I’he Slunding Committees also provide forums for con-

g of issues of p fm-
ponance to me MMVA and lts members, Noarly ail of
the Standing Committees have an annual meeting in
conjunction with the Annual International Conferencs,
and most also sponsor elther annual or periodic work-
shops,

The Standing C ) and the.workshop i
which thay apunsar are:

~~Driver Licansing and Control Committee: Sponsors
an annual Driver License Workshop.

—Engineering and Vehicle Inspection Commiites:
S'?onsors an annual Engineering/Inspection Work-
shop.

~Finsncls! R Ibllity C Periodi

sponcors.a Fil Responsibility W hop
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—Legal Atfairs Committes: Sponsors the annual Insti-
tuta on Motor Veh!tle and Traffic Laws, addressed to
curront major legal issues In motor vehicle adminfs-
tration, police tratfic services, and hlghway safoty,

—WHotor Vehicie In 1
Sponsors an annual Metor Vehicle Informallon Sys-
tems Workshop.

—Police Tratfic Services COmmm Mests annunllyat

the Reglona! and Internatlonal C:

—Publlc Affairs C P y ap a
Publi¢ Information Semlnar‘
B and Title ) 8 &n an-
nual Registration/Titls Workshop.

~—Vehicfe Reclprocity and internstl
Pian Commiitee: S an annual Roclp 7
{RP Workshop.

Assoclation “Leglslative Process™:

The Standing Committee structure Is utilized to pro-
cess many AAMVA “legisiative™ matters {l.e.—resolu~
tions, recommendations, and other policy Initlatives).
Such matters usually are initiated at one of the interns-
tional ksh Upon by the work-
shop, the matier is passad along to the Assoclallon s
four Regional Conféerences for review, comment and
possibla concurrence. The matter then is forwarded to
the Annual International Gonference. At this session,
tha St C ittea which originated tha mattar
raviews it for technlcal soundness, The AAMVA Board
of Directors reviaws it for policy cunsistency, prior to
submitting it to the general membarship for consider-
ation, if the matter i3 approved by the general member-
ship, It becomas a part of the AAMVA's Policy and
Position Statements.

in addition to the nine Standing Commiitees, the
AAMVA currently serves as sponaor for sevaral other
long range projects, via spacial committess,




The AAMVA has what s, perhaps, the broadest man-
date of any International association concerned with
the motor vehicle and its use. The Association—by
virtue of the mandates of its constituency—is in con-
stant consultatlon with faderal and state executive and

ation

9 P regarding
and implementation of tha two fandmark pleces of
{ederal safety ) { d by the Cong! In

1966: The Highway Salety Act, basis for the uniform
National Highway Safety Program Standards; and the
companion National Motor Vehicle and Trafiic Safety
Act, which relates almost exclusively to vehiclas and
safoty equipment,

‘The areas of program discipline encompassed by
AAMVA members has lad to an ever broadening inter-
est in activities of the Cong This | des clean alr
and other ecology-refated legislation, and its interac-
tion with energy proposals, It also includes privacy
lagisiation and its interaction with freedom of informa-
tion pravisions on data bases and thelr use, as well as
consumar profuct safety legislation (re: bicycle regu-
lations).

Besldes sarving as the spokesman for the Associa.
tion's state and provincial member-jurisdictions in liai-
son with other public and private Interest groups, an-
other priotity goal of the AAMVA is service to member
agencles. It is aimed at providing the capabliity to be
responsive to the needs of the highway user,

Driver Services:

The AAMVA has been the leader In program develop-
ment related to driver ticensing and control, Its most
recent effort, g for Driver Li lon," is a

tralning program to assist license examiners in identi-
fying signs and symptoms of medical conditions—
physicat and emotional~—that may inhibit an individ-
ual's ability to drive safely, Developed jointly with the
American Madical Association, with production fi-
nanced by a grant from the National Highway Traffic
Safety Administration, it consists of a comprehensive
training manual and accompanying audio/visual lec-
tures by noted physicians.

The A eriodically davelops a paratl
data study on adminlstration and operations of driver
license and control processes in state and provinciat
agencies, A study was recantly completed. A spaclal
section of this study was addressed to administration
of financial security laws, and its costs ware underwrit-
ten by the auto casually insurance Industry, The
AAMVA ding Ci on Driver L} Iing and
Control also Is working on another study with two
major objectl: Devel f guid fora
mode! classitied driver licensing system; and (2) Deve!-
opment and documentation of procedures for further
Identitying problem drivers, A special AAMVA Modal
Driver Standards Committee atso is working toward
updating and combining two books, Driver License
Administrator's Guide to Driver Improvement, and
Testing Drivers: a Manual for Driver License Examiners
and Administrators, These are among the most popular
cotlaga level texts on tha subject of driver license ad-
ministration,

Vohicle Services:

The Association also has been a prominent ieader in
vehlcte services programming. One of the principal

o has been to d P ofa
uniform Vehicle |dentification Number (VIN} system,
capable of providing a unique identifler for each motor
vehicie. Such a VIN system has numerous applications,
I i duction of ding errors, simplification
of data processing programs and procedures, recall
programs, accidant Investigation studles, vehicle anti-
theft programs, as well as other vehlcle registration/
title and inspection programs. In a commentary to the
NHTSA, all states and provinces have endorsed the
concept contained in the system developed by the




Vehicle Services: (Continusd ...}
Two other major projects are being developed via
p hip of Amerlcan National dards Instltute
[ANSH) committees, They are the D-19 project, ad-
dressed to d p of Model Regl lon and
Certificate of Ownership Procedures; and the D-20
projact, aimed. at developing a States' Model Motorist
Data Bass, The AAMVA Standing Committes on Regls-
tration/Title Ig 8ls0 working on a study vo determine the
feasibllity of developing unlform policies and proce-
dures for of d on a vehl-
cle's titie.

One of the Associatlon’s largest current programs is
the internationai Registration Plan (JRP). The IRP is an

. agresment governing the administration of regisira-

tlon teas for commerclal motor carriers operating on
an Inter-jurisdictional basls, it provi for propor-
tional payment of fees, based on actual fieat milss
traveied in each IRP Jurisdiction.

‘Tha especially unique feature of the IRP is that, among

ignatories, ragistration ls requirsd only in the fleet's
base jurisdictlon, and only one registration plate and
one cab card is issued for each vehlcle registered un-
dar the Plan,

Safety Equipment Sorvices:

The AAMVA's Safety Equipinant Services Program was
created o provide a central authority and uniform pro-
cedure for pi ing app for safety equlp

- commonly used in the operation of a motor vehicla. it

complemeants the Fedaral Motor Vehlcle Safaty Stan-
dards program at the state and provinclal level, and
assists. in assuring the consumer/purchaser that re-
placemant aafely equipment meets standards. Also, it
has saved vast amounts of time and paperwork for state
and p i les and i 1

ers.
in ion to the approvals’ function, this program
slso includas lab ditation for ail {acilities

submitting test ropom'to the AAMVA, which accom-
pany the items and devices for approval. it also pro-

vides limited retall market audit and retesting of se-
lected items and devices that previously have bear
cortltied, In order to ensure on-going quality control,
The AAMVA publishes the Approved Devices Hand-
book, which cantalns the name and a complete tachni-
cal description of aach item or device certified during
the previous five years,

This program area also
to motar vehicle Inspection, g §p p
the ANS! D-7 activitlss on Insp , and

annually of the Motor Vehicle inspoction Handbook, in

cooperallo.rlm_t\lvlm the Motor Vehlcie Manufacturers As-
e Standing

matters relatad
hip of

.3 ] on o
and Vehlcle Inspection currently is woiking on a proj-
act, under the auspices of a fedaral grant, to develop a
uniferm guideline of motor vehicia equipment which
should be inspected on a periodic basis,

Administrative Services:

The Assacl ‘s ve staff includes speciali
with particular expertise in program planning and sys-
tems devalopment, fegal affairs, and public affalrs, to
provide support in various aspects of programming
endeavor, as well as to malntain speclfic capabllity to
provide resp to inquiries for Inf in these
areas,

Assoclation Conferences:

The A fati G g an Apnual internati
Conlarence, traditionally held in the fall in a major
metrcpolltan area. It brings together chisf administra-
tors and key siaft personnel 1o discuss major issuss
affacting motor vehicle administration, and to formu-
late tentative solutions. Each of the AAMVA's four re-
glons also annually sponser a Regional Conterence.
These traditionally are hald in the spring and early
summoer,
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The AAMVA malntalns a serles of regular publications
In order to maintain a close link of communication with
i + fes of

8. The two prl hi
tion are:
—~The AAMVA A12-page y
which (s add to maler trends In

P g
state and provinclal motor vehicle and tratfic law
enforcemont agencies, as well as other aspacts of
the motor vehiclo and its use. it also includes legal
trends in a regular monthly feature, “Motor Vehlcle
Law Review"; and major executive changes in the
membership in another feature, “Among Ourseives,"

—Tha Capital Report: An executive summary for the
chlaf n the A 1 ber Ju.

s -
risdictions, which Is addressad to davelopmants in
the Congress, the department 1es of
the fadera! government, and state and provincial
programming trends. It also Includes AAMVA pro-
gram activities,

Other A fath lieationa Incitid

~~The AAMVA Parsonnel Directory of Membar Jurla-
dictions: A directory contalning the names, ad-
dresses, titles and telephone numbers of the chief
administrators In the AAMVA's member-jurisdic-
tions, as well as those administering major program-
ming within these |

—AAMVA Policy and Position Statemants: A digest of
the various policies and positions that have baen
dopled bythe A { general b

p
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—Confarance Proceedings: .\ digest of the major

peaches and ing activities that tran-
spire at the Annua! International Confarence. It also
Includes texts of the varlous resolutions and racom-
mendations adopted, as wall as a lepisiative higtory
of each of theresolutions that were idi atthe
Conference general business sessiven,

App! Devices Handhook: An annual volume
that contains the name and complete technical de-
scription of each item, device or component certified
by the AAMVA's Safety Equipment Services Program
during the previous five years,

A | Report: Asynopsis of the ‘s major
programming endeavors during a given year,

—Vahicle Inapection Handbook: An annual volume,
published in cooperation with the Motor Vehicle
¥ raaery ‘Associatl dd. d to proper

tachnique for performing the varlous tasks com-

monly associated with motor vehicle Inspection,

—AAMVA Fact Sheet: A publication designed to pro-
vide a thumbnall sketch of the Asseclation, its goals
and objactl T

and its prog
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* To promote reasonable and uniform laws and regu-
lations-governing the registration, certification of
ownership, safaty equipment and operation.of motar
vehicles, and the issuance of motor vohlcle drivar's

Heenses,

® Toassistinp ing higt safety prog

® Yo assistinp Ing st and uniforn
uyln ices and d Inthe ent of

motor vehicle and tratiic faws,

To promote the enactment of laws permitting com-
plete reciprocity; the apporti of clal
vehiclo registration, under the basing pelint syatam,
and other comparable systems of registration; and
topl acloser relationship emong and b

the states, the District of Columbia, the previnces of
Canada, Mexico and other American countries in all
v}\attors pertaining to motor vehicles and thelr opera-
tion.

To promote and d and |t
studles of the causes of traific accidents for the

«purpose of developing ways and means for the pre-
vention of such accidents,

To conduct traffic and transport studies In search of
Infosmation which may be of use in the development
of traffic contro! standards,

To cooperate in avary way possible with all govern-
mental agencies and Interested private sector orga-
nizations In studles relating to safe, economical and
expeditious highway transportation,

To provide continuing encouragement and support
for the efticient and effestive adminlstration of finan-
cial responsibifity, financial securlty, and related
laws,

To promote closer personal contacts between mem-
bers cf the AAMVA for axchange of Informatlon and
solutions to mutuat problams,

To promote and encouraga continuing programs of
education and training of employees of AAMVA
mamber-Jurisdictions, as they relate to the programs
and goals of the Assoclation,

To provide acvisory and consultant services to mem-
-bars in the org and reor on of var-
lous atate and provincial agency functions; on pro-
posed legisiation; to provide assistance or Instruc-
tion for new officials concerning the duties and re-
sponsibiiliies in the administration and enforcement
of lawa pertaining to the motor vehicle and its usa,

163

k]

Message from the 4
Executive Ditactor

The AAMVA's primary
endeavor Is addressed
to providing programs
> and services that are
¥ responsive to the
=1 needs of state and pro-
5 vinclal agencies com-
Phe ¥4 posing its member-

m i Ship. It seeks to speak
4 and act, on bshalf of
these state and provin-
clal members, in com-

{ and individuals
who share our programming interests. In addi-
tlon, our Assoclation seeks to forge a viabla state/
federal “partnership” In our relationships with
our counterparts in tha federal government. The
AAMVA salso seeks to develop a similar partner-
ship with organizations in the private sactor that
share our goals and oblectives,

g wit

As the result of these actlvities, our Association
has & substantial role in ensuting the safest and
most efficlent highway transportation system
possible in each state and province, helping to
protect the lives and property of the highway
users, whom we serve.

- Donald J. Bardell
Executive Dirsctor
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The Executive Director

By Donald J. Bardell

Vehicle theft has long been one of the most perplexing pichlems related to motor
vehicle administration. It presents a vast array of problems for state and provincial
offxcnals responsible for the administration and enforcement of raotor vehicle and traffic

PR % laws, and their counterparts at the loczl levels.
o Vehxcle theft also poses a mmxlarly vexing set of problems
., for prosecutors, jurists, and many in the private sector, as well
as to the individual victims among the general public, who
- suffer substantial economic losses and the loss of their prime
-~ source of mobility.
‘ The economic impact of vehicle theft in the United States
is staggering. One major auto casualty insurance association
-~ has estimated that the industry-wide losses from vehicle theft
w’- in this country approach $4.1-billion annually!
Furthermore, the problems appear to be rapidly escala-
hng—-pamcularly in the area of professional thxevery, where
the stakes are hlgh and the possibilities for immensely profitable theft ring operations
actually exist.

Heretofore, a vast majority of the emphasis in anti-theft efforts has been addressed to
apprehension and prosecution. There have been a few programs targeted toward pre-
ventive remedies, but most have stressed catching and prosecuting thieves—after a ve-
hicle has actually been stolen, Even today, there are many calling for more laws and
more stringent penalties as potentizl deterrents to those who might be inclined to steal a
vehicle.

However, there are & growing number in our profession who believe that we currently
have laws that are adequate for achieving our enforcement and prosecution objectives,
with respect to vehicle theft problems, These individuals are firnnly convinced that there
are real limits to which after-the-fact remedies can usefully be pursued in preventiny
vehicle theft,

Many among the AAMVA’s membcrship believe that substantially greater mroads can
be made in ameliorating the growing number of vehicle theft problems—especially as
they relate to “professional” theft operations—by tightening the administrative controls
that pertain to proof of ownership of a motor vehicle. These administrative controls
stress prevention of the theft before it occurs, in contrast to apprehension and prose-
cution after-the-fact,

By tightening these administrative controls, motor vehicle administrators can make it
significantly more difficult for the professional auto thisf to operate. These controls can
make it tougher for representatives of theft rings to successfully obtain false documents
that make them appear to be the legitimate owners of vehicles that have been stolen.

These tighter controls over proof of vehicle ownership—from the time that a vehicle
rolls off the assembly line until it is either salvaged, dismantled or consigned to the
shredder—also can be helpful in reducing other avenues of fraud, on which the profes-
sional theft rings have relied heavily,

The AAMVA already has taken several significant steps toward formulating more
effective administrative controls for motor vehicles. Pursuant to a pair of 1978 Annual
International Conference resolutions, our Association is well along the way to develop-
ing security features for the Manufacturers Certificate of Origin—a vehicle’s *birth
certificate,” We also have several years of AAMVA staff time and resources invested in
the development of a unique Vehicle Identification Number—one that will provide a
competent identificr for a vehicle throughout its useful life,

Development of security features for the MCO and our effort toward formulating a
competent VIN are but two items on a lengthy agenda of possible administrative con-
trols that might be successfully applied toward the prevention of vehicle tiieft. Other
potential alternatives include: security features for titles, including return of titles in-
volving inter-jurisdictional transfers; precise controls for transfer of ownership between
such entities as the manufacturer, transporter, dealer, purchaser, body shop operator
and dismantler; specific salvage title procedures; and audit procedures for shredders to
follow once the vehicle has lost its identity. This list is, by no means, all inclusive, but it
touches on some of the major areas that logically should be considered.

State and provincial motor vehicle administrators are presented with a unique op-
portunity to make a substantial contribution toward vehicle theft prevention, via
tightening of the administrative controls pertaining to proof of vehicle ownership. Let
us unite, through our Association, to successfully meet the chatlenge that is before us.
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‘AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF MOTOR VEHICLE ADMINISTRATORS

.

\l‘ An Association of State and Provincial Otficiala Responsible

1or the Adminstration and Enforcement of Motor Vehicle
and Traffic Laws in the United States and Canada,

—

2u, ‘CONNEC‘HCUT AVE,, NW,, SU.TE 810 + WASH NGTON, D.C, 20038 » TELEPHONE 202/206-1955

An Qutline of
Motor Vehicle Administrative Controls
Designed to Prevent Vehicle Theft

Vehicle theft has long been a major national problem. It presents a
vast array of problems for state and provincial officials responsible for the
administration and enforcement of motor vehicle and traffic laws, and their counter-
parts at the local lTevels. It poses a similarly vexing set of problems for
prosecutors, jurists, and many {n the private sector--inciuding the automobile
insurance industry--as well as the individual victims among the general pubiic,
who usually suffer substantial economic Toss and often lose their prime source of
mobility. Furthermore, the economic Josses suffered by the general public also
impact dramatically on insurance companies.

Vehicle Theft: A
Change In Perspective

The national perspective on vehicle theft has undergone a metamarphic
change in recent years. It was aptly described by I11inofs Senator Charles Percy
while introducing an anti-theft bi11" (S 16358) in the 95th Congress.

In years past, people thought of the crime of vehicle theft in terms
of teenagers hot-wiring a car and cruising down the nearest Interstate Highway until
the car ran out of gas, Senator Percy noted. In this scenario, the teenagers then
sbandoned the car and hitched a ride home--often before their parents discovered
they were gone. The car was recovered, and retumed to the re feved owner the next
day, he explained.

However, he continued, few Americans realize that the crime of vehicle
theft is no longer just a lark. The recaicitrant youth, interested in thrills,
is being quickly replaced by the streetwise criminal, who sees the opportunity to
make big money at a comparatively low risk. The stolen car s not recovered the
next day: In fact, it is never seen again! Upward of %4-b111ion are lost by the
consumer and taxpayer in stolen cars and efforts annually. :

Furthermore, the 111inois Senator continued, much of the losses wind-up
as unreported profits, pocketed by organized crime; and 1ike all of organized
crime's profits today, these moneys are then being used to buy into legitimate
businesses, as well as to finance insidious narcotics, prostitution, and gambling
operations.
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One of the reasons for this significant change in the crime of vehicle
theft 1s the emergence of the "steal-to-order" auto parts racket. The Federal
Bureau of Investigation has said this nationwide operation is “the most lucrative,
i1legitimate business today." Both the Department of Justice and automobiie
insurance industry sources estimate that the national cost for vehicle theft today

is upwards of $4-billion annually.

“With stakes so high, it 1s no wonder that organized crime {s viciously
fighting among its own ranks for the lion's share of the profits," Senator Percy
reasoned. The impact on the consumer alse is overwhelming. One car is being
stolen every 32 seconds in the United States; and auto theft coverage fs sky-
rocketing nationally. s

Because of the growing import of vehicle theft problems, the Secretary
of Transportation moved--in early 1575--to formulate a Federal Interagency Comnittee
on Auto Theft Prevention. The general charge to this task force was to study
auto theft and develop a plan to reduce vehicle theft losses by 50 percent in five
years, In addition to DOT, there were representatives from the Office of Management
and Budget, the Departments of Justice, State, Treasury, snd Cormerce, as well as
officials from the FBI, National Highway Traffic Safety Administratiocn, and
Bureaus of Census and Customs.

One of the initial actions of the Interagency Committee was aimed at
stopping the exportation, by ship, ot stolen vehicles. This was accomplished under
rulemaking authority of the Department of Commerce, by requiring the filing, 48
hours prior to sailing, of manifests that contain used automobiles. The manifests
must include a complete description of the vehicles to be exported, including a
vehicle identification number (VIN), The manifests are to be checked by Customs
against stolen vehicle listings, provided by the National Crime Information Center
(NCIC). Plans are currently underway to expand this program to address stolen
vehicles being driven out of the United States. Since an estimated 10 percent of
the stolen vehicles now are moved out of this country by ship or overland, these
procedures promise some potential impact on the vehicle theft problem.

A report by the Interagency Task Force also was the basis for proposed
Tegislation in the 95th Congress known as the “Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention
Act." Senators Joseph Biden, Delaware; Percy, I11inois; and Strom Thurmond, South
Carolina; were the to-sponsors of the Senate version (S 16358), and Rep. Willfam
S. Green, New York, was the sponsor in the House of Representatives (HR 14252).
Both of these companion bills died at the close of the 95th Congress, in 1978.

This legislation would have provided for installation of more secure lock-
ing systems on vehicles by the manufacturers, and placement of VINs on all principal
body parts. _However, a major thrust of this proposed legislation was toward punitive
penalties, thcluding forbidding alteration of the VIN ($5,000 fine or S-year im-
prisonment, or bothg. forbidding operation of a "chop shop" ($25,000 fine or 10-ysar
imprisonment, or both), and prohibiting the sale or advertisement of devices used to
break {into vehicles.

Another outgrowth of the Interagency Committee's activities was the
suggestion that the National Committee on Uniform Traffic Laws and Ordinances
incorporate numerous anti-theft teiented changes into the Uniform Vehicle Code.
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Due principally to the long lead time necessary in developing the
consensus necessary to amend the Uniform Vehicle Code, State Senator John Caemmerer,
Chairman of the New York State Legislature's Joint Committee on Transportation,
sponsored a National Workshop on Auto Theft Prevention. The workshop, funded by a
?rant from the Law Enforcement Assistance Administration, was hald October 3-5,

978, in New York City.

There was something less than unanimity among the participants in the
Hew York City workshop as to what steps should be taken to effectively address
the vehicle theft problem. There was considerable discussion concerning the
possibility of increasing the penalty for vehicle theft to that of a Class 1 crime,
minimum sentences, and possible prosecution under the racketeering influenced and
corrupt organizations (RICO) statute. However, there was & seemingly distinct
consensus--particularly smong the attorneys and other prosecutors present--that we
do not need either more laws, or tougher penalties for vehicle theft.

These prosecutors maintained that they have neither the manpower, time,
money, energy, nor judicial backing to aggressively prosecute those charged with
vehicle theft., They:further. maintained that their offices currently could rot
effectively handle the~prosecution of the violent crimes perpetrated todsy, and even
if they could, the prisons could not possibly accommodate a1l of those convicted.
Since the trend has been away-from aggressively prosecuting vehicle thieves, to
date, 1t appears that tougher laws:.and tougher panalties would not elicit the
desired objective, with respect to the vehicle theft problem.

There also are a growing number of motor vehicle and traffic law
enforcement administrators who belfeve that we currently have laws that are adequate
for achieving our enforcement and prosecution objectives, with respect to vehicle
theft. These individuals are firmly convinced that there are real 1imits to which
after-the-fact remedies can usefully be pursved in preventing vehicle theft.

Vehicle Theft Prevention
ew Approac

‘The AAMVA feels that the metamorphosis that vehicle theft is undergoing
warrants & thorough examinatfon of our objectives with respect to the problem,
and a new approach to ameliorating the situation. Heretofore, & vast majority of
the emphasis fn-anti-theft efforts has been addressed to apprehension and prosecu-
tion. remedies, but most:have stressed catching and prosecuting thieves--after

- vehicles have actually been stolen. Even.today; thers are some calling for wore

Yaws and more stringent penalties as potentfal-deterrents to those who might be
{nclined .to steal a vehicle.

~ Many among theAAMVA's membership believe thet substantially greater
{nroads can be made in ameljorating the growing number of vehicle theft problems--
especially as they relate to "professiona)™ theft operations--by tightening the
administrative controls that pertain to proof of ownership of & motor vehicle.
These adminfstrative controls stress pravention of the theft before it occurs, in
tontrast to apprehension of the thief, after-the-fact, and Jmposing punitive penal-

ties.
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By tightening these administrative controls, motor vehicle administrators
can. make it significantly more difficult for the professional vehicle theft ring
to operate. These controls can make it sfgnificantly tougher for these elements of
organized crime to successfully obtain false documents that make them appear to be
the legitimate owners of vehicles that have been stolen.

These tighter controls over proof of vehicle ownership--from the time
that a vehicle rol?s of f the manufacturer's assembly 1ine until it {s either salvaged,
dismantled or consigned to the shredder--also can be helpful in reducing other
avenues of fraud, on which the professional theft rings have come to rely heavily.

Administrative Controls
To Prevent vehicle Theft

Programs to reduce vehicle theft have become 2 high priority of the ARMVA.

The Association's Standing Committee on Registration, Title, Vehicle Dealers an: ‘
i the focal point for formulating these programs. In anticipatic

gg“g{?ftggsgfo;mggt?ethe scgpe agd Jurisdiction of tgis comn?ttge was expange s?g-
nificantly in mid-1877, to include dealer and manufacturer activities. This was
done primarily to provide a forum for addressing strengthened administrative controls
throughout the useful 1ife of a vehicle--from the time that it rolls off the assemb;y
line at the manufacturer's plant until {t {s salvaged, dismantled or consigned to the
shredder.

The AAMVA already has taken several significant steps toward formulating
more effective administrative controls for motor vehicles. Pursuant to two 1978
AAMVA Annual International Conference resolutions, the Association is well along
the way to developing security features for the Manufacturers Certificate of Origin
(MCD)--a vehicle's "birth certificate." Heretofore, MCO's have differed by manu-
facturer. Since it has been relatively easy to reproduce an MCO on a competent
photostetic copier, it had not required a great deal of ingenuity on the part of a
would-be vehicle thief to convert a falsified MCO, to an apparently legitimate title,
to an economic loss for both the vehicle owner and his fnsurance company--all without
2 significant opportunity for recovery of the stolen vehicle,

The Association also has several years of staff time and resources invested
in the development of a Vehicle Identification Number (VIN)--one that will provide 2
ggmpetegti g?}que identifier for each vehicle fn the universa) population throughout
s usefu e, .

ThE motor vehicle administrators’ principal interest in the VIN is related
to standardization, and the facility that it can lend to recordkeeping in their re-
spective agency files. The AAMVA and its members have long favored a VIN that in-
cludes in its attributes a fixed-length and fixed-fields, with the coding within the
fixed €ields standardized. Such a system {5 conducive to substantially greater admin-
istrative control, including easy detection of transcriptfon errars, thereby ensuring
greater integrity for the vehicle agenty's VIN file. State law enforcement officials
also have a substantial interest in a reliable VIN system for precisely fdentifying
vehicles that they have stopped. This {s particularly important in apprehending stoler
vehicles, where an erroneously transcribed VIR would prevent the officer from iden-
tifying such a vehicle.




169

The VIN is a critical requisite for successfully developing & comprehensive
Vehicle History Record (VHR), since the VIN provides the unique {dentifier for tying
transactions together. The AAMVA envisions that the VHR will contain substantially
more information about a vehicle than efther the MCO or the VIN. Therefore, the
Vehicle History Record can provide the framework for tracing the sequance of transfers
of a vehicle throughout fts tife: from manufacturer to transporter, from transporter
to dealer, from dealer to the original owner and any subsequent owners, until the
vehicle s legally conveyed to the individual or organization that will preside over
salvaging, dismantling, or scrapping operations. The Association feels that the VHR
will provide an integral element in effectively tightening administrative controls
over motor vehicles, thereby making it significantly easier to spot {rregular trans-
actions in the chain of ownership, and to identify potential stolen vehjcles.

Subsequent to utilizing a secure MCO to convey legal possession from the
manufacturer to the vehicle's original owner, a strong, uniform title system becomes
the next critical element in stifling professional vehicle theft operations.

The AAMVA via {ts D19,4 Subcommittee on Forms, working in cooperating with
the Registration, Title, Vehicle Dealers and Manufacturers Committee, has vecently
developed a standardfzed title format., However, the challenge that now remains is to
formulate a uniform procedure for maintaining control of the title system from the
time of initial {ssue to a vehicle's original owner, through all subsequent legal
owners, until the time of fts final retirement.

) In order to augment the administrative controls inherent in the title
system, it would be desirable to perform a physical inspection and verification
of the VIN at the time of transfer of ownership-~particularly in transactions in-
volving 2 transfer from one jurisdiction to another, provided funding sources could
be 1dentified for a program of this nature. In addition, the Association plans to
examine the cost-effectiveness of recommending that the states and provinces {nitiate
a]pzogra$ to return titles to the original issuing jurisdiction on {inter-jurisdiction-
al transfers.

As an older vehicle moves toward obsolescence, there are other consideratior
in 2 comprehensive scheme of administratfve controls that become important. Some of
the AAMVA's membership feels that a salvage title law would be desirable, both to
maintain administrative control over {1legitimate operators, seeking to fence stolen
vehicles and parts, while simultaneously protecting legitimate dismantling and re-
cycling operations. VIN markings for major component parts of vehicles also has
been widely advocated as another means of coping with rapidly growing incidence of
sale of parts from stolen vehicles, The cost-effectiveness of both of these programm-
ing alternatives will be explored in the context of developing a comprehensive anti-
theft program.

A:Qpecific procedure for VIN plate replacement, periodic inspection of
salvage operations, and a system for uniform disposition of VIN plates of scrapped

. vehicles are other programming components that bear the scrutiny of the AAMVA in

the formulation of an anti-theft program. Also, 1t has been recommended that the
Association examine the possibility of developing audit procedures for dismantlers
and recyclers that will provide an accounting for vehicles that are scrapped.

68-033 0 ~ 80 - 12
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In contemporary motor vehicle administration and traffic Taw enforcement,
the ability to communicate--on an almost fnstantaneous basis-~is becoming an increas-
ingly important factor, The AAMVA believes that the framework for such inter-
Jurisdictional communication 1s fnherent in the appiication of the 020 States'

Model Motorist Data Base. This project s aimed at providing the uniformity necessary

- to. attain such a communications capability, via the application of the Data Element

Dictionary, The Dictionary contains untform definitions for key data elements 1n
aTT of the major disciplines of motor.vehicle administration.
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AAMVA BULLLETIN MARCH 1979
Guest Comment by. . .

illinois Secretary of State

By Hon, Alan J, Dixon

Editor’s Note: The column usually written by Executive Director Donald J. Bardell
will not be run this month. Instead, Mr, Bardell kas asked [llinois Secietary of State
Alan J. Dixon to explain that state's new anti-theft program. The lllinois program
stresses administrative controls to address vehicle theft problems, the subject of Mr.
Bardell’s column in the January-February edition of the Builetin,

T e Office of the Secretary of State in Illinois has begun administrative controls
nherent in registration and titling — processes seldom used prior to 1978 — to dry up
the uleglnmate market for stolen auto parts in the state.

S e In fact, I have urged Illinois law enforcement officers, who
find difficulty obtaining convictions in Crimiral Court against
itlegal “chop shop™ operators, to refer their evidence to the
Office of the Secrstary of State.

If evidence exists that a wrecker, scrap handler, auto re-
builder, auto recycler or used parts dealer is operating without
a license, the Secretary of State can order him to cease and
desist. If he fails to comply within 15 days, we will ask the
Attorney General to take him to court.

Our plan for using cease and desist aad administrative hear-
ings was formulated early in 1978, after the Office of the
Secretary of State received information from the Chicago
Police Department that it was having difficulty securing criminal court convictions of
suspected “‘chop shop” operators,

If there is evidence that a licensed wrecker, scrap handler, auto rebuilder, recycler or
used parts dealer has failed to keep required records of parts handler, with full identi-
fication of both the buyer and seller, or if any of these businesses or individuals is in
possession of a stolen vehicle or parts, the Secretary of State is empowered to suspend
or revoke their license, after an administrative hearing to determine that the complaint
is justified,

The first subponeas to produce records were issued to wreckers by my office in late
February, followed by notices of administrative hearings to examine the charges in the
complaints.

On April 25, we issued the first six of 17 cease and desist orders to an unl cuased
operator, Each was given 15 days to comply with the fllinois Vehicle Code requirements
for licensing, Of the 17 to which cease and desist orders were issued, nine came into
compliance, and the remaining eight were shut down,

In early August, the Office of the Secretary of State prescribed new, more stringent
rules for record keeping for Illinois’ nearly 700 licensed anto wrecking operations. The
new rules called for & thorough identification of buyers and zellers for each transaction.

However, on September 11 the Cook County Circuit Court, acting on a petition of
the Northern Illinois Automobile Wreckers and Rebuilders Association, held that the
proposed tules were unconstitutional, and enjoined my office from enforcing them.

My office complied with the injunction, but we continued administrative hearings
processes under broader rv =+ nf the same statute. Subsequently, on January 26 of this
.year, the Illinois Supreme Court overturned the Cook County Circ>it Court, upholding
the power of the Secretary of State to promulgate rules regarding auro dismantting, such
as those implemented in August.

It is significant to note that the operators that have been shut down by the Office of
the Secretary of State, to date, lost their licenses under the Illinois statutory require-
ments, which are much less stringent than the new administrative rules that recently
have been upheld by the Illinois Supreme Court.

The lllinois Supreme Court has tremendously strengthened the Secretary of State’s
authority to enforce strict record keeping fur auto wreckers and dismantlers.

Subsequent to the High Court’s ruling, I have sponsored special workshops in both
Chicago and Springfield to explain the scope of these new powers to help law
enforcement, other governmental agencies, and private business to work together against
auto theft,

i/



Vo d Y S .

k3 ! 4 ‘ Y .-;‘n-.‘s 1 B

il CAPITAL REPORT

0o JTILA.

e, RN
AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF MOTOR VEHICLE ADMINISTRAQT-b%‘g“

1201 CONNECTICUT AVE., N.W, SUITE 210, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20036, TELEPHONE 202 — 286-185%

May 18, 1979
. T0: Chief" Motor Vehicle Administrators
& Chief Law Enforcement Officials
FROM: Ponald J, Bardell, Executive Director

SUBJECT: Congressional Activities

NEW VEHICLE THEFT PREVENTION
BILL EXPECTED IN SENATE SOOH:

Although one bi1l addressed to strengtheniny vehicle theft prevention
remedies already has been introduced in the House of Representatives in the 96th
Congress (HR 1955), a new and more comprehensive bill s expected to be introduced
in the Senate in the very near future, 1f the Senate version contzins what is
anticipated, it probably will have the strong backing of the Carter Administration,
via the U. 5. Department of Justice.

HR 1985

HR 1955, introduced in the House on February 8, 1979, {is sponsored by
Rep. William Green of New York. It is virtually identical to bills that were intro
duced in the House and Senate in the 95th Congress (HR 14252 and S 3531). Both
died at the close of the Congress late last fall,

HR 1855, known as the "Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Act of 1979,"
contains five titles. Purposes, enumerated in Title 1, include to:

ga) Improve the locking devices for motor vehicles;

b) Improve the fdentification numbering systems for
vehicles and their major components;

{c) Increase the federal criminal penaities for persons
trafficking in stolen vehicles and parts; and

{d) Establish regqulatory procedures to reduce the
opportunity for the criminal to export stolen vehicles.

Title 11 of HR 1855 would amend the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle
Safety Act of 1956 to give the Secretary of Transportation the authority to "inciu
(non-safety related standards such as) standards to reduce the theft of motor
vehicles and parts.® Such standards could require {a} improving the Yocking devit
for vehicles, as well s (vehicle) identification numbering systems for certain k
~amnnnants of the motor vehicle. T -
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Title II1 of this dil1l {s aimed at strengthening the federal crimfnal

Taws as they pertain to the professional vehicle thief. It proposes five amendments
to Title 18 of the U, 5. Code and an amendment to the Master Key Act. The five
amendments to Title 18 would: (a} make 4t a federal crime to alter or remove
vehicle or vehicle part identification number required by the Secretary; (b) altow
forfeiture to the U. S. -Government of any vehicle or part which has its VIN removed,
obliterated or tampered with; (c) add motor vehicle titles to the definition of
"securities” {n the National Stolen Property Act; (d) make it a federal crime to
traffic vehicles or parts which have had their VIN required by the Secretary removed
or altered; and (e) amend the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organi-ations (RICH
Act 1o include as a racketeering activity trafficking n stolen vehicles and pas ..
The amendment to the Master Key Act would prohibit mailing of manipulative devices
wh;gh]are designed to apen or make inoperable any of the Tocks on two or more
vehicles.

Title IV would make 1t a federal crime for anyone to import or export {a)
any vehicle knowing it has been stolen; or (b) any vehicle or part with the knowledo
that its VIN has been removed, ob)iterated, tampered with, or altered. Enforcement
of this section would be vested with the U. S. Customs Service.

Title V would require the U. S. Attorney General to report to the
Congress 18 months after passage of the act on developments in the area of vehicle
identification of off-road motor vehicles.

The Senate bi)) that died at the close of the 95th Congress (5 3531) was
co-sponsored by Delaware Senator Joseph Biden, Chairman, Senate Judiciary
Subcormittee on Criminal Justice; 111inois Senator Charles Percy, ranking minority
member of the subcommittee; and South Carolina Senator Strom Thurmond.

Anticipated New Senate Bill

1t is expected that Sen. Biden and Sen. Percy will be the major sponsors
of this session's anti-theft legislation.. Furthermore, there seemingly {s a move~
ment afeot in the Congress to consolidate all of the support for anti-theft
Tegislation behind the draft that is being prepared by Biden and Percy, after it is
introduced. A spokesman for the Justice Department, who is responsible for
coordinating anti-theft legislative activities between that agency and Capitel Hill,
informed AAMVA that there {is a good possibility that Rep. Green will introduce
another anti-theft bill in the House that is identical to the Biden/Percy bilY, once
it has been introduced in the Senate.

Furthermore, the Justice Department source indicated that agency would
strongly support the Biden/Percy anti-theft bil® "{f there are no surprises”
;ns:Eteg into the measure between the present and the time that it is introduced

n the Senate.

The new bill is expected to be quite similar, in substance, to both
HR 1955 and the Biden/Percy/Tturmond bi11 {S. 3531) from the 95th Congress.
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Among the basic objectives of the bill will be:

--Deterring theft opportunities by requiring’that manufacturers
place stronger, more theft-resistent locks on vehicles;

--Addressing the "chop shop" problem by providing for major
component parts identification;

--Requiring a study on theft problems related to off-road
vehicles, including how these problems should be addressed.

Anong the new material that is expected in this year's bill:

--A specified time frame for the Secretery of Transportation
to promulgate standards provided for in this legislation.
Most Yikely:

i, One year from time of enactment for issuing
Notice of Proposed Rulemaking;

ii. One year period for comment (from date of NPRHM) 3

4. Incorporation of a procedure to ensure 'due process
in the recovery of parts that have been seized.

Extent of Preemption?

One of the ARMVA's principal concerns with the proposed anti-theft
tenistation is the provision that would amend the National Traffic and Motor
Vehicle Safety Act of 1966 to provide the Secretary of Transportation .the authority
to include (non-safety related standards such as) standards to reduce the theft of
motor vehicles and parts.

Since Title 11 of the Biden/Percy/Thurmond bill in the 95th Congress
(5. 3531) and the Green bill in the 96th Congress (HR 1955) are identical, it is
generally assumed that a similar provision will be in the Biden/Percy bill that
{s being prepared for introduction.

This provision would amend Section 103 (widely known as the “preemption
section") of the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966, adding a
new subsection (j). It would provide:

"(j} Standards established by the Secretary under this section
may include standards to reduce the theft of the motor
vehicle and its parts by taking into account:

"(1) the cost of {mplementing the Standard and the
benefits attainable as a result of the implementa-
pay tion of the standerd;

"(2) the effect of the implementation of the standard on
the cost of automobile insurance;

u(3) savings in terms of time and inconvenience; and

“(4) considerations of safety."
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The section-by-section analysis of S. 3531, that accompanied it in
the Congressional Record, noted that “...any federal standard issued in regard to
component vdentitication would preempt any such state legislation when the fedenil,
regulation became effective.”

This gives rise to a question to the extent to which preemption would
apnly with respect to-anti-theft standards that are promulgated by the Secretary of
Transportation, pursuant to the Natforal Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act.

Ye generally concede that state motor vehicle safety standards are
preempted to the extent that they cover the same aspect of performance and are not
identical to Federal Notor Vehic%e Safety Standards. However, we firmly believe that

states are empowered to_adopt, and subsequently enforce, standards that are

identical to federal standards--the decisjon of & recent District Court case in
Pennsylvania notwithstanding. Therefore, the guestion arises {f this same parallel
70u16]app1y to anti-theft standards promulgated by the Secretary pursvant to this
egislation.

Since the Biden/Percy bil1l has not yet been introduced in the Senate
and the identical version of this bill has not even been drafted in the House, fo
dates have been set for hearings on anti-theft leaislation.

DTHES PROPOSED AMENDMERTS TO VERICLE ACT,
INFORMATION AND COST SAVINGS ACT BEING
CIRCULATED IN EKECUTIVE AGENCIES, CONGRESS:

The Department of Transportation (DOT) has drafted a series of amendme
to the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Act of 1966 and the Motor Vehicle Informa-
tion and Cost Savings Act, which it hopes to have introduced in this session of the
Congress. The amendments seemingly are addressed to extending the DOT's control
over automotive component and equipment manufacturers. Through the proposed legisla-
tion, Secretary of Transportation Brock Adams §s apparently slso attempting to
significantly strengthen and expand DOT's enforcement capabilities on two broad
fronts: (1) By strengthening and widening legal anforcement options of the BOT: and
(2) By imposing substantially stiffer monetary penalties and/or jail sentences for
violations of either art.

The drafts currently are being circulated by the Office of Management and
Budget {OMB) for review and comment to various executive department agencies,
{ncluding the Departments of Justice, Commerce, Energy, State and Treasury, as well
a5 the Federal Trade Commissfon, Office of Consumer Affairs, Environmental
Protection Agency and Nationsl Transoertation Safety Board.

The proposed amendments would require manufacturers of motor vehicle
equipment to comoly with the publfc notice requirements in the Motor Vehicle Act in
all instances where there was a defect in, or failure to, comply under either
Section 151 or 152 of the Act. Presently, the public notice requirements apply only
to equipment manufacturers {f the Secretary first determines that public notice
1s necessary,=in the interest of motor vehicle safety. The Secratary still would
be required to consult with the manufacturer before the public notice requirement
would have to be implemented.
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OTHER PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO VEHICLE ACT,
IRFORMATION AND COST SAVINGS ACT BEING
CIRCULATED IN EXECUTIVE AGENCIES, CONGRESS: ({Continued)

In addition, the amendments would require equipment manufacturers to
send by first class mai) a "notification" to each first purchaser (or to the most
recent purchaser known to the manufacturer) of each item of replacement equipment
containing such defect or failure to comply. The notification would be the one
that is required under ejther Sec*ion 151 or 152 of the Act. The net effect of
this proposal would be to make the notification_requirements identical for
manufacturers of motor vehicles, for manufacturers of tires and for manufacturers of

motor vehicle equipment’

The proposed amendments to the Cost Savings Act would give DOT authority
to require manufacturers and distributors of automotive equipment to distribute to
prospective purchasers information which the Secretary has compiled, pursuant to Sec-
tion 201 of that Act. This information is addressed to damage susceptibility,
degree of crash-worthiness, the ease of diagnosis and repair of mechanical systems,
as well as the differences in insurance costs for different makes and models of
passenger motor vehicles based upon differences in damage susceptibility and
crash-worthiness, Presently, this distribution is limited to dealers.

This package of proposed amendments also would request Congress to give
DOT the authority to promulgate Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards which are
not directly retated to safety, but which could serve to reduce motor vehicle theft.

The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration's Vehicle Identification
‘Number Standard is currently being challenged in Court, where one of the issues is
*that the NHTSA does not have the authority--pursuant to the National Traffic and
Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966--to promulgate such a standard, since it is not
directly related to safety, If these proposed amendments are enacted by the
Congress, they apparently would provide Secretary Adams the authority he is seeking
with regard to this matter,

STANDBY GASOLINE RATIONING PLAN
KILLED BY HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES;
CONGRESS TO _CONSIDER ALTERRATIVES:

The full House of Representatives voted 246-159 on May 10th to reject
House Resolution (HRes) 212, which called for approval of the Carter Administration's
Standby Gasoline Rationing Plan. Rejection of the plan, which had been transmitted
to Capitol Hi1l on March Ist by the Department of Energy (DOE), came despite some
last minute modifications by the Administration which would have provided higher
gasoline allocations for less populated, rural states.

Therefore, the Carter Plan, which had to be enacted by both houses of the
Congress within 60 "leaislative days"--or by May 12th--died on that date.
Subsequentiy, the Carter Administration has challenged the Congress to come up with
a workable gasoline rationing plan. At first-the House declined to do so, but at
the present, & group of Congressmen, led by Connecticut Representative A, Toby
Moffett, 4s attempting to formulate a plan that would entail requiring motorists to
leave their vehicles home (1.e., not drive them) at least one day per week.
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STANDBY GASOLINE RATIONING PLAN
XKILLED BY HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES:
CONGRESS 10 CONSIDER ALTERNATIVES: (Continued)

The preliminary plan being explored by Rep. Moffett and his coneagueg
color-coded stickers, numbered from one to seven, for a vehicle's windshield.
This sticker would be used to determine the day that the owner was required not
to drive. The Moffett Plan also would address the problem of “tank topping" by
forbidding purchases of less than $5.00. Although still in the very preliminary
stages, the Moffett Plan tentatively would call for administration of the standby
gasoline rationing plan by state motor vehicle agencies,

The Senate, meanwhile, voted 58-39 on May 9th to approve Senate
Resolution (SRes) 120, which also called for the approval of the Carter Standby
Gasoline Rationing Plan. The vote on SRes 120 came following a 66-30 approval by
the Senate of companion SRes 153, which contained modifications proposed by the
Administration to allocate more gasoline for iess populated and rural states.

Earlier, the House Interstate and Foreign Commerce Committee voted
21-20, on May 1st, to send HRes 212 to the House floor without a recommendation for
assage. This, of course, signaled that the controversial plan was in deep
trouble on that side of Capitol Hill. In addition, the 21-20 affirmative vote was
the House Commerce Committee's fourth vote on the matter. Earlier that day, 2
vote to send HRes 212 to the House floor with a favorable recommendation ended in
a 21-21 deadlock. On April 25th the Commerce Committee also took two votes on
HRes 212, and each time it was rejected, by votes of 23-19 and 22-20, respectively.

The Senate Energy Committee, meanwhile, had voted 8-8 on April 26th to
send SRes 120 to the Senate floor with a favorable recommendation for enactment
SRes 120 and HRes 212 were identical, before the Administration sent the modifying
amendments to Capitol Hill.

The AAMVA, on behalf of its members, raised some strong concerns about
some serious weaknesses that were inherenrt in the Standby Gasoline Rationing Plan
that the DOE transmittud to the Congress. 1 outlined most of these concerns
in a letter, dated Marth 30th, to Rep. John D. Dingell, Chairman, House Commerce
Subcommittee on Energy and Power, during the time this subcommittee was holding
hearings on the Standby Gasoline Rationing Plan. Copies of -this letter also were
dispatched to other appropriate Congressional leaders, including Sen. Henry M.
Jackson, Chairman, Senate Energy Committee, and Secretary of Energy James
Schlessinger.

In this letter, I pointed out that the AAMVA supports the use of the
vehicle registration--as an alternative to the drivers license--as the basis for
a gasoline allotment. In fact, it noted, comment from our Association was
instrumental in a DOE decision, back in 1975, to change a then-existing draft plan
from a driver license basis to one that was vehicle registration-based. Furthermore,
it was noted that the AAMVA supported a registration-based rationing plan with
some reservations. Regretfully, most of these concerns were jgnorved by the DOE when
it finalized: its rulemaking tor the current Standby Gasoline Rationing Plian.
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STANDBV GASOLINE RATIONING PLAN
KILLED BY HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES;
TORGRESS TO CORSIDER ACTERNATIVES: {Continued)

Our first, and possibly foremost, concern was that the DOE Plan that
was killed by the Congress had been based on the assumption that all state motor
vehicle agencies have the capability to quickly provide u1] of the data that would
be needed by the DOE to implement the National Vehicle Fegistration File, 1f the
Plan is approved by the Congress. .

Energy Secretary James Schlessinger, testifying in behalf of his agency's
Plan before the House Commerce Subcommittee on Energy and Power, observed that the
DOE had been in constant contact with state motor vehicle agencies, and proceeded
to infer that there would be no problem in quickly obtaining a1l of the data
which the DOE might prescribe to develop the National Vehicle Registration File.

Moreover, the Association expressed deep concern about the creation of
& National Vehicle Registration File, in which an agency of the federal government
would have been empawered to prescribe the format in which registration data are
compiled, as well as the manner in which it is updated. In our federal system
of government, my Jetter emphasized, the states traditionally have had the )
prerogative to register and title motor vehicles. These.state agencies have always
done a-credible Jjob, to date, and we submit that they would continue to do so if
provided with funding adequate to cope with the challenge.

With respect to Tunding, my letter conveyed grave concern about the
probable.costs for bringing state vehicle agency records to a level of responsive-
ness that would be-commensurate with the demands of ctandby rationing, It is
significant to note that, although the DOE plan would have provided a total of
$8.6-mi11{on 1n start-up funding for implementation of the program at the federal
level, it seemingly was silent as to how the states might cope with these added,
non-budgeted costs.

In my column in this month's AAMVA Bulletin, I believe that I reflect
the attitude that we find prevalent among our membership. The column observes:

"In a8 time of genuine national emergency, it is
difficult for us to conceive that any responsible
official--at any level of government--would put

forth anything short of their best effort in coping
with the situation. However, in order for all Yevels
of government to be in a position to manifest such

en effort, it might be well to reexzamine some of the
serious weaknesses inherent in the current DOE
Standby: Gasoline Rationing-Plan before going forth
with.a plan that is 1ikely to yield chaos--instead of
the desired results--in a time of crisfs.”

djb
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BILLS INTRODUCED IN CONGéESS TO CREATE
"MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT PREVENTION ACT OF 1379"

Federal vs. State Safety Standards Also Could Be Drawn In

The introduction of two pieces of Tegislation in the Congress on May 22, 1979,
has opened the door for a full-blown discussion of State enforcement of motor

vehicle safety standards. Senator Charles Percy (R.~-I11.) and Senator Joseph

Biden (D.-Del.) introduced S.1214, the "Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Act of

1979" in the Senate, while Representative Will{am Green of New York introduced
a companion Bill-H.R.4178 before the House.

While the stated purpose of both Bills {s to “improve the physical security
features of the motor vehicle and {ts parts," there 15 no question that this
legislation will create a public forum wherein the entfre issue of State enforce-
ment of motor vehicle safety and security standards can be discussed. Clear
Congressional direction can be given to industry and all government officials who
are concerned with the enforcement aspects of this type of legislation.

Both pieces of legislation contain a preemption section which reads:

“SEC. 203. Whenever there s in effect a Federal motor vehicle security
standard relating to a2 motor vehicle's starting system, the Tocking
systems for the engine, passenger, and trunk compartments, and compo-
nent part identification established under this title, no State or
political subdivision of a State shall have any authority to establish
or to continue {n effect, with respect to any motor vehicle or motor
vehicle part, any security standard relating to those same systems

which 1s not identical to such Federal standard.”

Although the aBdve preemption clause only relates to “security" standards,
introduction of such language will obviously open up Congressfonal review, con-
sideration, and discussion of the entire issue of State enforcement of motor
vehicle safety standards.




180

Stated purpose of the Bills also is "to increase the criminal penalties of
persons trafficking 1n stolen motor vehicles and parts, to curtail the exporta-
tion of stolen motor vehicles, to stem the growing problem of ‘chop shops,'

and for other purposes.”

Judging from the number of sponsors of both Bf11s (23 Representatives co-sponsored
the House Bi11), it is virtually certain that this legislation will come before
one or more Committees of Congress in the near future. The Senate Bi11 has been
referred to the Committees on the Judiciary and Commerce, Science, and Trans-
portation. The House Bi11 has been referred jointly to the Committee on Inter-
state znd Foreign Commerce, the Judiciary, Ways and Means, Post Office and

Civil Service, and Foreign Affairs Committees.

On February 8, 1979, Representative Green virtually re-introduced the Ant{-Theft
Bil11 that he introduced previously . . . however, the earlier Bills did not
contain the preemption language that was inserted fn the Bills introduced May 22.
From studying this past 1egisiation and 1ts most recent history, 1t can be assumed
that an all-out effort will be made to bring the preemption State enforcement
issue before the Congress for full review and discussion before the current
session of Congress adjourns.

Most recently the preemption issue of Federal vs. State safety standards and

State enforcement and approval methods was adjudicated in favor of the automotive
industry (See MEMA Insight/SAFETY bulletin of April 23, 1979.) In a strongly-worded
opinion handed down by the U.S. District Court in Harrisburg, PA, the precedent-
setting decision held that "Pennsylvania's motor vehicle equipment approval

program is preempted by the National Traffic and Motor Vehiclie Safety Act to

the extent that it reaches federally-regulated equipment." HEMA said this

major court victory would greatly impact the industry; the preemptive gection in
this new proposed legisiation bears this out.

In Pennsylvania's case, the American Association of Motor Vehicle Administrators
(AAMVA) was struck down as that State's official agﬂrova1 agent. AAMVA alluded
to that issue recently in discussing the proposed Theft Prevention Act:

"We generally concede that state motor vehicle safety standards are
preempted to the extent that they cover the same aspect of performance

and are not {dentical to Federal Motor Yehicle Safety Standards. However,
we firmly believe that states are empowered to adopt. and subsequently
enforce, standards that are {dentical to federal standards---the decision
of a recent District Court case in Pennsylvania notwithstanding. Therefore,
the question arises {f this same parallel would app1¥ to anti-theft stan-
dards promulgated by the Secretary pursuant to this legislation."

MEMA's Washington, D.C. office will monitor this new legislation very closely.
Members interested in discussing 1t in more detatl should contact Joanna Lehane,
MEMA Director of Government Relations at (202) 283-5300,




v/

Manufacturer's Guide'
for
Safety Equipment
Services

Equipment Certificition
Market Audit
Retesting Program
Leboratory Accreditation
Apgroved Vehicle Devices Handbook

American Asscciation of
Motor Vehicle Administrators

181

Table of Contents

HiSIONY +evevenrnnaresonnsnseiniissencionsend
Advantages of Participation .voevveviineriaiins 6
Laboratory Accreditation Program ...vvivevens 7

Rctestmg Program for
Pr y Approved E

[TTTITIPRIIS |

Handbook of Approved Vehicle Devices ....,,. 8

d Procedures:

i\ Approval S
EASP-1 Safety Equipment
Certificate of Approvalisveeesenees 9

EASP-2 Submission of Incomplete
Documentation or
Denial of Approval v.veivvinsnenn 10

EASP-3 Amending an AAMVA
Certificate of Approval,.......eeenldl

EASP-4 Family/Series Type Devices ...... .12
Approval Criteria for Device Categories:

Brake Hoses—Air, Vacuum, Hydraulic ....,.13

Brake Materials sooovvieniennoriniennennieald

Eye Protective Devices .iovveecennsennenes J4
Hydraulic Brake Fluid
_ and Engine Coolant .....coivviinnniiainnls

Lighting Devices vo.i.00us
Motorcycle Helmets .o.ovieiieraneiinnsnes 6

Safety Glass and
Safety Glazing Material .ovovevvinnereesadd?

Scat Belts and Child Seating Systems ..
Other Device Categories «oovuveiisinisneesil®

Automotive Equipment Requiring
Jurisdictional Approval .
AppendiX A oiiiiiniiniiiiiinaeeanieneni2l

AAMVA Approved Laboratories
AppendiX Boyooiiisiionvorrsnronssannne:dd

Organizations Concerned With Safety
Regulation and/or Safety Equipment
Appendix Cuvvvnvvnnannnenaniranaens 3l

3



History

The AAMVA Equipment Approval Program is
traceable to a 1956 Annual Conference resolution
which ded: “That ber jurisdi
consxd:r secking authority for the - motor vehicle

ator to .adopt d by the
AAMVA as minimum requirements for legal use,
instead of requiring the administrator to issuc
equipment approvals.'

The AAMVA foresaw the need and desirability of
a uniform system of administering equipment cer-
tification a full decade before the National Motor
Vehicle Traffic Safety Administration Act of 1956,

Lack of staff at the time prevenled the AAMVA
from impt ing the resol . In the
succeeding decadc, s:cunnz indmdual _\umdlc-
tional approvals b ani
the need for uniformity and an expedulous proce-
dure increased.

Aimed at satisfying the intent of the 1956 resolu-
tion, the AAMVA implemented a modest Equip-
ment Approval Program on Jununry 1, 1967. At lh=
onset, the bility for app
to an AAMVA staff member as an au:uhnry duty,
but acceptance and the rapid growth resulted in thc
addition of a full-time staff’ for this fi
on September 25, 1967—less than one year into the
program.

Not far into the program, it became obvious that
the Director should be oriented technologically as
well as admxmstnmvely. It was most deumble to
have a Director with an automotive engineering
background. On February 2, 1970, the AAMVA
secured the semcu of Armond Cardarelli, He has
been with f of highway
safety and ive p for ap-
pmx:matcly sixteen ycm-—pnnclpnl.ly in engineer-
ing. Further, he has extensive experience in quality
control, product certification and administrative
management.

A Laboratory Accredilau'on Program was im-
plemented in late 1970 and, in early 1971, publica-
tion of the Handbook of . Approvzd Vehicle Devlcu
was initiated to identify items approved by the
AAMVA program. To further stncngtb:n quality
control, a random retesting program for items pre-
vnously certified was developed during 1972,

The AAMVA’s Product Safety Program-—
including retall market surveillance—was added on

H
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Jenuary 1, 1973, It was designed to provide assur-
ance to consumers of motor vehicle safety equip-
ment that the devices have been duly certified ac-
cording to the state and provincial laws and regula-
tions. The need for such a program became appar-
ent when a concentrated effort was initiated to re-
quire approval—via the AAMVA Equipment Ap-
proval Program—of all safety items and devices
specified by the laws and regulations of the respec-
tive participating jurisdictions,

Advantages of
‘ Participation in the AAMVA
. Equipment-Approval ngram

*The benefits derived from participation in the
AAMVA Equipment Approval Program are numer-
ous to both the motor vehicle administrator and the
vehicle equipment manufacturer,

Among the more obvious are the following:

1. A vast reduction in the amount of time and paper
work -involved when compared with obtaining
approvals from individual jurisdictions.

2, Asub ] cost 10 the
when he can obtain a bianket approval from all
participating states and provinces for the one
$250.00 fee.

3. Elimination of the need for sending a sample of
ench item or device to each jurisdiction since
only sufficient photographic documentation is
required by AAMVA for approval in all par-
ticipating jurisdictions,

4, There is no cost to a state or provmcml jurisdic-
tion for particip in the E Approval
Program,

For the Equiptent Approval Program to function
to thc ultimate benefit gf both the Junsdlctxonal par-

fo

and the s, particip by all
states and provmces is desirable,
When this t a reality, 1 will

need only apply to the AAMVA (acting as the ap-
provals’ agent on behalf of the jurisdiction) furnish-
ing the Y supporting d and photo-
graphlc documentation to gain an approval instead
of havmg to apply to each State and/or Province
which is not a participant on an individuai basis.

6




Laboratory Accreditation
Program

A Laboratory Accreditation Program was im-
plemented by the AAMVA in late 1970 to insure
quality control in testing procedures for AAMVA-
approved equipment. The program was significantly
strengthened by expansion to include both indepen-
dent and manufacturers’ testing fecilities.

For a testing lnboratory {0 receive AAMVA ac-
creditation, the laboratory must submit a completed
“‘Application for Laboratory Approval® (Form
EA-S) and any supporting documentation as
specified in the “'Criteria and Procedures for Ap-
proval of Testing Laboratories' as revised Sep-
tember 1, 1974. The application for approval and
supporting documentation shall be in the English
gmxusse and shall be treated as privileged informa-

on. !

Upon satisfactory compliance with the written
submittal documentation, an “*on-site" inspection is
scheduled by an AAMVA-approved Accreditation
Team, Some of the important items to be deter-
mined by the team are as foljows:

- That the Iaboratory test work is being performed
under the technical supervision of a licensed
fi | engincer, scientist, or qualified test-

p
ing engineer.

~— That the laboralory is maintaining reference
standards traceable to the Nationzl Bureau of
Standards of the United States, or, to the Na-
tional Standards body of the country in which
the laboratory is located, and that these stan-
durds be related to those of the NBS in the
United States,

— That the lab y maintains test in in
calibration in d with the fi
turer's specifications or standards set forth for
such testing instruments.

~ And, that the Inboratory is capable of making
and repeating measurements within a peescribed
degree of accuracy,

Upon satisfactory compliance with the require-
ments of the application and completion of a':q “'on-
site” inspection, an AAMVA Certificate of Ap-
proval (Form EA-4) shall be issuzd to the laboia-
tory. This action will permit the AAMVA ac-

7
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ceptance of test reports for specific types of devices
covering a period of two years or, at the discretion
of the Safety Equipment Services Director, for a
ionger period.

Laberatories can request reapproval by notifying
the AAMVA Safety Equipment Services Director
not less than 30, nor more than 60 days before the
expiration date of the current Certificate. The re-
quirements for reapproval are identical to those for
the original approval, Upon satisfactory com-
pliance, accreditation shall be revalidated.

If the AAMVA Safety Equipment Services Direc-
{ov determines that an approved laboratory is not
complying with the requirements, he may, with
thirty days notice to the laboratory, implement the
procedure for revocation, A Jaboratory whose ini-
tial application has been rejected or existing ap-
proval has been withdrawn or suspended shall have
the right to appeal such action. The request for re-

ideration shall be submitted in writing to the
AAMVA Safety Equipment Approval Appeals
Board, This Board shall be designated by the
AAMVA and shall not be staffed by any participat-
ing member of the initial “‘on-site’ inspection or
subsequent reinspection groups.

Appendix **A" lists the AAMVA approved test-
ing laboratories and the specific types of devices
authorized 1o test,

Retesting Program for
Prevloungy Approved Equipment

As a further “quality
feature, a retesting program for previously ap-
proved equipment began in 1972, It is designed to
assure that the quality of approved devices being
marketed remains at or above the minimum perfor-
mance requirements throughout the life of its pro-
duction. The AAMVA will notify all Equipment
Approval Program particip and the National
Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA)
of any devices which, under the retesting program,
fail to meet the applicable standards,

Handbook of ved
Vehice Mcgg pre

During early 1971, the AAMVA began publica-
tion of the Handbook of Approved Vehicle Devices.

Q)
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This publicction, which identifics each device cer-
tified by the AAMVA Equipment Approval Pro-
gram, is a valuable adjunct to State end Provincial-
level motor vehicle inspection programs and has a
significant consumer protection feature. In late 1576

puterization of this Handbook began with the
first printing scheduled for Spring of 1977. Quar-
terly supplements will be utilized to maintain the
Handbook in a current status.,

Through utilization of this Handbook, State and
Provincial administrators can ensure that retail
items of safety equipment offered for sale in their
jurisdiction have been tested and approved to ap-
propriate safety standards.

Annual subscriptions to the basic publication and

ppl may d from the Director,
.Safety Equipment Services, American Association
of Motor Vehicle Admini 1201 i
Avenue, N.W., Suite 910, Washington, D,C. 20036
at an annual price of $13,00 for domestic addresses
and $15.00 for foreign addresses,

Equipment Approval
Standard Procedures .

The AAMVA Certificate of Approval (Form
EA-1) grants a uriform approval for use of a device
in the jurisdictions participating in this program,

The word *“device™, as used in this context, shall
mean any device, part, material, fluid, assembly, or
brand name, Equipment Approval Standard Proce-
dures, hercinafter referred to as *“*EASP,"” have

en promuigated for submission requir
The followinig areas are covered: (1) obtaining a
Certifizate of Approval, (2) incomplete submission
of documentstion or denial of approval, (3) amend-
ing an AAMVA Certificate of Approval, and (4)
family/series type device approvals.

EASF §
Safety Equipment Certificate of Approval

The AAMVA ‘‘Application for Approval of
Motor Vehicle Safety Equipment Devices, Parts,
Materials, or Assemblies” (Form EA-3) can be
submitted by a manufacturer or his agent. The three

9
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basic requirements for approval of a device are as
follows:

1. A completed application.

2. Two copies of a test report from an AAMVA-
approved testing laboratory indicating that the
device meets the minimal requirements of the
applicable standards and one or more 8* x 10/
glossy photographs or halftone prints showing
the device in a three-quarter view and any other
additional views that will clearly define the iden-
tification markings., The photographic require-
ment is waived for safety glass and safety glazing
material, and for brand registration,

w

. An approval fee of $250,00 or as specified for
certain device categories.

Upon receipt of the required documentation, the
AAMVA shall ascertain that the application is com-
plete and correct, the test reports are from an
AAMVA-approved testing laboratory, the device
meets the minimal requirements of the applicable
standards, and that the fee is correct.

If there is a discrepancy in any of the require-
ments, the applicant shall be notified and the
| i ding correction in accor-

eld, p
dance with EASP2,
1f there is no discrepancy, an AAMVA Certificate
of Approval, with use limitations if applicable, shall
be issued for the device. The Certificate shall be
forwarded to the applicant and a copy to the par-
ticipating state and provincial jurisdictions for which
the AAMVA serves as approvals agent. The initial
approval remains valid for a five (5) year period from
the date of the test report.

EASP2

Submlssion of Incomplete

Documentation or Danlal of Approval

A, Sub of i plete d ion —
If, upon notification of a discrepancy in the
documentation submitted, the applicant fails to
advise the AAMVA of the corrective action
within ninety days from the date of notification,
the d ion and approval fee, less a
$15.00 handling charge, will be returned to the

applicant.
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B. Denial of Approval — :
If the device fails to meet the minimal require-
ments of the applicabl dards, the d
tation and approval fee, less a $15.00 handling
charge, will be retumned to the applicant.

C. Upon return of the documentation to the appli-
cant under **A" or **B" above, the AAMVA file
for this device shall be closed, Resubmission of
this device for AAMVA approval shall be con-
sidefed as a new application,

EASP 3

" Amendling an AAMVA
Certificate of Approval

All corresp 3:4 g an
must contain the proper reference to the pre*” wsly
approved AAMVA Certificate of Approva. . : .aver.
Please note that an amendment does not extend the
expiration date of the existing Certificate of Ap-
proval.

The following requirements must be met in order
to obtain en amended Certificate of Approval:

1. A new application form (EA-3) must be submit-
ted with an accompanying statement that the re-
quest for amendment is being made because ofa
minor change such as:

a. A change of identification or model number.

b. A change of company name.

¢. A minor device modification which does not
materially affect the engineering specifica-
tions of the original device.

. Addition of brand names, model names, or

identification codes.

[-%

»

An appendix to the fest report (which must be
from the same testing laboratory) certifying that
the device is not changed functionally and that
the engineering characteristics and resultant per-
formance data remain in compliance,

3, Accampanying the test report appendix, one 87 x
10" glossy photograph or halftone print which
clearly reflects the change in the device when
applicable. A proof copy of the logo or brand
name labe) will be necessary for brake Nuid, an-
tifreeze or glazing materials in lieu of a photo-
graph.

11
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4. Anamendment fee of $50,00 per Certificate,

An amended Certificate of Approval shall be is-
sued and identified by the following legend:

CERTIFICATE AMENDED (Date)
{Reason for amendment)

EASP4
Famlly/Serles Type Devices

Certain devices can be of the family/series type.
As used in this context, the family/series type de-
vice applies 1o any single or combination type de-
vice having identical structural design of basic com-
ponents {(i.e. lens and housing). Typical family/
series device variations will consist of any special

ing arr t or bracket h and
type of light source (i.e. single or double contact
bulb systems). Listed below are the device
categories and their typical variations.

Device Category
1, Lighting Devices, with
Identical housing and
lens
2. Seat Belt Systems, with
identical hardware com-

Typical Variatlons

Varying mounting at-
tachment and buib sys-
tem

Length of webbling in lap
or shoulder harness

ponents and type of web-
bing

3. Motorcycle Goggles
and Face Shislds, with
identical trama, lens ma-
teriat and thickness

4, Traller Hitch System, Varying sizes, to suit in«

utilizing a basic design stallation on motor vehi-

concept cles within a specific
hitch classitication

Varying color tints

. In addition to the basic application requirements
listed previously, the following additional d
tation and fee is required:

1. A separate application for each model variation
within a family/series with supporting infarma-
tion pertaining to the device.

2. A test report which shows additional data results
for the mechanical, photometrics, or other re-

2




quirements when performance aspects differ be-
tween model variations.

3, An approval fee of $250.00 plus $50.00 for each
additional model variation in the family/series.

The AAMVA sh=it determine if the model varia-
tions fall within the family/series, Devices not
within the family/series will be subject to regularly
prescribed appre val requirements, Each model var-
iation within the family/series shall be issued a sepa.
raté Ccnifjcatc of Approval.

of the family/series is permitted, and
can be req d, via the d process as
shown in EASP 3.
EASP S
Reapproval
The req\uremcnls for reapproval of a cemﬁcatc are
id I to the req lined in EASP-1,
Approval Criteria
for Device Categories

The basic application requirements shown in
EASP | have been expanded to clarify the approval
criteria for device categories and the need for addi-
tional d ion for some devi

These devices, with the additiona! rcqum:mcnls.
are listed in alphabetical order for ready reference.

Brake Hoses
Alr, Vareuum, Hydraulic

These AAMVA Certificates of Approval are for
air and vacuum type brake hosc or hydraullc brake
hose ly. The basic jon requirements
previously listed are applicable except for the
photographic requirement of the markings. A sepa-
rate application is required for each diameter of
brake hose.

A. Airand Vacuum Brake Hose
An air or vacuum brake hose consists of a length
of brake hose of a specific diameter without end
fittings, If markings are shown on the brake
hose, they shall be used for identification pur-
poses, If there are no markings on the brake
hose, the manufacturer’s part number or

13
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catalogue number shull be shown on the applica-
tion and test reports, and shall be used to iden-
tify the brake hose.
B. Hydraulic Brake¢ Hose Assembly

A hydraulic brake hose assembly consists of a
length of brake hose of a specific diameter with
end fittings permanently attached, If the mark-
ings are shown on the brake hose and/or end
fittings, these markings shall be used to identify
the assembly. If there are no markings on the
brake hose and/or end fittings, the manufac-
turer's part number or catalogue number shalt
be shown on the application and test reports,
and shall be used to identify the assembly.

The applicable standards are shown on the Au-
tomotive Equip Requiring Juri: lonal Ap-
proval chart (Form EA.7).

The initial Certificate of Approval can be
amended via the amendment process as shown in
EASP3.

Brake Materlals

These AAMVA Certificates of Approval are for
the material formulation and other desi d iden-
tification markings affixed on these devices. The
AAMVA shall verify the prefix identifier selected
by the manufacturer and, if found to have been pre-
viously assigned, will recommend a new identifier,
The manufacturer can either accept the recom-
mended prefix identifier or suggest a new one which
does not conflict with the existing identifiers.

In addition, if the device is produced for other
compaities, the applicant shall also specify the
names of the companies and the applicable identifi-
cation markings. No additional fee is required for
other company identification markings listed at the
time of initint application,

The nppllcuble standards are shown on lhc Au-

Requiring Juri. {onal Ap-
proval chart (Form EA-T).

The initial Certificate of Approval can be

ded or additional identification markings can
be added after issuance via the amendment process
as shown in EASP 3.

Eye Protective Devices

These AAMVA Certificates of Approval are for
the manufacturers' trade name and model designa-

14




tion and, if applicable, various brand names of the
same initial model produced for marketing outlets,
If a company uses the same trade name for more
than one model, different model number deslgna-
tions must be used to clearly jdentify the vasiation,

In addition to the basic application requirements
prevxously listed, if the device is produced for other
companies undcr various brand names, the name
and add of the y for each appli
brand name shall be shown, Thexe is no additional
fee for the additional brand names listed at the time
of the initial application.

The applicable standards are shown on the Au-
tomotive Equipment Requiring Jurisdictional Ap-
proval chart (Form EA-7).

The initial Certificate of Approval can be
amended or additional brand names can be added
after issuance via the amendment process as shown
in EASP3.

Hydraulic Brake Fluid
Englna Coolant

A permanent formulation identifier shall be issued by
the manyfacturer for each prime formulation.

These AAMVA Certificates of Approval are di-
vided into three types:

A. Manufs Only—a d in the
manufacturer of the prime rormulnuon of fhe
finid.

B. Manuf: /P u;c.-—a din
the manufactuse of the prime (armulnuan and in
the packaging of the fluid under various brand
names and subsequently distributes for retail
sale, This type of approval is for the formulation
and listed brand names, and is valid for five
years from the date of lhe test report.

C. Pack Only-the p of previously ap-
pmved bulk ﬂund who packages under various
brand names and subsequently distributes for
retail sale, A separate Certificate of Approval,
bearing the legend '“Brand Registration’, is is-
sued for each brand name listed and is valid for
one ycar from the date of processing the applica-
uon

H 5 for a (Y ¢ r
Only" are 1denuc,al to the basic certification re-
quxrements listed previously, A “Manufactuml
P; **, in addition to the basic requil

15
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shall provide a list of brand names, name and ad-
dress of each brand name company, and a label
proof of each brand name listed, Brand name regis-
tration is applicable to a *‘Packager Only“ The re-
quirements for brand name registeation are as fol-
lows:

1. A completed application (Form EA-3).

2. A current affidavit stating that the formulation
being packaged under the brand names listed is
an approved formulation. The formulation
aumber and the AAMVA Certificate of Appmval
number for the formulation must be included in
the affidavit,

. The company name and address for each brand
name listed shall be shown and a labet proof for
each brand name shall be submitted.

A registration fee of $50.00 for each brand name
certificate.

The npplxcable standards are shown on lhe Au-
Requiring Jurisdi 1 Ap-
proval cl\art {Form EA-T).

The initial Certificate of Approval can be
amended or additional brand names can be added
after issuance via the amendment process as shown
in EASP 3.

w

>

Lighting Devices

These AAMVA Certificates of Approval are is-
sued for required lighting devices and/or lighting
device systems used for illumination, communica-
tion (signaling), and identification purposes.

In addition to the basic application requm:ments
previously listed, the function(s), as specified in the
applicable standards, of each device must be
shown.

The applicable standards are shown on the Au-
tomotive Equipment Requiring Jurisdictional Ap-
proval chart (Form EA-7).

The initial Certificate of Approval can be
amended via the amendment process as shown in
EASP3, .

Motorcycle Halmets

These AAMVA Certificates of Approval are for
the manufacturer’s model number and, if applica-
ble, varioys trade names/numbers of the same
model produced for other

16




If a company uses the same trade name for more
than one model, different model disignations must
be used to cleariy identify the various models,

Each helmet shall be permanently and. legibly
labeled in 2 manner so that the label(s) can be easily
read without removing the padding or any other
permanent part. The label should contain the fol-
lowing:

1. Manufacturer’s name or identification
2. Precise model designation
3, Size

4. Month and year of manufacture., This may be
spelled out or expressed in numerals.

5. Instructions to the purchaser

6. The symbol *DOT" constituting the manufac-
turer's certification that the helmet conforms to
the applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standard, This symbol shall appear o the outer
surface, in a color that contrasts with the
background and in letters at Jeast 3b-inch high,
on the back of the helmet.

In addition to the basic application requirements,
previously listed, if the device is produced for other
companies under various trade names/numbers, the
name and address of the company for each applica-
ble trade name/number shall be shown, There is no
additional fec for the additional trade names/
numbers listed at the time of the initial application,

The applicable standards are shown on the Au-
tomotive Equipment Requiring Jurisdictional Ap-
proval chart (Form EA-7).

The initial Certificate of Approval can be
amended or additional trade names/numbers can be

added after i via the d p! as
shown in EASP 3,

Safety Glass/

Safety Glazing Materlal

These AAMVA Certificates of Appraval are for
the prime glazing material manufacturer’s model
number and trademark, and if applicable, various
trademarks of the same model number produced for
other comparies, All safety glazing material used in
a motor vehicle shall have .lcgiblc and permanent

identification mar} of the folt
1. **AS" followed by & numeral from 1 to 13,

B
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2. “M" followed by a model number, to identify
the different construction specifications of the
safety glazing material.

3, Prime glazing material manufacturer’s DOT-
assigned identification code number.

4, Distinctive designation or trademark.

If the applicant is a prime glazing material man-
ufacturer, the basic application requirements previ-
ously listed, are applicable and a copy of the per-
manent identification markings (fogo) must be sub-
mitted, If the device is produced for other com-
panics, proaf copies of the markings must be sub-
mitted.

The prime glazing material manufacturer, which
praduces glazing that is designed to be cut into
components for use in motor vehicles, must mark
each piece of such glazing, us outlined above, ex-
cept that the use of the symbol “DOT" and the
code number is optional,

The manufacturer or distributor who cuts piecds
from large sheets must mark each such piece with
the same markings that appear on the large sheet
from which jt was cut, except for the symbol
“DOT" and a code number, The manufacturer or
distributor may, however, mark those pieces with
the symbol *DOT"* and the prime glazing manufac-
turer’s code number (the company which produces
the large sheets} if that manufacturer grants permis-
ston for such use of his code number,

If the applicant is a manufacturer or distributor
which cuts pieces from large sheets, the following
requirements are applicable:

1. A completed application

2, Anaffidavit from the munufacturer or distributor
that the safety glazing material is an approved
material, The prime glazing material manufac-
turer's DOT-assigned code number and the
AAMVA Certificate of Approval number must
be included in the afTidavit.

3. Proof copies of the markings on the material

4, An approval fec of $250,00

There is no additional fee for trademarks listed at

the time of initial application.

The applicable standards are shown on the An-
tomotive Equip Requiring Jurisdictional Ap-
proval chart (Form EA-7).

18
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The initial Certificate of Approval can be
amended or additional trademarks can be added
after i via the d P as shown
in EASP3.

Seat Belta/
Chiid Seating Systems

These AAMVA Certificates of Approval are for
the manufacturer’s model of a Type 1 or 2 seat belt
assembly, or a child seating system.

A. Seat Belt Assembly—an assembly or approved
sections {i.e, buckle section, connector section,
and shoulder section), that can be used inter-
changeably to make more than one modei of a
complete Type 1 or 2 seat belt assembly, is in-
¢luded in this category.

B. Child Seating Systems—this device is consid-
ered as a separate entity and, as such, is subject
to the requirements of FMVSS 213,

The basic tication requi t: iously
listed are applicabl p ppli is re-
quired for each model.

The applicable standards are shown on the Au-
tomotive Equipment Requiring Jurisdictional Ap-
proval chart (Form EA-7).

The initial Certificate of Approval can be
amended via the amendment process as shown in
EASP3.

Other Davica Catagories

These AAMVA Certificates of Approval are for
the manufacturer's model number of Alr Condition.
ing Units, Backup Warning Systems, Emergency
Safety Kits, Inspection Equipment, Exterior Mirrors,
Traller Hitch Assemblles, and Windshield Wiper As-
semblies and if applicable, various trade names/
numbers of the same model produced for other
companies. The basic application requirements
previously listed are applicable, The initial Centifi-
cate of Approval can be amended via the amend-
ment process as shown in EASP 3.

The applicable standards. for Alr Conditioning
Units, Backup Warning Systems, Exterlor Mirrors,
snd Tralier Hitch Assemblies are shown on the Au-
tomotive Equip Requiring Jurisdictional Ap-
proval chart (Form EA-7).
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The applicabl dards for Inspection Equip-
ment are SAE J602 and/or applicable jurisdictional
standards,

There are two types of Emergency Salety Ki':i-
Type A (Unit Type) and Type B ((;ommencal
Type). Both types must meet the requirements of
Section 393,96 of the U.S, Department of Transpor-
tation, Bureau of Motor Carricr Safety Regulations,

he applicabl d for Windshield Wiper
Assemblies are SAE J903 for passenger cars and
SAE 3198 for trucks, buses, and multi-purpose ve-
hicles.
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APPENDIX 8

AANMVA Approved Laboratories

Listing of AAMVA Approved Laboratories and the
Device Classification Each has been Approved to
Test

In order to facilitate the listiug of the various device
classifications for each laboratory the following vehicle
devices requiring testing for jurisdictional approval are
designated by number. The number for each vehicle de-
vice 8 laboratory has been approved to test will appear
immediately following the name and address of the ap-
proved laboratory.

Lighting Equipment

Backup Lamps

Clearance Lamps

Comering Lamps

Hazard Waming Light Switches
Hazard Warning Signal Flashers
Hazard Waming-Tum Signal Flashers
Headlamps—Scaled Beam
Headlamp Housings—Sealed Beam
Headlamp Aiming Equipm:nt

10 Identification Lamps

i1 License Plate Lamps

12 Parking Lamps (Front Position Lamps)
13 Replacement Lenses

14 Refiex Reflectors

15 Running Lamps

16 Side Marker Lamps

17 Side Tum Signal Lamps

18 Stop Signal Lamps

19 Tail Lamps (Rear Position Lamps)
20 ‘Tur Signal Flashers

21 Tum Signal Lamps

22 ‘Tum Signal Switches—Class A

23 Tum Signal Switches—Class B

24 Triangle Warning Device Kit

25

26

Auxillary Lighting Equlpment

27 Auxiliary Low Beam Lamps (Passing)
28 Driving Lamps

29 Fog Lamps

30 Fog Tail Lamps

31 Off.Highway Lamps

32 Spot Lamps

Ny A
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33 High Mounted Stop and Tum Signa! Lamps
M

Speclal Vehicle Equipment

35 Warning Lamps for Emergency Vehicles

36 360 Degree Emergency Waming Lamps

37 Gaseous Discharge Waming Lamps

38 Headlamp Flashing Systems

39 Sirens

40 School Bus Alternating Warning Lamps

41 School Bus Altemating Wamning Lamp Flashers
42 School Bus Stop Arm

Molorcycle—Bicycle Equipment

43 Headtamp A R yol
4 H:ad!nmp _A'sscmbly-—Momr Driven Cycle
Y

46 Windscreens

47 Fuce Shiclds

48 Goggles

49 Helmets

50 Relfex Reflectors—Bicycles

51 Reflex Reflectors—Pedal

52 Reflex Reflectors—~Tire

53 Tum Signal Lamps—~Motorcycle

Speclal Lighting Equipment

55 Deceleration Indicator Lamps

56 Colored Bulbs

57 Diffused Non-glaring Lamps

58 Headlamp Beam Swilching Devices

59 Headlamp Beam Switching Devi
automatic

60 Omamenta) Lamps

61 Reserve Lighting and Outage Indicators

Safety Equipment

63 Air Conditioning Units
64  Antifreez2 and Summer Coolants
€5 Backup Alarms

66 Brake Floids

67 Brake Hose-—Air

78 Brake Hose—Hydraulic
69 Brake Hose—Vacuum
70 Brake Linings

71 Child Seating Systems
72 Load Binders

73 Mirrors—Exterior

74 Safety Glass

75 Safety Glazing Materials
76 Seat Belts

71 Tire Chains

78 Trailer Hitches

24
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APPENDIX B

AAMVA Approved Laboratories

Domestic Laboratories

Acroquip Corporate Engincering Test Laboratory
2830 Argyle Street

Jackson, Michigan 49202

(517) 787-8121

. ltems: 67, 68, 69

Approved Engineering Test Laboratories
1536 E. Valencia Drive

Fullerton, California 92631

{714) 879-6110

Ttem: 49

T. R, Amold & Associates, Inc.
00 B, Beardsley Avenue

P,0. Box 108]

Elkhan, Indiana 46514

(219) 264-0745

Ttems: 76, 78

A inted Testing Lab

23 Vincent Street

Wayne, New Jersey 07470
(201) 628-1363

Rems: 4,5,6,20

Ball Acrospace Systems Division

Ball Corporation

Test Operations Department

Boulder Industrial Park

P.0, Box 1062

Boulder, Colorado 80306

(303) 441-4000

Ttems: 1-4, 7, 8, 10-14, 16, 18, 19, 21-24, 27-29, 32, 35-37,
40, 43, 44, 50-52

BASF Wyandotte Corporstion
1609 Biddle Avenue
‘Wyandotte, Michigan 48192
{313) 262-3300

Ttem: 64

B 7-M Testing Lab jes, Inc.
420 Davis Avenuc, P,O. Box 51

Dayton, Ohio 45401

(513) 253-8805

Ttems: 70, 78

Dayton T. Brown, Inc,
Church Street

Bohemia, New York 11716
(516) 589-6300

Item: 47-49, 71, 76, 78

Ine.
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Chrysler Corporation

Engincering, Purchating & Quality Offices
Exterior Lighting Laboratory

CIMS: 416-32-27

P,O. Box 1118

Detroit, Michigan 48231

{313)956-1951

Items: 1.3, 7, 8, 10-14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 27-29, 32

Cheysler Corporatian, Glass & Optics Laboratory
Dept, 5120~Organie Fluids & General Chemistry
12800 Oakland Avenue

Highland Park, Michigan 48093

(313) 956-3793

Items: 74-75

Detroit Testing Laboratory

8720 Northend Avenue

Detroit, Michigan 48237

{313) 398-2100

Ttems: 46, 20, 22, 23, 47-49, 64, 66-73, 76-78

Dow Chemical U.S.A,
1605
Freeport, Texas 77541
{(713) 238-1051

Ttem: 64

ETL Testing Laboratories, Inc,
Industrinl Park

Cortiand, New York 13045

{607) 753-6711

Items: 1-24, 27-33, 35-53, 63-65, 67-78

Ford Motor Company

Glass Research & Development Office
25500 W. Outer Drive

Lincoln Park, Michigan 48146

{313) 322-3000

ltems; 74, 75

Ford Photometric Laborato:

Chassis, Body and Mnl:dals Department
20000 Rotunda, Box 2053

Dearborn, Michigan 48121

(313) 337-5434

Items: 1-3, 58, 10-14, 16, 18-21, 27-29, 32

Ghesquiere Plastic Testing, Inc.
20304 Harper Avenue

Hurper Woods, Michigan 48236
(313) 885-3535

Ttems: 46-49, 74, 15

Greening Tesling Laboratories, Inc.
19465 Mt. Elliott Avenue

Detroit, Michigan 48234

(313) 365-7160

Items: 67-70, 78
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The Grote Manufacturing Company

2600 Lanier Drive—Box 766

Madison, Indiana 47250

(812) 273-2121

Ttems: 1,2, 7, 8, 10-14, 16, 18, 19,21, 24, 27-29, 32, 35,
36, 40,43, 44,73

Guide Lamp Division, GMC

2915 Pendleton Avenue

Anderson, Indlanﬂ 46011

(317) 644-551

ltems: 1-3, 7, 8, 10-14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 27-29, 59

Robert W. Hunt Company
810 S, Clinton Street
Chicago, Illinois 60607
(312) 922-0872

Ttems: 70, 71, 76

Industtial Testing Laboratories

2813 Eighth Street

Berkeley, Callfomm 94710

(415) 848-374

hems: 1-14, 16 1824, 27-29, 32, 35-37, 39-41, 43, 44,
50-52, 65, 67.69, 73-76

Intemationat Webbing, Inc.
6th & Union Strects
Whitehall, Pennsylvanin 18052
(215) 264-5125

Ttem: 76

Libbey-Owens-Ford Company
Technical Center

1701 Enst Broadway

Toledo, Ohio 43605

(419) 247-3731

Items: 74, 75

Link Engineering Company
13840 Elmira Avenue
Detroit, Michigan 48227
(313) 933-4900

Item: 70

Patzig Testing Laboratories Co., Inc,
3922 Delawore Avenue
Des Moines, Jowa 50313
(515) 266-5101
ltems: 67-69, 74, 75, 78

Rohm and Haas Company
Plastics Engineenng Laboratory
P.0. Box 219

Bristol, Pennsylvania 19007
{215) 785-8285

Ttem: 75
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Foster D, Snell Division

Booz, Allen & Hamilton Inc,

66 Hanover Road

Flotham Park, New Jersey 07932
(201).377-6700

Ttems: 64, €6

Southern Weaving Company

4 Evans Street

(P.0. Box 367)

Greenville, South Carolina 25602
(803) 233-1638

Item: 76 (Webbing)

Southwest Research Institute
6220 Culebra Road

P,0. Drower 28510

San Antonio, Texas 78284
(512) 684-5111

Htems: 49, 64, 66-69

U-Hayl International Inc.
P.0. Box

Phocnix, Arizona 85036
{602) 893-1736

ltem: 78

Union Carbide Corporation

Home and Automotjve Products Division
Tarrytown Technical Center

Tarrytown, New York 10591

{914) 345-2241

Ttem: 64

United States Testing Company, Inc,
1415 Park Avenue

Hobolken, New Jersey 07030

(201) 792-2400

Items: 46-49, 52, 74-76, 78

Forelgn Laboratorles

British Standards Institution

Hemel Hempstead Centre, Maylands Avenue

Hemel Hempstead, Herts,, England

Ttems: 1-9, 11-14, 16, 18-24, 27-29, 32, 35, 36, 40, 41, 43,
44, 46, 49-52, 71, 73-76

Canadian Standards Asseciation

178 Rexdale Boulevard

Rexdale, Ontario, Canada MSW IR

Ttems; 1-14, 16, 18-24, 27-29, 32, 35, 36.40 43,44, 46,
49-51, 66, 71, 14-76

Industrial A Institute

Ministry of lntemauanal ’l‘rnde & Industry

15-1, &-Chome Ginza, Chuo-ku

Tokyo.h an

Items: 1-8, 10-14, 16, 18-24, 27-29, 32, 35, 36, 40, 41, 43,

(2
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lnsxilux Fur Fahruuglechnik
Te Uni

Hans-Sommer-Strasse 4 \
33 Braunschweig, Gcn'nﬁny
Ttem: 70

Institut National Du Verre

Boulevard Defontaine, 10 0y
B-60G0 Charleroi, Belgium .
Ttems: 73,74, 15 [N

Istituto Elettrotecnico Nazionale

Galileo Ferraris

Corso Massimo d'Azeglio, 42

Torino 10125, Mtaly

Ttems: 1-8, 10-14, 16, 18, 24, 27-29, 32 33, 36, 40, 41, 43,
44, 50-52

Japan Vehicle lnspecnon Assncia\on

‘Tokyo & Testing L i

7-26-28, Toshnmn. Kna-Ku

Tokyo, Jap

Items: 1 -3 7, 8, 10-14, 16, lB, 19, 21, 24, 27-29, 32, 35,
36, 40,41 43, 44, 49-5

The Motor Industry Resesrch Assogiation
Whatling Street, N ineaton

Wnrwmkshxre. CV'10 OTU, England
Ttems: 67-70

Staatliches Matenalprufongsamt
4600 Dortmund-Aplerbeck
Marsbruchstr, 186, Germany
Items; 74,75

‘Toyoda Gosei Co., Ltd,
Experiment & Inspection Section
Haruhi Plant
1, Nagahala. Ochiai, Haruhi-Mura
i-Gun, Alchi-Preft Japan
Ttems: 67-69

‘Uniroys! Lid,

Industrial Products Division
1806 Notre Dame St, E.
Montrea), Quebec

H2K 2N3, Canada

(514) 522-2181

tem: 69

Union Technique de I'Automobile du Motacycle & du

N .

Cycle

Autodrome de Linas- Monllhcry

Linas-9)-Montlhery, Franc

Items: 1-8, 10-14, 16, 18-24, 2729 32,3537, 40, 41, 43,
44, 46, 49, 50—52, 66-69, 71, 13-76
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APPENDIX C

Organizations Concerned with
Safety Requlations and/or Safety
Equipment

1. National Highway Traflic Safety Administrati
(NHTSA)
U.S. Department of Transportation
400 Seventh Street, S.W,
Washington, D.C, 20590
Issues and enforces Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards and procedures relating thereto.

2. Bureau of Motor Carrier Safety (BMCS)
Federal Highway Administration
U.S. Department of Transportation
Washington, D.C, 20590
Issues and enforces Federal safety regulations relat-
ing to Interstate motor carriers and enforces noise
control regulations relating to i motor cars
Fler vehicles.

3. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
401 M Street, S.W.
Washington, D.C. 20460
Issues and enforces Federal motor vehicle emission
and aaise control regulations,

4. Department of the Treasury
Commission of Customs
Washington, D.C. 20229
Issues and enforces 19 CFR 12 requirements in re-
spect to Imported vehicles,

5. U.S, Government Printing Office (GPO)
Superintendent of Documents
Washington, D,C, 20402
Publishes United States Code (USC), Code of Fed-
eral Regulations (CFR), Federal Register (FR), Fed-
eral Motor Vehicle Safety Standurds (FMVSS), etc.

6. National Committee on Uniform Traffic
Laws & Ordinances
1776 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W.,
Washington, D,C. 20036
Prepares the Uniform Vehicle Code (UVC).

7. Vehicle Equipment Safety Commission (VESC)
1030-15th Street, N.W,
Suite 9508
Washington, D,C. 20005
Issues VESC h dards, r i"
ddtlons, and codes of practice.

k)|
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. American Nationa! Standards Institute (ANSI)
1431 Broadway
New York, New York 10018
Issues ANSI national standards.

Society of Automotive Engineers (SAE)

400 Commonwealth Drive

Warrendale, Pennsylvania 15096

Issues SAE ve standards,

dations, and codes of practice.

10. American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM)
1916 Race Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

Issues standards primarily relating to engineering
marerials and test methods.

hd

11, Canadian Standards Association (CSA}
178 Rexdale Boulevard
Rexdale, Ontario MOW [R3
Issues CSA dards,

datlons, and codes of practice.
American Society of Agricultural Engineers
(ASAE)}

o

Box 229
8t. Joseph, Michigan 45085
Issies ASAE 4 lards, r
dations, and codes of practice.
13. Association of American Railroads {AAOR)
1920 L Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20036
Issues AAOR ive standards, r .
datlons, and codes of practice.
i4. Staie of California nghway Patrol (CHP)
2611-26th Street (P.O, Box 893)
Sacramento, Californin 95804
1ssues and enforces Slnle .m/'ely-rclated regulations
and op State T 1pp { scheme.
15. California Air Resources Board
{025 **P"* Strect
Sucramento, California 95814
Issiues and enforces State emission conirol regula-
tions and operates certification scheme thereunder,

16, Department of State Police

P.0. Box 1299

Richmond, Virginia 23210

Issues and enforces State sqfety-related regulations
and of State equi) I { scheme,

NOTE: All other states have rule-making and en-
forcement schemes but, since they are par-
ticipants in the AAMVA Equipment Ap-
proval Program, individual agencies ar¢ not
listed.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT ", 20 Y

Tas mrem MTODTE DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

TRUCK SAFETY EQUIPMENT INSTITUTE, H
an Itlinois not-for-protit corporation:
ABEX CORPORMTICY, SIGYAL-STAT DIVISICN, H
a Delaware corporation: R, E. DIETZ
coMPANY, a New York corporation: s
GEOTE MANUFACTIRY NG CCHMPANY, a
Kentucky corporatien, :
Plaintiffs

V. CIVIL No. 75-636
POBRNRT KAMNE, Atterney Genecral,
Comronwealth of Pyansylvaniag :
Jooon oo, BMOSNE, Cilzotigy, DLoantyl-
vapia Depart of Transpertation: :
SEYMCRE G, IE ¢N, Directer, Bur2au
of Traific Safcty, FPunnsylvania H P
Department of Transporiatien: FILLED
WAED B, PAUMBACH, Chiaf, Ins;:.ection H Anmiantis Y rsa
pivision, Buresau cf Traffic Satety, HARRISBURS, PA.
Pennsvlvania Department of Transportaticn: @ QFE
CAROLINE G:RDNEIR, Supervisor, Automotive st
Ecuiprent Saction, Ruwreauw cf Traffic : "

nonaLD

Penneylivania Diparinent of £ir
: : I

indgivifually, ané in their 3T ELS
tlee, SIPJTV CLARNn
Defindants H

 Presenily vefeore the court ave creoez motions for sutmsry
judgment filed by plaintifis and defencarnts in the above-capticnad
czse in xhich plaintifis szek declaratory and injuncéive relief.
Both motions are filed pursuant to Reééral Rule of Civil Procadure 55

oh e -£2
- [y

rogethes willi Supsud idnvits” and relate only to Count- 1 of

plaintiffs' two-count complaint, concerning an issue of presmpticn

1 plaintiffs have alsp submpitted extensive documenzaticn

. of the legislative history of the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle

Safety Act of 19656 (Safety Act), 15 U.S.C. §§ 1381, et seq., as
amended, which hct they contend preempts the particular provisions
of the Pennsylvania Motor Vehicle Code, 7% P.5. §§ 101, et seq.,
providing for the state equipment approval program, and other
materials evidencing the general background and nature of the Fadaral
regulatory program for motor vehicle equipment.
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under the Supremacy Clause of the Constitution, Article VI, Clause
\. .

Jurisdiction in rzdcral court in this case is predica-
ted upon 2B U,5.C. § 1337 providing for jurisdiction in the
district courts for civil actions arising under acts of Congress

regulating commerce. See, GENERAL 'MOIDRS CORP. v. VOLPE, 321

F.Supp. 1112 (D.D2l, 1970}, modified gn gther gzounds, 457 F.z2d 922

(3d cir. 1972), and 28 U.S.C. § 1331 governing matters of a federal
question. It has also been recently established that this court
may properly consider the statutory. preemption claim set forth in
Count 1 and arising under the Supremacy Clause prior to convening

a three-judge court ander 28 U.S.C. § 2281, as it existed at the
time of the filing of this suit, for the purpose of deciding the
ponstitutional claim involving the Commerce Clause which is
contzined in Count 2. BAGANS vj LAVINE, $15 U.S. 528, 39 L =3 Zd

377 (1974).

re rzgtrictad

w
e

lioreover, in light of the fazt that w

posture of this case,

oy
®

to review of the preemption claim under ¢

“
‘G

we shall not ccnsider dsfencants' challenge to the validity of the
motor vehicle safety standards here in cuestion as thatvchallenge
pertains to the absence of consultaticn batween the Secretéry of
Transportation znd the Vehicle Eguipment Safety Cemmissicon (VESC)
prior to tnhe promulgation of the standards cortained in 15 U.S.C,
§ 1381, ?t seq., and as purportedly required in § 1392(%) (2), ZE
v.s.c.?

The pertinent section of the Safety Act coverning the
preemptive effect of the motor vehicle safety stancdards issued by
the Secretary under that Act is § 1392(d) of the Act which states:

"Whenever @ Federal mo%or vehicle

safety standard established under this
subchapter is in effect, nc state or

2 1n any event, it appears that for at least certain
of the standards issued hy the Sacretarxy:pursuant to the Safety -
Act sufficient consultation with lthe various enumerated interest
groups was undertaken prior to the issuance of such standards,
AUTOMOTIVE PARTS & ACCESSORIES ASSN. v, BOYD, 407 F.2d4 330, 334 n.5
(D.C.Cir. 1968B). :

2.
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.12 mwhAivision of a state shall have
any 2othority either to establish, or to
continue in 2ffect, with respect to any motor
vehicle or item of motor vehicle equipment
any safety st ndard applicable to the same
aepect of pexformance of such vehicle or item
of equipmant which is not identical to the
Federal standard. Nothing in this section
shall be construed to prevent the Federal
Government or the government of any state or
political sukdivision thereof from establish-

4 ing a safety reguirament applicable to motor
vehicles or motor vehicle aquipment procured
for its own use if such reguirement imposes a
highar standard of periorizance than that
reguired to comply with the otherwise
applicable Federal standard.”

" Section 1397 (b) further provides that the Federal standards are

designed to apply to motor vehicles prior to and at the time of
their initial sale and introduction into the market in interstate

commerce; that is, to manufacturexs, distributors and dealers, and

“* that state standards are to be effective and enforced as to used
‘motor vehicles in the possessioneof consumers in order to assure a

"continuing and effective national traffic safety program.

In light of these express terms establishing the scope
and breadth of the Faderal regulatory scheme of motor vehicle

eguipment, defendants concede that to the extent the State'‘s

.siandards regulating motor vehicle eguipment are not identical te

lawfully acopted Federal sianderds, they are null and veid and

efendants maintain, however, that the Szate's

[w]

unenforcagbie,
standards In thair entirety are non-identical with the ecrrasgonding
Federal stzngards and that the State has recognized this fact and
chiosen tg treat its own divercent standards as if they were
idgentical to the Federal standards and to informally enferce these
“conformed" standards without having actualliy formally enacted or
issued either through the legislaiive branch cr the }dminist:ative
branch "identical" standards. While gefendarnts represent ihat such
identical standards are in the making and when enacted will be
enforced independently of the Federal enforcement effort but with

due reyard to the Federal standards while the State enforcement

_procedures are being completed, they contend that at this time there

-~

3.
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is no viable case or controversy which could establish jurisdiction
nf tﬁ; Federal courts. And.in the event that this court does find
the existence of a concrete case or controversy underlying this
present acﬁion, defendants finally maintain that the State has made
no effort to impose civil sanctions or otherwise cnforce the State
standards against plaintiffs and that, accordingly, any case or
controversy is not ripe for adjudicaticn by this court.

We agree that to the extent the State standards
governing aspects of performance for equipment on motor vehicles are
co-oxtensive with Federal standards and non-identical such State
standards are null and void and unenforceable. In view of the
comprehensive nature of the Federal and State standards encomgassing‘
nqarly theusame motor vehicle equipment and covering many of the
same aspects of performance howaver, it would be incredible that

come of the standards were not idsntical. In many respacts, the two

re

sets of stapdards &c ceriein different criferie as wa2ll 28
different stzndards of performence Sor like types of ejuizment, Dut
in certzin arcas basic types of eguipment are includad in hoth sets
of standards ané are suvbject to identical sterdards. For instance,
as piaintiffs pcint out both the Federal and State standards
reguire that certain vehicies be equipped with two red tailliznts
mounted on the rear; two stoplights, one mounted on each sids of
‘the rear; four red reflectors, with two mounted on thes rear and cne
mounted on &ach side near the rear; two amber reflectors, m:ﬁnte
on the sides near the frent; and four fignal lights, two wounted

on the front and two mounted on the rear. Corpare, Pernsylvania
Motor Vehicle Coda, 75 P.S. §§ 801(d), (e), (£): 202 {c) (1) and {(c)

(2) with Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standaré 108, 49 C.F.R. §
571.108, Tables I-IV. Cf, Appendix Vol.I, pp. 303, 307, 317, 347,
367, plaintiffs’ motion for summary judgrent. Adopting the same
narrow construction of the "aspect of performezhce” language in the
preemption section of the Act as was utilized in CERYSLER CORP. v.

TOFANY, 419 F.2d 499 (2d Cir. 1969), we ~re ncvertheless compelled

. L4,




‘voluntary cooperation of manufacturers and distributors, plaintiffs
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to ;onclude thrt an actual case and controversy does in fact exist
,2 this case upon which to establisirjurisdiction in the Fedoral
courts.3 4
Furthermore, defendants admittedly are informally

enforcing the State standards as they exist at present while con-

ctruing thcp so that they are in "cgnformity" with the Federal i
standards. Defendants have also indicated their intention to enact

identical State standards in the future and to enforce them S
independently of but in conjunction with Federal enforcement proce-
dures, thile defendants contend they do not intend to proseccute

under the present State standards and that they marely scek the

remain subject to the State standards and accoréingly, under those
circumstances, we belicve there is a ripe, justiciable.contrpoversy
at hand. Cf, Apvendix Vol.I, pp. 422-423, plaintiffs' motion foxr
summary judsment.

Recognizing that certain factual dispates agparentiy
are raised in the briefs and affidavitis summitied dy both parties in

sppport of thzir respective motions for summary judoment, ws conglude

inat fhese disputed Jacits are neither criticeal te nor dispositive

these ratters, Confining our 2ttention to ihe preenpticen
therefore, we further concluée that while neitéar axpress nor clear,
the nature, seccpe and circumstances underlying the enactment of the
Safety Act &nd the issuance of the related Federal moter vehicle
safety standards necessarily imply that such provisions were
intended to preempt toth the creation and the enforcement of
identical standarés by the state concerning motor vehicle eguipment

up until the time of the vehicle's first purchase.

3 At the same time we frown on the possibility that
defendants could avpid the effect of the preemption section by
informally enforcing non-identical standards “deemed" to be in
conformity with the Fedcral standards and essentially seeking
voluntary compliance and cooperation by the manufacturers of motor
vehicles under the independent state enforcement procedures through
alleged "threats" of actual prosecution and enforcement.
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The Federal program for enforcing the duly promulgated
metor vehicle safety standards essentially c¢.uwt ists of a seip~
certification process by each motor vehicle manufacturer, distributor
or dealer in which they are regquired to cortify that each vohicle
or item of motor vehicle eguipment subject to the standards are in
compliance prior to the first purchase of the item. The Safety Act
mzkes it unlawful to certify that an item of motor vehicle
equipment conforms to an applicable Federal standard if the
manufacturer in the exercise of "due care" has reason to know that
such certification is false or misleading in any material respect.
15 U.S.C, § 1397(a) (1) (C). The Act is administered by the Naticnal
Highway Traffic Safety Adminigtration (NRTSA) of the United States
Department of Transportation and the Secretary is afforded broad
investigative powers to aid in eqforcament of the Act's provisions,
15 U.S.C. § 1401. NHTSA enforces the Act by reguiring, inter alia,
detailed repordkeeping and data suhmission evidzncing the
manufacturer's compliance with'the‘A:t and the kasis for their self-
certification. 15 U.S.C. §§ 1401, 1418. 1In adsiticn, NIFSA
conducts compliance testing of eguizment with thie Federal sitandards
on a random basis and also authorizes reaall czapaigns where
eguioment is not in conformity with the Fedaral standards or where
it contains a safety-related defect, The Salety hct provides for
civil penaltiss, 15 U,S.C. § 1392, znd the Tnitsd States’ is ziso
permitted to seek injunctive relief in Faderal distriet courts to
restrain violations of the Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1399,

The Pennsylvania enforcement scheme of previsiens in
the Vehicle Code regulating motor vehicle equipment: on the other
hand, entails the "approval" of each regulated item of egquipment
prior to its sale or use and also reguires such apgroval prior to
the sale, use or inspection of any vehicle on which such equipment
is installed. See, 75 P.S. §§ 807, 808, 812 and 81%9(e). Approval
must be sought either through the State itself by the filing of the
necessary materials, or through the American Association of Motor
Vehicle Administrators (AAMVA), Pennsylvania's recognized equipment

"6,
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wopToval agent. In either cvent necither Pennsylvania nor the AMVA
-onducts compliance tests themsclf, but rather they .Ledquiie the
éubmission of test reports from approved laboratories upon which
each relics in establishing the manufacturer's compliance with the
applicable State safety standards, The AAMVA also periodically
re~tests the equipment and spot-checks the market for unapproved
equipmcnt.' thether approval is obtained through tha State or
througn the AANVA, however, compliance with tha Federal enforcenent
procedure and self-certificatien by the manufacturer that its
equipment conforms to the effective Federal standards is not
cufficient in and of its2lf to assure compliance with the $tate
standards &nd receipt of the.nccessary "approval' under the corres-
popding State enforcement program, The State Vehicle Code preovides
criminal sanctions for vieclations of the equipment ap?rcval
provisions, 75 P.5. §§ 807, B08, and alsp rostricts the titling,

reuistration or irsuance of a certificate of iaspecticn e metor

to the tine of the first purchzse of such eguipmant, we are

constrainad to conclude that the Pennsylvania motor vehicle =2q

¥t approval program {s precmpted ¥y thz Szfety Act of 1965 we the
>recram rzaches fedevallw-regulatad ejuipmant,
Deferdants agpaar Lo acknowledge that the preemption sectien
contained in 15 U.5.C, § 1392(d) precempts and precludes any State
standards which are "not identical” to corresponding rederal
standards. ‘The thrust of their primery argument in cppositicn te
cormplete rreomption is, however, that by virtue of the fact the
states were enabled to rctain "identical® standards it must
hecessarily follow that Congress intended that the states b2 allowed
to observe different enforcement procedures, pre-sale and post-zale,
provided that maanufacturers be allowed to market their equipment

where they have obtained compliance with the Federal procedurcs and

1.

68-093 0 - 80 - 14
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are awaiting pending state "approval"., In support of this argument,
defandants emphasize thad i p.owe ¢ cvrosa of the Safety Act as
e;préssiy set forth in 15 U.S.C. § 1321 is the reduction of "traffic
accidents and deaths and injuries to persons resulting from traffic
accidents” and not the countervailing policy of uniformity in
enforcement. Dafendants stress the experience and expertise which
the various étatcs have acquired in regulating motor vehicle cguip-
ment and contend that their diverse enforcement practices would
supplement and enhance the Federal enforcement effort in an other-
wise burdensome task on a national scale; independent state
enforcement procedures are decmed to be encouraged by the Act in

order to advance the uniform Federal standard and the policy of less

_traffic accidents at the expense of uniform regulation, which is

considered only a sccondary consideraticn underlying the standards.

Assuming, arguando, that the intent of Congress as

enforcement rrusrams of the statcs as wall avcozéing to their

particularized caostoms and moans, we do not belisve that this schow
could be effectuated without necessarily resulting in either
peintless diplicative efforts on the part of the states or, in the

alternative, th2 institution oi a £ifisrent, aun-ifentical

standard by the states. To afford the states the sutvhority to eract
) Y

enforcsment programs which are corpativle bhut not necessarily
identical to the Federal enforcement scheme in order to account Ior
Congress' implied permission to the st;tes to aSopt "identical"
standards appears to mask a distinction without a difference; vhere
motor vehicle equipment is ultimately sukject to the same identical
standard whether scrutinized under both a state and a Federal
enforcement scheme or solely under the Federal scheme, it dees not
appear that a sepérate state enforcement program, pre-sale, could

be of benefit or legitimatized in any way. .
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: ror instance, <ia *he situation where a manufacturcr has
pLopcrly sclf—ccrtkficd compiiance with lhe Frderal standards under
the Federal enforeement provedure and is maxketing the preduct
shile awaiting approval by the stiéte on a ponding application, can
the state do otherwise than grant the approval without necessarily
establishing ox inveoking a different "standurd" hy renson of its
different enforcement preocedure and thereby vanducsing the Fedexal
enforcemant procedure a nullity? Congress intended a uniform
minimum national standard for specified aspects of motor vehicle
eguipment prrformance which would ensura that the vehicle would be

agmitted for ;arket in all states, and it provided a comprehensive
p iz

. enforcement svsten under which all manufacturers, distributors and

dcalers ar

@

to cortify compliance with this standard. C£, Aprendix

Vol.1I, pp. 786, 664, plaintifis' motion fer summary judament.
. -
Under thesz circumstances, to 2llow a staie's enicrcament procsdures

Tajora

1=t

son S e e -
anIsrYIax

to te more strict than th2

Wz believe that the languags of § 1392id) by iis
exprezs tovos cannot ke censtrued to have a pre-~smpiive effect

within ihe reaning of th: Supreacy Clause, but in light of the fact

Fiy

1 standard pre-sale can only be maintaired i

Guplicative eifert, we are

w

prucedures would merely constitute

constrained to conclude that preemztion is irmplicit in the snactment
of the Sa}ety Act znd tm2 promuleation of extznsive pre-sale rotor
vahicle eguipment safety standards, Under the test enunciated in
FIARIDA LINE & AVOCEDD GROWERS v, PAUL, 373 U.S. 132, 10 L Ed4 23

248 (1963) and HIXEE v. DAVIDOWITZ, 31z U.S. 32, B85 L I3 581 ({1941)

for determining when Federal preemption is necessary and justiiiee,4

4 In FLORIDA LIME & AVOCADO GROWERS v. PAUL, 10 L Ed
24, at 256-57, the Supreme Court stated: "Whether a State may
constitutionally rejoct commodities which a federal authority has
certified to be marketable depends upon whether the state
regulation 'stands as an obstacle te the accomplishment and
execution of tha full purposes and objeciives of Congress,’' HINES
v. DAVIDOWITZ, 312 U.S. 52, 67 o « . . The test of whether both

9.

]
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it.is cvident that both the state and ihe Federal enforcement

B chures cannot be executed pre-sale withput creating doubts and
confusion as to the applicable and required standard and thereby
impairixyg th; effectivencss of the Federal standard and the Federal
method of enforcement, and frustrating {he a2cesmplishwment of the
Safety Act's full purposes and objectives, Cf£, NMOTOR COACH
EMPIOYEES v. ‘LOCKXRIDGE, 403 U.S. 274, 29 T, Bd 24 473 (1971);
CAMPBELL v. HUSSEY, 368 uU.S5. 297, 7 L Ed d 292 (1961).

The Federal enforcement scheme relies on a self-
certificotion process, and because of-the comprehensive nature and
national application of the Federal standards the NHTSA is
'nderstandably unable to conduct actual tests on each item of
eguiminent and verify its complfance with the Federal standards prior
to its entrance into the market for sale. Clearly there is room
for additional, stricter enforcem%Pt on a more localizad basis and
tnis we belisve was the reole intended by Concress to ke given to tha
states - as to post-sale enforcement of the reéoeral stancdards
during use of the equipment by the consumer . Congress' desire to
invplve the states in a consultative role during the Jorimulation of
the individual Fedefal standards, ils capress dalzgation to the
states of the function of inspecting used meoter vehiclies; that is,
motor vehicles after the first purchase, and its implied intencion
of allowing the stzics to have “idinvical® ztanfiris %o th? Frl.ral

stendards can all me understood and given hiviorious, colrerent

n.4 contd:

fedsral and state regulations may operate, or the state regulaticn
must give way, is whether both reguleaticns can ds enforcegd without
impairing the federal superintendence of the field, not whether

trey are aimed at similar or different objectivas,

"The principle to be derived from cur decicien is
that federal regulation of a field of commevce should not te ces
preempiive of state regulatory power in the absence.of persuasive
reasons— either that the nature of the regulated subject matter
permits no othex conclusion, or that thé Congress has unmistakably
50 ordained." (Citation omitted)

5 The states have also been afforded, however, the
role of enforcing the Federal standards in' new cquipment items by .
reason of the "approved" aspect of their program and the states®
ability to act swiftly in cases where the new equipment poses an
actual and immediate danger to the public. CHRYSLER CORP. v.
TOFANY, 419 F.2d 499 (24 Cir. 1969).

" 10.
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meaning Lf it is recognized that the Federal standard was intendad
tn be enforced by the Fedoral auéhofléins-at the ‘manufacturer,
diétributor,and dealer's level and by the states in a complimentary
fashion on a pofit-sale Lasis in order to assure a continuing and
effective natienal tra€tfic safety pregram. Cf, Appendix Vol. II,

p. 664, plaintiffs' moticn for summary judgmunt. MNorcover, it vwould

appear that ‘the Fadamal schuan enLaiiing geli-cortillention would
be more proper and suituble at the manufacturing and distriluting
level which is more of a national chizracter and scope and
encompasses manufacturvers and distributors dealing in a large velune
of goods and cagaged in intorstate cowwsercs, while regulation of
motor vehicle eguipmsnt at the consumer level would be particularly
venducive to lecalizod stute enforecment. CE, Appan di: Vol. II,
pp. 624~525, plaintiffs' molion for summary judgnent.

Furthernore, the Safety Act expressly reserves corned

lzw lizbilities, warranty chlicatiens and cersursr remedies in 15

cuzrantes that safety-related or obher del2cis do not svist in the

nd to avoid fereclesure of rovedies whare dzfects de in

n
W}
j o4
w
b
«©
=}
o
o

presurption s2etion provi

intent of Congress

as finally enzcted.

o,
13
R

tion of the 1irits of st nforcerent procsdurzs prepar?
Deuclas W. Tems, Acting rowinistrator for the NHISA, on Xay 13,
1971, and publishad in the Federal Register, Vol.36, No.l06, June 2,
1671. 1In that opinion Mr, Toms states, in part, as follows: R
"Althcugh this section [1392(d)] makes it clear
that state stundards must be ‘identical' to the

Federal standards to the extent of the latter's
coverage, the procedural relationship between

1l.
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State and Federal enforcemenc od.cne stundarde
is not explicitly stated in the Act. It has
Leen the position of this aguncy that the Aet
permits the States to enforce the stancdards,
indeprndently of the Federal enforcoament
effort, since olherwire there weuldd have bLeen
no reason for the act to al ey the siztes to
have even ‘identical’ standevds, . . . [A)
State vequirenent of oblnining priox tppr

+ before a product may ¥
Padoval roguliiecy o
Aléfasence Jn tie lead ¢
approval nroc. ond thie bed.
self-certification].”

Relying on a statement orfered by Scenater Magiuson that the Lill was
designed to set a minimum standard which if complied with zhouid
cnable the vehicle or 2guimment to be admitted to all states, Mr,
Tems concluded that states could continue with indepondent enforee-
rent proceduras provided that menufacturers were allowed to risket

their products conforming to the Foderal schere while the state

o

procadures wore corpleted.

an inguiry by the Superintenﬁent of the INliuseis Siataz itigis v

Polic2, Dactor William PFadden stated that "whoros Shate s aniv-ls =are

At the sape tire, howover, Dovltor faddon axy»orsed wicsg s’ oy 3 Lo

ciw and to wrat cnlint statve shaalar
aspect of perfcrmance must conform to Federal standards and
concludzd trat thiz decisicn nust be reachad ag to zach steiizsd

~
: [+ .

While the interpretation of the precwption issue Which

was offered by Mr. Tems purporis on one hané to follew the caonasy

6 plaintiffs maintain that Doctor Hadden's views rerre-
sent the mcost extreme position taken by the NHYSA in advocating no
preemption., Plaintiffs deom the subrequent interpretation issued
by Mr. Toms to be 2 softening of that position in that it
recognizes preemption to the extent that the state approval programs
preclude the marketing of products which have conformed to federal
enforcement procedures but are awalting state approval. Plaintiffs
also contend that a more rocent opinion of the Ciiief Administrator
of NHTSA in 1973, Doctor James B. Grugory, evidences a further
retreat from the original position of the agency and indicates thelr
intention to wilhhold interprotations of the pruemptive effoct of
the act antil the issue has, bnen deprided by the courts. To tie

N .

emene 12,
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dvanced by Scnator MagnusoB to the'effdct that a uniisoeon winima
stansfard was to bo observed which would assure vehicles in ecpli-
ance would he admitied to 211 states, on the other hand it furihex
ruacens that onca admitted to the state under the Federal enflorve-
ment scheme it may thercarter be prohibited under the state's
wethod of cnforcement for the same Federal standard. Clearly this
is an wwreagsonoble interxpuetation, piarticularly in lichi of the
alternative censtruction veiced by plaintiffs, and runs contrary to
the previous discussion concerning eoncurrent state and Federal
enforcencnt procedures and the imprebabla2 maintenance of a uniform
set of Fodeoral standards, Furthermore, the alternative explanation
for Congress' decision to allow the states to retain "identical®
standards; that is, that the "identical state standards were
inténded to be implemented and eqforced on a post-sale basis,
cenports with the overall enforcement structure estabiished by the
Safeoty Act and undzraines the main promise of Mr, Tors' opinicn
that se2parate mothots of enforcement were intended,

Accordingly, it is the vonclusion of this court that
the Safety Act of 1966, within the wmeaning of § i03id) of the Act,
15 U.S,.C. § 1332{d), completely precmpts both Fanrsylvania standsrds
to the extent that thay cover the szme aspect of performance and &xe

nen-identical, and any state methed of snforcement of identical
.

standards on vehicies or vehicle ecuipment prior to the first
purchase,. We rzach this decision based on our cenclusicn as to the
intent ;f Cenmgress in eracting the Act, 25 gleaned from the
gpacific provisions of the Act and from its legislative history.
'-If Congress has in fact intended otharwise, then it is the
responsibility and oblizaiion of Congroms to exyressly and clesarly

étate its intaentions and conform the state of the law as it exists

following these racent judicial decisions to such intentions.

n.5 contd:

court's knowledge, however, documents containing this opinion by
Doctor Gregory have not been provided to this court.

,v.vl3—;——_.. N
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£ANCK SARLPY wQUUEPMERY 1IRSTITUTE, H
an 112iaois Wot~f ve-prolit covperation;

LAY CORIORATION, SIGHAL-STAT DIVISION, :
a selueare cckpoosation; R, T, RIETS

(o6 u.u.(, a flaw YG.ck curpovation: :
GROTS AARUFACTURALG CONDARY, a

oent _u:<y Ln*;:oration, :

Plaintiffs
v. CIVIL No. 75-836

ROMIRW RPNE, :\L(;.rm.y Goneral,
Cenawrenwerdth of Tennavivaniag

JaCLI G, ANHUAR, Sacretary, I

caAnsyle

vania Dpa portsion; :

SEYLCRE G, shor, Burcan

of 'Z‘ "l‘\lﬂ : .

T tlons .

w 3wcl, chied, Inspoction :

Divirion, Jurcan ic Sulfety,

Pcnﬁsy'lv::')‘a Department of 'J‘r"v‘!_;or\.a-.lon, H

CHRINLINS CAF w-‘\.“.‘l, Surzcviser, A\_Lc*wvv

: =nt Szotion, Bursau cr Traf : RO

[ d Lot P

2, 1y, =od in Lheir v St

P -

Defaongdants H Ll b T

-V R
QIR
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acccrdance with cur pecorandum filed in the abova-casiicnsd cise

sSants' T

this d:x? 17 1S CESERLD that
jufuwent be and is hereby deniead. .

iT IS FURTHER ORDERED that plaintiffe' motien fov
su-mary judcaent B2 and is hereby granted and 2ntered against

de¢fendants,

’ & '\."( ,. ‘,'_\ ot e ... S
R. Dixon lierman
United States District Jurige
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Having decided in favor of the affirmative on the
rrcemption claim forwarfled by plaintiffs, our decision is
disngsitive as to both Counts I and II of plaintiffs' cemplaint
without the necessity of convening a three-juage court ito hear the
Commarer Clause claim contained in Count IX. Plaintiffs' motien

for summary Jjudgment will be granted.

Zn approprinte ordor will be ontered.

5 M : .
R. Dixon iierman .
 United States District Judge
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PIR CURIAM:

This apper 1 arises out of litigation which
presents the guestion whether the National rraffic and
Hotor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966l precmpts state
enforcoment of safety standards, identical to federal
motor vehicle safety standards, against pre-consumer -
links in the chain of distribution. The district court
concluded that there is such preemption. However, because
the state statute considered by the district court has
now been replaced by new legislation, we vacate the
judgment of the district court and remand for develop-
ment of a record pertaining to the new enactment and

reconsideration of the legal issues in light of such

record.

I.

The National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety
Act, which is administered by the National Highway
Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA)}, is the mechanism
by which Congress has sought to achieve the goal of
greater highway safety. Under the Act, the NHTSA is
charged with thé responsibility for promulgating
federal safety standards applicagle to motor

vehicle equipment.

"1, 15 u,s.c. §5 1381 et seq.

2. See id § 1392(a).

)
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A syston of sclf-certification is the method
w ehjch the federal safety»§tandandc‘ar: enfcreed;
sepefacturers, distributors and dealers, ipon transfer-
ring a new vehicle or piece of eguipment, must certify

that the vehicle or equipment complies with relevant

3
federal standards., The Act makes it unlawful to

‘manufacture, sell or.offer for sale a new vehicle or

.
item of eguipment which does not conform to federal

4
safety standards. Violators are subject to civil
£

penalties of up to $800,000 for each transgressior. In

addition, the Act authorizes suits to enjoin thw sale
of non-conforming vehicles and equipment? and subjects
manufacéurers and distributors io repurchase and re-
placement obligations as to defective vehicles and
eguipment.

Finally, the Act contains an explicit pre-

emption section which provides:B

. (d) Whenever a Federal motor vehicle safety standard cstablished
under this subchapter is in effect, no State or political subdivision v
g State shall have any authority either to establish, or to continue in
effect, with respect to any motor vehicle or item of motor vehicle
equipment any safety standard applicable lo the same aspect of per-
. formance of such vehicle or item of equipmant which is not identical
. to the Federal standard. Nothing in this section shall be construed to
‘prevent the Federal Government or the government of any State or
political subdivision thereof from establishing a safety requirement
applicable to motor vehicles or motor vehicle equipment procured for
its own use if such requirement imposes a higher standard of per-
formance than that required to comply with the otherwise applicable
Federal standard. .

"3, See id. § 1397.
4, See id, 1397(a)

§
§

5. See id, § 1398,
§

6. Sec id. § 1399 ‘ ‘

7. See id. § 1400. Manufacturers are also subject to a
number of additional obligatlons under the Act.
Sce id. §§ 1411-14.

0. 1d. § 1392(d).

-2-
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) At the time the districi court Jecided this
case, Pennsylvania law required state approval of motor
vehicle equipment as a prgcondigion to the sale and
use of such equipment within the commonwealth.9 Under
this law, the Commonwecalth regulaged a wide range of‘ ‘
items, many of which were the subject of federal safety
‘standards., In order to obtain state approval, a manu-
facturer was regquired to submit a photograph of the '
item of equipment or a sample, a laboratory test
report,lo and an approval feell to the American Associ-~
ation of Motor Vehicle Administrators {(AAMVA),
Pennsylvania's approval agent.

Pennsylvania law madé it a misdemeanor for
a manufacturer or distributor to sell or offer to
sell certain unapproved eguipment within the Common-
., wealth. Other provisions were also designed to pre-
vent the introduction of unapproved equipment into

12
the state.

.8+ The content of Pennsylvania law was somewhat tangled.
See page 4 infra.

10. A federal sclf-certification form was not acceptable
as a substitute for the laboratory report.

1l. The fees ranged from $50 to $200. R '

12. For example, the Pennsylvania Vehicle Code for-
bade the operation of vehicles with unapproved
equipment and prohibited the titling or registra-
tion of vehicles containing such equipment.
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.

In 1972, the Attorney General of Penn-
& ~;1 * 2a.avu wa cpanion stating that the Common-~
vio ch's approv;f};:Eh;nism was pfécmpted by federal
law as to those items which were the subject of
federal safety standﬁfds. The D;rector of the Bureau
of Traffic Safety then handed down a directive which
called for strict adherence to the opinion of the
Attorney General. However, it appears that Pennsylva;ia's
approval program continued in operation.

This suit w55 £iled in l9i5 by several manu-
facturers of automotive lightind equipment who had
not obtained AAMVA approval for their products., >
. The ﬁanufacturers sought a declarafory judgment that
the Pennsylvania approval mechaﬁism was preempted by
federal law or was contrary té the Commerce Clause.
After extensive discovery was had, Judge Herman granteé
plaintiffs' motion for suhﬁary judgment and issued a
supporting opinion.14

There were two aspects to Judge Herman's
opinien. First, he had to deal with the Commonwealth's
argument that there was no live case or controversy.
At the outset of that argument, the Commonwealth con-
ceded that state safety standards not identical to
federal safety Qtandards were void., But the Common-
wealth went on to urge ;hat it had no extant standards
identical to federal standards, thus suggesting

that the question of the validity of state

13, It appears from the record that, prior to the
institution of this litigation, the Commonwealth
undertook numerous activities designed to win
these manufacturcrs' compliance with the approval
program,

14, Sve 419 F. Supp. 6880 (M.D. Pa. 1976).

Sy
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enforccm;nt of identical standards was not before
the court.15 The district judge concluded, howevel,

+v ~ethat thape.were in existence certain state standards
identical o 'foderal s - -'ia,lﬁ and that a viable
casc or controversy thus existed; He then turned to
the question of przamption. znd ruled that the
National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act excluded

.
the states from any role in enforcing safety standards

at the pre-consumer level., This appeal then ensued.
II.

On June 17, 1976, the Governor of Penn~
sylvania approved Act Number 81, thch repealed the
existing vehicle code and enactéd a new one to go
into effect on July 1, 1877. ‘Several sections of the
new code bear on the préblem that Judge Herman confronted.

The new vehicle code provides for the adop-
tion by the Commonwealth of egisting federal safety

17 .
standards, thus obviating any future questions as to

15, The Cemmonwealth, recognizing that non-identical - B
safety standards werc void, had decided informally to
treat such non-identical standards as if they
were identical to federal safety standards. Before
the district court, however, the Commonwealth urged
that this informal action did not comply with state
administration procedures and that the de facto
identical standards must therefore be deemed ineffective.

16. Judge Herman's conclusion appears to have rested on

two bases. First, he stated that given the fact
that the federal government and the Commonwecalth both
regulated many of the same items of automotive
equipment, it was inconceivable that there would not
be some identical standards. See 419 F. Supp. at

. 691-2, Second, he noted that the federal standards
and the Pennsylvania ctandards required the identi-
cal amount of lights on automobiles. See id. at 692. ,

17. See PA. STAT. ANN. £it. 75 §§ 4103(b)-(c) (Purdon
Supp. 1977). )

=5~
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vhether the state standards are identical to federal standards.

T wdme oetbumdoes SRt 2 S ot romiire, mePamwhmda
Department of Transpor - s.n o adéSt « orogram of
equipment appx.'oval.‘B The new code states that if an
approval system is pui into force by regulation, it
shall be illegal to sell or offer to sell any equip-
ment that does not conform with existing regulations.19
Finally, the ‘new code provides the outlines for the a;proval
program, shodld one be adopted, including ‘the bay-
ment of approval fees and the reguirement of the sub-
mission of laboratory test reports.20

Although Judge Herman rendered his decision
subsequent to the passage of Act Number 81, his opinion
did not advert to the new legisiation. Instead, it
focused on the provisions of éhe then-existing
vehicle code, which has now been repealed., 1In place
of the code that Judge Herman considered now stands
the new vehicle code which, instead of being self-
executing as to the exi;tence and operation of an
approval system, leaves the adoption of such a program
to administrative regulations., And it appears 'that,
as of this time, no regulations have been promulgated

or proposed regardiné the establishment of an

approval system pursuant to the new code.

v

18. 1d. § 4104.

19. Id. § 1407(a). As opposed to the state of affairs
under the old Code, violators are now suhject solely
to civil penalties and not to criminal sanctions.

20. Id, §§ 1954, 4104-05.

21, On June 13, 1977, the Commonwealth temporarily re~
adopted all regulations promulgated under the old
Vehicle Code. These temporary regulations will
remain in effect until replacement regulations are
adopted. Sca Pa. Bulletin, Vol. 7, No. 25 at 1647.
This rcadoption, however, 8ffords no clues as to the
content of any replacement regulations.

-
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vnder these civcumstances, we helieve that
the dpprDDrluuc vourse oL a;;_un-iﬁ zo“eLu-n thas
case to the district court for Fhe takingvof evidence
regarhing the new statute. The pivotal feason is the
fact that Judge Herman has not had an opportunity to’
scrutinize the new statute, which might prove to b%
‘somewhat different in operation from the repealed
code. A remand in order to avoeid the necessity of
our passing én the constitutionality of a state statute’
in the absence of any record would appear to be
especially apt in view of the national significance
of the legal issues posed by this case.

our conclusion is fo}tified by several other
considerations. First, the Commonwealth has not yet
taken any steps to authorize an approval system under
the new vehicle code., Although plaintiffs have urged
that the adoption of such a program is inevitable,
and that we should rely on the oral representations of
counsel for the Commonﬁea;;h that such a sysfem will

ultimately go into force, we do not believe that

spcculatlon on our part as to the future regulatory 1ntent

RIRERPR R O ) 2e

of the Commonwealth is in order. A remand might go

22, Plaintiffs urge that such reliance is mandated
by our en hanc decision in United States v.
Frumento, 552 F.2d 534 (34 Cir, 13877). We
are unable to accept this proposition. In
Frumente, this Court relied upon statements of
counscl not to indicate that the government was
definitely going to take certain actions, but only
- to establish that a certain occurrence = the calling
of a recalcitrant witness before grand juries — was
capable of repetition for purposes of the "capable
of repetition yet evading review" exception to the
mootness doctrine. llere, however, we would be re-
quired to accept an oral represcntation by counsel
as a definitive statement of the future course of
the Commonwecalth's administrative rule-making process,
a far more serious step, and one which we are unwill-
+ ing to take, '

68-093 0 - 80 - 415
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far to remove the need for such guesswork, either
through the evidapcs < * @i-ts ¥ -2+ siBuce anngihly
by means of a stipulation between the p sties.

Additionally, the absence of a record as to She

nature of the new vehicle code and any approval systom

which might be promulgated thereunder deprives us of

the ability to assess the burdens a new approval
—W

system might impose upon manufacturers. For example,

there is no evidence as to the level of approval fees
that might be charged under the new code. Since ve do
not have before us information that might well be
crucial to the disposition of this case, either in
the distriét court or in this Court, it is advisable
to remand the matter to the district court.23

We are, of course, aware that a remand
will necessarily cause sbme delay in the ulti-
mate resolution of this litigation. However, we are

confident that the district court will give prompt

B P R T R e L I P2 IR Al I O O RCN T v

23, It is true that Judge Herman's opinion did not
advert to the burdens imposed’'by the approval system
under the old vehicle code. 1Instead, he premised
his precmption decision on the conclusion that the
National Safety Act precluded any state enforcement
at the pre-consumer level. .

The fact that Judge Herman adopted this approach

does not militate against a remand for development

of a record as toc the new code. ‘If the new

code produces more substantial burdens than the

old, it is possible that Judge Herman might premise

a decision that Pennsylvania's enforcement program,
assuming that one is adopted, is preempted for such
reasons instead of relying on a per se rule. And assum-
ing that Judge Herman hews to his original position,

if this Court would'dutermine that a per se rule is

not appropriate, we would need a record in

order to decide whether the Pennsylvania program .
uneconstitutionally burdens the plaintiffs and is

thus precompted by federal law.

-
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On Appeal from the United States District Court
for the Middle District of Pennsylvania .
s ~_ Civil No. 75~536

. . ey,

Present: VAN'DUSEN, ADAMS and GIBEONS, Circuit Judges
' " JUDGMENT
This cause came on to be heard on the record fram the United States District .
Court for the Middle District of Pennsylvania and was argued by counsel on June 1,
1977. ' '

On consideration whereof, it is now here ordered and adjudged by this Court.
that the judgment of the said District Court entered September 16, 1976, be,” and

‘the same is heveby vaceted and the cause remanded for proceedings in accordance with

the opinion of this tourt.

. . ATITEST: N
. S o el
R 7 Dea bl s —
; “cl \f Y ;

July 27, 1977
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attention to thib matter, thus minimizl.g the possi-
bility of undue hardship.z4 . g

. The judgment of the district court will be
'vacated and the cause remanded for procecdings con-

sistent with this opinion. ..

TO THE CLERK: -

Xindly file the foregoing per curiam opinion.

Circuit Judge

DATED:

pate b Sl T T B

L O A R PR Rt TRt

24, 1In addition, counsel for the Comnmonwealth stated
at oral argument that no enforcement actions would
be initiated against the plaintiffs during the
pendency of proceedings on remand,
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IN THE UNITED STAf%S DISTRICT™ COURT ~
FCR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

TRUCK SAFETY EQUIPMENT INSTITUTE,

an Illinois not-for-profit corporation;
ABEX CORPORATION, SIGNAL~-STAT DIVISION,

a Delaware corporation; R. E. DIETZ COMPANY,
a New York corporation; GROTE MANUFACTURING
COMPANY, a Kentucky corporation, .

Plaintiffs

s

: CIVIL ACTION
NO, 75-636'

vs,

ROBERT KANE, Attorney General, Commonwealth t
of Pennsylvania; JAMES B. WiILSOW, Secretary, :
Pennsylvania Department of Transportation; :
SEYMORE G. HEYISON, Director, Bureau of :
Traffic Safety, Pennsylvania Department of :
Transportation; WARD B. BAUMBACH, Chief, .

Inspection Division, Bureau of Traffic Safety, :
Pennsylvania Department of Transportation; :

CAROLINE GARDNER, Supervisor, Automotive
Equipment Section, Bureau of Traffic Safety, :
Fennsylvania Department of Transportation; T,
individually and in their official capacities, :
. ED . Defendants
A% o Lo T
e TR

gaany, O
* OPINION

L AN
L 3ad
avty e
, v

el 05 In 1975 Truck Safety Equipment Institute, a trade assoc-
> et
iation for manufacturers c¢f lighting equipment and three manufact-
urars of such lighting equipment instituted this action challenging
the enforcement of Pennsylvania's program for approval of certain
types of lighting equipment regulated by the Wational Traffic and

Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966, 15 U.5.C. §1381 et seq.

At that time, on summary judgment motions, we entered a
declaratory judgment in favor of the Plaintiffs, hclding that the
enforcement by Pennsylvania of the identical standards regulated by
the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act (hereinafter the
"National Safety Act") was preempted by the said Act pursuant to
the Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution (Article VI,
Sec, 2.1

~10pinion of this Court reported in 419 F, Supp. at 688.




222

The Yomngylvania Law with vhich this Court was concerned
at that time™ wzs vepealed, the mew law to become effective July 1,
1977. On appeal from this Court's decision the United States Court
of Appeals for this Circuit vacated and remanded the case for
further consideration in the light of the New Vehicle Code which

had not been in effect when our judgment was entered.

After a supplemental complaint and answer were filed the
parties agreed upon a de:iiled statement of facts and thereafter
both Plaintiffs and Defendants again sought summary judgment on the

preemption claim set forth in Count I of the complaint.3

The agreed statement of facts sets forth in some detail
the new provisions of the law that are attacked and the regulations
that were promulgated pursuant to :h; new state law as well as the
regulations covering the same lighting equipment in effect under

the National Safery Act.

Plaintiffs again seek a declaratory Judgment that under
the New Vehicle Code and regulations, Pennsylvania's program for
approval of, federally regulated items of the subject motor vehicle
lighting equipment is preempted by the National Safety Act and is
therefore invalid and unenforceable. Plaintiffs further seek to
enjoin the Defendants from taking any actions to implement the
State's equipment approval program. Defendants ask that we declare

the Pennsylvania Law not preempted.

2Pennsylvania Vehicle Code, Title 75, (Pa. Stat. Ann.
Purdon 1971) (hereinafter called "1959 Vehicle Code'). Repealed by
P,L. 162, Act No. 81, June 17, 1976 (hereinafter the "New Vehicle Co
(75 Pa, Stat. Ann. §§1954, 4103 through 4108).

3count 1T of the complaint avers that the sections of the
New Vehicle Code (§§1954, 4103 through 4108) objected to, insofar as
they relate to items of federally regulated motor vehicle equipment,
create an undue restraint on commerce, in conflict with the Commerce
Clause, Article I, Section 8, Clause 3 of the United States Constitu
tion. We do not reach the Commerce Clause contention at this time.

-2 -
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The stipulate facts reveal that the National Safety Act,
15 U.S.C. lisi el seq., became law on September 9, 1966 because
among other 'zasons of the need to establish and insure compliance
with uniforw narional safety standards for motor vehicles and motor
vehicle equigment in interstate commerce.A’,With the passage of
this Act Congress created a comprehensive federal motor vehicle
safety program which involves promulgation of detailed performance
standards for certain items of motor vehicle equipment and self-
certification by manufacturers that their equipment conforms to

these standards.

The National Safety Act makes it unlawful to sell or
offer to sell in interstate cormerce any new item of motor vehicle
equipment which is covered by a federal motor vehicle safety
standard (FMVSS) unless it conforms to the applicable standard and
the manufacturar or distributor so certifies. The Act provides

penalties up to $600,000 for violations of the Act and injunctive

statutory repurchase and replacement of items of equipment which
are found to contain safety defects or are otherwise not in conform-
ity with the applicable FMVSS. Manufacrurers are also required to
give detailed notice, repair, replace and refund of money for non-
conforming equipment. The federal enforcement of motor vehicle

safety standards is dirzected only to manufacturers and distributors

and not to the purchaser, 15 U,S.C. 1397(b)(1).

The National Safety Act is administered by the National
Highway Traffic Safety Admiristration ("NHTSA') of the United
States Department of Transportation. The Secretary of the Depart-
ment is given broad investigative powers under the Act to aild in
the enforcement of its provisions as well as the power to establish
appropriate Federal standards. Detailed record keeping and data

submission requirements are imposed upon manufacturers., The

6The basic purpose of the Act as latexr herein quoted was

to reduce traffic accidents and deaths and injuries to persons
resulting from traffic accidents, 15 U.S.C. 1381

-3 -
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operation of NHISA in the enforcement of safety standaxds is a
mulri-."i.on dollar ‘opétatiun. . siySS compliance tests are made by

many laboratories approved by and, operating for NHTSA.

Lighting equipment has been tested For compliance with
FMVSS 108 every year since 1968, From 1968 until Cctober 1977,
2,681 separate lighting devices were compliance-tested by NHTSA,
714 of which were tested during the first 10 months of 1977. All
of the Plaintiff manufacturers have had their lighting equipment
purchased and tested by NHTSA. Additionally, each year NHTSA makes
hundreds of formal requests that manufacturers furnish performance
and other data to establish the basis for their self-certification
of compliance with the appropriate FMVSS, When non-compliance is
discovered, corrective action is sought and if not resolved by the
menufacturer the matter is reported to the Attorney General for

appropriate astionm,

Statutory penalties in over a million dollars have been

collecred £rom manufacturers,

WHISA also conducts recall campaigns covering both non-
conformance with FMVSS and safety-related defects. Over 12 million
vehicles were recalled in 1977 and some two and one-half willion

equipment items have been recalled over the years.

Standards Nos. 108 and 125 apply to lighting equipment
sold by the Plaintiff manufacturers, Standard No. 108 specifies
among other things the requirements for original and replacement
lamps for avtonobiles, and Standard No, 125 pertains to reflective

triangles or warning devices withour self-contained energy sources.

The federal standards are periodically reviewed and

amended, No. 108 for example has been amended many times.

These facts have been set down in some detail to indicate

the comprehensive nature and the pervasiveness of the federal
scheme,

-4 -
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Under this federal regulatory scheme, WHISA does not
aggroves vehiCIé; or équipment as comg. '+ - th safety standards;
instead, manufacturers certify thai vhei: } sets comply. The
manufacturer is not required to pay governme:t fees, submit samples
oi laboratory test reports or obtain product appreval from states

or their agents,

The National Safety Act provides that where a federal
motor vehicle safety standard is in effect every state standard is
preempted unless it is identical to the federal one; and while the

extent to which states may enforce identical standards is not

expresslv covered by the Act it appears to us to be evident from
the language Congress used, the pervasiveness of the Act and the
legislative history that the type of enforcement attempted by

Pennsylvania here cannot stand.

Wicth chis explanation of the federal regulatory scheme,
we turn now to the stipulared facts concerning the New Vehicle Code

and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

The Pennsylvania law and regulations establishing identicd
standards, 75 Pa, C.S5.A. 4101 et seq. and &7 Pa, Code Ch. 410 mnow
reguire that items of wehiecle safety equipment be “submitted for
approval' ag a condition precedent to the lawful sale of such
equipment in the Commonwealth.6 Many of these items of equipment
which are subject to Pennsylvania approval are also regulated by
the FMVSS and are manufactured by the Plaintiff manufacturers,

5Emphasis ours unless otherwise noted,

6The Pemnnsylvania enforcement scheme under the 1959
Vehicle Code (now repealed as far as this matter is concerned), see
75 P,S. 807, 803, 812 and 819, required "approval" and not merely
the "submission for approval’ before the equipment could be legally
sold in Pennsylvania. The Defendants' position is that this change

cures the preemption problem we found in our earlier consideration
of this case. We cannot agree.

-5 -
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i: such itims ~% 2quipment awe non sihmitrad £ok approval
or submitted and subsequently disapproved by the Commonwealth the ’
sale of such items (or of the vehicle to which the item is attached
in the Commonwealth even though they comply with the applicable ‘
federal standards and are so certified by the manufacturer cafinot
be lawfully sold or offered for sale here, and it is unlawful to

operate a vehicle equipped with such equipment.

If state approval is denied for any reason, even though
the item of equipment has been certified as meeting all federal ]
standards, the manufacturer must "assure" that such item of equip-
ment is not offered for sale in the Commonwealth and must obtain
from the wholesalers and dealers all unsold inventory of the item
which had been distributed after avpioval was sought and before it
was denied. After stace approval is granted, it may be revoked and

an injunction against its sale in Pennsylvania may be sought.

Approval may be sought from the American Association of
Motor Vehicle Administrators ("A4MVA') a voluntary association of
state officials, of which Pennsylvania is a member and which is
Pennsylvania's approval agent, or from the Department of Transporta-
tion directly., 1In either event fees must be paid by the manufact-
urer for testing and approval of the equipment. AAMVA also requireg
reapproval of lighting equipment every five years with the submissign

of a new laboratory test report and the payment of another fee.

Alcthough both AAMVA and the Commonwealth through the
Secretary of Transportation require the testing of equipment for
compliance with safety standards neither entity has ever had any

testing facilities.

A test report to satisfy AAMVA must come from a laboratory
approved by AAMVA or from a manufacturer's laboratory providing it
meets certain qualifications, all at additional expense to the

manufacturer,
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Apart from the testing and retesting, AAMVA conducts on a
random basis a cheen un .ue wzikes nfsafaty-guipuient for approval
status. Unapproved means only .that AAMVA has not been paid a fee
or been furnished photographs or a test report from an approved
laboratory and not that it is unsafe or not certified under the
National Safety Act. AAMVA maintains a list of unapproved items

which is not always current,

When a manufacturer elects to seek approval from the
Penusylvanié Depaztment of Transportation ('PennDot") he must
submit an application, a copy of a laboratory test report prepared
by a laboratory approved either by AAMVA or PennDot, a sample of
the item or a photograph of it and pay a fee ranging frém $25 to
$100.

If in the course of its required market surveillance
program it is revealed that an item of equipment which is certified
as being in compliance with applicable FMVSS, but which has not
been submitted for approval or which has been disapproved by PennDot
the New Vehicle Code (75 P.S. 4106(c)) directs that written notice
of such unapproved status be given to the dealer, distributor,
wholesaler or manufacturer and the dealer thereafter shall not sell
the equipment and the distributor, wholesaler or manufacturer shall
recall ali of the equipment from all dealers. This is so even
though the item is in compliance with all requirements of federal

law.

A good portion of the Plaintiff manufacturers' sales of
automobile headlamps, stoplamps, turn signals, etc., all regulated
by the National Safety Act, are for use in Pennsylvania and must

satisfy Pennsylvania's approval requiremen:s.7

. "me Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has agreed not to enfore
its law and regulations against these Plaintiffs pending the outcomd
of these proceedings.

-7 -
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The New Vehicle Code contains a number of gections to
force the compliance with the Commonwealili™a® /ppravs? wanuiremants,
including the prohibition against :egisttaciéguér rereglstration -
of vehicles on which equipment has not been submitted £wr .pproval

and the prohibition against the driving of such vehicle.

[y

The stipulated facts disclose that to comply with the
Pennsylvania approval program would cost the Plaintiffs substantial
amounts of money for example Dietz paid to AAMVA from 1970 through
1974 $19,000 approval and reapproval fees and, Grote paid $22,900
fees during the same period. Thes two Plaintiffs together during
this period were obliged to spend more than $120,000 for the
required laboratory test reports to be £iled with AAMVA before
approval could be granted. Additionally, there are administrative
expenses the manufacturers are obliged to incur in preparing and
filing forms and in some cases great expense to supply samples to

the laboratories,

Manuracturers are delayed sometimes for months in placing
their already federally certified items of safety equipment on the
rarket in Pennsylvania because of the Pennsylvania approval program,
In some instances approval is held up because of a dispute over
the proper filing fee; whether approval is required for a previously
approved item that has been changed in an apparently insignificant
way or over a question of what parts of lighting equipment require

approval.

With that recital of the pertinent facts we turn now to

the legal issues.

It is appropriate to consider this preemptivg matter on
motions for summary judgment since the material facts have all
been stipulated. See RAY v. ATLANTIC RICHFIELD CO., s
55 L. Ed. 2d 179 (1978).
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%+ €2 as we can determine none of trhe rases daaling
with the question of preemption under the Nationmal Safe.y Act

dezlt with the problem of the enforcement by the states of standards

identical wich those promulgated under the National Act. See
CHRYSLER v, RHODES, 416 F.2d 319 (lst Cir, 1969); CHRYSLER CORP. v.
MALLOY, 294 F, Supp. 524 (D, Vt. 1968) rev'd sub nom CHRYSLER
CORP. v. TOFFANY, 419 F.2d 499 (2d Cir. 196%) which generally deal
with regulations by the states of state standards not glearly

governed by the Federal standards.

.

The Commonwealth's regulations concerning safety on the
highway pursuant to the HMotor Vehicle Code have their basis in the
police power and it is well-settled that where a state's police
power is involved, preemption will not be presumed, CHRYSLER
CORP. v. RMODES, suora n.8; CHRYSLER CORP. v, TOFANY at 511;
LOCOMOTIVE ENGINEERS v, CHICAGO R.I. & P.R. CO., 382 U.S. 423; 15
L. Ed. 2d 301 (1966).

The Commonwealth maintains that where, as here, the
state standards ave idencical to those of the federal government
the state may 'complement" the federal enforcement of such standards
and that such enforcement would not in any way interfere with the

federal regulations., We are constrained to conclude otherwise,

It is not contended that the federal government cannot
regulate in this area. It must be conceded that the field of
highway safety in interstate commerce is particularly susceptible
to Congressional control, The declaration of purpose of the Act

discloses that:

"...the purpose of this chapter is to reduce
traffic accidents and deaths and injuries to
persons resulting from traffic accidents,
Therefore, Congress decermines that it is
necessaxy to establish motor vehicle safety
standards for motor vehicles and equipment in
interstate commerce; to undertake and support
necessary safety research and development;...."
15 U.s.C. 1381

-9 .
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The questlion is whether oc .ol Jongress has, by this
Act, excluded the states from the type of enforcement the Common-

wealth here is attempting to exert.

There are certain tests established by case law to

determine when Congress has in fact preempted a [Lield.

Basically it was held in FLORIDA LIME AND AVOCADO GROWERS
INC, v. PAUL, 373 U,S. 132, 10 L. Ed. 2d 248 at 257 (1963) that
preemption must be found where it is impossible for both federal
and state regularions to exist, a situation not present in the
instant case but the Supreme Court said in passing that it is not
important whether the state and federal regulations were aimed at
similar or different objectives, the test "is whether both regula-
tions can be enforced without impairing the federal superintendence

of the field".

We next consider the statute. Congress has said (15

U.S.C. 1392d) in part:
"(d) Whenever a Federal motor vehicle

safety standard established under this subchapter

is in effect, no State or political subdivision

of a State shall bave any authority edither to

establish, or to continue in effect, with

respect to any motor vehicle or item of motor

vehicle equipment any safety standard applicable

to the same aspect of performance of such

vehicle or item of equipment which is not

identical to the Federal standard.
but has said nothing further on preemption, so if we are to find

preemption where the standards are identical we must look elsewhere

While it is true that Congress may manifest its intent
to displace the states from a field by specifically saying so in
the Act, it is equally true that such intent may be manifested by

Congress ia ways other than by specific language.

As Judge Mathes, Chief Judge of the United States Court

of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit has so cogently said in NORTHERN

- 10 -
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STATES POWER COMPANY v. STATE OF MINNESOTA, 447 F.2d 1143 (1971)
at 1146, 1147:

"...even where Congress has not éxpressly
prohibited dual regulation nor unequivocally
declarad its exclusionary exercise of
authority over a particular subject matrer,
federal pre-emption may be implied, (authorities
omitted) Key factors in the determination

of whether Congress has, by implication,
pre-empted a particular area so as to

preclude state attempts at dual regulation
include, inter alia: (1) the aim and

intent of Congress as revealed by the R '
statute itself and its legislative history,
FLORIDA LIME & AVOCADO GROWERS, INC. v.

PAUL, supra, 373 U.S§. at 147-150, 83 S.Ct.
1210: CAMPBELL v. HUSSEY, supra, 368 U.S.

at 301-302, 82 S.Ct. 327; (2) the pervasiveness
of the federal regulatory scheme as authorized
and directed by the legislation and as

carried into effect by the federal administrative
agency, PENNSYLVANIA v. WELSOW, 350 U.S.

437, 502-504, 76 S.Ct. 477, 100 L.Ed. 64
(1956); RICE v. SANTA TE ELEVATOR CORP.,
supra, 331 U.S. at 230, 67 S8.Ct, 1146;
BETHLEHEM STEEL CO. v. NEW YORK STATE LABOR
RELATIONS BD., supra, 330 U.S. at 774, 67
S.Cr. 1026; (3) the nature of the subject
matter regulated and whecher it is one

which demands 'exclusive federal regulation

in oxder to achieve uniformity vital to
national interests.' FLORIDA LIME & AVOCADC
GROWERS, INC. v. PAUL, supra, 373 U.S, at
143-144, 83 §.Ct. at 1218; SAN DIEGO BUILDING
TRADES COUNCIL v. GARMONW, 359 U.S. 236,
261-244, 79 S.Ct. 773, 3 L.Ed.2d 775 {1959);
GUSS v. UTAH LABOR RELATIONS BOARD, 353

U.s. 1, 10-11, 77 s.Cc, 598, 1 L.Ed.2d 601
(1957); MORGAN v. VIRGINIA, 328 U.S, 373,

377, 66 5.Ct. 1050, 90 L.Ed. 1317 (1946);

and ultimately (4) 'whether, under the
circumstances of [a] particular case [state]
law stands as an obstacle to the accomplishment
and execution of the full purposes and
objectives of Congress.' HINES v. DAVIDOWITZ,
312 U.S. 52, 67, 61 8.Ct, 399, 404, 85

L.,Ed, 581 (1941). See also PEREZ v, CAMPBELL,
402 U.s. 637, 91 S.Cc, 1704, 29 L.Ed.2d 233
(1971); BROTHERHOOD OF R.R. TRAINMEN v,
JACKSONVILLE TERMINAL CO., 394 U.S. 369,
344(1969); NASH v, FLORIDA INDUSTRIAL

CoMM'N., 389 U.s. 235, 240, 88 S.Cr. 362,

19 L.Ed.2d 438 (1967); HILL v, FLORIDA ex

rel. WATSON, 325 U.S. 538, 542, 65 S.Ct.

1373 89 L.Ed. 1782 (1945); SAVAGE w.

JONES, 225 U.S, 501, 533, 32 s.Ct. 715, 56
L.Ed, 1182 (1912)."
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While it must be conceded that there is no physical
impossibility of dual compliance with the magner in which both
state and federal government enforce the same standard there can
be no doubt that the enforcement planned by the state under the
New Vehicle Code and regulation is much more stringent and expensiv
to the manufactursz than is the federal enforcement and while we do
not reach the Coumerce question (See footnote 2) it seems apparent
to me that such enforcement may very well be burdensome on %ncersta e
commerce given the nationwide sale of motor vehicles on which the

lighting equipment with which we are here concerned is attached,

The National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of
1966 as was shown by the stipulated facts is a most detailed and
pervasive regulatory scheme designed to reduce traffic accidents
and deaths and injuries to persons resulting from traffiec accidents

throughout the Uniced States by the requirement of uniform national

standaris,

Detailed performance standards have been promulgated;
specific self-certvification was established, A National Highway
Traffic Saferty Administrarion was set up within the Department of
Transportation to administer the Act. The Secretary of the Depart-
ment was given broad powers in adopting the standards, investigatin
violations and enforcing the provisions of the Act., This muleti-
million dollar operation conducts compliance tests throughout the
country imposing statutory penalties in the millions of dollars.
Thus the very nature of the Act, applying as it does in the 50
states uniformly, and in such detail, plus the specific language
of §1397(b)(1) limicting the Federal regulations to the first sale,
is some indication to me that Congressional intent was to preempt
the field at the manufacturing levels leaving to the states the
regulacion of the identical standards at the consumer level by the

regular periodic inspections.

In PEREZ v, CAMPBELL, 402 U,S5.637 29 L. Ed. 2d 233

(1971) the Court was dealing with a state highway safety statute

.12 -
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under which the state was attempting to prohibit a bankrupct driver
from recaia‘~g his license until an outstanding automdbile accident
judgmen: wes satisfied, even though the driver had been declared a
bankrupt under the federal bankruptcy statutes. There, in spite
of the fact that the state was proceeding under its police power
in the field of highway safety and that the Bankruptey Act did not
specifically preempt the field the Court found preemption on the
ground that to fail to do so would frustrate Congressional intent.
In BURBANK v, LOCKEED ATR TERMINAL INC., 411 ©.S, 633, 36 L. Ed.
2d 553 ap express preemption provision in the benate-passed
version of a federal noise control statute had on final passage
been deleted by Congress but the Court found preemption in the
pervasive nature of the federal regulatory scheme in spite of the
fact that the control of noise was a well recognized part of the
police power of the states and in spite of the fact that the

express preemption provision had been deleted on final passage.

In this circuit in a case originating in this Distxict
the Court of Appeals in 1976 in NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF REGULATORY
UTILITY COMMISSIONERS v. COLEMEN, 542 F.2d 11, had before it a
question of accident reporting by railroads. The federal regulation
set out the requirements for reporting to the federal govermment
and the states Sought to require additional reporting and argued
that there should be concurrent reporting in the interest of
safety to the traveling public., Congress had declared that "standax
relaring to railroad safety shall be nationally uniform to the
extent practicable" 542 F.2d at 13, The declared purpose of the
Act, however, was "to promote saféty in all areas of railroad
operations’, The Court of Appeals found that the states were
preempted totally in this field relying in part on the fact that

£ this weré not so the railroads could be subject to different
enforcement requirements in 50 different states. This same thing

could be said of the Plaintiffs in the instant case.

In RAY v. ATLANTIC RICKFIELD CO. u.s. , 35 L,
Ed, 2d 179 (1978) one of the most recent cases in this field, the

- 13 -
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Ports and Waterways Safety Act of 1972 (hereinafter P,W.S.A.) (33
U.S.C, §§122)1 et seq. and 46 U,S.C. 391(a) et seq.) controlled in
major respects mavigatium on Pugét Sound in the State of Washington
It 2l:2 subjected to federal rule the design and operating charactey

istics of oil tankers,

The State of Washington then in 1975 adopted the Tanker
Law which would regulate in particular respects the design, size

and movement of oil tankers in Puget Sound.

The question arose as to whether or not the federal law
preempted the Washington law., The Court held'as far as pertinent
nere that it did so preempt under the supremacy clause of the
Constitution, Article VI, Clause 2, even though there was no

explicit preemption provision in the Act.

In finding preemption the Court pointed out the pervasive;
ness of the P.W.S.A.; thar the state law stood as an obstacle to
the accomplishment and execution of the full purposes and objectives
of Congress; that the statutory pattern shows that Congress "has
entrusted to the Secretary the duty of determining which oil
tankers are sufficiently safe to be allowed to proceed in the

navigable waters of the United States. This indicates to us that

Congress intended uniform national standards for desigm and

constxuction of tankers that would foreclose the imposition of

different or more stringent state requirements,”" 55 L. Ed. 2d

192,

The Court further pointed out that Congress surely did
not anticipate that when a vessel was found to be in cecmpliance
with the federal law that it céuld nevertheless be barred by state
law from operating in the navigable waters of the United States
and at page 193 found that "Enforcement of the state requirements
would ar least frustrate what seems to us to be the evident
congressional intention to establish a uniform federal regime

controlling the design of oil tankexs."

- 14 -
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The ATLANTIC RICHFIELD case having many facts similar to

-
s

Our conclusion is supported, we believe, by the legislatiy

history of the National Safety Act.

The hearings of the Committee on Interstate and Foreign
Commerce of the House of Representatives in 1966 on the House Biil
in the "Findings and Statement of Purpose' states in part that the
purpose to improve traffic safety shall be ach}eved "through a

national program for traffic safety...."

The report of the Senate Committee on Commerce at page 1
states that this bill is to provide "a coordinated national safety
program and the establishment of safety standards for motor vehicleg
in interstate commerce..." and ar page 12 under the heading,
"Effect on State Law" it is said that the safety standards should
be uniform throughout the country and that the "States should be
free to adopt standards identical to the Federal standards, which
apply only to the first sale of a new vehicle, so that the States
may play a significant role in the vehicle safety field by applying

and enforcing standards over the life of the car."

The report of the Committee on Interstate and Forelgn
Commerce of the House of Representatives also at page 1 states

that the House Bill's purpose is "to provide for a coordinated

national safety program and the establishment of safety standards..).

In the Conference Report on the Narional Safety Act,
Senator Magnuson, the Manager of the Bill in the Senate had this
to say, page 14230 of the Congressional Record-Senate, June 24,
1966: "Some States have more stringent laws than others but
concerning the car itself® we must have uniformity. That is why
the bill suggests to States that if we set minimum standards, a

car complying with such standards should be admitted to all states.'

81 assume this to be equally true of lighting equipment
for use on the car.

- 15 -
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“ Throughout the legislative histoxry the emphasis on the

first sales ol the equipmem. .« .+ --eral standaxds, reserving

to the states the enforcement ¢u dentical standards after the

first sale.

It seems to me that the ounly logical conclusion we can

reach is that the Pennsylvania Law and Regulations as far as they

distributor, dealer level.

Defendants argue that the state ma& complement Federal
enforcement of the standazds without in any way interfering with
the Federal detailed scheme and further that the plaintiff manufactq
urers, their distributors and dealers are not handicapped by being
obliged to comply with both the Federal and State enforcement of
the same standard because the equipment ne longer needs to be
"approved" before sale in Pennsylvania but merely "submitted for

approval', We have found that the National Safety Act preempts at

the first sale level the action contemplated here by the Commonwealt
and while ''submitted for approval' would sesem at first blush to be
so innocuous as to be barely noticeable, that is not really the
case, Even an innocent or inadvertent failure to submit for
approval as well as disapproval or revocation of approval can
subject the manufacturer, diszributor or dealer to civil penalties,
including penalties up to 510,000 and injunction against continued

sale of the equipment.

In remanding the case to this Court, the Court of Appeals
suggested that a new record might reveal more substantial buxdens

on the Plaintiffs than did the earlier law and that we then would

apply to this case are preempted from enforcement at the manufacturer

want to determine whether or not the Pennsylvania program unconsti-
tutionally burdened the Plaintiffs and was thereby preempted, The
stipulated facts and the agre;ment of the parties when filing the
motion for summary judgment presented us with the question of

whether on Count I of the complaint Pennsylvania's motor vehicle

- 16 -
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IN Tix UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

TRUCK SAFETY EQUIPMENT INSTITUTE,

an Illinois not-for-profit corporation; :
ABEX CORPORATION, SIGNAL~-STAT DIVISION, B
a Delaware corporation; R. E. DIETZ COMPANY, B
a New York corporation; GROTE MANUFACTURING ¢
COMPANY, a Kentucky corporationm, s

Plaintiffs st
vs. : CIVIL ACTION
o NO. 75-636
ROBERT KANE, Attorney General, Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania; JAMES B. WILSON, Secretary,
Penngylvania Department of Transportation;’
SEYMORE G. HEYISOW, Director, Bureau of
Traffic Safety, Pennsylvania Department of
Transportation; WARD B, BAUMBACH, Chief, :
Inspection Division, Bureau of Traffic Safety, : F
Pennsylvania Department of Transportacion; : ﬂiED
CAROLINE GARDNER, Supervisor, Automotive : BARRISEURG P
Equipment Section, Bureau of Traffic Safety, : A + PA,
Pennsylvania Department of Transportation; H L3 By
. = o

individually and in their official capacities, : Donap
Defendants . PR 1}’}‘"": itk
OEURY iR

ORDER

AND KOW, this 26th day of February, 1979, Defendants'

Motion for Summary Judgment is denied,

Plaintiffs' Motion for Summary Judgment is granted agains
the Defendants and it is declared that Pennsylvania's motor vehicle
equipment approval program is preempted by the National Traffic
and Motor Vehicle Safety Act to the extent that it reaches federallj

regulared equipment.

/—7 Lé/_ //: e ;&‘{L,/Z/ A

X, DIXOR HEXRAA
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

y
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equipment approval program is preempted by the National Traffic
and Motor Vehicle ‘Safety Act to the extent that it reaches federally-
regulated equipment, leaving Cor-at 11, the averment .uat uhe
Pennsylvania progrcam created an undue restraint on interstate
comnerce in conflict with the Commerce Clause Article I Section 8,
Clause 3 of the United States Constitution for later determination

if necessary.

As we earlier indicated in this Opinion, the Pennsylvania
program as it relates to these Plaintiffs is such a burden that it
well may inordinately delay the production and distribution of
improved safery equipment which would tend to stand as an obstacle
to the acidmplishment and execution of thé Full purposes and
objectives of Congress, (HINES v. DAVIDOWITZA supra) still further
reason why in this case the Pennsylvania plan should be preempted

by federal law.

We conclude that in the light of what we have here said
the Nacional Safety Act of 1966, particularly section 103 (15
U.S.C. 1352(d)) completely preempts the Pennsylvania standards to
the extent that they cover the sane aspect of performance and are
not identical to the federal standards; and also preempts any
state method of enforcement of identical standards prior to the

first purchase.

Accordingly, we will deny the Defendant's motion for
surmary judgment and grant the motion of the Plaintiffs entering a

surmary judgment against the Defendants declaring that Pennsylvania

L]

motor vehicle equipment approval program is preempted by the
National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safery Act to the extent that

it reaches federally-regulated equipment.

::;;;éﬁxéglgéﬁl“k Z \Zﬁi;ax et

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

Dated: February 26, 1979
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AMERICAN _ASSOCIATION OF MOTOR _VEHICLE ADMINISTRAT
1201 CONNECTICUT AVE. N.W., SUITE 810, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20036, TELEPHONE 202 — 206-1955

March 14, 1979
SPECIAL EDITION :

.To: Chief Motor Vehicle Administrators
& Chief Traffic Enforcement Officials
FROM: Donald J, Bardell, Executive Director

SUBJECT: Retent Pennsylvania District Court Decision

DISTRICT COURT RULES PENNSYLVANIA MOTOR
VEHICLE EQUIPHENT APPROVAL PROGRAM
PREEMPTED BY VEHICLE SAFETY ACT OF '66
AS REGARDS FEDERALLY REGULATED ITEMS:

In the latest development in a lengthy legal battle, a District Court
decision has declared that Pennsylvania's motor vehicle equipment approval program
is preempted by the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966, to
the extent that it reaches federally regqulated equipment.

The impact of the decision is limited to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
The decisfon was handed down on February 26 by Judge R. Dixon Herman, of the
U. S. District Court for the Middle District of Pennsylvania, in Harrisburg,
Principal plaintiff in the action was the Truck Safety Equipment Institute (TSEI),
a trade association for manufacturers of 1ighting equipment, and three of its
member-firms: Abex Corporation, Signal Stat Division; R. E. Dietz Company, and
Grote Manufacturing. The defendants named inciude the Pennsylvania Attorney General
and several officials in the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation (PennDOT),
the agency responsible for regulating vehicle safety equipment in that state.

The AAMVA has carefully examined the February TSE! vs PennDOT decision--
a case that was remanded to the District Court by the Appeals Court--and firmly
believes that it reached an incorrect conclusfon, When this case is appealed, there
is a good possibility that the points at issue ultimately will be decided by the
U. S, Supreme Court.

The February decision by Judge Herman in the TSEl vs PennDOT case is but
the most recent development in & lengthy litigation proteeding between the plaintiffs
and defendants. Litigation commenced when:
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RT RULES PENNSYLVANIA MOTOR

QUIPMENT APPROVAL, PROGRAM

BY VEHICLE SAFETY ACT OF '6

EDERALLY REGULATED ITEMS. (Continued)

--A complaint was filed May 30, 1975 by TSEI, et al, which
challenged the enforcement of Pennsylvania's program
for approval of certain types of lighting equipment
;e%uiated by the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety
ct.
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--Following summary judgment motions by both the plaintiffs
and defendants, on September 16, 1976, the District Court,
with Judge Herman presiding, entered a declaratory judgment
in favor of the plaintiffs, holding that enforcement by
Pennsylvania of the identical standards regulated by the
federal safety act was preempted, pursuant to the Supremacy
Clause of the U. S. Constitution.

~-The Pennsylvania statute under which the original complaint
was filed was repealed, and replaced by a new law on July 1,
1977. Subsequently, on July 27, 1977, the U. S. Circuit
Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit vacated Judge Herman's
District Court decision and, remanded the case for further
consideration, in 1ight of the new Pennsylvania Vehicle Code.

The TSEI vs PennDOT case is based on two Counts. In Count 1 the
plaintiffs atterpt to invoke the preemption doctrine, maintaining that Pennsylvania's
motor vehicle safety equipment approval program is preempted by the National
Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act, to the extent that it reaches federally
regulated equipment. Count II alleges undue burden on interstate commerce created
by the Pennsylvania approval reguirements.

After the case was remanded to the District Court level, a supplemental
conplaint and answer were filed. The plaintiffs again sought 2 declaratory
judgment that under the new Pennsylvania Vehicle Code and regulations the state's
program for approval of federally regulated items was preempted. The plaintiffs
further sought to enjoin PennDIT from taking amy action to implement the state's
approval program. The defendants, meanwhile, urged the District Court to hold that
the Pennsylvania law was not preempted. Both parties filed petitions for Susmary
Judgment.

The February decision by Judge Herman declared that the 1966 federal
Act completely preempts the Pennsylvania standards to the extent that thay cover
the same aspect of performance and are not fdentical to the federal standards. He
further ruled preemption of any state method of enforcement of identical standards
prior to the first purchase. dJudge Herman's most recent decision did not
specifically address Count Il of the complaint, but in my opinion did so
circuitously.

There are some salient points that s:ould be taken into consideration
when evaluating the soundness of Judge Herman's most recent decision.

mre,..
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DISTRICT COURT RULES PENNSYLVANIA MOTOR
VEHICLE EQUIPMENT APPROVAL PROGRAN

PREEMPTED BY VEHICLE SAFETY ACT OF '66
RS REGARDS FEDERALLY RLGULATED ITEMS: (Continued)

First, and foremost, the AAMVA firmly believes that the reasoning of
Tvania

Judge Herman was stretched in order to reach the conclusion that Pennsy

1s preerpted with regard to any state method of enforcement of state standards
that are identical to federal Motor Vehicle safety Standards (FMves) prior to the
first purchase.

In his decision, Judge Herman wavers on the preemption issue as it
relates to-enforcement when he states that “it appears...to be evident" (emphasis
added) that the type of enforcement attempted by gennsylvania cannot stand.
Appearances, alone, are not legally sufficient to prohibit Pennsylvania, or any other
state, from enforcing vehicle safety standards, as case law has well established.

Preemption can only be ordered by 2 court when there is clear and
convincing evidence that either (1) Congress deliberately intended that the federal
Statute preempts states' activitfes in that area or (2) that violence would be
done to the federal regulatory scheme if the states were allowed to participate
in regulating the same activities. Neither of these situations is present here.

In fact, the Act specifically allows the states to promulgate motor vehicle safety
stardards which are identical to corresponding federal standards. This fact,

in and of itself, indicates Congressional support of concurrent federal/state
enforcement of identical safety standards, Legislative history requires the
foregoing conclusion,

The preemption section of the Act states:

"(d) Whenever a Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standard
established under this subchapter is in effect, no
state or pofitical subdivision of a2 state shall have
any authority efther to establish, or to continue in
effect, with respect to any motor vehicle or item of
motor vehicle equipment any safety standard applicable
to the same aspect of performance of such vehicle or
item of equipment which is not identical to the federal

standard.” (AAMVATs emphasis supplied)

Judge Herman acknowledged "the extent to which states may enforce fdentica’
standards is not expressly covered by the Act..." and, therefore, he noted that he
was constrained to Jook elsewhere to substantiate his conclusion of preemption.

In reaching his decisfon, Judge Herman was forced to cross over into the
economic arguments of Count 1I, alleging undue burden on interstate commerce. Even
while adritting that the economic burden {ssue was not before the court for consider
tion, Judge Herman proceeded to expound on the Commerce Clause fssue, in order to
find a basis for his decision when none exists. The Raymond decision of the U. S.
Supreme Court {see Raymond Motor Transportation, Inc.”vs Rice, U. S. Supreme Court,
93 S, Ct. 787, 54 L. Ed. 2d 664 (197B)), emascuiates any a1legations of undue
burden the plaintiffs could possibly make.

more. ..
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DISTRICT COURT RULES PENNSYLVANIA MOTOR
RICLE FQUIPMENT APPROVAL G
PREEMPTED BY VEHICLE SAFETY ACT OF '66
AS REGARDS FEDERALLY REGULATED JTEMS: (Continued)

£

=

Furthermore, in reading Judge Herman's decision, one could conclude that
even if Pennsylvania found that an item of safety equipment, brake fluid for
example, did not meet the prescribed federal botor Vehicle Safety Standards, it
still could be sold--with impunity--in the state, so long as the manufacturer had
certified that the item was in compliance with applicable federal standards.

Congress could not have intended that Pennsylvania, or any other state,
should stand idly by and permit the sale of such a defective item, &nd merely wait
for a federal initiative to preclude the sale of such.

The State of Pennsylvania, under 1ts police powers, is obviously in the
best position to move quickly and responsively to protect the safety and welfare
of its citizens. Moreover, such 2 state regulatory scheme serves to complement
the federal regulatory scheme which the Congress {ntended when it enacted the
National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1566.

TEXAS DPS WARNS OF 2 BRAKE FLUIDS
PURCHESED Ok RETAIL MARKET, TESIED
DERGERDUS FOR USE TN MOTOR VERICLES:

The Texas Department of Public Safety has warned that samples of two
different brands of motor vehicle brake fluid, purchased over the retail counter
by state troopers, have been tested by a laboratory and found to be dangerous
for use in the brake systems of motor vehicles. The warning came in 2 March 7
?ews rs;gase, issued in Austin, by Col. Wilson E. (Pat) Speir, Director of the

exas .

Col. Speir said the Texas DPS action was prompted by the state's participa-
tion in the AAMVA's Safety Equipment Approval Program. The AAMVA acts as the
1?x§§ approvals agent for ftems of motor vehicle safety equipment, including brake
uig.

The matter originally came to light because of a complaint to the AAMVA,
todged by a manufacturer of brake fluid, a?leging that some of {ts competitors were
attempting to market brake fluids that did not comply with a)1 applicable standards.
Samples of the brake fluids in gquestion were purchased by AAMVA from the retail
market and tested by an independent Taboratory. After ascertaining that the brake
fluids did not meet applicable standards, the matter was referred to Texas officials
for appropriate action, since the manufacturer was located in that state.

Both the tests by AAMVA, and subsequent confirming tests by the Texas DPS,
were conducted by the Southwest Research Institute, in San Antopio--an AAMVA-
accredited laboratory, A1l of the brake fiuids in question were tested for
compliance with the new Texas standard for brake fiuid, which became effective
December 22, 1978. It s identical to the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standard for
brake fluid, FMVSS No. 116. Col. Speir said that results of the tests from the
Southwest Research Institute are being turned over to respective district attorneys
for further consideration. Violators of the Texas brake fluid law could be subject
to a county court fine of up to $1,000, or be confined in jai) up to six months,
or both. ’

more. ..
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JEXAS DPS WARNS OF 2 BRAKE FLUIDS
PURCHASED ON RETAIL MARKET, TESIED
BANGEROUS FOR USE IN MOTOR VEHICLES: (Continued)

The testing on the motor vehicle hydraulic brake fluid was conducted on
samples from batches of brake fluid packaged by Eppon Corporation, under the trade
name of Puma Heavy Duty Orum and Disc Brake Fluid and Technica) Chemical Company,
under the trade name of Certified Hydraulic Heavy Duty Brake Fluid.

Col. Speir warned the public that the defective fluid could be
identified by the trade name and batch number on the bottom of the containers. The
test failures were on batch number 833 on Certified Hydraulic Heavy Duty Brake.
Fluid, and on batch number 35 on the Puma Heavy Duty Drum and Disc Brake Fluid.

"These failures are critical and could lead -to possible failure of the
brake system on an automobile," Col. Speir stressed.

The Texas DPS anngunced 1ste last year the revised rules and regulations
which established minimum standards and specifications for brake fluid that could
be sold in the state, State officers commenced enforcing those standards on
December 22, with troopers conducting spot checks and purchases from retail outlets
to verify that all brake fluid being sold in Texas complied with the rule adopted.

A 1968 opinion, from the Assistant Chief Counsel of the U. S, Department
of Transportation's Nationa) Highway Safety Bureau (now National Righway Traffic
Safety Administration) to a Deputy Attorney General for the State of California,
points out that a state "is not preempted by the federal statute from engaging in
both presale and post sale enforcement of {ts regulations which are identical to
the federal requlations and applicable to the same {tem of equipment™or vehicle.”
The Texas program for enforcement of brake fluid standards serves as an excellent
example of how a state regulatory scheme ctan serve to complement the federal
reguiatory scheme which the Congress intended when it enacted the National Traffic
and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1966,

dib
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At first glance, the general legal principles which govern this area
appear to be rather straight-forward, yet, when one attempts to analyze
the case law on preenmption, one finds that judicial decisions are not
as predictable as one might have expected, For example, the preempticn
cases decided by the United States Supreme Court during the 1930's
seemed to consistently support State interests at the expense of
sacrificing federal legislative objectives in the process. This trend
of reasoning gradually began to shift in the 1940's so that federal
legislative interests became daminant over oarparable State interests
and corresponding legislation and enforcement activities. Tl'ns trend
towards finding preemption in favor of the federal government
characterized the Court's thinking throughout the 1950's and early
1960's when the Court then began to reverse this direction by re-
cognizing that State interests were not automatically preempted even
if the federal government had acted in that same area. A study of the
Supreme Court decisions of the early 1970's revealed an apparent
predisposition on the part of the Court to rule in favor of the States
on the issue of preemption whenever possible. For those of you who
may be interested in reviewing the historical aspects of the pre-
emption cases, I call your attention to the Note on "The PIeérption
Doctrine: Shifting Perspectives on Federalism and The Burger Court”
contained in Vol. 75 of the Colurbia Law Review, pages 623 thru 654.
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‘WHERE WE ARE AT
At this point in time, it appea:Sthatwearesmewherem
between a "States' rights" Supreme Court and one that is inclined
to rule in favor of the federal government whenever possible. In

ane of the most recent preenption cases, Jones v. Rath Packing o.,’

97 S.Ct. 1305 (1377), the Supreme Court abruptly departed fram the
line of cases it had been following since the mid-1970's and ruled
in favor of federal preemption inder circumstances which led many
of us to predict the opposite result as to one of the statutes in
questicn. In Jones, Justice Thurgood Marshall, speaking for the
Court, held that the federal Fair Packaging and Labeling Act did
NOT preenpt the California statute in question YET the State statute
was required to "yield" to the Falr Packaging and Labeling Act be~
cause enforcement of the State statute and the State regulation
pramilgated thereunder would prevent "the éccmplis}ment and
execution of the full purposes and objectives of Congress” in passing
the FPIA (97 S.Ct. at 1318). In reaching this conclusion, the Court
applied the time-honored preemption tests which are set out at page
1309 of its Opinion, as follows:

"Our prior decisions have clearly laid out the path

we must follow to answer this question. The first

inquiry is whether Congress, pursuant to its power

to regulate commerce, U.S. Const., Art. 1, § 8, has

prohibited state regulation of the particular aspects

of cammerce involved in this case. Where, as her.,
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the field which Congress is said to have Pre-eppted

has been traditionally occupied by the States, see
e.g. U.S. Const., Art I, § 10; Patapsco Guanoc Co. V.
North Carolina, 171 U.S. 345, 358, 18 S.Ct. 862, 867,
43 L.EQ. 181 (1898), "[w]e start with the assumption
that the historic pclice powars of the States were

not to be superseded by the Federal Act unless that
was the clear and manifest purpose of Congress."

Rice v, Santa Fe Elevator Corp., 331 U.S. 218, 230,

67 S.Ct. 1146, 1152, 91 L.Ed. 1447 (1947). This
assurption provides assurance that "the federal-state
balance," United States v. Bass, 404 U.S. 336, 348,

92 s.Ct. 515, 523, 30 L.Ed.2d 488 (1971), will .not be
disturbed unintentionally by Congress or unnecessarily
by the courts. But when Congress has "wumistakably

. » « Ordained," Florida Lime & Avocado Growers, Inc.
v. Paul, 373 U.S. 132, 142, 83 s.ct. 1210, 1217, 10
L.Ed.2d 248 (1963), that its enactments alone are to
regulate a part of commerce, state laws regulating |
that aspect of commerce must fall, This result is
conpelled whether Congress' cammand is explicitly stated
in the statute's language or implicitly contained in
its structure and purpose. City of Burbank v. Lockheed
Air Terminal Inc., 411 U.S. 624, 633, 93 S.Ct. 1854,
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1853, 36 L.Ed.2d 547 (1973); Rice v. Santa Fe Elevator
Qorp., supra, 331.U.S. a‘t 230, 67 S.Ct. at 1152. Con~-
gressional enactments that do not exclude all state
legislation in the same field nevertheless override state
laws with which they conflict. U.S. Const., Art. VI.
The criterion for determining whether state and federal
laws are so inconsistent that the state law must give
way is firmly established in our decisions. Our task

is "to determine whether under the circumstances of this
particular case, [the state's] law stands as an obstacle
to the accomplishment and execution of the full purposes
and objectives of Congress.” Hines v. Davidowitz, 312
U.S. 52, 67, 61 S.Ct. 389, 404, 85 L.Ed, 581 (1%940).
Accord, De Canas v. Bica, 424 U.S. 351, 363, 96 5.Ct.
933, 940, 47 L,E4.2d 43 (1976); Perez v, Campbell, 402
U.S. 637, 649, 91 S.Ct. 1704, 1711, 29 L.E3.2d 233 (1971);
Florida Lime & Avocado Growers, Inc, v. Paul, supra, 373
U.S. at 141, B3 S5.Ct. at 1217; id., at 165, 83 S8.Ct. at
1229; (White, J., dissenting). This inquiry requires us
to consider the relationship between state and federal
laws as they are interpreted and applied, not merely as
they are written. See De Canas v. Bica, supra, 424 U.S.
at 363-365, 96 S.Ct. at 940-941; Swift & Co. v. Wickham,

230 F.Supp. 398, 408 (S.D.N.Y.1964), appeal dismissed,
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382 U.s. 111, 86 S.Ct. 258, 15 L.Ed.2d 194 (1965),
aff'd, 364 F.2d 241 (C.A.2 1966), cert. denied,
385 U.S. 1036, 87 S.Ct. 776, 17 L.Ed.2d 683 (1967)."

The Court in Jones, when étati.ng that there was no "preemption”
of the relevant State statute by the FPIA was referring to EXPLICIT
preemption. All Justices agreed on this point. What troubled two
of the Justi‘ces and surprised many lawyers was the Court's finding
of IMPLICIT preemption under the facts as stated. Implicit pre-
emption of the California statute was ordered on the basis that there
COULD possibly be a conflict between its operation and the provisions
of the FPLA.

What I find interesting about the Jones decision is the Supreme
Court's apparent re-interpretation of the manner in which the last
mentioned preemption test should be applied, i.e. consideration by the
Court of the relationship between State and federal laws as they are
INTERPRETED and APPLIED - nhot merely as they are written. Prior to
the Jones decision of March 29, 1977, the Supreme Court had generally
been following the interpretation rendered in the case of Goldstein
v. California, 93 S.Ct. 2303 (1973). This interpretation carefully
DELIMITED the doctrine of preemption by requiring that in situtions
vwhere there was a possible conflict between the operation of a State
statute and t.he "purposes" underlying a federal act, the Court had to
find that impismentation of the State law wo.:d INEVITABLY frustrate

the purpose of the federal statute. Accooré:ag to Coldstein, t& -

-
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Court had an cbligation to distinguish beiween those situations in
which the concwrrent exercise of a power by the Federal Goverm-ent
and the States or by the States alone MAY POSSIBLY lead to conflicts
and those situations where conflicts WILL NECESSARILY arise. Pre~
emption of the State statute could only occur where the puréose of
the federal act would be inevitably frustrated by operation of the
State statute. The dissenting opinion in Jones recognized that the
Court had departed from the Goldstein philosophy in reaching its con-
clusion with respect to the IMPLICIT preerption of the California
statute in question by the FPLA.

Justice Rehnguist, joined by Justice Stewart in his dissenting
cpinion, stated that the Court in Jones had "seriously misapprehended”
the carefully delimited nature of the doctrine of preamption of
Goldstein (97 S.Ct. at 1321).

Before I conclude my remarks on the Jones case, I would like to
point out that Justice Marshall, who wrote the majority opinion in
Jones,did not cite the Goldstein case in his list of authorities set
out at page 1309 of 97 S.Ct. and quoted herein., Also, Justice Marshall,
in the Goldstein case, filed a disgenting opinion. Perscnal philoscphy
seems to greatly influence the application of preemption principles.
"Where we go from here" might best be answered by analyzing the political
preferences of the individual Justices, for it is they who are coing
to apply the law and decide what is to be the "proper” balance between
State and federal relations when they are regquired to do so.

-]
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HOW WE GOT THERE

How we got to the Jones case is a long, long story which I will
let you read "umabridged" for yourselves. I will only cover scme of
the more recent cases, and then, only in a general way, so that you
can have a better understanding of the direction in which the Supreme
Court is heading today.

As I mentiona@ previously, in the early 1970's, the .decisicns
of the Supreme Coart in the area of preemption revealed a predisposition
on the part of the Court to rule in favor of the States whenever possiblé,
as exenplified by the Goldstein decision in 1973. During this period,
the Court sought to BRALANCE federal-State relations in such a way that
States' rights would be preserved without having to sacrifice federal
objectives in the process. The Court bent over backwards to xender
decisions which would pemit the States to work with the federal govern-
ment in an atmosphere of cooperation by RECONCILING the operations of
both statutory schemes with one another.

In determining whether a State statute was void under the Supremacy
Clause of the United States Constitution the Court first made a basic
determination as to whether that law stood as an cbstacle to the
acca'rp]_isment. and execution of the full purposes and cbjectives of
Congress in enacting the federal law with which the State l.w was alleged
to be in conflict. Kewane = 0il Company v. Bicron Corporation, 94 S.Ct.

1879, 1885 (1974); Goldstein v. Califorpia, 93 S.Ct. 2303, 2312 (1973);

Hines v. Davidowitz, 61 S.Ct. 399, 404 (1941).

-8~
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In making this determination, the Court examined the cbjectives
of both the federal statute and the State statute which were alleged
to be in conflict with one another. See Kewanee 0il Canpany v. Bicron

'mmr:.t'_ion, 94 S.Ct, 1879, 1885 (1974).
Even if a State statute and a federal statute were identical in
purpose, that did not necessarily mean that the State statute had to

be invalidated under the Supremacy Clause. Colorado Anti-Discrim. Com'n

v. Continental air L., 83 S.Ct. 1022, 1026 (1963).

As the subjects of modern social and econamic relationships be-
came more and more complex, the responses proposed by Congress, although
they were very detailed and extensive in and of thsmselves, were not,
necessarily, the exclusive means of meeting the problem, -as had been

recognized by the Court. See, for exanple, New York State Dept., of

Social Services v. Dubling, 93 S.Ct. 2507, 2514 (1973); Askew v, American

Waterways Operators, Inc., 93 $§.Ct. 1590 (1973).

In determining whether a federal law prezpted a State statute,
the better approach was to reconcile the operations of both statutory
schemes with one another rather than hold that the State statute was

capletely. ousted. See Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Yenner & Smith, Inc. v.

Ware, 24 S.Ct. 383, 389-390, (1973) and cases cited.

If the interest of a State in a particular area was strong encugh
to warrant bthe exercise of the State's regulatory authority, the State
oould act although its action had repercussions beyond State lines.

Steveng v. American Service Mutual Insurance Co., 234 A.2d 305 (p.C.

Court of Appeals - 1967); Osbomm v. Ozlin, 60 S.Ct. 758, 761 (1940);

-
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Alaska Packers Ass'n v. Industrial Acc. Com'n, 55 S.Ct. 518, 521 (1835).

During the early 1970's the Supreme Court repeatedly refused to
wvoid a State statute absent a clear Congressional intent to preempt the
field. The Court refused to presume that a federal statute was intended
to supersede the exercise ¢f the power of a State in that same area

wnless there was a clear manifestation on the part of Congress of its

intent to do so. See New York State Dept. of Social Services v. Dublino,

93 S.Ct. 2507, 2513 {(1973) and cases cited.

This apparent receptiveness of the Burger Court towards States'
rights lasted until the Jones decision of early 1977. This does not
necessarily mean that the "trend" is beginning to reverse itself once
again. What it does mean, at least in my opinion, is that all of us
must carefully watch the decisions of the late 1970'5_ in order to
ascertain vhere, in fact, "we are going". Hopefully, it will be along
the path of fedaral-State cooperation because this is what our system
of Government is all about. If we don't coop-rate, we, as a Nation,
are the ones who are going to suffer in the long run. I personally
believe that today's Court is very sensitive to this principle and will,
in fact, seck to preserve it by maintaining what it perceives to be a

"proper" BALANCE between State and federal relations.

WHERE DO WE GO?
Anyone who is able to answer this question with any degree of
certainty is probably endowed with powers of clairvoyance that could
make him a fortune. The best that I can do is make an educated guess

-l0-
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that over the next couple of years, we will most likely see a
resurgence of Court decisicns which dictate preemption in faver of the
federal government in those areas where the federal interest is
DEMONSTRABLY greater than the interest of a State or States in that
particular area. According to Justice Blackiun, one such area would
be that of ENVIRMNENTAL PROTECTION. , See his concurring opinion in

National league of Cities v. Usery, 426 U.S. 833, B56 (1976). The

majority opinion in National League of Cities, as well as its dissenting

opinions, make interesting reading for those of you who are inclined
t0 corpare the differing political philososhies of the Justices in
this arsa.

. But even in the area of environmental pretection, the Court is
not going to run roughshod over States' rights, as evidenced by the .
series of cases recently brought by Maryland, Pannsylilaxﬁa, the District
of Colurbia, Virginia, California, and Arizona against the EPA wherein

these States challonged EPA authority under the Clean Air Act. See

State of M.. v. Environmental Protectica Ac., 530 F.2d4 215 (4 Cir. 1975),

cert. granted 96 S.Ct. 2224 (1976); Comonwealth of Pa. v. Envirommental

Protection Agcy., 500 F.2d 246 (3 Cir. 1974); District of Coluibia v.

Train, 521 F.2d 971 (D.C. Cir. 1975), cert. granted 96 S5.Ct. 2224 (1976);
Drown v, Dowirenmontsl Protoction Mgency, 521 F.2d 827 (9 Cir. 1875),

cert. granted 96 S.Ct. 2224 {1976); and State of Arizona v. Envirommental

Protection Agcy., 521 F.28 825 (9 Cir. 1975}, cert. granted 96 S.Ct.
2224 (1976).

-11-
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The Supreme Court rendered its decision in these cases on May
" 2, 1977. It vacated the judgments of the respective Courts of Appeals
and remanded the cases for consideration of mootness on the ground
that the Government had renounced an intent to pursue certain regulations
which were challenged and had aﬁm}tted that the remaining regulations
in guestion were invalid unless modified in certain respescts. With
certain exceptions, the Courts of Appeals had invalidated the challenged
regulations.
At this point in time, I will turn the floor over to Mr. Hertz
and to Dr. Shutler who will giv= you their views on fedefal—State
relations in their respactive areas of expertise. When both gentlem